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Revenue

QOper ating expenses:
Engi neering design and devel opnent
General and administrative
Speci al charges

Total operating expenses
QO her inconme (expense):

Interest and i nvestnent income
Interest expense

Loss before income taxes
I ncome taxes:

Feder al

State
Net | oss

Preferred stock dividends
Preferred stock deened divi dends

SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Development Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTSOF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

For the Three Mnths Ended June 30,

(17, 256)
(11, 612)

6, 595

(698)

Accretion of dividends in connection wth

the issuance of warrants on preferred
st ock

Net | oss applicable to conmon stockhol ders $ (44, 982)

Net | oss per share applicable to

common st ockhol ders (basic and diluted) $

Wei ght ed average common shares
out standi ng (basic and dil uted)

(7,433)
(6, 454)

(7,522)
(2,278)

(34, 154)
(21, 490)

14,426

(20, 324)
(7,916)

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1

2002.

EDGAR Onl i ne,

I nc.

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

(14, 344)
(11, 418)

(14, 852)
(4,534)

Cunul ative for
the period
May 17, 1990
(date of inception)
to June 30, 2000

(73, 704)
(82, 418)
(27, 682)

43, 580

(191, 799)

(1,982)
(313)

(72, 363)
(75, 102)

(7,704)



SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Development Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share amounts)
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ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equival ents

Mar ket abl e securities, at market

Restricted investments, at anortized cost

Prepai d expenses and ot her

Total current assets

Property and equi pnent, at cost:
Satellites and | aunch vehicles
Broadcast studio equi prent
Leasehol d i nprovenents
Techni cal equi pment and ot her

Less: accurul at ed depreciation

O her assets:
FCC li cense
Debt issue costs, net
Deposits and ot her

Total other assets

Total assets

LI ABI LI TIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl e and accrued expenses
Satellite and | aunch construction payable
Short-term notes payabl e

Total current liabilities
Long-term notes payabl e and accrued interest
Deferred satellite paynents and accrued interest
Deferred inconme taxes
Total liabilities
Commi t nents and contingenci es:
10 1/ 2% Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, no par value: 2,025,000
shares authorized, none and 1, 248,776 shares issued and outstanding at
June 30, 2000 and Decenber 31, 1999,
of $0 and $124,878), at net carrying value including accrued dividends
9.2% Series A Junior Cunulative Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par
val ue: 4,300,000 shares authorized, 1,461,270 shares issued and
out standi ng at June 30, 2000 and Decenber 31, 1999 (Ili quidation
preference of $146, 127),
9.2% Series B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par
val ue: 2,100,000 shares authorized, 655,406 shares issued and
outstandi ng at June 30, 2000 and Decenber 31, 1999 (Iliquidation
preference of $65,541),
9.2% Series D Junior Cunulative Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par
val ue: 10, 700, 000 shares authorized, 2,000,000 shares issued and
out standi ng at June 30, 2000 (liquidation preference of $200,000), at
net carrying value including accrued divi dends

St ockhol ders' equity:

Preferred stock, $.001 par val ue: 50,000,000 shares authorized,
8, 000, 000 shares designated as 5% Del ayed Convertible Preferred
St ock, none issued or outstandi ng

Common stock, $.001 par value: 200,000,000 shares authorized,
41,907,601 and 28, 721,041 shares issued and outstandi ng at
June 30, 2000 and Decenber 31, 1999, respectively

Addi tional paid-in capital

Deficit accumul ated during the devel opment stage
Tot al

st ockhol ders' equity

Total liabilities and stockhol dere' enuitwv

Dywret Fr.mrwz".m

2002. EDGAR Onli ne,

respectively (liquidation preferences

at net carrying value including accrued dividends

at net carrying value including accrued dividends

June 30,
2000

(unaudi t ed)

$ 27,415
318, 663

54, 636
4,747

836, 293

(1,732)

$ 34, 208

49,125
453, 844
57,924
2,237

155, 504

67,312

200, 365

42

572, 312

(194, 094)

Decenber 31,
1999

$ 81, 809
317, 810

67, 454

741

(880)

$ 30, 454
19, 275
114, 075

163, 804
488, 835
55, 140
2,237

149, 285

148, 894

64, 238

29

268, 641
(134, 491)



The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Development Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

Cumul ative for
the period
May 17, 1990

(date of inception)

2000 1999 to June 30, 2000
Cash flows from devel opment stage activities:
Net | oss $ (59, 603) $ (23, 045) (194, 094)
Adj ustments to reconcile net |oss to net cash provided by
(used in) devel opnent stage activities:
Depreci ati on expense 979 246 2,143
Unrealized (gain) |loss on marketabl e securities (968) 181 (4, 850)
Loss on di sposal of assets 249 10 364
Speci al charges -- -- 25, 557
Accretion of notes payable charged as interest expense 38,498 20, 553 122, 563
Conpensati on expense in connection wth
i ssuance of Common Stock and stock options 3,742 659 8, 284
Expense incurred in connection with induced conversion of 12, 655 - - 14, 431
I ncrease (decrease) in cash and cash equival ents
resulting fromchanges in assets and liabilities:
Prepai d expenses and ot her (4, 006) (769) (4, 747)
Due to related party -- -- 351
O her assets (11, 332) (2,046) (17, 388)
Accounts payabl e and accrued expenses (15, 619) 6, 632 (6,048)
Def erred taxes -- -- , 237
Net cash provided by (used in) devel opnment stage activities (35, 405) 2,421 (51, 197)
Cash flows frominvesting activities:
Sal es (purchases) of marketable securities and restricted
investnents, net 12, 615 (59, 141) (368, 754)
Purchase of FCC l|icense -- -- (83, 368)
Paynents for construction of satellites and |aunch vehicles (200, 541) (102, 143) (723, 068)
Gt her capital expenditures (14, 434) (25, 649) (67, 467)
Acqui sition of Sky-H ghway Radio Corp. -- -- (2,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (202, 360) (186, 933) (1, 244, 657)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds fromissuance of notes payable 1,882 24,663 253, 144
Proceeds fromissuance of Common Stock, net 100, 100 67 361, 880
Proceeds fromissuance of preferred stock, net 192, 450 - - 505, 418
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants 4,896 699 11, 479
Proceeds fromissuance of prom ssory notes
and units, net - - 190, 000 306, 535
Proceeds fromissuance of prom ssory notes to
related parties -- -- 2,965
Repaynment of promi ssory notes - - -- (2,635)
Repaynent of notes payabl e (115, 957) -- (115, 957)
Loan from of ficer -- -- 440
Net cash provided by financing activities 183, 371 215, 429 1, 323, 269
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (54, 394) 30, 917 27, 415
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 81, 809 204, 753 --
Cash and cash equival ents at the end of period $ 27, 415 $ 235,670 $ 27,415
The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
3
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SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollar amounts in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
(Unaudited)

General

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto do not include all of theinformation and disclosures normally
included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments (consisting only of normal, recurring adjustments) considered necessary to fairly state our consolidated financial position and
consolidated results of operations have been included. These financial statements should be read in connection with our consolidated financial
statements and the notesthereto for thefiscal year ended December 31, 1999 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Net LossPer Share

Basic loss per share is based on the weighted average number of outstanding shares of our Common Stock. Diluted loss per share adjusts the
weighted average for the potentia dilution that could occur if common stock equivalents(i.e. convertible stock, convertible debt, warrants and
stock options) wereexercised or converted into Common Stock. As of June 30, 2000 and 1999, approximately 21,347,000 and 13,849,000
common stock equivalentswere outstanding, respectively, and were excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share, as they were
antidilutive.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of fixed income securities and are stated at market value. Marketable securities are defined as trading securities
under the provision of SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investmentsin Debt and Equity Securities' ("SFAS No. 115"), and unrealized
holding gains and losses are reflected in earnings. Unrealized holding gains were $4,489 and $3,882 at June 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999,

respectively.
Restricted I nvestments

Restricted investments consist of fixed income securities and are stated at amortized cost plus accrued interest. Restricted investments are
defined as held-to-maturity securities under the provision of SFAS No. 115 and unrealized holding gainsand losses are not reflected in
earnings. Unrealized holding losses were $598 and $716 at June 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999, respectively. The securities included in
restricted investmentsare restricted to provide for the payment of interest due on our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009 through May 15,
2002.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and include interest on funds borrowed to finance construction. Capitalized interest was $110,509
and $72,810 at June 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999, respectively.
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SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (continued)
(Dollar amounts in thousands, unless otherwise stated)
(Unaudited)

Short-Term Notes Payable

We entered into a credit agreement with Bank of America and other lendersin July 1998 under which Bank of Americaand other lenders
provided usa $115,000 termloan. The proceeds of thisfacility wereused to fund progress payments for the purchase of launch services and to
pay interest, fees and other related expenses. On February 29, 2000, we repaid these loansand cancelled the related credit agreement.

Deferred Satellite Payments
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Under an amended and restated contract (the "Loral Satellite Contract") with Space Systems/Loral, Inc. ("Lora"), Lora has deferred certain
amounts due under the Loral Satellite Contract. The amounts deferred bear interest at 10% per year and are due in quarterly installments
beginning in June 2002. We havetheright to prepay these deferred payments, together with accrued interest, without penalty.

Engineering Design and Development Costs

We have entered into an agreement with Lucent Technologies, Inc. ("Lucent") pursuant to which Lucent hasagreed to use commercially
reasonable efforts to deliver integrated circuits ("chip sets') which will be usedin consumer electronic devices capable of receiving our
broadcasts. In addition, we have entered into agreementswith various equipment manufacturers, including Alpine Electronics Inc., Audiovox
Corporation, Clarion Co., Ltd., Delphi Delco Electronics Systems, Kenwood Corporation, Matsushita Communication Industrial Corporation of
USA, Pioneer Corporation, Mitsubishi Electric Automotive America, Inc., Recoton Corporation, Sanyo Electronic Co. Ltd., Visteon
Automotive Systemsand other contract manufacturers, to design and develop radios and have agreed to pay certain development costs of these
radios. We record expenses under these agreementsas the work is performed. Total expensesrelated to these agreements were $12,587, $6,398
and $51,121 for the three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 and for the period May 17, 1990 (date of inception) to June 30, 2000,

respectively.
Reclassifications
Certain amountsin theprior period'sfinancial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

5
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SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Resultsof Operations
(Dollar amounts in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Special Note Regar ding Forward-L ooking Statements

The following cautionary statements identify important factors that could cause our actua results to differ materially from those projected in
forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in other reports and documents published by usfrom timeto time.
Any statements about our expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions, future events or performance arenot historical facts and may be
"forward-looking" withinthe meaning of the Private SecuritiesLitigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are often, but not always, made
through the use of words or phrases such as "will likely result," "are expected to," "will continue," "is anticipated,” "estimated,” "intends,"
"plans,”" "projection” and "outlook." Accordingly, these statementsinvolve estimates, assumptionsand uncertainties that could cause our actual
resultsto differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statements are qualified in their
entirety by reference to other factors discussed throughout our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 (the "1999
Form 10-K"), and particularly the risk factors set forth under the caption "Business-Risk Factors® in Part | of the 1999 Form 10-K. Among the
significant factors that have adirect bearing on our results of operations are:

-- unavailability of radios and antennas and our dependence upon third parties to design, develop, manufacture and distribute radios and
antennas;

-- our dependence on Loral for construction and launch of our satellites;

-- the potential risk of delay in implementing our business plan;

-- risk of launch failure;

-- unproven market for our service and unproven applications of technology; and

-- our need for additional financing.

Because therisk factorsreferred to above could cause actual resultsor outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any
forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf, you should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Further,
any forward-looking statements speak only asof the date on which such statement is made, and we undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statement or statementsto reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for usto predict whichwill arise. In addition,
we cannot assess theimpact of each such factor on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actua

resultsto differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.

6
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Overview

Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. ("Sirius Radio") was organized in May 1990 and isin its development stage. Our principa activities to date have
included developing our technology, obtaining regulatory approval for our service, commencing construction of four satellites, constructing our
production and broadcast facility, acquiring content for our programming, developing our ground repeater system, arranging for the design and
development of radios, strategic planning, market research, recruiting our management team and securing financing for capital expenditures and
working capital. We will require fundsfor working capital, interest on borrowings, acquisition of programming, financing costs and operating
expenses until sometime after we commence operations. We cannot assure you that we will ever commence operations, that we will attain any
particular level of revenues or that we will achieve profitability.

Upon commencing operations, we expect our primary source of revenues to be subscription fees. We currently anticipate that our subscription
fee will be $9.95 per month, with a one time activation fee per subscriber. Inaddition, we expect to derive revenues from directly sellingor
bartering advertising on our non-music channels. We do not expect to recognize revenues from operations until thefirst quarter of 2001, at the
earliest. We do not intend to manufacture the radios necessary to receive our service and thus we do not expect to receive any revenuesfrom
their sale.

We expect that the operating expenses associated with our servicewill consist primarily of marketing, sales, programming, maintenance of our
satellite and broadcasting system and general and administrative costs. Costs to acquire programming are expected to include payments to build
and maintain an extensive music library and royalty paymentsfor broadcasting music (which are likely to be calculated based on a percentage
of revenues). As of August 7, 2000, we had 135 employees. By commencement of operations, we expect to have approximately 200 employees.

On June 30, 2000, our first satellite, Sirius-1, was successfully launched. Loral deliveredtitleto Sirius-1 to uson July 31, 2000, following the
completion of in-orbit testing. Our second satellite, Sirius-2, arrived at thelaunch site in Kazakhstan on August 6, 2000 and is expected to be
launched between September 5, 2000 and September 15, 2000. Our third satellite, Sirius-3, is expected to be launched in October 2000.
Sirius-4, our spare satellite, previously scheduled for delivery to ground storage in December 2000, will be delayed. A revised delivery date for
Sirius-4 is expected in the next few weeks.

Resultsof Operations
Three Months Ended June 30, 2000 Compared with Three Months Ended June 30, 1999

We had net losses of $34,792 and $12,601 for thethree monthsended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Our total operating expenseswere
$28,868 and $13,887 for thethree monthsended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Engineering design and development costswere $17,256 and $7,433 for thethree monthsended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Engineering costsincurred in the 2000 quarter and the 1999 quarter represented primarily paymentsto Lucent and consumer electronic
manufacturersin connection with our radio development efforts. The increase in these costs in the 2000 quarter resulted primarily from the
increased activity in the radio development effort aswe prepare to launch our service.

General and administrative expenses increased for the three monthsended June 30, 2000 to $11,612 from $6,454 for the three months ended
June 30, 1999. General and administrative expenses increased due to the occupancy of our national broadcast studiosand the growth of our
management team and workforce. The major components of general and administrative expenses in the 2000 quarter were salaries and
employment related costs (48%) and rent and occupancy costs (12%), whilein the 1999 quarter the major components were salaries and
employment related costs (32%) and rent and occupancy costs (21%). The remaining portion of
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general and administrative expenses (40% in the 2000 quarter and 47% in the 1999 quarter) consisted of other costs such aslegal and
regulatory, insurance, marketing, consulting, travel, depreciation and supplies, with no such amount exceeding 10% of thetotal in the 2000
quarter and only legal and regulatory costs (13%) exceeding 10% of the total inthe 1999 quarter.

The increase in interest and investment incometo $6,595 for the three months ended June 30, 2000 from $3,536 for the three monthsended
June 30, 1999 wasthe result of higher average balances of cash, marketable securities and restricted investments during the 2000 quarter. The
higher average balances of cash, marketable securities and restricted investmentsduring the 2000 quarter were dueto the proceeds from
financing activitiesin 1999 and 2000, including the issuance of our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notesdue 2009, 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated
Notes due 2009, 9.2% Series B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, 9.2% Series D Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
and 5,740,322 shares of our Common Stock.

Interest expense was $12,519 for the three months ended June 30, 2000 and $2,250 for thethree monthsended June 30, 1999, net of capitalized
interest of $20,181 and $13,265, respectively. The increase in interest expensein the 2000 quarter wasrelated primarily to theinduced
conversion of a portion of our 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009. Gross interest expenseincreased by an amount ($17,185) less
than the corresponding increase in capitalized interest ($6,916). The increase in gross interest expense for the 2000 quarter wasdue to interest
accruing onour 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009 issued in May 1999 and our 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 issued
in September and October 1999.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2000 Compar ed with Six Months Ended June 30, 1999

We had net losses of $59,603 and $23,045 for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Our total operating expenses were
$55,644 and $25,762 for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Engineering design and devel opment costs were $34,154 and $14,344 for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Engineering costsincurred in the 2000 period and the 1999 period represented primarily paymentsto Lucent and payments to consumer
electronic manufacturersin connection with our radio development efforts. The increase in these costs in the 2000 period resulted primarily
from theincreased activity in theradio development effort as we prepare to launch our service.

General and administrative expenses increased for the six monthsended June 30, 2000 to $21,490 from $11,418 for the six months ended June
30, 1999. Genera and administrative expenses increased due to the occupancy of our nationa broadcast studios and the growth of our
management team and workforce. The major components of general and administrative expenses in the 2000 period were salaries and
employment related costs (47%) and rent and occupancy costs (13%), whilein the 1999 period the major components weresaaries and
employment related costs (30%) and rent and occupancy costs (25%). The remaining portion of general and administrative expenses (40% in
the 2000 period and 45% in the 1999 period) consisted of other costs such as legal and regulatory, insurance, marketing, consulting, travel,
depreciation and supplies, withonly marketing expenses (11%) exceeding 10% of the total in the 2000 period and only legal and regulatory
costs (14%) exceeding 10% of thetotal in the 1999 period.

The increase in interest and investment incometo $14,426 for the six monthsended June 30, 2000 from $6,400 for the six monthsended June
30, 1999 was theresult of higher average balances of cash, marketable securities and restricted investments during the 2000 period. The higher
average balances of cash, marketable securities and restricted investments during the 2000 period were due to the proceeds from financing
activitiesin 1999 and 2000, including the issuance of our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009, 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due
2009, 9.2% SeriesB Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, 9.2% Series D Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and
5,740,322 shares of our Common Stock.
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Interest expense was $18,385 for the six monthsended June 30, 2000 and $3,683 for the six months ended June 30, 1999, net of capitalized
interest of $37,699 and $23,392, respectively. The increase in interest expensefor the 2000 period was related primarily to the induced
conversion of a portion of our 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009. Gross interest expenseincreased by an amount ($29,009)
greater than the corresponding increase in capitalized interest ($14,307). The increase in grossinterest expense for the 2000 period was due to
interest accruing on our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009 issued in May 1999 and our 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009
issuedin September and October 1999.

Liquidity and Capital Resour ces

At June 30, 2000, we had cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and restricted investments totaling $400,714 and working capital of
$356,336 compared with cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and restricted investments totaling $467,073 and working capital of
$304,010 at December 31, 1999.

Funding Requirements

We believe we can fund our planned operations, including the construction of our broadcast system, into the fourth quarter of 2001 from our
existing working capital and the Lehman Term Loan Facility (as defined in " Sources of Funding” below). We anticipate that we will require
approximately $75,000 to fund our operations during the balance of 2001, although this amount is subject to a number of factors affecting our
operations. Inaddition, we may require additional fundsuntil our revenues grow substantially.

To build and launch the satellites necessary to transmit our service we entered into the Loral Satellite Contract. The Loral Satellite Contract
provides for Loral to construct, launch and deliver three satellites in-orbit and checked-out, to construct for usa fourth satellitefor use asa
ground spare and to provide satellite launch services. We are committed to make aggregate payments of approximately $745,040 under the
Loral Satellite Contract, whichincludes $15,000 of long-lead time parts for a fifth satellite and $3,400 for integration analysis of theviability of
using the Sea Launch platform as an aternative launch vehicle for our satellites. Asof June 30, 2000, $587,087 of this obligation had been
satisfied. Under the Loral Satellite Contract, with the exception of a payment made to Loral in March 1993, payments are made in installments
that commenced in April 1997 and will end in December 2003. Approximately half of all paymentsunder the Lora Satellite Contract are
contingent upon Loral meeting specified milestones.

We also will require fundsfor working capital, interest on borrowings, acquisition of programming, financing costs and operating expenses
until sometime after we commence operations. We expect our interest expense will increase significantly when compared to our 1999 interest
expense asaresult of theissuance of our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009 in May 1999 and our 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated
Notes due 2009 in September and October 1999. A portion of the net proceeds of theissuance of our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009
was used to purchase a portfolio of U.S. government securities in an amount sufficient to pay interest on these notes through May 15, 2002.

The amount and timing of our actual cash requirements will depend upon numerous factorsincluding costs associated with the construction and
deployment of our satellite system and ground repeater network, costs associated with thedesign and development of chip setsand radios, the
rate of growth of our business after commencing service, costs of financing and the possibility of unanticipated costs. We will require additional
fundsif there are delays, cost overruns, unanticipated expenses, launch failures, satellite system or launch services change orders or any
shortfallsin estimated levels of operating cash flow.
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Sour ces of Funding

To date, wehave funded our capital needs through the issuance of debt and equity securities. As of June 30, 2000 we had received a total of
approximately $874,000 in equity capital as aresult of thefollowing transactions: (1) the sale of shares of our Common Stock prior to the
issuance of our FCC license (net proceeds of approximately $22,000); (2) the sale of 5,400,000 shares of 5% Delayed Convertible Preferred
Stock (net proceeds of approximately $121,000) in April 1997 (in November 1997, we exchanged 1,846,799 shares of our 10 1/2% Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock for al the outstanding shares of 5% Delayed Convertible Preferred Stock); (3) the sale of 4,955,488 shares of our
Common Stock (net proceeds of approximately $71,000) in 1997; (4) thesale of 5,000,000 shares of our Common Stock to Prime 66 Partners,
L.P. (net proceeds of approximately $98,000) in November 1998; (5) the sale of 1,350,000 shares of our 9.2% SeriesA Junior Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock to the Apollo Investment Fund 1V, L.P. and Apollo Overseas Partners IV, L.P. (collectively, the "Apollo
Investors") (net proceeds of approximately $129,000) in December 1998; (6) the sale of 650,000 shares of our 9.2% Series B Junior
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock to the Apollo Investors (net proceeds of approximately $63,000) in November 1999;

(7) the sale of 3,000,000 shares of our Common Stock in an underwritten public offering (net proceeds of approximately $68,000) in September
1999, and an additional 450,000 shares of our Common Stock in connection with the exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option (net
proceeds of approximately $10,000) in October 1999; (8) the sale of 2,000,000 shares of our 9.2% Series D Junior Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock to certain affiliates of The Blackstone Group, L.P. (net proceeds of approximately $192,000) in January 2000; and (9) the sdle
of 2,290,322 shares of our Common Stock to DaimlerChrysler Corporation (net proceeds of approximately $100,000) in February 2000.

In September 1999, we issued $125,000 aggregate principal amount of our 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 in an
underwritten public offering (net proceeds of approximately $119,000). In October 1999, we issued an additional $18,750 aggregate principal
amount of our 8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 to the underwriters of this offering in connection with their over-allotment
option (net proceeds of approximately $18,000). In May 1999, we received net proceeds of approximately $190,000 from the issuance of
200,000 units, each consisting of $1 aggregate principal amount of our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009 and three warrants, each to
purchase 3.947 shares of our Common Stock (as of June 30, 2000). The warrantsare exercisable through May 15, 2009 at an exercise price of
$26.45 per share (as of June 30, 2000). We invested approximately $79,300 of these net proceeds in a portfolio of U.S. government securities,
whichwe pledged assecurity for payment in full of interest on the 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009 through May 15, 2002. In
November 1997, we received net proceeds of $116,000 from theissuance of 12,910 units, each consisting of $20 aggregate principal amount at
maturity of our 15% Senior Secured Discount Notes due 2007 and a warrant to purchase additional 15% Senior Secured Discount Notes due
2007 with anaggregate principal amount at maturity of $3. All of these warrantswere exercised in 1997. The aggregate value at maturity of our
15% Senior Secured Discount Notes due 2007 is approximately $297,000. Our 15% Senior Secured Discount Notes due 2007 mature on
December 1, 2007 and the first cash interest payment is due in June 2003. The indentures governing our 14 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due
2009 and our 15% Senior Secured Discount Notes due 2007 contain limitations on our ability to incur additional indebtedness and are secured
by a pledge of the stock of Satellite CD Radio Inc., our subsidiary that holds our FCC license. In April 2000, we acquired $52,906 of our 8
3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 in exchange for shares of our Common Stock.

In July 1998, we entered into aterm loan agreement witha group of financial institutions pursuant to which these lenders provided us $115,000
of termloans. The proceeds of theseloans were used to fund a portion of the progress payments required to be made by usunder the L oral
Satellite Contract for the purchase of launch services and to pay interest, fees and other expenses related to these loans. On February 29, 2000,
we repaid theseloans and cancelled the related credit agreement.
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Lora has deferred atotal of $50,000 of paymentsunder the Loral Satellite Contract originally scheduled for payment in 1999. These deferred
amounts bear interest at 10% per year and all interest on thesedeferred amounts will accrue until December 2001, at which time interest will be
payable quarterly in cash. The principal amounts of thedeferred paymentsunder the Loral Satellite Contract are required to be paid in six
installments between June 2002 and December 2003. Ascollateral security for these deferred payments, we have granted Loral a security
interest in our ground repeater network. If thereisa satellite or launch failure, we will be required to pay Lora thedeferred amount related to
the affected satellite no later than 120 daysafter the date of thefailure. If we elect to put one of our first three satellites into ground storage,
rather than having it shipped to the launch site, the deferred amount related to that satellite would become due within 60 days of this election.

In June 2000, we entered into an agreement with Lehman Commercia Paper Inc. ("Lehman™) and Lehman Brothers Inc. pursuant to which
Lehman agreed to provide a term loan facility (the "Lehman Term Loan Facility") for us in the aggregate principal amount of $150,000. The
loans under the Lehman Term Loan Facility will be made available to us upon our successful launch of asecond satellite, the demonstration of
our broadcast system and upon satisfaction of certain customary conditions, and the proceeds will be used for working capital, capital
expenditures and general corporate purposes. In connection with the Lehman Term Loan Facility, we placed into escrow, for the benefit of
Lehman, 1,050,000 warrants, each to purchase one share of our Common Stock. The exercise price of 525,000 of these warrants (the "First
Tranche Warrants') is $44.46 per share. The exercise price of the remaining 525,000 warrants (the "Second Tranche Warrants') will be equal
to 110% of the twenty trading day trailing average price of our Common Stock on the date that is twenty trading daysafter we taketitle to a
second satellite under the Loral Satellite Contract (or an earlier date if Lehman makes available to ustheloans under, or we elect to terminate,
the Lehman Term Loan Facility). We expect these warrantsto be released from escrow and become exercisable by Lehman when theloans
under the Lehman Term Loan Facility are made available to us. If, however, we exercise our option to extend Lehman's commitment to make
the loans under the Lehman Term Loan Facility, the First Tranche Warrants will be released and become exercisable by Lehman; or, if we
terminate the Lehman Term Loan Facility on or prior to November 30, 2000, the First Tranche Warrants and one third of the Second Tranche
Warrants will be released and become exercisable by Lehman.

Shares of our 9.2% Series A Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and 9.2% Series B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
are convertible into shares of our Common Stock at a price of $30.00 per share. Shares of our 9.2% Series A Junior Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock and

9.2% Series B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock are callable by us beginning November 15, 2001 at a price of 100% if the current
market price, as defined in the Certificate of Designation of the 9.2% SeriesA Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and 9.2% Series
B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, of our Common Stock exceeds $60.00 per sharefor a period of 20 consecutive trading days,
will be calablein all events beginning November 15, 2003 at a price of 100% and must be redeemed by us on November 15, 2011. Dividends
onour 9.2% Series A Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and

9.2% Series B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock are payablein kind or in cash annually, a our option. Holders of our 9.2% Series
A Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and 9.2% Series B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock have the right to vote, on
an as-converted basis, on mattersin which the holdersof our Common Stock have theright to vote.

Shares of our 9.2% Series D Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible into shares of our Common Stock at a price of
$34.00 per share. Shares of our 9.2% SeriesD Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock are callable by us beginning December 23, 2002
at aprice of 100% if the current market price, as defined in the Certificate of Designation of the 9.2% Series D Junior Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock, of our Common Stock exceeds $68.00 per share for a period of 20 consecutive trading days, will be callable in all events
beginning December 23, 2004 at a price of 100% and must be redeemed by us on November 15, 2011. Dividends on our 9.2% Series D Junior
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock are payablein kind orin cash annually, at our option. Holders of our 9.2% Series D Junior Cumulative
Convertible

11

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




Preferred Stock have the right to vote, on an as-converted basis, on mattersin which the holders of our Common Stock have the right to vote.

On March 3, 2000, we notified the holders of our 10 1/2% Series C Convertible Preferred Stock andthe holders of all outstanding warrants to
purchase shares of our 10 1/2% Series C Convertible Preferred Stock that on April 12, 2000 we would redeem these securities. Asof April 12,
2000, al of the outstanding warrantsto purchase shares of our 10 1/2% Series C Convertible Preferred Stock had been exercised and all of the

outstanding shares of our 10 1/2% Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (including those shares received upon the exercise of such warrants)
had been converted into shares of our Common Stock.

12
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Item 6. Exhibits and Reportson Form 8-K
(a) Exhibits:

See Exhibit Index attached hereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, theregistrant has duly caused this report to be signed onits behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.

By: /sl Edward Weber, Jr.

Edward Weber, Jr.
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting
Oficer)

August 14, 2000
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EXH BI T

3.1.1

to

3.1.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

to

3.5.1

of

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.6

3.7

EXHIBIT INDEX

DESCRI PTI ON

Certificate of Amendnent, dated June 16, 1997, to the
Conpany's Certificate of Incorporation and the Conpany's
Anended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated
January 31, 1994 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1

the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 1999).

Certificate of Omership and Merger nerging Sirius Satellite
Radio Inc. into CD Radio Inc. dated Novenber 18, 1999
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Conpany's
Regi stration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-31362)).

Anended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Conpany's Registration Statenment on Form
S-1 (File No. 33-74782) (the "S-1 Registration Statenent")).

Certificate of Designations of 5% Del ayed Convertible
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24
to the Conpany's Annual Report on Form 10-K/ A for the year
ended Decenber 31, 1996 (the "1996 Form 10-K")).

Form of Certificate of Designations of Series B Preferred
Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit Ato Exhibit 1

the Conpany's Registration Statenment on Form 8-A filed on
Cct ober 30, 1997 (the "Form 8-A")).

Form of Certificate of Designations, Preferences and
Rel ative, Participating, Optional and Ot her Special Rights

10 1/2% Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series C
Certificate of Designations") (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Conpany's Registration Statement on Form
S-4 (File No. 333-34761)).

Certificate of Correction to Series C Certificate of

Desi gnations (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5.2 to
the Conpany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
Decenmber 31, 1997 (the "1997 Form 10-K")).

Certificate of Increase of 10 1/2% Series C Convertible
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5.3
to the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 1998).

Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rel ative,
Participating, Optional and O her Special Rights of the
Conpany's 9.2% Series A Junior Cunulative Convertible
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to
the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended Septenber 30, 1999).

Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rel ative,
Participating, Optional and O her Special R ghts of the
Conpany's 9.2% Series B Junior Cunmul ative Convertible
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to
the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended Septenber 30, 1999).
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EXH BI T

to

4.2

4.3

on

4.6.1

4.6.3

1998) .
4.6.4

4.6.5

Exhi bi t

4.6.6

filed

DESCRI PTI ON

Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rel ative,
Participating, Optional and O her Special R ghts of the
Conpany's 9.2% Series D Junior Cumul ative Convertible
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2

the Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Decenber
29, 1999).

Form of Certificate for shares of Comon Stock (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the S-1 Registration
Statenent).

Form of Certificate for shares of 10 1/2% Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to the Conpany's Registration Statement on Form
S-4 (File No. 333-34761)).

Form of Certificate for shares of 9.2% Series A Junior
Cunul ative Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.10.1 to the Conpany's Annual Report

Form 10-K for the year ended Decenmber 31, 1998 (the "1998
Form 10-K")).

Form of Certificate for shares of 9.2% Series B Junior
Cunul ative Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.10.2 to the 1998 Form 10-K).

Form of Certificate for shares of 9.2% Series D Junior
Cunul ative Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Conpany's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended Decenber 31, 1999 (1999 Form
10-K).

Ri ghts Agreenent, dated as of Cctober 22, 1997 (the "Rights
Agreement "), between the Conpany and Continental Stock
Transfer & Trust Conpany, as rights agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 1 to the Form 8-A).

Form of Right Certificate (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit B to Exhibit 1 to the Form 8-A).

Anendnment to the Rights Agreenent dated as of Cctober 13,
1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 13,

Anendnment to the Rights Agreenent dated as of Novenmber 13,
1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.7 to the
Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novenber 17,
1998) .

Anended and Restated Anendnment to the Rights Agreenent dated
as of Decenber 22, 1998 (incorporated by reference to

6 to the Anendnment No. 1 to the Form 8-A filed on January 6,
1999) .

Anendnment to the Rights Agreenent dated as of June 11, 1999
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1.8 to the Company's
Regi stration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-82303)

on July 2, 1999 (the "1999 Units Registration Statenment")).
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EXH BI T DESCRI PTI ON

4.6.7 Amendnent to the Rights Agreenent dated as of Septenber 29,
1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Cctober 13,
1999).

4.6.8 Amendrent to the Rights Agreenent dated as of Decenber 23,
1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the
Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Decenber 29,

1999).

4.6.9 Amendnent to the R ghts Agreenent dated as of January 28,
2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6.9 to the 1999
Form 10- K).

4.7 I ndenture, dated as of Novenber 26, 1997, between the Conpany

and I BJ Schroder Bank & Trust Conpany, as trustee, relating
to the Conpany's 15% Seni or Secured Notes due 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Conpany's
Regi stration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-34769) (the
"1997 Units Registration Statement")).

4.8 Form of 15% Seni or Secured Note due 2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the 1997 Units Registration
St at enent).

4.9 Warrant Agreenent, dated as of Novenber 26, 1997, between the

Conpany and |1 BJ Schroder Bank & Trust Conpany, as warrant
agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the 1997
Units Registration Statenent).

4.10 Form of Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to
the 1997 Units Registration Statenent).

4.11 Form of Preferred Stock Warrant Agreenent, dated as of
April 9, 1997, between the Conpany and each warrant hol der
t hereof (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to the
1997 Form 10-K).

4.12 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant granted by the Conpany
to Everest Capital Master Fund, L.P. and to The Ravich
Revocabl e Trust of 1989 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.11 to the 1997 Form 10-K).

4.13 I ndenture, dated as of May 15, 1999, between the Conpany and
United States Trust Conpany of New York, as trustee, relating
to the Conpany's 14 1/2% Seni or Secured Notes due 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4.2 to the 1999 Units
Regi stration Statenent).

4.14 Form of 14 1/2% Seni or Secured Notes due 2009 (incorporated
by
reference to Exhibit 4.4.2 to the 1999 Units Registration
St at enent).
4.15 I ndenture, dated as of Septenber 29, 1999, between the

Conpany and United States Trust Company of Texas, N A,
relating to the Conpany's 8 3/4% Convertible Subordi nated

Not es due 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
t he )Corrpany‘s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 13,
1999).
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EXH BI T

4.16
1999,

Texas,

filed

4.17

11,

4,18

4.20
15,

4.21

by

4.22
Comer ci al

Paper

4.23

4. 24

ref erence

4.25

9.1

on

DESCRI PTI ON

Fi rst Suppl emental Indenture, dated as of Septenber 29,
between the Conpany and United States Trust Conpany of

N.A, relating to the Conpany's 8 3/4% Convertible
Subor di nat ed Notes due 2009 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K

on Cctober 1, 1999).

Form of 8 3/4% Convertible Subordi nated Notes due 2009
(incorporated by reference to Article VIl of Exhibit 4.01 to
the Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Cctober

1999) .

Warrant Agreenent, dated as of May 15, 1999, between the
Conpany and United States Trust Conpany of New York, as
warrant agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4.4 to
the 1999 Units Registration Statenent).

Anended and Restated Pledge Agreenent, dated as of May 15,
1999, anong the Conpany, as pledgor, 1BJ Whitehall Bank &
Trust Conpany, as trustee, United States Trust Conpany of

York, as trustee, and IBJ Witehall Bank & Trust Conpany, as
col l ateral agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4.5

to the 1999 Units Registration Statenent).
Col l ateral Pledge and Security Agreenment, dated as of My

1999, between the Conpany, as pledgor, and United States
Trust Conpany of New York, as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4.6 to the 1999 Units Registration

St at enent) .

Intercreditor Agreenent, dated May 15, 1999, by and between
I BJ Wiitehall Bank & Trust Conpany, as trustee, and United
States Trust Conpany of New York, as trustee (incorporated

reference to Exhibit 4.4.7 to the 1999 Units Registration
St at enent) .

Term Loan Agreenent, dated as of June 1, 2000, anong the
Conpany, Lehman Brothers Inc., as arranger, Lehnman

Paper Inc., as syndication agent, and Lehman Conmerci al
Inc., as administrative agent (filed herewith).

Warrant Agreenment, dated as of June 1, 2000, between the
Conpany and United States Trust Conpany of New York, as
warrant agent and escrow agent (filed herewith).

Common St ock Purchase Warrant granted by the Conpany to Ford
Mot or Conpany, dated June 11, 1999 (incorporated by

to Exhibit 4.4.2 to the 1999 Units Registration Statenent).

Conmon St ock Purchase Warrant granted by the Conpany to

Dai M er Chrysl er Corporation, dated January 28, 2000
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.23 to the 1999 Form
10- K) .

Votin~ Truet Anraement, dated as of August 26, 1997, by and
anmon™ "8 p0s edbend, Eea@oarnter .1 Pavi d Mar gol ese, as
Trustee, and the Conpany (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit (c) to the Conpany's Issuer Tender O fer Statenent
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EXH BI T

10.1.2

"D 10. 2

*10. 3

to

*10. 4

r ef erence

*10.5
t he

*10. 6
t he

to
*10. 7
t he
Exhi bi t

*10.8
t he

10.9

*10. 10

*10. 11

*10.12

DESCRI PTI ON

Lease Agreenment, dated as of March 31, 1998, between
Rock-McGaw, Inc. and the Conpany (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1.2 to the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998).

Suppl enental | ndenture, dated as of March 22, 2000, between
Rock-McG aw, Inc. and the Conpany (incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.1.2 to the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000).

Amended and Restated Contract, dated as of June 30, 1998,
bet ween the Conpany and Space Systens/Loral, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Conpany's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q A for the quarter ended June
30, 1998).

Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of January 1, 1999, between
t he Conpany and David Margol ese (incorporated by reference

Exhibit 10.6 to the 1998 Form 10-K).

Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of Decenber 31, 1999, between
the Conpany and Robert D. Briskman (incorporated by

to Exhibit 10.4 to the 1999 Form 10-K).
Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of March 28, 2000, between

Conpany and Joseph S. Capobi anco (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of March 28, 2000, between
Conpany and Patrick L. Donnelly (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.6 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of March 28, 2000, between
Conpany and Ira H Bahr (incorporated by reference to
10.7 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of April 17, 2000, between

Conpany and Dr. Mrcho Davidov (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2000).

Regi strati on Agreenent, dated January 2, 1994, between the
Conpany and M A. Rothblatt and B. A Rothblatt (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the S-1 Registration

St at enent) .

1994 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.21 to the S-1 Registration Statenent).

Anended and Restated 1994 Directors' Nonqualified Stock
Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to
t he Conpany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
Decenber 31, 1995).

CD Radi o Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan (incorporated by reference

to Evkihit 2 4 +45 the Conpany's Registration Statenment on
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EXH BI T

10. 14

10.15.1
1996,

*10. 13

10. 14

10.15.1

1996,

10.15. 2

10.15. 3

10. 16

dat ed

10. 17
t he

10.18.1
t he

10.18. 2

10. 19

DESCRI PTI ON

Sirius Satellite Radio 1999 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Conpany's
Regi stration Statenment on Form S-8 (File No. 333-31362)).

Form of Option Agreement, dated as of December 29, 1997,
bet ween the Conpany and each Optionee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16.2 to the Conpany's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998).

Preferred Stock Investnent Agreenent, dated Cctober 23,

bet ween the Conpany and certain investors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the 1996 Form 10-K).

Sirius Satellite Radio 1999 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company's
Regi stration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-31362)).

Form of Option Agreenment, dated as of Decenber 29, 1997,
bet ween the Conpany and each Optionee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16.2 to the Conmpany's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998).

Preferred Stock Investnent Agreenent, dated Cctober 23,

bet ween the Conpany and certain investors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the 1996 Form 10-K).

First Arendnent to Preferred Stock | nvestnent Agreenent,
dated March 7, 1997, between the Conpany and certain

i nvestors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24.1 to
the 1996 Form 10-K).

Second Anendnent to Preferred Stock I|nvestment Agreenent,
dated March 14, 1997, between the Conpany and certain

i nvestors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24.2 to
the 1996 Form 10-K).

Letter, dated May 29, 1998, terninating Launch Services
Agreement dated July 22, 1997 between the Company and
Arianespace S.A.; Arianespace Custoner Loan Agreenents dated
July 22, 1997 for Launches #1 and #2 between the Conpany and
Ari anespace Finance S.A ; and the Miltiparty Agreenents

July 22, 1997 for Launches #1 and #2 anobng the Conpany,

Ari anespace S. A and Arianespace Finance S.A (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Conpany's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998).

Summary Term Sheet/ Commitnent, dated June 15, 1997, anong

Conpany and Everest Capital International, Ltd., Everest
Capital Fund, L.P. and The Ravich Revocable Trust of 1989
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Conpany's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 8, 1997).

Engagenent Letter Agreenent, dated June 14, 1997, between

Conpany and Libra Investnents, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26.1 to the 1997 Form 10-K).

Engagenent Letter Agreenent, dated August 6, 1997, between
the Conpany and Libra Investnents, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26.2 to the 1997 Form 10-K).

Radi " s eepmmt | metednidaBuarng. 21, 1998, between the
Conpany and Bl oonberg Communi cations Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Conpany's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1998).
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10.

10.

10.

22

23.

23.

23.

24

25

27
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27

"D 10. 28
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27.
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reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Conmpany's Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 19, 1997).

St ock Purchase Agreenent, dated as of October 8, 1998,

bet ween the Conpany and Prine 66 Partners, L.P. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Conpany's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated Cctober 8, 1998).

St ock Purchase Agreenent, dated as of Novenber 13, 1998 (the
"Apol I o Stock Purchase Agreenent"), by and anmong the Conpany,
Apol o I nvestment Fund IV, L.P. and Apollo Overseas Partners
IV, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the
Conpany's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novenber 17,
1998) .

Anendnent No. 1, dated as of Decenber 23, 1998, to the Apollo
St ock Purchase Agreenent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.28.2 to the Conpany's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended Septenber 30, 1999).

Second Anendnent, dated as of Decenber 23, 1999, to the

Apol l o Stock Purchase Agreenent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.3 to the Conmpany's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on Decenber 29, 1999).

St ock Purchase Agreenent, dated as of Decenber 23, 1999 (the
"Bl ackstone Stock Purchase Agreenment"), by and between the
Conpany and Bl ackstone Capital Partners II1 Merchant Banking
Fund L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the
Oorrp;;my's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Decenber 29,
1999).

St ock Purchase Agreenent, dated as of January 28, 2000, anbng
t he Conpany, Mercedes-Benz USA, Inc., Freightliner
Corporation and Dai m er Chrysl er Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the 1999 Form 10-K).

Tag- Al ong Agreenent, dated as of Novenber 13, 1998, by and
among Apollo Investnent Fund IV, L.P., Apollo Overseas
Partners 1V, L.P., the Conpany and David Margol ese
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 to the Conpany's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novenber 17, 1998).

Agreement, dated as of June 11, 1999, between the Conpany and
Ford Mtor Conpany (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.33 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1999).

Joi nt Devel opnment Agreenent, dated as of February 16, 2000,
bet ween the Conpany and XM Satellite Radio, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Conpany's Quarterly

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000).

Fi nanci al Data Schedule (filed herewith).

* This document has been identified as a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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'D' Portions of these exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Applications for Confidentia treatment filed by the Company with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

8
STATEMENT OF DIFFERENCES

The dagger symbol shall be expressed as.........ccccvvvrereeeervinneennns 'D' The section symbol shall be expressed as..........ccoceevvvvcereecennne 'SS
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TERM LOAN AGREEMENT, dated as of Junel, 2000, anong SIRIUS SATELLITE RADIO INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"),
the several banks and other financial institutionsor entities fromtime to time parties to this Agreement (the "Lenders'), LEHMAN
BROTHERS INC., as advisor, lead arranger and book manager (in such capacity, the"Arranger"), LEHMAN COMMERCIAL PAPER INC.,

as syndication agent (in such capacity, the "Syndication Agent"), and LEHMAN COMMERCIAL PAPER INC., asadministrative agent (in
such capacity, the" Administrative Agent").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Borrower wishes to establish a credit facility to provide financing for its working capital needs, capital expenditures and
general corporate purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Lendersare willing to makesuch credit facility available upon and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the agreementshereinafter set forth, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

1.1 Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement, the termslisted in this
Section 1.1 shall have therespective meanings set forth in this Section 1.1.

"Additional Senior Debt": with respect to the Borrower, any Indebtedness (other than Subordinated Debt) incurred after May 4, 2000, provided
that:

(a) inthecase of any incurrence of Additional Senior Debt in anaggregate principal amount in excess of $5,000,000, the Borrower shall have
furnished to the Administrative Agent a certificate of a Responsible Officer of the Borrower to the effect that immediately before and
immediately after giving effect to suchincurrence, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing;

(b) no more than $500,000,000 aggregate principal amount of such Indebtedness shall be secured by any assetsof any Loan Party;
(c) upto $75,000,000 aggregate principa amount of such Indebtedness may provide for principal paymentsprior to thefina maturity date of

the Loans, so long as such Indebtedness consists of Capital Lease Obligations that have a Weighted Average Life that is greater than the
Weighted Average Life of the Loans;
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(d) except as set forth in clause (¢) above, such Indebtedness shall not provide for scheduled principal payments on or prior to the final maturity
date of the Loans;

(e) such Indebtedness (taking into account any interest rate protection in respect thereof) shall not bear cash interest at a per annumrate in
excess of 14.5% per annum; and

(f) such Indebtedness shall not be issued or incurred in the syndicated loan markets.

"Adjusted Pre-Sac Cash Flow": for any period, (a) Pre-Sac Cash Flow for such period less (b) the product of (i) the number of Subscribers that
canceled their subscriptions or failed to renew their expiring subscriptions during such period multiplied by (ii) the Subscription Acquisition
Cost Per Subscriber for such period.

"Adjustment Date": as defined in the Pricing Grid.

"Administrative Agent": asdefined in the preamble hereto.

"Affiliate": asto any Person, any other Person that, directly or indirectly, isin control of, is controlled by, oris under common control with,
such Person. For purposes of this definition, "control” of a Person means the power, directly or indirectly, either to (&) vote 25% or more of the
securities having ordinary voting power for the election of directors (or persons performing similar functions) of such Person or (b) direct or
cause thedirection of the management and policies of such Person, whether by contract or otherwise.

"Agents': the collective reference to the Syndication Agent and the Administrative Agent.

"Agreement”: thisTerm Loan Agreement, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

"Applicable Margin": for Base Rate Loans, 4.00%; andfor Eurodollar Loans, 5.00%; provided, that on and after the first Adjustment Date, the
foregoing marginswill be determined pursuant to the Pricing Grid; provided, further, that themargins set forth in this definition and in the
Pricing Grid shall be subject to increase asset forth in Section 6.1(c).

"Arranger”: asdefined in the preamble hereto.

"Asset Sale': any Disposition of Property or series of related Dispositions of Property (excluding any such Disposition permitted by clause

3@, (b), (c), (d), (e) or (g) of Section 6.5) which yields gross proceeds to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries (valued at the initial principal
amount thereof in the case of hon-cash proceeds
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consisting of notes or other debt securities and valued at fair market value in the case of other non-cash proceeds) in excess of $2,000,000.
"Assignee": as defined in Section 9.6(c).
"Assignor": as defined in Section 9.6(c).

"Base Rate": for any day, arate per annum (rounded upwards, if necessary, to thenext 1/16 of 1%) equal to the greatest of (a) the Prime Rate in
effect on suchday, (b) theBase CD Ratein effect on such day plus 1% and

(c) the Federal FundsEffective Rate in effect on such day plus 2 of 1%. For purposes hereof: "Prime Rate" shall mean therate of interest per
annum publicly announced fromtimeto time by the Reference Lender as its prime or base ratein effect at its principal office in New Y ork City
(the Prime Rate not being intended to be thelowest rate of interest charged by the Reference Lender in connection withextensions of credit to
debtors); "Base CD Rate" shall mean the sum of (a) the product of (i) the Three-Month Secondary CD Rate and (ii) a fraction, the numerator of
whichis oneand the denominator of whichis one minusthe C/D Reserve Percentage and (b) the C/D Assessment Rate; and " Three-Month
Secondary CD Rate" shall mean, for any day, the secondary market rate for three-month certificates of deposit reported as beingin effect on
such day (or, if suchday shall not be a Business Day, thenext preceding BusinessDay) by the Board through the public information telephone
line of the Federal Reserve Bank of New Y ork (which rate will, under the current practices of the Board, be published in Federal Reserve
Statistical Release H.15(519) during theweek following such day), or, if such rate shall not be so reported on such day or such next preceding
Business Day, the average of the secondary market quotations for three-month certificates of deposit of major money center banksin New Y ork
City received at approximately 10:00 A.M., New Y ork City time, on such day (or, if suchday shall not be a BusinessDay, onthe next
preceding Business Day) by the Reference Lender from three New Y ork City negotiable certificate of deposit dealersof recognized standing
selected by it. Any changein the Base Rate due to a change in the Prime Rate, theBase CD Rateor the Federal Funds Effective Rate shall be
effective as of the opening of business on the effective day of such change in the Prime Rate, the Three-Month Secondary CD Rate or the
Federal FundsEffective Rate, respectively.

"Base Rate Loans": Loansfor whichthe applicable rate of interestis based upon the Base Rate.
"Benefitted Lender": as defined in Section 9.7(a).
"Board": the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States (or any successor).

"Borrower": as defined in the preambl e hereto.

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




4

"Borrowing Date": any Business Day specified by the Borrower asthe date on whichthe Borrower requests the Lenders to make Loans
hereunder.

"Borrowing Notice": with respect to any request for borrowing of Loanshereunder, a notice from the Borrower, substantially in the form of,
and containing the information prescribed by, Exhibit I, delivered to the Administrative Agent.

"Business Day": (&) for all purposes other than ascovered by clause

(b) below, aday other than a Saturday, Sunday or other day onwhich commercial banks in New Y ork City are authorized or required by law to
close and (b) with respect to all noticesand determinations in connection with, and payments of principal and interest on, Eurodollar Loans, any
day whichisaBusiness Day described in clause (a) and whichis also aday for trading by and between banks in Dollar deposits in theinterbank
eurodollar market.

"Capital Expenditures': for any period, with respect to any Person, the aggregate of all expenditures by such Person for the acquisition or
leasing (pursuant to a capital lease) of fixed or capital assetsor additions to equipment (including replacements, capitalized repairs and
improvements during such period, and including FCC Licenses and other Satellite Radio Assets to the extent that the acquisition of such FCC
Licenses or other Satellite Radio Assets permitsthe Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to avoid purchasing fixed or capital assets that would
otherwise be required, but excluding any expenditures made with common stock or PIK Preferred Stock (other than Disqualified Stock) of the
Borrower in connection with any Permitted Acquisition) which are required to be capitalized under GAAP on a balance sheet of such Person.
Capital Expenditures shall be deemed to include any amount expended (other than common stock or PIK Preferred Stock (other than
Disqualified Stock) of the Borrower issued in connection with a Permitted Acquisition) for the acquisition of any Person that holds fixed or
capital assets (including FCC Licenses and other Satellite Radio Assets, subject to thelimitations described above) to the extent that the
purchase of such assets directly by the Borrower or any Subsidiary would constitute a Capital Expenditure.

"Capital LeaseObligations': with respect to any Person, the obligations of such Personto pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other
arrangement conveying theright to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which obligations arerequired to be classified and
accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such Person under GAAP; and, for the purposes of this Agreement, the amount of such
obligations at any time shall be the capitalized amount thereof at such time determined in accordance with GAAP.

"Capital Stock": any and all shares, interests, participationsor other equivalents (however designated) of capital stock of a corporation, any and
all equivalent ownership interests in a Person (other than a corporation) and any and all warrants, rights or options to purchase any of the
foregoing.
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"Cash Equivalents': (a) marketable direct obligations issued by, or unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States Government or issued by
any agency thereof and backed by the full faith and credit of the United States, in each case maturing within one year from the date of
acquisition; (b) certificates of deposit, time deposits, eurodollar time deposits or overnight bank deposits having maturities of six months or less
from the date of acquisition issued by any Lender or by any commercial bank organized under thelaws of the United States of Americaor any
state thereof having combined capital and surplus of not lessthan $500,000,000; (c) commercial paper of an issuer rated at least A-2 by
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P") or P-2 by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's"), or carrying an equivalent rating by a
nationally recognized rating agency, if both of the two named rating agencies cease publishing ratings of commercial paper issuers generaly,
and maturing within six months from the date of acquisition; (d) repurchase obligations of any Lender or of any commercia bank satisfying the
requirements of clause (b) of thisdefinition, having aterm of not more than 30 dayswith respect to securitiesissued or fully guaranteed or
insured by the United States government; (€) securities with maturities of one year or lessfrom the date of acquisition issued or fully guaranteed
by any state, commonwealth or territory of the United States, by any political subdivision or taxing authority of any such state, commonwealth
or territory or by any foreign government, the securities of which state, commonweslth, territory, political subdivision, taxing authority or
foreign government (as the case may be) are rated at least A by S& P or A by Moody's; (f) securities with maturities of six monthsor less from
the date of acquisition backed by standby letters of credit issued by any Lender or any commercial bank satisfying the requirements of clause
(b) of this definition; and (g) shares of money market mutual or similar fundswhich invest exclusively in assets satisfying the requirements of
clauses (@) through (f) of this definition.

"C/D Assessment Rate": for any day, the annual assessment rate in effect on such day that is payable by a member of the Bank Insurance Fund
maintained by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the"FDIC") classified as well-capitalized and within supervisory subgroup "B" (or a
comparable successor assessment risk classification) withinthe meaning of 12 C.F.R. 'SS 327.4 (or any successor provision) to the FDIC (or
any successor) for the FDIC's (or such successor's) insuring time deposits at offices of suchingtitution in the United States.

"C/D Reserve Percentage": for any day, that percentage (expressed as a decimal) whichisin effect on such day, asprescribed by the Board, for
determining the maximum reserve requirement for a Depositary Institution (as defined in Regulation D of theBoard as in effect from timeto
time) in respect of new non-personal time deposits in Dollars having a maturity of 30 days or more.

"Change of Control": the occurrence of any of thefollowing events: (a) any "person™" or "group” (as suchterms are usedin Sections 13(d) and
14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")), excluding the Permitted Investors, shall become, or obtain
rights (whether by means of warrants,
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options or otherwise) to become, the "beneficia owner" (as defined in Rules

13(d)-3 and 13(d)-5 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of more than 35% of the outstanding common stock of the Borrower; (b)
any "person” or "group" (as such termsare used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) shall become, or obtain rights (whether by
means of warrants, optionsor otherwise) to become, the "beneficial owner" (as defined in Rules 13(d)-3 and

13(d)-5 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of more than 40% of the outstanding common stock of the Borrower; (c) theboard of
directors of the Borrower shall cease to consist of a majority of Continuing Directors; (d) the Borrower shall cease to own and control, of
record and beneficialy, directly, 100% of each class of outstanding Capital Stock of the License Subsidiary free and clear of all Liens (except
Lienscreated by the Pledge Agreement); or () a Specified Change of Control.

"Closing Date": the date on which the conditions precedent set forth in
Section 4.1 shall have been satisfied, which date shall be not later than the last day of the Commitment Period.

"Code": thelnternal Revenue Code of 1986, asamended from timeto time.

"Collateral": all Property of the Loan Parties, now owned or hereafter acquired, upon whicha Lien is purported to be created by any Security
Document.

"Collateral Agent": The Bank of New Y ork, in its capacity as collateral agent under the Intercreditor Agreement, and any successor in such
capacity.

"Collateral Agreement": the Collateral Agreement to be executed and delivered by the Borrower, substantially in the form of Exhibit A, asthe
same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

"Commitment": asto any Lender, the sum of the Tranche A Term Loan Commitment and the Optional Term Loan Commitment of such Lender.

"Commitment Fee Rate": (a) 0.50% per annum for the period from October 15, 2000 through December 31, 2000, (b) 1.00% per annum for the
period from January 1, 2001 through March 31, 2001 and(c) 1.25% per annum for the period from April 1, 2001 through May 31, 2001.

"Commitment Period": the period commencing on the date hereof and ending on November 30, 2000 (the "Initial Commitment Termination
Date"), provided that (a) the Borrower may, at its option, elect, in anotice given as herein provided to the Administrative Agent during the
30-day period commencing on October 1, 2000, to extend the availability of the Commitmentsand theend of such period to May 31, 2001
(such date, if so elected, the "Extended Commitment Termination Date") and (b) the Initial Commitment Termination Date or the Extended
Commitment Termination Date, as the case may be, will, a therequest of the Borrower, in a notice given asherein
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provided to the Administrative Agent during the 15-day period commencing on thedate that is 30 daysprior to thelnitial Commitment
Termination Date or the Extended Commitment Termination Date, asthe case may be, be extended for up to 45 days if, prior to the Initial
Commitment Termination Date or the Extended Commitment Termination Date, as the case may be, the Borrower has successfully launched
two satellites but hasnot completed the Technology Testing.

"Commonly Controlled Entity": an entity, whether or not incorporated, that isunder common control with the Borrower withinthe meaning of
Section 4001 of ERISA or ispart of agroup that includes the Borrower and that istreated as a single employer under Section 414 of the Code.

"Communications Act": the Communications Act of 1934, and any similar or successor federal statute, and therules and regulations of the FCC
thereunder, all as amended and as the samemay be in effect from time to time.

"Compliance Certificate": a certificate duly executed by a Responsible Officer, substantially in the form of Exhibit B.

"Confidential Information Memorandum": the Confidential Information Memorandum to be furnished to theinitia Lendersin connection with
the syndication of the Tranche A Term Loan Facility.

"Consolidated Current Assets": of any Person at any date, all amounts (other than cash and Cash Equivalents) that would, in conformity with
GAAP, be set forth opposite the caption "total current assets’ (or any like caption) on a consolidated balance sheet of such Person and its
Subsidiaries at such date.

"Consolidated Current Liabilities": of any Person at any date, all amounts that would, in conformity with GAAP, be set forth opposite the
caption "total current liabilities" (or any like caption) on a consolidated balance sheet of such Person and its Subsidiaries at such date, but
excluding, with respect to the Borrower, the current portion of any Funded Debt of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries.

"Consolidated EBITDA": of any Person for any period, Consolidated Net Income of such Person and its Subsidiaries for such period plus,
without duplication and to the extent reflected as a charge in the statement of such Consolidated Net Income for such period, the sumof (@)
income tax expense, (b) Consolidated Interest Expense, amortization or writeoff of debt discount and debt issuance costs and commissions,
discounts and other feesand charges associated with Indebtedness of such Person and its Subsidiaries, () depreciation and amortization
expense, (d) amortization of intangibles (including, but not limited to, goodwill) and organization costs, (€) any extraordinary, unusua or
non-recurring expenses or losses (including, whether or not otherwise includable asa separate item in the statement of such Consolidated Net
Income for such period, losses on sales of assets outside of the ordinary course of business) and (f) any other non-cash charges, and minus, to
the extent included in the
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statement of such Consolidated Net Income for such period, the sum of (a) interest income (except to the extent deducted in determining
Consolidated Interest Expense), (b) any extraordinary, unusual or non-recurring income or gains (including, whether or not otherwise
includable as a separate item in the statement of such Consolidated Net Income for such period, gains on the sales of assets outside of the
ordinary course of business) and (c) any other non-cash income, all as determined on a consolidated basis; provided that for purposes of
calculating Consolidated EBITDA of the Borrower andits Subsidiaries for any period, (i) the Consolidated EBITDA of any Person acquired by
the Borrower or its Subsidiaries during such period shall be included on a pro formabasisfor such period (assuming the consummation of such
acquisition and the incurrence or assumption of any Indebtedness in connection therewith occurred on thefirst day of such period) if the
consolidated balance sheet of such acquired Person and its consolidated Subsidiaries as at theend of the period preceding the acquisition of
such Person and the related consolidated statements of income and stockholders' equity and of cash flowsfor the period in respect of which
Consolidated EBITDA is to be calculated (A) have been previously provided to the Administrative Agent (with copies for each Lender) and (B)
either (1) have been reported on without a qualification arising out of the scope of theaudit by independent certified public accountants of
nationally recognized standing or

(2) have been found acceptable by the Administrative Agent and (ii) the Consolidated EBITDA of any Person Disposed of by the Borrower or
its Subsidiaries during such period shall be excluded for such period (assuming the consummation of such Disposition and the repayment of any
Indebtedness in connection therewith occurred on thefirst day of such period).

"Consolidated Interest Expense”: of any Person for any period, total interest expense (including that attributable to Capital Lease Obligations)
of such Person and its Subsidiaries for such period with respect to all outstanding Indebtedness of such Person and its Subsidiaries (including,
without limitation, all commissions, discounts and other fees and charges owed by such Person with respect to letters of credit and bankers
acceptance financing and net costs of such Person under Hedge Agreementsin respect of interest rates to the extent such net costsare allocable
to such period in accordance with GAAP).

"Consolidated Net Income": of any Person for any period, the consolidated net income (or loss) of such Person and its Subsidiaries for such
period, determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP; provided, that in calculating Consolidated Net Income of the Borrower
and its consolidated Subsidiaries for any period, there shall be excluded (a) the income (or deficit) of any Person accrued prior to the date it
becomes a Subsidiary of the Borrower or is merged into or consolidated withthe Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries,

(b) the income (or deficit) of any Person (other than a Subsidiary of the Borrower) inwhichthe Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries has an
ownership interest, except to the extent that any such incomeis actually received by the Borrower or such Subsidiary in the formof dividends
or similar distributions and (c) the undistributed earnings of any Subsidiary of the Borrower to the extent that the declaration or payment of
dividends or similar distributions by such Subsidiary isnot at
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the time permitted by theterms of any Contractual Obligation (other than under any Loan Document) or Requirement of Law applicable to such
Subsidiary.

"Consolidated Working Capital": at any date, thedifference of () Consolidated Current Assets of the Borrower on such date less (b)
Consolidated Current Liabilities of the Borrower on such date.

"Continuing Directors": thedirectors of the Borrower on the Closing Date, after giving effect to the transactions contemplated hereby, and each
other director of theBorrower, if, in each case, such other director's nomination for election to the board of directors of the Borrower is
recommended by at least 662/3% of the then Continuing Directors in his or her election by the shareholders of the Borrower.

"Contractual Obligation": as to any Person, any provision of any security issued by such Person or of any agreement, instrument or other
undertaking to which such Person isa party or by which it or any of its Property is bound.

"Control Investment Affiliate": asto any Person, any other Person that

(a) directly orindirectly, is in control of, is controlled by, or isunder common control with, such Person and (b) is organized by such Person
primarily for the purpose of making equity or debt investments in one or more companies. For purposes of this definition, "control” of a Person
means the power, directly or indirectly, to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person, whether by contract or
otherwise.

"Default": any of the events specified in Section 7, whether or not any requirement for the giving of notice, the lapse of time, or both, has been
satisfied (including, in any event, a"Default”" under and as defined in any Indenture and any Subordinated Debt Document).

"Derivatives Counterparty": as defined in Section 6.6.

"Disposition": withrespect to any Property, any sale, lease, sale and |leaseback, assignment, conveyance, transfer or other disposition thereof;
and the terms " Dispose" and "Disposed of" shall have correlative meanings.

"Disqualified Stock": means any Capital Stock that, by itsterms(or by the termsof any security into which it is convertible or for which it is
exchangeable at the option of the holder thereof), or upon the happening of any event, maturesor is mandatorily redeemable, pursuantto a
sinking fund obligation or otherwise, or redeemable at the option of the holder thereof, in whole orin part, on or prior to thedate that is one
year after the final maturity date of the Loans, except to the extent that such Capital Stock is solely redeemable with, or solely exchangeablefor,
any Capital Stock of such Personthat isnot Disqualified Stock.
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"Dollars' and "$": lawful currency of the United States of America
"Domestic Subsidiary": any Subsidiary of the Borrower organized under the laws of any jurisdiction withinthe United States of America

"Environmental Laws': any and al laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, binding guidelines, codes, decrees, or other legally
enforceable requirements (including, without limitation, applicable judicia decisions applying principles of common law) of any international
authority, foreign government, the United States, or any state, local, municipal or other governmental authority, regulating, relating to or
imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning protection of the environment or of human health, or employee health and safety, as has
been, isnow, or may at any time hereafter be, in effect.

"Environmental Permits": any and all permits, licenses, approvals, registrations, notifications, exemptions and other authorizations required
under any Environmental Law.

"ERISA": the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, asamended from time to time.

"Eurocurrency Reserve Requirements’: for any day, the aggregate (without duplication) of the maximum rates (expressed as a decimal fraction)
of reserve requirementsin effect on such day (including, without limitation, basic, supplemental, marginal and emergency reserves) under any
regulations of the Board or other Governmental Authority having jurisdiction with respect thereto dealing with reserve requirements prescribed
for eurocurrency funding (currently referred to as "Eurocurrency Liabilities' in Regulation D of the Board) maintained by a member bank of the
Federal Reserve System.

"Eurodollar Base Rate": with respect to each day during each Interest Period, the rate per annum determined on the basis of therate for deposits
in Dollars for aperiod equal to such Interest Period commencing on the first day of such Interest Period appearing on Page 3750 of the Telerate
screen as of 11:00 A.M., London time, two Business Days prior to the beginning of such Interest Period. In the event that such rate does not
appear on Page 3750 of the Telerate screen (or otherwise on such screen), the "Eurodollar Base Rate" for purposes of this definition shall be
determined by referenceto such other comparable publicly available servicefor displaying eurodollar rates as may be selected by the
Administrative Agent.

"Eurodollar Loans': Loans for which the applicable rate of interest is based upon the Eurodollar Rate.

"Eurodollar Rate": with respect to each day during each Interest Period, arate per annum determined for such day in accordance with the
following formula (rounded upward to the nearest 1/100th of 1%):
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Eurodollar Base Rate

1.00 - Eurocurrency Reserve Requirements

"Eurodollar Tranche": the collective referenceto Eurodollar Loans thethen current Interest Periods with respect to all of which begin onthe
same date and end on the same later date.

"Event of Default": any of the events specified in Section 7, provided that any requirement for thegiving of notice, thelapse of time, or both,
has been satisfied.

"Excess Cash Flow": for any fiscal year of the Borrower, the difference, if any, of (athe sum, without duplication, of (i) Consolidated Net
Income for such fiscal year, (ii) theamount of all non-cash charges (including depreciation and amortization) deducted in arriving at such
Consolidated Net Income, (iii) the amount of the decrease, if any, in Consolidated Working Capital for such fiscal year, (iv) the aggregate net
amount of non-cash loss on the Disposition of Property by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries during such fiscal year (other than sales of
inventory in theordinary course of business), to the extent deducted in arriving at such Consolidated Net Income and (v) the net increase during
such fiscal year (if any) in deferred tax accounts of the Borrower minus (b) the sum, without duplication, of (i) theamount of all non-cash
creditsincluded in arriving at such Consolidated Net Income, (ii) the aggregate amount actually paid by the Borrower and its Subsidiariesin
cash during suchfiscal year on account of Capital Expenditures (minusthe principal amount of Indebtedness incurred in connection withsuch
expenditures and minus the amount of any such expenditures financed withthe proceeds of any Reinvestment Deferred Amount), (iii) all
optional prepayments of the Loans during such fiscal year, (iv) the aggregate amount of all regularly scheduled principal paymentsof Funded
Debt (including, without limitation, the Loans) of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries made during suchfiscal year (other than in respect of any
revolving credit facility to the extent thereis not anequivalent permanent reduction in commitments thereunder), (v) the amount of the increase,
if any, in Consolidated Working Capital for such fiscal year, (vi) the aggregate net amount of non-cash gain on the Disposition of Property by
the Borrower and its Subsidiaries during suchfisca year (other than sales of inventory intheordinary course of business), to the extent
included in arriving at such Consolidated Net Income, and (vii) the net decrease during such fiscal year (if any) in deferred tax accounts of the
Borrower.

"Excess Cash Flow Application Date": as defined in Section 2.9(c).

"Excluded Foreign Subsidiaries": any Foreign Subsidiary in respect of whicheither (a) the pledge of all of the Capital Stock of such Subsidiary
as Collatera or (b) the guaranteeing by such Subsidiary of the Obligations, would, in thegood faith judgment of the Borrower, resultin adverse
tax consequences to the Borrower.

"Facility": each of (a) the Tranche A Term Loan Commitmentsand the Tranche A Term Loans made thereunder (the "Tranche A Term Loan
Facility") and (b) the
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Optiona Term Loan Commitments, if any, and the Optional Term Loans made thereunder (the "Optional Term Loan Facility").
"FCC": the Federal Communications Commission (or any successors thereto or an analogous Governmental Authority).
"FCC Licenses': Licensesissued by the FCC permitting the transmission of satellite radio communications and activities related thereto,
including, without limitation, the placement of satellitesin orbit, the operation of an uplink facility and the construction and operation of
terrestrial repeating transmitters.
"Federal FundsEffective Rate": for any day, the weighted average of therates on overnight federal fundstransactions with members of the
Federal Reserve System arranged by federal funds brokers, as published on the next succeeding Business Day by the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York, or, if suchrate isnot so published for any day which isaBusinessDay, theaverage of the quotations for the day of such
transactions received by the Reference Lender from threefederal funds brokers of recognized standing selected by it.
"Foreign Subsidiary": any Subsidiary of the Borrower that is hot a Domestic Subsidiary.

"Fourth Satellite": the collective reference to the fourth FS-1300 spacecraft to be delivered to the Borrower under the Loral Agreement and any
replacement satellite thereof.

"FQ1", "FQ2 ", "FQ3", and "FQ4": when used with a numerical year designation, means thefirst, second, third or fourth fiscal quarter,
respectively, of suchfiscal year of the Borrower (e.g., FQ1 2003 meansthe first fiscal quarter of the Borrower's 2003 fiscal year, which quarter
ends March 31, 2003).

"Funded Debt": with respect to any Person, al Indebtedness of such Person of the types described in clauses (@) through (€) of the definition of
"Indebtedness’ in this Section.

"Funding Office": the office specified from time to time by the Administrative Agent asits funding office by noticeto the Borrower and the
Lenders.

"FYE 2002": the four consecutive fiscal quarters of the Borrower's 2002 fiscal year ending December 31, 2002.

"GAAP': generally accepted accounting principlesin the United States of Americaasin effect fromtimeto time.
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"Governmental Authority": any nation or government, any state or other political subdivision thereof and any entity exercising executive,
legidative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to government.

"Guarantee": asdefined in Section 5.13.

"Guarantee Obligation": asto any Person (the "guaranteeing person™), any obligation of (a) the guaranteeing person or (b) another Person
(including, without limitation, any bank under any letter of credit), if to induce the creation of such obligation of such other Person the
guaranteeing person has issued a reimbursement, counter indemnity or similar obligation, in either case guaranteeing or in effect guaranteeing
any Indebtedness, leases, dividends or other obligations (the "primary obligations") of any other third Person (the "primary obligor") in any
manner, whether directly or indirectly, including, without limitation, any obligation of the guaranteeing person, whether or not contingent, (i) to
purchase any such primary obligation or any Property constituting direct or indirect security therefor, (ii) to advance or supply funds (1) for the
purchase or payment of any such primary obligation or (2) to maintain working capital or equity capital of the primary obligor or otherwise to
maintain the net worth or solvency of the primary obligor, (iii) to purchase Property, securities or services primarily for the purpose of assuring
the owner of any such primary obligation of the ability of the primary obligor to make payment of such primary obligation or (iv) otherwiseto
assure or hold harmlessthe owner of any such primary obligation against oss in respect thereof; provided, however, that theterm Guarantee
Obligation shall not include endorsements of instruments for deposit or collection in the ordinary course of business. The amount of any
Guarantee Obligation of any guaranteeing person shall be deemed to be thelower of (a) an amount equal to the stated or determinable amount
of the primary abligation in respect of which such Guarantee Obligation is made and (b) the maximum amount for which such guaranteeing
person may be liable pursuant to the termsof the instrument embodying such Guarantee Obligation, unless such primary obligation and the
maximum amount for which such guaranteeing person may be liable are not stated or determinable, in which case the amount of such Guarantee
Obligation shall be such guaranteeing person's maximum reasonably anticipated liability in respect thereof as determined by the Borrower in
good faith.

"Hedge Agreements': all interest rate or currency swaps, caps or collar agreements, foreign exchange agreements, commodity contracts or
similar arrangements entered into by the Borrower or its Subsidiaries providing for protection against fluctuations in interest rates, currency
exchange rates, commodity prices or the exchange of nominal interest obligations, either generally or under specific contingencies.

"Indebtedness’: of any Person at any date, without duplication, (a) all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money, (b) al obligations of
such Person for the deferred purchase price of Property or services (other than trade payablesincurred in the ordinary course of such Person's
business), (c) al obligations of such Person evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or other similar instruments, (d) all
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indebtedness created or arising under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement with respect to Property acquired by such Person
(even thoughthe rights and remedies of the seller or lender under such agreement in the event of default are limited to repossession or sale of
such Property), (€) al Capital Lease Obligationsof such Person, (f) all obligations of such Person, contingent or otherwise, as an account party
or applicant under acceptance, letter of credit or similar facilities, (g) al obligations of such Person, contingent or otherwise, to purchase,
redeem, retire or otherwise acquire for value any Capital Stock of such Person (other than by the issuance of additional Capital Stock), (h) all
Guarantee Obligations of such Personin respect of obligations of thekind referred to in clauses (a) through (g) above;

(i) al obligations of the kind referred to in clauses (a) through (h) above secured by (or for whichthe holder of such obligation has an existing
right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on Property (including, without limitation, accounts and contract rights) owned by
such Person, whether or not such Person hasassumed or becomeliable for the payment of such obligation, (j) for the purposes of Section 7(€)
only, al obligations of such Person in respect of Hedge Agreements and (k) the liquidation value of any preferred Capital Stock of such Person
or its Subsidiaries that (i) is mandatorily redeemable on any date prior to the date which one year after the final maturity date of the Loans and
(i) isheld by any Person other than theissuer thereof and itsWholly Owned Subsidiaries.

"Indemnified Liabilities": as defined in Section 9.5.
"Indemnitee”: as defined in Section 9.5.

"Indentures": the collective reference to the Senior Discount Note Indenture, the Senior Note Indenture and any other indenture from time to
timein effect governing Indebtedness of the Borrower.

"Insolvency": with respect to any Multiemployer Plan, the condition that such Plan is insolvent within the meaning of Section 4245 of ERISA.
"Insolvent": pertainingto a condition of Insolvency.

"Intellectual Property": the collective reference to all rights, priorities and privilegesrelating to intellectual property, whether arising under
United States, multinational or foreign lawsor otherwise, including, without limitation, copyrights, copyright licenses, patents, patent licenses,
trademarks, trademark licenses, technology, know-how and processes, and al rightsto sueat law or in equity for any infringement or other
impairment thereof, including the right to receive all proceeds and damages therefrom.

"Intercreditor Agreement”: an amended and restated intercreditor agreement among thetrustee for the Senior Discount Notes, the trustee for the
Senior Notes, the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent, substantially similar to the existingintercreditor agreement, dated as of May
15, 1999, and otherwise in form and
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substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, and to which other creditors of the Borrower may become parties as

contemplated by suchintercreditor agreement and by Section 6.2(f) of this Agreement, as the same may be amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to timein accordance with its terms.

"Interest Payment Date": (a) asto any Base Rate Loan, the last day of each March, June, September and December to occur while such Loan is
outstanding and thefinal maturity date of such Loan, (b) as to any Eurodollar Loan having an Interest Period of three months or shorter, the last
day of suchInterest Period, (c) asto any Eurodollar Loanhaving an Interest Period longer than three months, each day that is three months, or a
whole multiple thereof, after the first day of such Interest Period and the last day of such Interest Period and (d) asto any Loan, thedate of any
repayment or prepayment made in respect thereof.

"Interest Period": as to any Eurodollar Loan, (a) initially, the period commencing on the borrowing or conversion date, as the case may be, with
respect to such Eurodollar Loan and ending one, two, three or six monthsthereafter, as selected by the Borrower in its notice of borrowing or
notice of conversion, as the case may be, given withrespect thereto; and (b) thereafter, each period commencing on the last day of the next
preceding Interest Period applicable to such Eurodollar Loan and ending one, two, three or six monthsthereafter, as selected by the Borrower
by irrevocable notice to the Administrative Agent not less than three Business Days prior to the last day of the then current Interest Period with
respect thereto; provided that, all of the foregoing provisions relating to Interest Periods are subject to thefollowing:

(i) if any Interest Period would otherwise end on a day that is not a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to the next succeeding
Business Day unlessthe result of such extension would be to carry such Interest Period into another calendar monthin which event such Interest
Period shall end on the immediately preceding Business Day;

(i) any Interest Period that would otherwise extend beyond the Maturity Date shall end on the Maturity Date; and

(iii) any Interest Period that beginson the last Business Day of a calendar month (or on aday for which thereis no numerically corresponding
day in the calendar month at the end of such Interest Period) shall end on the last Business Day of thecalendar month at the end of such Interest
Period.

"Investments': as defined in Section 6.7.

"Lehman Entity": any of Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. or any of itsaffiliates (including Syndicated L oan Funding Trust).

16
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"Lender Addendum": with respect to any initial Lender, a Lender Addendum, substantially in the form of Exhibit H, to be executed and
delivered by such Lender on the Closing Date as provided in Section 9.17.

"Lenders': as defined in the preamble hereto.
"Licenses': as defined in Section 3.21.

"License Subsidiary": the collective reference to (a) Satellite CD Radio, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and (b) any other direct or indirect
Subsidiary of the Borrower (i) that holds FCC Licenses and engagesin no other business and (ii) all of the Capital Stock of whichis pledged to
the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, pursuant to the Pledge Agreement.

"Lien": any mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, assignment, deposit arrangement, encumbrance, lien (statutory or other), charge or other security
interest or any preference, priority or other security agreement or preferential arrangement of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without
limitation, any conditional sale or other title retention agreement and any capital lease having substantially the same economic effect asany of
the foregoing).

"Loan": any Tranche A Term Loan or Optional Term Loan made by any Lender pursuant to this Agreement.

"Loan Documents': thisAgreement, the Security Documents, the Intercreditor Agreement, the Syndication Letter Agreement, any Guarantees
and the Notes.

"Loan Parties": theBorrower and each Subsidiary of the Borrower that is a party to alL.oan Document.

"Loan Percentage": asto any Lender at any time, the percentage which such Lender's Commitments then constitutes of the aggregate
Commitments (or, at any time after the Closing Date, the percentage which the aggregate principal amount of such Lender's Loans then
outstanding congtitutes of the aggregate principal amount of the Loansthen outstanding).

"Loral Agreement": thecollective referenceto (a) the Amended and Restated Contract, dated as of June 30, 1998, between the Borrower
(formerly known asCD Radio Inc.) and Space Systems/Loral, Inc. and (b) any other agreement with respect to the construction and delivery of
a Fourth Satellite, in each case as the samemay be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified fromtimeto time in accordance with Section
6.15.

"Material Adverse Effect": amaterial adverse effect on (a) the business, assets, property, condition (financial or otherwise) or prospects of the
Borrower and its
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Subsidiaries taken as awhole, provided that, for purposes of this clause (a), neither of the following shall constitute a Material Adverse Effect:
(i) anincrease in the cost of installing terrestrial repeating transmittersor (ii) thefailure of one of the Borrower's satellites so long as the Fourth
Satelliteis, at the time of suchfailure, complete or under contract to be constructed, or (b) the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or
any of the other Loan Documents or the rights or remedies of the Agents, the Collateral Agent or the Lenders hereunder or thereunder.

"Materials of Environmental Concern": any gasoline or petroleum (including crude oil or any fraction thereof) or petroleum products,
polychlorinated biphenyls, urea-formaldehyde insulation, asbestos, pollutants, contaminants, radioactivity, and any other substances or forces of
any kind, whether or not any such substance or force is defined as hazardous or toxic under any Environmental Law, that is regulated pursuant
to or could giverise to liability under any Environmental Law.

"Maturity Date": theearlier of (a) thefifth anniversary of the Closing Date and (b) December 31, 2005.

"Moody's": as defined in the definition of "Cash Equivalents' in this
Section 1.1.

"Mortgages': each of the mortgages and deeds of trugt, if any, made by any Loan Party in favor of, or for the benefit of, the Collateral Agent, in
aform reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

"Multiemployer Plan": a Plan that is a multiemployer plan as defined in
Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA.

"Net Cash Proceeds": (&) in connection with any Asset Sale or any Recovery Event, the proceeds thereof in theform of cash and Cash
Equivalents (including any such proceeds received by way of deferred payment of principal pursuant to a note or installment receivable or
purchase price adjustment receivable or otherwise, but only asand when received) of such Asset Saleor Recovery Event, net of attorneys' fees,
accountants' fees, investment banking fees, amounts required to be applied to the repayment of Indebtedness secured by a Lien expressly
permitted hereunder on any asset whichisthe subject of such Asset Sale or Recovery Event (other than any Lien pursuant to a Security
Document) and other customary feesand expenses actually incurred in connection therewith and net of taxes paid or reasonably estimated to be
payable asaresult thereof (after taking into account any availabletax credits or deductions and any tax sharing arrangements) and (b) in
connection with any issuance or sale of equity securities or debt securities or instruments or theincurrence of loans, the cash proceeds received
from suchissuance or incurrence, net of attorneys fees, investment banking fees, accountants' fees, underwriting discounts and commissions
and other customary feesand expenses actually incurred in connection therewith.
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"Non-Excluded Taxes": as defined in Section 2.17(a).
"Non-U.S. Lender": as defined in Section 2.17(d).
"Note": any promissory note evidencing any Loan.

"Obligations": the unpaid principal of and interest on (including, without limitation, interest accruing after the maturity of the Loans and interest
accruing after the filing of any petition in bankruptcy, or the commencement of any insolvency, reorganization or like proceeding, relating to
the Borrower, whether or not a claim for post-filing or post-petition interest is allowed in such proceeding) the Loansand all other obligations
and liabilities of the Borrower to the Administrative Agent or to any Lender (or, in the case of Specified Hedge Agreements, any affiliate of any
Lender), whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become due, or now existing or hereafter incurred, whichmay arise under,
out of, orin connection with, this Agreement, any other Loan Document, any Specified Hedge Agreement or any other document made,
delivered or givenin connection herewith or therewith, whether on account of principal, interest, reimbursement obligations, fees, indemnities,
costs, expenses (including, without limitation, all fees, chargesand disbursements of counsel to the Administrative Agent or to any Lender that
are required to be paid by the Borrower pursuant hereto) or otherwise; provided, that (i) obligations of the Borrower or any Subsidiary under
any Specified Hedge Agreement shall be secured and guaranteed pursuant to the Security Documents only to the extent that, and for so long as,
the other Obligations are so secured and guaranteed and (ii) any release of Collateral or guarantors effected in the manner permitted by this
Agreement shall not require the consent of holders of obligationsunder Specified Hedge Agreements.

"Optional Term Loan": asdefined in Section 2.3(a).

"Optional Term Loan Amendment": an amendment to this Agreement, in form and substance acceptable to the Borrower, the Administrative
Agent and the Optional Term Loan Lenders parties thereto, executed and delivered pursuant to

Section 2.3 to establish an Optional Term Loan Tranche.

"Optional Term Loan Commitment”: as to any Optiona Term Loan Lender, the obligation of such Lender, if any, to make an Optiona Term
L oan to the Borrower hereunder in a principal amount not to exceed theamount set forth in the Optiona Term Loan Amendment related
thereto.

"Optional Term Loan Lender": each Lender which has an Optional Term Loan Commitment or which is the holder of an Optional Term Loan.

"Optional Term Loan Request": as defined in Section 2.3(a).

"Optional Term Loan Tranche": as defined in Section 2.3(a).
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"Other Taxes': any and all present or future stamp or documentary taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges or similar levies arising
from any payment made hereunder or from the execution, delivery or enforcement of, or otherwise with respect to, thisAgreement or any other
Loan Document.

"Participant": as defined in Section 9.6(b).

"Payment Office": the office specified from time to time by the Administrative Agent as its payment office by notice to the Borrower and the
Lenders.

"PBGC": the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation established pursuant to Subtitle A of Title IV of ERISA (or any successor).

"Permitted Acquisition": any acquisition made by the Borrower so long as, withrespect to any such acquisition, the following conditions are
satisfied:

(a) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result from such acquisition;

(b) the consideration for such acquisition shall consist solely of (i) the common stock or PIK Preferred Stock (other than Disgualified Stock) of
the Borrower and (ii) cash in amount not to exceed the lesser of (A) 10% of the purchase price for such acquisition and (B) $5,000,000,
provided that, in any event, the cash consideration paid for all acquisitionsin any fiscal year of the Borrower shall not exceed $5,000,000;

(c) neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries shall assumeor otherwise become liablefor any Indebtedness in connection with such
acquisition, other than Indebtedness of any Person outstanding on the date on which such Person becomes a Subsidiary or its assets are acquired
by the Borrower, provided that (i) such Indebtedness was not created in connection with, or in anticipation of, such acquisition and

(i) such Indebtedness is otherwise permitted by Section 6.2;

(d) inthe event that the aggregate fair market value of the consideration payablein respect of any acquisition exceeds $50,000,000 on the date
such acquisition is agreed to, the Borrower shall, prior to the public announcement of such acquisition, (i) furnish to the Administrative Agent
evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent that such acquisition would not result in the rating otherwise in effect with respect
to any of the Borrower's outstanding rated |ndebtedness being withdrawn, downgraded, placed under review with negative implications or on
watch for possible downgrade by S& P or Moody's and (ii) if requested by the Administrative Agent and reasonably obtainable by the Borrower,
furnish to the Administrative Agent an opinion of an independent investment bank of national standing reasonably satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent to the effect that such acquisition would not, taken as a
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whole, have material negative implications with respect to the Commitments or |ndebtedness hereunder; and

(e) theaggregate consideration payablefor al such acquisitions, measured as of the date each such acquisition is agreed to, shall not exceed
$750,000,000, provided that the aggregate consideration payable for all such acquisitions may be increased from $750,000,000 to (i)
$1,000,000,000 if the average closing price of a share of the Borrower's common stock (as reported in theWall Street Journal or such other
source asis reasonably acceptable to the Borrower andthe Administrative Agent and as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reverse stock
splits and similar events) on the 20 successive trading days immediately preceding apublic announcement of such acquisition (the "Average
Closing Price") is greater than $50 and less than or equal to $75, (ii) $1,500,000,000 if the Average Closing Price is greater than $75 and less
than or equal to $100 and (iii) $2,000,000,000 if the Average Closing Price is greater than $100.

"Permitted Investors': the collective reference to Apollo Investment Fund 1V, L.P., Blackstone Management Associates 11 L.L.C., their
respective Affiliates on the date hereof or any successor to such Persons as the holders of the Borrower's 9.2% Series A Junior Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock, 9.2% Series B Junior Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and/or 9.2% Series D Junior Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock.

"Person”: an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, businesstrust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated
association, joint venture, Governmental Authority or other entity of whatever nature.

"PIK Preferred Stock": preferred stock of the Borrower issued after the date hereof, provided that (a) dividends on such preferred stock shall
only be payable in additional shares of such preferred stock, (b) immediately before and immediately after giving effect to suchissuance, no
Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuingand (c) substantially final drafts of the documentation governing any such

preferred stock, showing the termsthereof, shall have been furnished to the Administrative Agent at least ten Business Days prior to the date of
issuance of such preferred stock.

"Plan": at a particular time, any employee benefit plan that is covered by ERISA and in respect of whichthe Borrower or a Commonly

Controlled Entity is (or, if such planwere terminated at such time, would under Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an "employer" as
defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA.

"Pledge Agreement": a second amended and restated pledge agreement among the Borrower, thetrustee for the Senior Discount Notes, the
trustee for the Senior Notes, the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent, substantially similar to the existing amended and restated
pledge agreement, dated asof May 15, 1999, and
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otherwise in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, asthe same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to timein accordance with its terms.

"Pre-Sac Cash Flow": for any period, the sum of (a) Consolidated EBITDA for such period plus, without duplication and to the extent deducted
in determining Consolidated EBITDA, (b) marketing expenses, corporate overhead and non-cash operating expenses for such period.

"Pricing Grid": the pricing grid attached hereto as Annex A.
"Projections’: as defined in Section 5.2(c).

"Property": any right or interest in or to property of any kind whatsoever, whether real, personal or mixed and whether tangible or intangible,
including, without limitation, Capital Stock.

"Recovery Event": any settlement of or paymentin respect of any property or casualty insurance claim or any condemnation proceeding relating
to any asset of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.

"Reference Lender": Deutsche Bank, New Y ork Office.

"Refinancing Indebtedness': asdefined in Section 6.8(a).

"Register": as defined in Section 9.6(d).

"Regulation U": Regulation U of the Board as in effect from timeto time.

"Reinvestment Deferred Amount™: with respect to any Reinvestment Event, the aggregate Net Cash Proceeds received by the Borrower or any
of its Subsidiaries in connection therewith that are not applied to prepay the Loans or reduce the Commitments pursuant to Section 2.9(b) asa
result of the delivery of a Reinvestment Notice.

"Reinvestment Event": any Asset Sale or Recovery Eventin respect of which the Borrower has delivered a Reinvestment Notice.
"Reinvestment Notice": awritten notice executed by a Responsible Officer stating that no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is

continuing and that the Borrower (directly orindirectly through a Subsidiary) intends and expectsto use al or a specified portion of the Net
Cash Proceeds of an Asset Sale or Recovery Event to acquire assets useful in itsbusiness.
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"Reinvestment Prepayment Amount”: withrespect to any Reinvestment Event, the Reinvestment Deferred Amount relating thereto less any
amount expended prior to the relevant Reinvestment Prepayment Date to acquire assetsuseful in the Borrower's business.

"Reinvestment Prepayment Date": with respect to any Reinvestment Event, theearlier of (a) thedate occurring nine monthsafter such
Reinvestment Event and (b) thedate on which the Borrower shall have determined not to, or shall have otherwise ceased to, acquire assets
useful in the Borrower's business with all or any portion of therelevant Reinvestment Deferred Amount, provided that with respect to any
Reinvestment Event arising from thefailure of a satellite or alaunchvehicle, the date referred to in clause (8) shall be extended so long as,
during such extension, thereisin effect an executed contract for the construction of a replacement satellite or launch vehicle, as applicable, and
the parties thereto are diligently pursuing such construction.

"Reorganization™: with respect to any Multiemployer Plan, the condition that such planisin reorganization withinthe meaning of Section 4241
of ERISA.

"Reportable Event": any of theevents set forthin Section 4043(c) of ERISA, other than those events as to which thethirty day notice period is
waived under subsections .27, .28, .29, .30, .31, .32, .34 or .35 of PBGC Reg. 'SS 4043.

"Required Lenders': at any time, the holders of more than 50% of (@) until the Closing Date, the Commitmentsand (b) thereafter, the aggregate
unpaid principal amount of the L oans then outstanding.

"Requirement of Law": asto any Person, the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws or other organizational or governing documents of such
Person, and any law, treaty, ruleor regulation or determination of an arbitrator or a court or other Governmental Authority, in each case
applicable to or binding upon such Person or any of its Property or to which such Person or any of its Property is subject.

"Responsible Officer": thechief executive officer, president, treasurer, senior vice president and general counsel or chief financial officer of the
Borrower, but in any event, with respect to financial matters, the chief financial officer or treasurer of the Borrower.

"Restricted Payments': as defined in Section 6.6.

"Satellite Radio Assets': all assets, rights (contractual or otherwise) and properties, whether tangible or intangible, used or useful in connection
with thebusiness of building, launching and operating a satellite radio broadcast system and activities (including marketing activities) incidental
or ancillary thereto.

"S& P': asdefined in thedefinition of "Cash Equivalents' in this
Section 1.1.
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"SEC": the Securities and Exchange Commission (or successors thereto or an analogous Governmental Authority).

"Security Documents': the collective reference to the Pledge Agreement, the Collateral Agreement, any Mortgage and all other security
documents hereafter delivered to the Collateral Agent granting a Lienon any Property of any Person to secure the obligations and liabilities of
any Loan Party under any Loan Document.

"Secured Parties": asdefined in the Collateral Agreement.

"Senior Discount Note Indenture”: the Indenture, dated asof November 26, 1997, between the Borrower (formerly known as CD Radio Inc.)
and The Bank of New Y ork (as successor to |1BJWhitehall Bank and Trust Company), as Trustee, together with al instrumentsand other
agreements entered into by the Borrower in connection therewith, as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time
to time in accordance with Section 6.8.

"Senior Discount Notes': the Borrower's 15% Senior Secured Discount Notes due 2007 in an aggregate principal amount at maturity equal to
$296,930,000 issued pursuant to the Senior Discount Note Indenture.

"Senior Note Indenture": the Indenture, dated as of May 15, 1999, between the Borrower (formerly known as CD Radio Inc.) and United States
Trust Company of New York, as Trustee, together with all instruments and other agreementsentered into by the Borrower in connection
therewith, as the samemay be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified fromtimeto time in accordance with Section 6.8.

"Senior Notes': up to $200,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Borrower's 14-1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2009 issued pursuant
to the Senior Note Indenture.

"Single Employer Plan": any Plan that is covered by Title 1V of ERISA, but whichisnot a Multiemployer Plan.

"Solvent": with respect to any Person, as of any date of determination,

(a) theamount of the "present fair saleable value" of the assets of such Person will, as of such date, exceed the amount of al "liabilities of such
Person, contingent or otherwise", as of such date, as such quoted terms aredetermined in accordance with applicable federal and state laws
governing determinations of the insolvency of debtors, (b) the present fair saleable value of the assetsof such Person will, as of such date, be
greater than the amount that will be required to pay the liability of such Person on its debts as such debts become absolute and matured, (¢) such
Person will not have, as of such date, an unreasonably small amount of capital with which to conduct its business, and (d) such Person will be
able to pay its debts as they mature. For purposes of thisdefinition, (i) "debt" means liability on a"claim”, and (ii) "claim" means any

(x) right to
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payment, whether or not such aright isreduced to judgment, liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured, unmatured, disputed,
undisputed, legal, equitable, secured or unsecured or (y) right to anequitable remedy for breach of performance if such breach givesriseto a
right to payment, whether or not such right to an equitable remedy is reduced to judgment, fixed, contingent, matured or unmatured, disputed,
undisputed, secured or unsecured.

"Specified Change of Control": a"Change of Control", or like event, as defined in any Indenture, Subordinated Debt Document or any other
document evidencing or governing Indebtedness permitted by Section 6.2(f) or (g).

"Specified Hedge Agreement”: any Hedge Agreement entered into by (a) the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries and (b) any Lender or any
affiliate thereof, ascounterparty.

"Subordinated Debt": with respect to the Borrower, any Indebtedness incurred after May 4, 2000, provided that:

(&) inthecase of any incurrence of Subordinated Debt in an aggregate principal amount in excess of $5,000,000, the Borrower shall have
furnished to the Administrative Agent a certificate of a Responsible Officer of the Borrower to the effect that immediately before and
immediately after giving effect to suchincurrence, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing;

(b) such Indebtedness shall have no scheduled principal paymentsprior to the date that is oneyear after thefinal maturity of the Loans;
(c) such Indebtedness shall not be secured by any assets of any Loan Party;

(d) such Indebtedness (taking into account any interest rate protection in respect thereof) shall not bear cash interest at a per annum ratein
excessof 14.5% per annum;

(e) no covenant or default contained in the Subordinated Debt Documents governing or evidencing such Indebtedness shall be more restrictive
than those contained in this Agreement;

(f) the Obligations constitute " Senior Indebtedness’ (or any comparable concept) under and asdefined in the Subordinated Debt Documents;
and

(9) the Subordinated Debt Documents governing or evidencing such Indebtedness shall contain subordination termsthat, in the reasonable
determination of the Administrative Agent, are no less favorable to the Lendersthan those customarily applicable, at the time of issuance of
such Indebtedness, to offerings of comparable subordinated debt.
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"Subordinated Debt Documents': al indentures, instruments, agreements and other documents governing or evidencing Subordinated Debt.

"Subscriber Acquisition Cost Per Subscriber": for any period, afraction the numerator of whichisthe Subscriber Acquisition Costsfor such
period and the denominator of which isthenumber of Subscribers as at the last day of such period.

"Subscriber Acquisition Costs': for any period, those marketing and selling expenses and capitalized costs incurred in the generation of
Subscribers during such period, including, but not limited to, sales commissions, advertising and promotional expenses, rebates on equipment
and other equipment subsidies.

"Subscribers': subscribers for the satellite radio services provided by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries (a) from whom the Borrower has
received at least one payment for radio service (including, for purposes of this definition, payments for radio service received from automotive
manufacturers), (b) whose account balance is not more than 60 days past due, measured from theinvoice due date thereof, without giving effect
to any extensionsthereof, and (c) who have not canceled their subscription or failed to renew their expiring subscription.

"Subsidiary”: as to any Person, a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity of which shares of stock or other ownership
interests having ordinary voting power (other than stock or such other ownership interests having such power only by reason of the happening
of acontingency) to elect a majority of the board of directors or other managers of such corporation, partnership or other entity are at the time
owned, or the management of whichis otherwise controlled, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, or both, by such Person.
Unless otherwise qualified, all references to a"Subsidiary" or to "Subsidiaries’ in this Agreement shall refer to a Subsidiary or Subsidiaries of
the Borrower.

"Syndication Letter Agreement": theletter agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000, among the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Syndication
Agent and the Arranger relating to the syndication of the Tranche A Term Loan Facility.

"Technology Testing": atest of the Borrower's satellite audio service using broadcasts from two satellites and, to the extent available, terrestrial
repeaters, in both urban/suburban and rural environments, which achieves overall system performance that meets or exceeds the specifications
agreed to by theBorrower and its satellite, system design, automotive and receiver manufacturing technology partners, as certified by a
Responsible Officer of the Borrower and accepted by the Administrative Agent (which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed). The specifications will require, among other things, that the Borrower's signa achieve at least FM-quality music and
provide for aggregate signal availability appropriate for a consumer electronics product. In addition, the Borrower's service shall provide at a
minimuman FM Quality Signal for its music channelsin a variety of urban, suburban
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and rural areas notwithstanding weather and foliage conditions. For purposes of this definition, the term"FM Quality Signal" shall mean a

signal which is capable of providing sound quality typical of that experienced in automobiles usingatypical consumer-oriented receiver tuned
to the most popular radio stations in thetop 50 radio markets.

"Tranche A Term Loan Commitment": asto any Tranche A Term Loan Lender, the obligation of such Lender to make a Tranche A Term Loan
to the Borrower hereunder in a principal amount not to exceed the amount set forth under the heading "Tranche A Term Loan Commitment"
opposite such Lender's name on Schedule 1 to the Lender Addendum delivered by such Lender, or, asthe case may be, in the Assignment and
Acceptance pursuant to which such Lender became a party hereto, as the same may be changed fromtime to time pursuant to the terms hereof.
The original aggregate amount of the Tranche A Term Loan Commitmentsis $150,000,000.

"Tranche A Term Loan Lender": each Lender which hasa Tranche A Term Loan Commitment or is the holder a Tranche A Term Loan.
"Tranche A Term Loans": as defined in Section 2.1.
"Type": asto any Loan, its nature asa Base Rate Loan or a Eurodollar Loan.

"Weighted Average Life": when applied to any committed revolving credit facility or any Indebtedness, at any date, the number of years
obtained by dividing (a) the sum of the products obtained by multiplying (i) theamount of each then remaining scheduled commitment
reduction or, asthe case may be, installment, sinking fund or other scheduled payment of principal, including payment at final maturity, in
respect thereof, by (ii) the number of years (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth) that will elapse between such date and the making of such
reduction or payment, by (b) the aggregate maximum commitment to lend thenin effect under such committed revolving credit facility or, in
cases other than committed revolving credit facilities, thethen outstanding principal amount of such Indebtedness.

"Wholly Owned Subsidiary”: as to any Person, any other Person all of the Capital Stock of which (other than directors qualifying shares
required by law) is owned by such Person directly and/or through other Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.

1.2 Other Definitional Provisions. (8) Unless otherwise specified therein, all termsdefined in thisAgreement shall have the defined meanings
when usedin theother Loan Documents or any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto or thereto.

(b) As used herein and in the other Loan Documents, and any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto or thereto,
accounting termsrelating to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries not defined in Section 1.1 and accounting terms partly
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defined in Section 1.1, to the extent not defined, shall have the respective meanings given to them under GAAP.

(c) The words "hereof", "herein" and "hereunder" and wordsof similar import when used in thisAgreement shall refer to thisAgreement as a
whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement, and Section, Schedule and Exhibit references are to this Agreement unless
otherwise specified.

(d) The meanings given to terms defined herein shall be equally applicable to both thesingular and plural forms of suchterms.
SECTION 2. AMOUNT AND TERMS OF COMMITMENTS

2.1 Commitments. Subject to theterms and conditions hereof, the Tranche A Term Loan Lenders severally agree to make termloans (" Tranche
A Term Loans") to the Borrower on the Closing Datein aprincipal amount for each Tranche A Term Loan Lender not to exceed the amount of
such Lender's Tranche A Term Loan Commitment. The Tranche A Term Loansmay fromtime to time be Eurodollar Loans or Base Rate
Loans, as determined by the Borrower and notified to the Administrative Agent in accordance with Sections 2.2 and 2.10.

2.2 Procedure for Borrowing. The Borrower shall deliver to the Administrative Agent a Borrowing Notice (which Borrowing Notice must be
received by the Administrative Agent prior to 10:00 A.M., New Y ork City time, oneBusiness Day prior to theanticipated Closing Date)
requesting that the Lenders make the Loans on the Closing Date. The Loans shall initially be Base Rate Loans. Upon receipt of such Borrowing
Notice the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender thereof. Not later than 12:00 Noon, New Y ork City time, onthe Closing
Date each Lender shall make availableto the Administrative Agent at the Funding Office an amount in immediately available fundsequal to the
Loans to be made by such Lender. The Administrative Agent shall make available to the Borrower, not later than 2:00 P.M., New Y ork City
time, on the Closing Date, the aggregate of the amounts made available to the Administrative Agent by the Lenders, in like funds asreceived by
the Administrative Agent.

2.3 Optiona Term Loans. (a) Subject to the termsand conditions hereof, the Borrower may, with the consent of the Required Lenders, at any
time and from time to time prior to Closing Date, establish one or moreadditional termloan tranches (each, an "Optional Term Loan Tranche™)
pursuant to whichterm loans ("Optional Term Loans") may be made on the Closing Date; provided, however, that, unless otherwise consented
to by the Administrative Agent, the aggregate Commitmentsof all Lehman Entities shall not, after giving effect to each such Optiona Term
Loan Tranche, exceed $25,000,000. Each Optional Term Loan Tranche shall be in a principal amount of at least $5,000,000, and al Optional
Term Loan Tranches shall not exceed $50,000,000 in the aggregate. The Borrower shall request the establishment of an Optional Term Loan
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Tranche by delivery to the Administrative Agent of awritten request therefor (an "Optional Term Loan Request") which shall be promptly
distributed by the Administrative Agent to the Lenders. Each Optional Term Loan Request shall (i) set forth the aggregate principal amount of
the requested Optional Term Loan Tranche and (ii) be accompanied by such information as the Administrative Agent shall reasonably request
for use in syndication of the requested Optional Term Loans. All Optional Term Loans shall have the sameterms and conditions asare
applicable to Tranche A Term Loans hereunder, including, without limitation, the amortization schedule, the Maturity Date, the Applicable
Margin, the Commitment Fee Rate, the procedures for borrowing and the borrowing conditions; provided, however, that the Administrative
Agent or the Optional Term Loan Lenders may require, in connection with any Optional Term Loan Amendment relating to any Optional Term
Loan Tranche, that the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries provide additional collateral security for the Loans.

(b) The Borrower may offer to any existing Lender, or to one or more additional banks, financial institutions or other entities reasonably
acceptable to the Administrative Agent, the opportunity to participate in al or a portion of an Optional Term Loan Tranche.

(c) The effectiveness of any Optional Term Loan Tranche shall be contingent upon (i) execution and delivery by the Administrative Agent and
the Borrower of an Optional Term Loan Amendment relating to such Optional Term Loan Tranche, (ii) execution and delivery by each L ender
providing Optional Term Loan Commitmentsunder such Optional Term Loan Tranche of a Lender Addendum, with such changes thereto as
are necessary to reflect that such Lender Addendum relates to the Optional Term Loan Amendment rather than this Agreement, pursuant to
which each such Lender becomes a party to the Optional Term Loan Amendment relating to such Optional Term Loan Tranche, (iii) execution
and delivery by the Borrower (and, if applicable, any of itsSubsidiaries) of such amendments to the Security Documents or such other
documents as the Administrative Agent reasonably deems necessary or desirableto grant to the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured
Parties, a perfected security interest in any Property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in which a security interest isrequired to be
granted in accordance with the Optiona Term Loan Amendment executed for such Tranche and (iv) receipt by the Administrative Agent of
such corporate resolutions and officer's certificates of the Borrower and legal opinions of counsel to the Borrower as the Administrative Agent
shall reasonably request with respect thereto, in each case, in formand substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent. In the
case of any Lender Addendum with respect to an Optional Term Loan Amendment executed by any Person that was not theretofore a Lender,
upon the effectiveness of such Optional Term Loan Amendment such Person shall be a party hereto and a Lender hereunder. The Borrower and
the Administrative Agent agree to negotiate in good faith any Optional Term Loan Amendment relating to any Optional Term Loan Tranche.

(d) No Lender shall have any obligation to participate in any Optional Term Loan Tranche unlessit agrees to do so in its sole discretion.
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2.4 Repayment of Loans. The Loans of each Lender shall mature in consecutive quarterly installments, commencing on March 31, 2003, each
of whichshall bein anamount equal to such Lender's L oan Percentage multiplied by the percentage set forth below opposite suchinstallment
of theaggregate principal amount of Loans made on the Closing Date:

I nstal | ment
Per cent age

March 31, 2003

0. 25%

June 30, 2003

0. 25%

Sept enber 30, 2003
0. 25%

Decenber 31, 2003
0. 25%

March 31, 2004
2.25%

June 30, 2004
2.25%

Sept enber 30, 2004
2.25%

Decenber 31, 2004
2.25%

March 31, 2005
22.50%

June 30, 2005
22.50%

Sept enber 30, 2005
22.50%

Maturity Date
22.50%

2.5 Repayment of Loans; Evidence of Debt. (a) The Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to pay to the Administrative Agent for the
account of each Lender the principal amount of the Loans of such Lender in installments according to the amortization schedule set forth in
Section 2.4 (or on such earlier date on which the Loans become due and payable pursuant to Section 7). The Borrower hereby further agrees to
pay interest on the unpaid principal amount of the Loansfrom time to time outstanding from the date hereof until payment in full thereof at the

rates per annum, and on thedates, set forth in
Section 2.12.

(b) Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice anaccount or accounts evidencing indebtedness of the Borrower to such
Lender resulting from each Loan of such Lender from time to time, including the amounts of principal and interest payable and paid to such
Lender fromtimeto time under this Agreement.

(c) The Administrative Agent, on behalf of the Borrower, shall maintain the Register pursuant to Section 9.6(d), and a subaccount therein for
each Lender, in which shall be recorded (i) the amount of each Loan made hereunder and any Note evidencing such Loan, the Type of such
Loan and each Interest Period applicable thereto, (ii) theamount of any principal or interest due and payable or to become due and payable
from the Borrower to each Lender hereunder and (iii) both theamount of any sum received by the Administrative Agent hereunder fromthe
Borrower and each Lender's share thereof.
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(d) The entries made in the Register and the accounts of each Lender maintained pursuant to Section 2.5(b) shall, to the extent permitted by
applicable law, be prima facieevidence of the existence and amounts of the obligations of the Borrower and the payments by the Borrower
therein recorded; provided, however, that thefailure of any Lender or the Administrative Agent to maintain the Register or any such account, or
any error therein, shall not in any manner affect the obligation of the Borrower to repay (with applicable interest) the Loans made to the
Borrower by such Lender in accordance with the termsof this Agreement.

(e) The Borrower agreesthat, upon therequest to the Administrative Agent by any Lender, the Borrower will promptly execute and deliver to
such Lender a promissory note substantialy in theform of Exhibit F (a"Note") withappropriate insertions as to date and principal amount;
provided, that delivery of Notes shall not be a condition precedent to the occurrence of the Closing Date or the making of the Loanson the
Closing Date.

2.6 Commitment Fees, etc. (a) The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender a commitment fee for
the period from andincluding October 15, 2000 to the Closing Date, computed at the Commitment Fee Rate on the Commitments of such
Lender, payable quarterly in arrears on the last day of each March, June, September and December and on the date of expiration or termination
of the Commitments, commencing on the first of such dates to occur after the date hereof.

(b) The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent thefees in the amounts and on the dates from time to time agreed to in writing by
the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

2.7 Termination or Reduction of Commitments. The Borrower shall have theright, upon not lessthan three Business Days notice to the
Administrative Agent, to terminate any of the Commitmentsor, from time to time, to reduce theamount of any of the Commitments. Any such
reduction shall be in anamount equal to $1,000,000, or a whole multiplethereof, and shall reduce permanently the applicable Commitments
then in effect.

2.8 Optiona Prepayments. (a) The Borrower may at any time and from time to time prepay the Loans, in whole or in part, without premium or
penalty (except asotherwise provided inthisSection 2.8 and in Section 2.18), upon irrevocable notice delivered to the Administrative Agent at
least three Business Days prior thereto in the case of Eurodollar Loansand at least one BusinessDay prior thereto in the case of Base Rate

L oans, which notice shall specify the date and amount of such prepayment, and whether such prepayment is of Eurodollar Loans or Base Rate
Loans; provided, that if a Eurodollar Loan is prepaid on any day other than the last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto, the Borrower
shall aso pay any amounts owing pursuant to Section 2.18. Upon receipt of any such notice the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify
each Lender thereof. If any such notice is given, theamount specified in such
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notice shall be due and payable on the date specified therein, together with accrued interest to such date on the amount prepaid. Partial
prepayments shall be in an aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000 or a whole multiplethereof.

(b) Each optional prepayment in respect of the Loanson or prior to the third anniversary of the Closing Date shall be accompanied by a
prepayment premium equal to (i) if such prepayment is made on or prior to the first anniversary of the Closing Date, 5% of the principal amount
of such prepayment,

(i) if such prepayment is made after the first anniversary of the Closing Date and on or prior to the second anniversary of the Closing Date, 3%
of theprincipal amount of such prepayment and (iii) if such prepayment is made after the second anniversary of the Closing Date and on or
prior to the third anniversary of the Closing Date, 1% of the principal amount of such prepayment. Any prepayment of the L oans upon the
refinancing thereof (whether with proceeds of equity or Indebtedness) or upon the occurrence of a Changeof Control shall be deemed to be an
optional prepayment; provided, however, that the prepayment premium applicable to any prepayment of the Loansupon the occurrence of a
Change of Control shall, notwithstanding the foregoing, be equal to 1% of the principal amount of such prepayment.

2.9 Mandatory Prepayments. (a) If any Indebtedness shall be incurred by the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries (excludingany Indebtedness
incurred in accordance with Section 6.2 as in effect on the date of this Agreement), then, on the date of suchincurrence, the Loans shall be
prepaid, and/or the Commitments shall be reduced, by an amount equal to the amount of such Net Cash Proceeds. The provisions of this
Section do not constitute a consent to the incurrence of any Indebtedness by the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries.

(b) If on any date the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall receive Net Cash Proceeds from any Asset Saleor Recovery Event then, unless a
Reinvestment Notice shall be delivered in respect thereof, on the date of receipt by the Borrower or such Subsidiary of such Net Cash Proceeds,
the Loansshall be prepaid, and/or the Commitments shall be reduced, by an amount equal to the amount of such Net Cash Proceeds; provided,
that, notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) the aggregate Net Cash Proceeds of Asset Sales and Recovery Events (other than Recovery Events
arising from satellite or launchfailures) that may be excluded from theforegoing requirement pursuant to a Reinvestment Natice shall not
exceed $5,000,000 at any onetime outstanding and (ii) on each Reinvestment Prepayment Date the Loansshall be prepaid, and/or the
Commitments shall be reduced, by anamount equal to the Reinvestment Prepayment Amount with respect to the relevant Reinvestment Event.
The provisions of this Section do not constitute a consent to the consummation of any Disposition not permitted by

Section 6.5.

(c) If, for any fiscal year of the Borrower commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002, there shall be Excess Cash Flow, then,
on the relevant Excess Cash Flow Application Date, the Loansshall be prepaid, and/or the Commitments shall be reduced, by an amount equal
to 50% of such Excess Cash Flow.
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Each such prepayment and commitment reduction shall be made on a date (an "Excess Cash Flow Application Date") no later than fivedays
after theearlier of (i) the date on which thefinancia statements of the Borrower referred to in

Section 5.1(a), for the fiscal year with respect to which such prepayment is made, are required to be delivered to the Lendersand (ii) the date
such financia statementsare actually delivered.

2.10 Conversion and Continuation Options. () The Borrower may elect from time to time to convert Eurodollar Loans to Base Rate Loans by
giving the Administrative Agent at least two Business Days prior irrevocable notice of such election, provided that if a Eurodollar Loan is
converted on any day other thanthe last day of thelnterest Period applicable thereto, the Borrower shall also pay any amountsowing pursuant
to Section 2.18. The Borrower may elect from time to time to convert Base Rate Loans to Eurodollar Loansby giving the Administrative Agent
at least three Business Days prior irrevocable notice of such election (which notice shall specify the length of the initial Interest Period
therefor), provided that no Base Rate L oan may be converted into a Eurodollar Loan (i) whenany Event of Default hasoccurred and is
continuing and the Administrative Agent has, or theRequired Lenders have, determined inits or their solediscretion not to permit such
conversions or (ii) after the date that is one month prior to the Maturity Date. Upon receipt of any such noticethe Administrative Agent shall
promptly notify each Lender thereof.

(b) Subject to Section 2.14, the Borrower may elect to continue any Eurodollar Loan as such upon the expiration of the then current Interest
Period with respect thereto by giving irrevocable notice to the Administrative Agent, in accordance withthe applicable provisions of theterm
"Interest Period" set forth in Section 1.1, of thelength of the next Interest Period to be applicable to such Loans, provided that no Eurodollar
Loan may be continued as such (i) when any Event of Default has occurred andis continuingand the Administrative Agent has, or the Required
Lenders have, determined inits or their sole discretion not to permit such continuations or (ii) after the date that is one month prior to the
Maturity Date, and provided, further, that if the Borrower shall fail to giveany required notice as described above in this paragraph or if such
continuation is not permitted pursuant to the preceding proviso, such Loans shall be converted automatically to Base Rate Loans on the last day
of suchthen expiring Interest Period. Upon receipt of any such noticethe Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender thereof.

2.11 Minimum Amounts and Maximum Number of Eurodollar Tranches. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisAgreement, all
borrowings, conversions, continuations and optional prepayments of Eurodollar Loans and all selections of Interest Periods shall be in such
amounts and be made pursuant to such elections so that, (a) after giving effect thereto, the aggregate principal amount of the Eurodollar Loans
comprising each Eurodollar Tranche shall be equal to $5,000,000 or a whole multiple of $500,000 in excess thereof and (b) no more thanfive
Eurodollar Tranches shall be outstanding at any one time.
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2.12 Interest Ratesand Payment Dates. (a) Each Eurodollar Loan shall bear interest for each day during each Interest Period with respect
thereto at arate per annum equal to the Eurodollar Rate determined for such day plus the Applicable Margin in effect for such day.

(b) Each Base RateLoan shall bear interest for each day onwhich it is outstanding at a rate per annum equal to the Base Rate in effect for such
day plusthe Applicable Margin in effect for such day.

(c) (i) If al or aportion of the principal amount of any Loan shall not be paid when due (whether at the stated maturity, by acceleration or
otherwise), all outstanding L oans (whether or not overdue) (to the extent legally permitted) shall bear interest at a rate per annum that is equal
to the rate that would otherwise be applicable thereto pursuant to theforegoing provisions of this Section plus 2%, and (ii) if al or a portion of
any interest payable on any Loan or any fee or other amount payable hereunder shall not be paid when due (whether at the stated maturity, by
acceleration or otherwise), such overdue amount shall bear interest at arate per annum equal to therate then applicable to Base Rate L oans plus
2%, in each case, with respect to clauses (i) and (ii) above, from the date of such non-payment until such amount is paid in full (after as well as
before judgment).

(d) Interest shall be payablein arrears on each Interest Payment Date, provided that interest accruing pursuant to paragraph (c) of this Section
shall be payable fromtime to time on demand.

2.13 Computation of Interest and Fees. () Interest and fees, payable pursuant hereto shall be calculated on thebasis of a 360-day year for the
actual days elapsed, except that, with respect to Base Rate Loans on which interest is calculated on the basis of the Prime Rate, the interest
thereon shall be calculated on the basis of a 365- (or 366-, as the case may be) day year for the actual days elapsed. The Administrative Agent
shall as soon as practicable notify the Borrower and the Lenders of each determination of a Eurodollar Rate. Any changein theinterest rateon a
Loan resulting from a changein the Base Rate or the Eurocurrency Reserve Requirements shall become effective as of the opening of business
on the day on which such change becomes effective. The Administrative Agent shall as soon as practicable notify the Borrower and the Lenders
of the effective date and the amount of each such changein interest rate.

(b) Each determination of an interest rate by the Administrative Agent pursuant to any provision of this Agreement shall be conclusiveand
binding on the Borrower and the Lenders in the absence of manifest error. The Administrative Agent shall, at the request of the Borrower,
deliver to the Borrower a statement showing the quotations used by the Administrative Agent in determining any interest rate pursuant to
Section 2.12(a).
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2.14 Inability to Determine Interest Rate. If prior to the first day of any Interest Period:

(a) the Administrative Agent shall have determined (which determination shall be conclusive and binding upon the Borrower) that, by reason of
circumstances affecting the relevant market, adequate and reasonable means do not exist for ascertaining the Eurodollar Rate for such Interest
Period, or

(b) the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from the Required Lenders that the Eurodollar Rate determined or to be determined for
such Interest Period will not adequately and fairly reflect the cost to such Lenders (as conclusively certified by such Lenders) of making or
maintaining their affected L oans during such Interest Period,

the Administrative Agent shall give telecopy or telephonic notice thereof to the Borrower and the Lenders as soon as practicable thereafter. If
such noticeis given (x) any Eurodollar Loans reguested to be made on the first day of such Interest Period shall be made as Base Rate Loans,
(y) any Loansthat wereto have been converted on thefirst day of such Interest Period to Eurodollar Loansshall be continued as Base Rate
Loans and (z) any outstanding Eurodollar Loans shall be converted, on thelast day of the then current Interest Period with respect thereto, to
Base Rate Loans. Until such notice has been withdrawn by the Administrative Agent (or the Required Lenders, as the case may be, which they
agree to do as soon as circumstances allow), no further Eurodollar Loans shall be made or continued assuch, nor shall the Borrower have the
right to convert Loans to Eurodollar Loans.

2.15 Pro Rata Treatment and Payments. (a) The borrowing by the Borrower from the Lenders hereunder, each payment by the Borrower on
account of any commitment fee, and any reduction of the Commitments of the Lenders, shall be made pro rata according to the respective Loan
Percentages of the Lenders. Each payment in respect of principal or interest in respect of the Loans and each payment in respect of fees payable
hereunder shall be applied to the amounts of such obligations owing to the Lenders pro rata according to the respective amounts then due and
owing to the Lenders. Each principal prepayment of the Loans shall be allocated among the Lenders pro rata based on the principal amount of
Loans held by such Lenders and shall be applied to the installments of such Loanspro rata based on the remaining outstanding principal amount
of suchinstallments. Amounts prepaid on account of the Loansmay not be reborrowed.

(b) The application of any payment of Loans (including optional and mandatory prepayments) shall be made, first, to Base Rate Loans and,
second, to Eurodollar Loans. Each payment of the Loans shall be accompanied by accrued interest to the date of such payment on the amount
paid.

(c) All payments (including prepayments) to be made by the Borrower hereunder, whether on account of principal, interest, fees or otherwise,
shall be made

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




35

without setoff or counterclaim and shall be made prior to 12:00 Noon, New Y ork City time, on the due date thereof to the Administrative
Agent, for the account of the Lenders, at the Payment Office, in Dollars andin immediately available funds. Any payment made by the
Borrower after 12:00 Noon, New Y ork City time, on any Business Day shall be deemed to have been made on the next following Business Day.
The Administrative Agent shall distribute such paymentsto the Lenders promptly upon receiptin like fundsas received. If any payment
hereunder (other than paymentson the Eurodollar Loans) becomes due and payable on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be
extended to the next succeeding BusinessDay. If any payment on a Eurodollar Loan becomes due and payable on a day other than a Business
Day, the maturity thereof shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day unlessthe result of such extension would be to extend such
payment into another calendar month, in which event such payment shall be made on theimmediately preceding Business Day. In the case of
any extension of any payment of principal pursuant to the preceding two sentences, interest thereon shall be payable at the then applicable rate
during such extension.

(d) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have been notified in writing by any Lender prior to a borrowing that such Lender will not make the
amount that would constitute its share of such borrowing available to the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent may assume that such
Lender is making such amount available to the Administrative Agent, and the Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption,
make availableto the Borrower a corresponding amount. If such amount is not made available to the Administrative Agent by the required time
on the Borrowing Date therefor, such Lender shall pay to the Administrative Agent, on demand, such amount with interest thereon at arate
equa to the daily average Federa Funds Effective Rate for theperiod until such Lender makes such amount immediately available to the
Administrative Agent. A certificate of the Administrative Agent submitted to any Lender with respect to any amounts owing under this
paragraph shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error. If such Lender's share of such borrowing is not made available to the
Administrative Agent by such Lender within three Business Days after such Borrowing Date, the Administrative Agent shall also be entitled to
recover such amount with interest thereon at therate per annum applicable to Base Rate Loans, on demand, from the Borrower.

(e) Unlessthe Administrative Agent shall have been notified in writingby the Borrower prior to the date of any payment due to be made by the
Borrower hereunder that the Borrower will not make such payment to the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent may assumethat the
Borrower is making such payment, and the Administrative Agent may, but shall not be required to, in reliance upon such assumption, make
available to the Lenders their respective pro ratashares of a corresponding amount. If such payment is not made to the Administrative Agent by
the Borrower within three Business Days after such due date, the Administrative Agent shall be entitled to recover, on demand, from each
Lender to which any amount was made available pursuant to the preceding sentence, such amount with interest thereon at the rate per annum
equa to the daily average Federal Funds Effective Rate. Nothing
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herein shall be deemed to limit the rights of the Administrative Agent or any Lender against the Borrower.

2.16 Requirements of Law. (8) If theadoption of or any change in any Reguirement of Law or in the interpretation or application thereof or
compliance by any Lender with any request or directive (whether or not having the force of law) fromany central bank or other Governmental
Authority made subsequent to the date hereof:

(i) shall subject any Lender to any tax of any kind whatsoever with respect to this Agreement or any Eurodollar Loan made by it, or changethe
basis of taxation of paymentsto such Lender in respect thereof (except for Non-Excluded Taxes covered by Section 2.17 and changes in the
rate of tax onthe overall net incomeof such Lender);

(ii) shall impose, modify or hold applicable any reserve, special deposit, compulsory loan or similar requirement against assets held by, deposits
or other liabilitiesin or for theaccount of, advances, loansor other extensions of credit by, or any other acquisition of fundsby, any office of
such Lender that is not otherwise included in the determination of the Eurodollar Rate hereunder; or

(iii) shall impose on such Lender any other condition;

and the result of any of the foregoing is to increase the cost to such Lender, by an amount which such Lender deems to be material, of making,
converting into, continuing or maintaining Eurodollar Loans, or to reduce any amount receivable hereunder in respect thereof, then, in any such
case, the Borrower shall promptly pay such Lender, upon itsdemand, any additional amounts necessary to compensate such Lender for such
increased cost or reduced amount receivable. If any Lender becomes entitled to claim any additional amounts pursuant to this Section, it shall
promptly notify the Borrower (with a copy to the Administrative Agent) of theevent by reason of whichit has become so entitled; provided that
the Borrower shall not be required to compensate a Lender pursuant to this paragraph for any amounts incurred more than six months prior to
the date that such Lender notifies the Borrower of such Lender's intentionto claim compensation therefor; and provided further that, if the
circumstances givingrise to such claim have aretroactive effect, then such six-month period shall be extended to include the period of such
retroactive effect.

(b) If any Lender shall have determined that the adoption of or any change in any Requirement of Law regarding capital adequacy or inthe
interpretation or application thereof or compliance by such Lender or any corporation controlling such Lender with any request or directive
regarding capital adequacy (whether or not having theforce of law) from any Governmenta Authority made subsequent to the date hereof shall
have the effect of reducing the rate of return on such Lender's or such corporation's capital as a consequence of its obligations hereunder or
under to alevel below that which such Lender or such corporation could have achieved but for such adoption, change or compliance (taking
into consideration such Lender's or such
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corporation's policies with respect to capital adequacy) by an amount deemed by such Lender to be material, then from timeto time, after
submission by such Lender to the Borrower (with acopy to the Administrative Agent) of awritten request therefor, the Borrower shall pay to
such Lender such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender or such corporation for such reduction; provided that the
Borrower shall not be required to compensate a Lender pursuant to this paragraph for any amounts incurred more than six months prior to the
date that such Lender notifies the Borrower of such Lender'sintention to claim compensation therefor; and provided further that, if the
circumstances givingrise to such claim have aretroactive effect, then such six-month period shall be extended to include the period of such
retroactive effect.

(c) A certificate asto any additional amounts payable pursuant to this

Section submitted by any Lender to the Borrower (with acopy to the Administrative Agent) shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error.
The obligations of the Borrower pursuant to this Section shall survive thetermination of this Agreement and the payment of the L oans and all
other amounts payable hereunder.

2.17 Taxes. (a) All payments made by the Borrower under this Agreement shall be made free and clear of, and without deduction or
withholding for or on account of, any present or futureincome, stamp or other taxes, levies, imposts, duties, charges, fees, deductions or
withholdings, now or hereafter imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by any Governmental Authority, excluding

(i) net incometaxes and franchise taxes (imposed in lieu of netincome taxes) imposed on any Agent or any Lender as aresult of a present or
former connection between such Agent or such Lender andthe jurisdiction of the Governmental Authority imposing suchtax or any political
subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein (other than any such connection arising solely from such Agent's or such Lender's having
executed, delivered or performed its obligations or received a payment under, or enforced, this Agreement or any other Loan Document) and
(i) any branch profits taxesimposed by the United States of America or any similar tax imposed by any other jurisdiction described in clause
(i) above. If any such non-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, duties, charges, fees, deductions or withholdings ("Non-Excluded Taxes") or any
Other Taxes arerequired to be withheld from any amounts payableto any Agent or any Lender hereunder, the amounts so payableto such
Agent or such Lender shall be increased to the extent necessary to yield to such Agent or such Lender (after payment of all Non-Excluded
Taxes and Other Taxes) interest or any such other amounts payable hereunder at therates or in the amounts specified in this Agreement;
provided, however, that the Borrower shall not be required to increase any such amounts payable to any Lender with respect to any
Non-Excluded Taxes (i) that are attributable to such Lender'sfailure to comply with the requirements of paragraph (d) or (€) of thisSection or
(i) that are withholding taxes imposed on amounts payable to such Lender at the time such Lender becomes a party to this Agreement, except
to the extent that such Lender's assignor (if any) was entitled, at thetime of assignment, to receive additional amounts from the Borrower with
respect to such Non-Excluded Taxes pursuant to thisparagraph (a).
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(b) In addition, the Borrower shall pay any Other Taxesto therelevant Governmental Authority in accordance with applicable law.

(c) Whenever any Non-Excluded Taxes or Other Taxes are payable by the Borrower, aspromptly as possible thereafter the Borrower shall send
to the Administrative Agent for the account of the relevant Agent or Lender, as the case may be, a certified copy of an original officia receipt
received by the Borrower showing payment thereof. If the Borrower fails to pay any Non-Excluded Taxes or Other Taxes whendue to the
appropriate taxing authority or failsto remit to the Administrative Agent the required receipts or other required documentary evidence, the
Borrower shall indemnify the Agents and the Lenders for any incremental taxes, interest or penalties (the "Assessed Amount™) that may become
payable by any Agent or any Lender as aresult of any such failure; provided that in the event that any Agent or any Lender, as the case may be,
successfully conteststhe assessment of the Assessed Amount, such Agent or Lender shall refund, to the extent of any refund thereof made to
such Agent or Lender, any amounts paid by the Borrower under thisSection 2.17(c) in respect of such Assessed Amount net of all

out-of-pocket expenses of such Agent or Lender attributable thereto. The Borrower, upon the request of such Agent or Lender, agrees to repay
the amount paid over to the Borrower pursuant to the preceding sentence (plus any penalties, interest or other chargesimposed by the relevant
Governmental Authority) to such Agent or Lender in the event such Agent or Lender, asapplicable, is required to repay such refund to such
Governmental Authority. The agreementsin this Section shall survivethe termination of this Agreement and the payment of the Loans and all
other amounts payable hereunder.

(d) Each Lender (or Transferee) that isnot a citizen or resident of the United States of America, a corporation, partnership or other entity
created or organized in or under the laws of the United States of America(or any jurisdiction thereof), or any estate or trust that is subject to
federal income taxation regardless of the source of itsincome (a"Non-U.S. Lender") shall deliver to the Borrower and the Administrative
Agent (or, in the case of a Participant, to the Lender from which therelated participation shall have been purchased) two copies of either U.S.
Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or Form W-8ECI, or, inthe case of aNon-U.S. Lender claiming exemption from U.S. federal
withholding tax under Section 871(h) or 881(c) of the Code with respect to payments of "portfolio interest" a statement substantially in the form
of Exhibit G and two copies of Form W-8BEN or, in either case, any subsequent versionsthereof or successorsthereto properly completed and
duly executed by such Non-U.S. Lender claiming complete exemption from, or areduced rate of, U.S. federal withholding tax on all payments
by the Borrower under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents. Such formsshall be delivered by each Non-U.S. Lender on or before the
date it becomes a party to thisAgreement (or, in the case of any Participant, on or before the date such Participant purchases the related
participation). In addition, each Non-U.S. Lender shall deliver suchforms promptly upon the obsolescence, expiration or invalidity of any form
previously delivered by such Non-U.S. Lender. Each Non-U.S. Lender shall promptly notify the Borrower at any timeit determinesthat it isno
longer in a position to provide any previously delivered certificate to the Borrower (or any other
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form of certification adopted by the U.S. taxing authoritiesfor such purpose). Notwithstanding any other provision of this paragraph, a
Non-U.S. Lender shall not be required to deliver any form pursuant to this paragraph that such Non-U.S. Lender is not legally able to deliver.

(e) A Lender (or Transferee) that is entitled to an exemption from or reduction of non-U.S. withholding tax under thelaw of the jurisdictionin
whichthe Borrower islocated, or any treaty to which such jurisdiction is a party, with respect to payments under thisAgreement shall deliver to
the Borrower (with a copy to the Administrative Agent), at the time or times prescribed by applicable law or reasonably requested by the
Borrower, such properly completed and executed documentation prescribed by applicable law aswill permit such paymentsto be made without
withholding or at areduced rate, provided that such Lender islegally entitled to complete, execute and deliver such documentation and in such
Lender's reasonable judgment such completion, execution or submission would not materially prejudice thelegal position of such Lender.

2.18 Indemnity. The Borrower agreesto indemnify each Lender for, and to hold each Lender harmlessfrom, any loss (other than lost profit or
margin) or expensethat such Lender may sustain or incur as a consequence of (a) default by the Borrower in making a borrowing of, conversion
into or continuation of Eurodollar Loans after the Borrower has given a notice requesting the same in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement, (b) default by the Borrower in making any prepayment after the Borrower has given a notice thereof in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement or (c) themaking of a prepayment or conversion of Eurodollar Loans on aday that isnot thelast day of an Interest
Period with respect thereto. Such indemnification may include an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the amount of interest that would
have accrued on the amount so prepaid, or not so borrowed, converted or continued, for the period from the date of such prepayment or of such
faillureto borrow, convert or continueto thelast day of such Interest Period (or, inthecase of afailureto borrow, convert or continue, the
Interest Period that would have commenced on the date of such failure) in each caseat the applicablerate of interest for such Loans provided
for herein (excluding, however, the Applicable Margin included therein, if any) over (ii) the amount of interest (as reasonably determined by
such Lender) that would have accrued to such Lender on such amount by placing such amount on deposit for a comparable period with leading
banks in theinterbank Eurodollar market. A certificate as to any amounts payable pursuant to this Section submitted to the Borrower by any
Lender shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error. This covenant shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment of
the Loansand all other amounts payable hereunder.

2.19 lllegality. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, if the adoption of or any changein any Requirement of Law or in theinterpretation
or application thereof shall make it unlawful for any Lender to make or maintain Eurodollar Loans ascontemplated by this Agreement, (a) the
commitment of such Lender hereunder to make Eurodollar Loans, continue Eurodollar Loans as such and convert Base Rate
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Loans to Eurodollar Loans shall forthwith be canceled and (b) such Lender's Loans then outstanding as Eurodollar Loans, if any, shall be
converted automatically to Base Rate Loans on the respective last days of thethen current Interest Periods with respect to such Loans or within
such earlier period as required by law. If any such conversion of a Eurodollar Loan occurs on a day which isnot the last day of the then current
Interest Period with respect thereto, the Borrower shall pay to such Lender such amounts, if any, as may be required pursuant to Section 2.18.

2.20 Change of Lending Office. Each Lender agrees that, upon the occurrence of any event giving rise to the operation of Section 2.16, 2.17(a)
or

2.19 with respect to such Lender, it will, if requested by the Borrower, usereasonable efforts (subject to overall policy considerations of such
Lender) to designate another lending office for any L oans affected by such event with the object of avoiding the consequences of such event;
provided, that such designation is made on terms that, in the solejudgment of such Lender, cause such Lender andits lending office(s) to suffer
no economic, legal or regulatory disadvantage, and provided, further, that nothing in this Section shall affect or postpone any of the obligations
of any Borrower or the rights of any Lender pursuant to Section 2.16, 2.17(a) or 2.19.

2.21 Replacement of Lenders under Certain Circumstances. The Borrower shall be permitted to replace any Lender that (a) requests
reimbursement for amounts owing pursuant to Section 2.16 or 2.17 or gives a notice of illegality pursuant to Section 2.19 or (b) defaultsinits
obligation to make Loans hereunder, witha replacement financial institution; provided that (i) such replacement does not conflict with any
Requirement of Law, (ii) no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing at the time of such replacement,

(iii) prior to any such replacement, such Lender shall have taken no action under Section 2.20 so asto eliminate the continued need for payment
of amounts owing pursuant to Section 2.16 or 2.17 or to eliminate theillegality referred to in such notice of illegality given pursuant to Section
2.19, (iv) thereplacement financial institution shall purchase, at par, al Loansand other amounts owing to suchreplaced Lender on or prior to
the date of replacement,

(v) the Borrower shall be liableto suchreplaced Lender under Section 2.18 (as though Section 2.18 wereapplicable) if any Eurodollar Loan
owing to such replaced Lender shall be purchased other than onthe last day of thelnterest Period relating thereto, (vi) the replacement financial
institution, if not already a Lender, shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent,

(vii) thereplaced Lender shall be obligated to make such replacement in accordance with the provisions of Section 9.6 (provided that the
Borrower shall be obligated to pay theregistration and processing fee referred to therein),

(viii) the Borrower shall pay all additional amounts (if any) required pursuant to Section 2.16 or 2.17, as the case may be, in respect of any
period prior to the date on which such replacement shall be consummated, and (ix) any such replacement shall not be deemed to be awaiver of
any rightsthat the Borrower, the Administrative Agent or any other Lender shall have against the replaced Lender.
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SECTION 3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

To induce the Agents and the Lenders to enter into thisAgreement and to make the Loans, the Borrower hereby represents and warrants to each
Agent and each Lender that:

3.1 Financial Condition. (a) The audited consolidated balance sheets of the Borrower as at December 31, 1999 and December 31, 1998, and the
related consolidated statements of income and of cash flows for thefiscal years ended on such dates, reported on by and accompanied by an
unqualified report from Arthur Andersen LLP, present fairly in all material respectsthe consolidated financial condition of the Borrower asat
such date, and the consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flowsfor therespective fiscal yearsthen ended. The unaudited
consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower as at March 31, 2000, and the related unaudited consolidated statements of incomeand cash flows
for the three-month period ended on such date, present fairly in all material respectsthe consolidated financial condition of the Borrower as at
such date, and the consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flowsfor thethree-month period then ended (subject to

normal year-end audit adjustments). All such financia statements, includingthe related schedules and notesthereto, have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP applied consistently throughout the periods involved (except asapproved by the aforementioned firm of accountants
and disclosed therein). The Borrower and its Subsidiaries do not have any material Guarantee Obligations, contingent liabilities and liabilities
for taxes, or any long-term leases or unusual forward or long-term commitments, including, without limitation, any interest rate or foreign
currency swap or exchange transaction or other obligation in respect of derivatives, that are not reflected in the most recent financial statements
referred to in thisparagraph or that have not been disclosed to the Lenders. During the period from December 31, 1999 to and including the
date hereof there hasbeen no Disposition by the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries of any materia part of its business or Property.

3.2 No Change. Since December 31, 1999 there has been no development or event that has had or could reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

3.3 Corporate Existence; Compliance with Law. Each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries (a) is duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the lawsof the jurisdiction of its organization, (b) has the corporate (or other entity) power and authority, andthe legal right, to
own and operate its Property, to lease the Property it operates as lessee and to conduct the businessin which it is currently engaged, (c) isduly
qualified as aforeign corporation (or other entity) and in good standing under thelaws of each jurisdiction where its ownership, lease or
operation of Property or the conduct of its business requires such qualification and (d) isin compliance with all Requirements of Law except to
the extent that thefailure to comply therewith could not, in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
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3.4 Corporate Power; Authorization; Enforceable Obligations. Each Loan Party hasthe corporate (or other entity) power and authority, and the
legal right, to make, deliver and perform the Loan Documents to which it is a party and, in the case of the Borrower, to borrow hereunder. Each
Loan Party has taken al necessary corporate (or other entity) actionto authorize the execution, delivery and performance of the Loan
Documents to whichit isa party and, in the case of the Borrower, to authorize the borrowings on the termsand conditions of this Agreement.
No consent or authorization of, filing with, notice to or other act by or in respect of, any Governmental Authority or any other Person is
required in connection with the borrowingshereunder or the execution, delivery, performance, validity or enforceability of thisAgreement or
any of the other Loan Documents by or against the Loan Parties, except (i) consents, authorizations, filings and notices described in Schedule
3.4, which consents, authorizations, filingsand notices have been obtained or made and are in full force and effect and (ii) thefilings referred to
in Section 3.19. Each Loan Document has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of each Loan Party that is a party thereto. This
Agreement constitutes, and each other Loan Document upon execution will constitute, alegal, valid and binding obligation of each Loan Party
that is a party thereto, enforceable against each such Loan Party in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and by
general equitable principles (whether enforcement is sought by proceedingsin equity or at law).

3.5 No Legal Bar. The execution, delivery and performance of thisAgreement and the other Loan Documents, the borrowings hereunder and
the use of the proceeds thereof will not violate any Requirement of Law or any Contractual Obligation of the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries and will not result in, or require, the creation or imposition of any Lien on any of their respective properties or revenues pursuant
to any Requirement of Law or any such Contractual Obligation (other than the Lienscreated by the Security Documents). No Requirement of
Law or Contractual Obligation applicableto theBorrower or any of its Subsidiaries could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect.

3.6 No Material Litigation. No litigation, investigation or proceeding of or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authorityis pending or, to the
knowledge of the Borrower, threatened by or against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or against any of their respective properties or
revenues

(a) with respect to any of the Loan Documentsor any of thetransactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or (b) that could reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

3.7 No Default. Neither the Borrower nor any of itsSubsidiaries isin default under or with respect to any of its Contractual Obligationsin any
respect that could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. No Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

3.8 Ownership of Property; Liens. Each of theBorrower and its Subsidiaries has title in feesimple to, or avalid leasehold interestin, all its real
property,
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and good title to, or avalid leasehold interestin, all itsother Property, and none of such Property is subject to any Lien except as permitted by
Section 6.3.

3.9 Intellectual Property. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries owns, or islicensed to use, all Intellectual Property necessary for the
conduct of its business as currently conducted. No material claim has been asserted and is pending by any Person challenging or questioning the
use of any Intellectual Property or the validity or effectiveness of any Intellectua Property, nor doesthe Borrower know of any valid basisfor
any such claim. The use of Intellectual Property by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries does not infringeon the rights of any Person in any
material respect.

3.10 Taxes. Each of the Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries has filed or caused to be filed all Federal, stateand other material tax returns that
are required to be filed and haspaid all taxesshown to be due and payable on said returns or on any assessments made against it or any of its
Property and all other material taxes, feesor other charges imposed on it or any of its Property by any Governmenta Authority (other than any
the amount or validity of which are currently being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and with respect to which reservesin
conformity with GAAP have been provided onthe books of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries, asthe case may be); and no tax Lien hasbeen
filed, and, to the knowledgeof the Borrower, no claimis being asserted, with respect to any suchtax, fee or other charge (other than any the
amount or validity of which are currently being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and with respect to which reservesin
conformity with GAAP have been provided on the books of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries, asthe case may be).

3.11 Federa Regulations. No part of the proceeds of any Loans will be used for "purchasing” or "carrying" any "margin stock" within the
respective meanings of each of the quoted termsunder Regulation U as now and from time to time hereafter in effect or for any purpose that
violates the provisions of the Regulations of the Board. If requested by any Lender or the Administrative Agent, the Borrower will furnish to the
Administrative Agent and each Lender a statement to the foregoing effect in conformity with the requirements of FR Form G-3 or FR Form U-1
referred to in Regulation U.

3.12 Labor Matters. There are no strikes or other labor disputes against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries pending or, to the knowledge of
the Borrower, threatened that (individually or in the aggregate) could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Hours worked
by and payment made to employees of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries have not been in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act or any other
applicable Requirement of Law dealing with such matters that (individualy or in the aggregate) could reasonably be expected to have a

Material Adverse Effect. All payments due fromthe Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries on account of employee health and welfare insurance
that (individually or in the aggregate) could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect if not paid have been paid or accrued as a
liability on the books of the Borrower or therelevant Subsidiary.
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3.13 ERISA. Neither a Reportable Event nor an "accumulated funding deficiency" (within the meaning of Section 412 of the Code or Section
302 of ERISA) has occurred during thefive-year period prior to the date on which thisrepresentation is made or deemed made with respect to
any Plan, and each Plan has complied in all material respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA and the Code. Notermination of a Single
Employer Plan has occurred, and no Lien in favor of the PBGC or a Plan has arisen, during such five-year period. The present value of all
accrued benefits under each Single Employer Plan (based on those assumptions used to fund such Plans) did not, as of thelast annual vauation
date prior to the date on whichthis representation is made or deemed made, exceed the value of the assets of such Plan allocable to such
accrued benefits by a material amount. Neither the Borrower nor any Commonly Controlled Entity has had a complete or partial withdrawal
from any Multiemployer Plan that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a material liability under ERISA, and neither the
Borrower nor any Commonly Controlled Entity would become subject to any material liability under ERISA if the Borrower or any such
Commonly Controlled Entity wereto withdraw completely fromall Multiemployer Plans as of thevaluation date most closely preceding the
date on whichthis representation is made or deemed made. No such Multiemployer Plan is in Reorganization or Insolvent.

3.14 Investment Company Act; Other Regulations. No Loan Party isan "investment company", or a company "controlled" by an "investment
company", within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. No Loan Party is subject to regulation under any
Requirement of Law (other than Regulation X of theBoard) whichlimitsits ability to incur Indebtedness.

3.15 Subsidiaries. (a) The Subsidiaries listed on Schedule

3.15 condtitute all the Subsidiaries of the Borrower at the date hereof. Schedule 3.15, as such schedule may be supplemented from time to time
between the date hereof and the Closing Datein a written notice fromthe Borrower to the Administrative Agent, setsforth as of the Closing
Date the name and jurisdiction of incorporation of each Subsidiary and, as to each Subsidiary, the percentage of each class of Capital Stock
owned by each Loan Party.

(b) There are no outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, calls, rights or other agreements or commitments (other than stock options
granted to employees or directors and directors qualifying shares) of any nature relatingto any Capital Stock of the Borrower or any
Subsidiary, except as disclosed on Schedule 3.15.

3.16 Use of Proceeds. The proceeds of the Loans shall be used to finance capital expenditures and general working capital needs and for the
general corporate purposes of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries.

3.17 Environmental Matters. Other than exceptions to any of the following that could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect:
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(a) theBorrower and its Subsidiaries. (i) are, and withinthe period of al applicable statutes of limitation have been, in compliance withall
applicable Environmental Laws; (ii) hold al Environmental Permits (each of whichis in full force and effect) required for any of their current
or intended operations or for any property owned, leased, or otherwise operated by any of them; (iii) are, and withinthe period of all applicable
statutes of limitation have been, in compliance withall of their Environmental Permits; and

(iv) reasonably believe that: each of their Environmental Permits will be timely renewed and complied with, without material expense; any
additional Environmental Permits that may be required of any of them will be timely obtained and complied with, without material expense; and
compliance with any Environmental Law that is or is expected to become applicable to any of them will be timely attained and maintained,
without material expense.

(b) Materials of Environmental Concern are not present at, on, under, in, or about any real property now or formerly owned, leased or operated
by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, or at any other location (including, without limitation, any location to which Material s of
Environmental Concern have been sent for re-useor recycling or for treatment, storage, or disposal) which could reasonably be expected to (i)
give riseto liability of the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries under any applicable Environmental Law or otherwise result in coststo the
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, or (ii) interfere with the Borrower's or any of itsSubsidiaries’ continued operations, or (iii) impair the fair
saleable value of any real property owned or leased by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.

(c) Thereisnojudicia, administrative, or arbitral proceeding (including any notice of violation or alleged violation) under or relating to any
Environmental Law to whichthe Borrower or any of its Subsidiariesis, or to the knowledge of the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries will be,
named as a party that is pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened.

(d) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any written request for information, or been notified that it is a potentialy

responsible party under or relating to the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act or any similar
Environmental Law, or withrespect to any Materials of Environmental Concern.

(e) Neither the Borrower nor any of itsSubsidiaries hasentered into or agreed to any consent decree, order, or settlement or other agreement, or
is subject to any judgment, decree, or order or other agreement, in any judicial, administrative, arbitral, or other forumfor dispute resolution,
relating to compliance with or liability under any Environmental Law.

(f) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries has assumed or retained, by contract or operation of law, any liabilities of any kind, fixed or
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contingent, known or unknown, under any Environmental Law or with respect to any Material of Environmental Concern.

3.18 Accuracy of Information, etc. No statement or information contained in this Agreement, any other Loan Document, the Confidential
Information Memorandum (once prepared) or any other document, certificate or statement furnishedto the Administrative Agent or the Lenders
or any of them, by or on behalf of any Loan Party for use in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the other Loan
Documents, when taken as awhole, contained as of the date such statement, information, document or certificate was so furnished, any untrue
statement of a material fact or omitted to statea material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained herein or therein not
misleading. The projections and pro forma financial information contained in the materials referenced above are based upon good faith
estimates and assumptions believed by management of the Borrower to be reasonable at thetime made, it being recognized by the Lendersthat
such financial information as it relatesto future eventsis not to be viewed as fact and that actual results during the period or periods covered by
such financial information may differ from the projected results set forth therein by a material amount. There isno fact known to any Loan
Party that could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect that hasnot been expresdy disclosed herein, in the other Loan
Documents, in the Confidential Information Memorandum (once prepared) or in any other documents, certificates and statements furnished to
the Agentsand the Lendersfor use in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and by the other Loan Documents.

3.19 Security Documents. (a) The Collateral Agreement is effective to create in favor of the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured
Parties, alegal, valid and enforceable security interestin the Collateral described therein and proceeds thereof. When financing statements in
appropriate form are filed in the offices specified on Schedule 3.19(a)-1, the Collateral Agreement shall constitute a fully perfected Lienon,
and security interestin, all right, title and interest of the Loan Parties in such Collateral and the proceeds thereof, as security for the Obligations
(asdefined inthe Collateral Agreement), in each case prior and superior in right to any other Person (except Liens permitted by Section 6.3).
Schedule 3.19(a)-2 lists each UCC Financing Statement that (i) names any Loan Party as debtor and (ii) will remain on file after the Closing
Date. Schedule 3.19(a)-3 lists each UCC Financing Statement that (i) names any Loan Party asdebtor and (ii) will be terminated on or prior to
the Closing Date; and on or prior to the Closing Date, the Borrower will have delivered to the Administrative Agent, or caused to be filed, duly
completed UCC termination statements, signed by therelevant secured party, in respect of each UCC Financing Statement listed in Schedule
3.19(a)-3.

(b) The Pledge Agreement is effectiveto create in favor of the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, alegal, valid and
enforceable security interest in all of the Capital Stock of the License Subsidiary, the other Pledged Collateral described therein and proceeds
thereof. When stock certificates representing such

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




47

Pledged Collateral aredelivered to the Collateral Agent, the Pledge Agreement shall constitute a fully perfected Lienon, and security interest
in, al right, title and interest of the Loan Partiesin such Pledged Collateral and the proceeds thereof, as security for the Secured Obligations (as
defined in the Pledge Agreement), in each case prior and superior in right to any other Person.

3.20 Solvency. Each Loan Party is, and after giving effect to the incurrence of all Indebtedness and obligations being incurred in connection
herewith will be and will continue to be, Solvent.

3.21 Licenses; Permits; etc. Schedule 3.21 accurately and completely lists asof the date hereof al material authorizations, licenses and permits
of any public or governmental regulatory body granted or assigned to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, and except as set forth on
Schedule 3.21, the same constitute the only material authorizations, licenses and permits of any public or governmental regulatory body which
are required or necessary for the conduct of the respective businesses of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as now conducted or proposed to be
conducted (such authorizations, licenses and permits, together withany extensions or renewals thereof, being herein sometimes referred to
collectively asthe"Licenses"). Except as set forth on Schedule 3.21, al of such Licenseslisted in Schedule 3.21 are issued in the name of, or
are vaidly assigned to, the Borrower or the License Subsidiary and are validly issued and in full force and effect and have not been revoked,
suspended, canceled, or modified in any adverse way, and the Borrower or the License Subsidiary, as applicable, has (a) fulfilled and
performed in al material respectsall of itsobligations with respect thereto and (b) full power and authority in all material respects to operate
thereunder. All FCC Licenses are held by the License Subsidiary.

3.22 FCC Compliance, etc. (d) The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries are (and, after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, each will be) in compliance with all rules, regulations and administrative orders of the FCC applicable to the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries or the operation of its Properties, except where thefailure to be in such compliance could not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(b) The Borrower has no knowledge of any investigation, notice of apparent liability, violation, forfeiture or other order or complaint issued by
or before the FCC, or of any other proceedings of or before the FCC, which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;
and no proceedings are pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened, to revoke or limit any FCC License, except, in each case,
those which do not and could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(c) The Borrower hasno knowledge of the occurrence of any event which (i) could resultin, or after noticeor lapse of time or both would result
in, revocation, suspension, adverse modifications, non-renewal, impairment, restriction or termination of, or order of forfeiture withrespect to,
any FCC Licensein any respect that could
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reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, or (ii) affects or could reasonably be expected in the future to affect any of therights

of theBorrower or the License Subsidiary under any FCC Licensein any respect that could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect.

(d) Each of the Borrower and the License Subsidiary hasduly filed in atimely manner all material filings, reports, applications, documents,
instruments and information required to be filed by it under the Communications Act, and al such filings werewhen made true, correct and
completein all material respects, except to the extent that the failureto comply or thefailure of any of the statements made in this paragraph to
be true and correct could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

4.1 Conditions to Loans. The agreement of each Lender to make the Loansrequested to be made by it hereunder is subject to the satisfaction,
prior to or concurrently with the making of such Loanson the Closing Date, of the following conditions precedent:

(8) Loan Documents. The Administrative Agent shall have received (i) this Agreement, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of
the Borrower, (ii) the Collateral Agreement, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of the Borrower,

(iii) the Pledge Agreement, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of each party thereto, (iv) the Intercreditor Agreement, executed
and delivered by a duly authorized officer of each party thereto, (v) a Lender Addendum executed and delivered by each Tranche A Term Loan
Lender and accepted by the Borrower and (vi) with respect to Optional Term Loans, if any, (A) Optional Term Loan Amendments relating to
each Optional Term Loan Tranche, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of each of theBorrower and the Administrative Agent,
(B) aLender Addendum executed and delivered by each Optional Term Loan Lender providing Optional Term Loan Commitments and
accepted by the Borrower and (C) to the extent additional collateral security is required to be granted in connection with any Optional Term
Loan Amendment, such additional documentsand instruments referred to in

Section 5.9 as are necessary to grant a security interest in such additional collateral, in each case executed and delivered by a duly authorized
officer of each party thereto.

(b) Financia Statements. The Administrative Agent shall have received (i) audited consolidated financial statements of the Borrower for the
1999 and 1998 fiscal years and (ii) unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Borrower for each quarterly period ended
subseguent to the date of thelatest applicable financial statements delivered pursuant to clause (i) of thisparagraph as to which such financia
statements are available; and such financia
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statements shall not, in the reasonable judgment of the Lenders, reflect any material adverse change in the consolidated financial condition of
the Borrower, as reflected in the financial statementsor projections to be contained in the Confidential Information Memorandum.

(c) Approvals. All material governmental and third party approvals (including landlords and other consents) necessary in connection withthe
continuing operations of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries and the transactions contemplated hereby shall have been obtained and be in full
force and effect, andall applicable waiting periods shall have expired without any action being taken or threatened by any competent authority
whichwould restrain, prevent or otherwise impose adverse conditions on the financing contemplated hereby.

(d) FCC Licenses. The FCC Licenses listed in Schedule 4.1(d) shall bein full force and effect and shall be held by the License Subsidiary.

(e) Satellites. The Borrower shall have at least two satellitesin orbit and properly functioning and shall have satisfactorily completed
Technology Testing.

(f) Related Agreements. The Administrative Agent shall havereceived (in aform reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent), true and
correct copies, certified as to authenticity by the Borrower, of (i) the Senior Discount Note Indenture, (ii) the Senior Note Indenture, (iii) the
Loral Agreement and (iv) such other documents or instruments as may be reasonably requested by the Administrative Agent, including, without
limitation, a copy of any debt instrument, security agreement or other material contract to which the Loan Parties may be a party.

(g) Fees. The Lenders, the Administrative Agent andthe Arranger shall havereceived all feesrequired to be paid, andall expensesfor which
invoices have been presented (including reasonable fees, disbursements and other chargesof counsel to the Agents), on or before the Closing
Date. All such amounts will be paid with proceeds of Loans made on the Closing Date and will be reflected in the funding instructions given by
the Borrower to the Administrative Agent on or before the Closing Date.

(h) Lien Searches. The Administrative Agent shall have received the results of arecent lien search in each of the jurisdictionsin which Uniform
Commercial Code financing statement or other filings or recordations should be made to evidence or perfect security interestsin all assets of
the Loan Parties, and such search shall reveal no lienson any of the assets of the Loan Party, except for Liens permitted by Section 6.3 and
Liensto be discharged on or prior to the Closing Date pursuant to documentation reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.
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() Closing Certificate. The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate of each Loan Party, dated the Closing Date, substantialy in
the form of Exhibit C, with appropriate insertions and attachments.

(j) Legal Opinions. The Administrative Agent shall have received the following executed legal opinions:

(i) the legal opinion of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison, counsel to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, substantially in theform of
Exhibit E-1;

(ii) thelegal opinion of Patrick Donnelly, Esg., general counsel of the Borrower and itsSubsidiaries, substantially in theform of Exhibit E-2;
and

(iii) the legal opinion of Wiley, Rein & Fielding, special FCC counsel to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, substantialy in the form of Exhibit
E-3.

Each such legal opinion shall cover such other matters incident to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as the Administrative Agent
may reasonably require.

(k) Pledged Stock. The Collateral Agent shall have received the certificates representing the shares of Capital Stock pledged pursuant to the
Pledge Agreement, together with an undated stock power for each such certificate executed in blank by a duly authorized officer of the pledgor
thereof.

() Filings, Registrations and Recordings. Each document (including, without limitation, any Uniform Commercial Code financing statement)
required by the Security Documents or under law or reasonably regquested by the Administrative Agent to be filed, registered or recorded in
order to create in favor of the Collateral Agent, for thebenefit of the Secured Parties, a perfected Lien on the Collateral, prior and superior in
right to any other Person (other than with respect to Liensexpressly permitted by Section 6.3), shall have been filed, registered or recorded or
shall have been delivered to the Administrative Agent in proper formfor filing, registration or recordation.

(m) Insurance. The Administrative Agent shall have received insurance certificates satisfying the requirements of Section 4.2 of the Collateral
Agreement.

(n) Representations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties made by any Loan Party in or pursuant to the Loan Documents
shall be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing Date as if made on and asof the Closing Date, except for such
representations and warranties expressly stated to relateto a specific earlier date, in which case such
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representations and warranties weretrue and correct in all material respects on and as of such earlier date.

(o) No Default. No Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the Closing Date or after giving effect to the Loans
requested to be made on the Closing Date.

The borrowing by the Borrower hereunder shall constitute a representation and warranty by the Borrower as of the Closing Date that the
conditions contained in this Section have been satisfied.

SECTION 5. AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

The Borrower hereby agrees that, so long asthe Commitmentsremain in effect or any Loan or other amount is owing to any Lender or any
Agent hereunder, the Borrower shall and (except in the case of Section 5.1) shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to:

5.1 Financia Statements. Furnish to each Agent (with copies for each Lender):

(8) assoon as available, but in any event within 90 daysafter the end of each fiscal year of the Borrower, a copy of the audited consolidated
balance sheet of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries as at theend of such year and the related audited consolidated statements of
income and of cash flowsfor such year, setting forthin each case in comparative formthe figures as of theend of and for the previousyear,
reported on without a "going concern” or like qualification or exception (except with respect to the Borrower's fiscal years ended December 31,
2000 and December 31, 2001), or qualification arising out of the scope of theaudit, by Arthur Andersen LLP or other independent certified
public accountants of nationally recognized standing; and

(b) as soon as available, but in any event not later than 45 daysafter the end of each of the first three quarterly periods of eachfiscal year of the
Borrower, the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and itsconsolidated Subsidiaries asat the end of such quarter and the
related unaudited consolidated statements of incomeand of cash flowsfor such quarter and the portion of thefiscal year through the end of such
quarter, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures asof the end of andfor the corresponding period in the previous year,
certified by a Responsible Officer asbeing fairly stated in al material respects (subject to normal year-end audit adjustments);

all such financial statementsto be complete and correct in all materia respectsand to be prepared in reasonable detail and in accordance with
GAAP applied consistently
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throughout the periods reflected therein and with prior periods (except as approved by such accountants or officer, as the case may be, and
disclosed therein).

5.2 Certificates; Other Information. Furnishto each Agent (with copies for each Lender), or, in the case of clause (h), to therelevant Lender:

(& concurrently with the delivery of thefinancia statements referred to in Section 5.1(a), a certificate of the independent certified public
accountants reporting on such financial statements stating that in making the examination necessary therefor no knowledge wasobtained of any
Default or Event of Default, except as specified in such certificate (it being understood that such certificate shall be limited to the items that
independent certified public accountants are permitted to cover in such certificates pursuant to their professional standards and customs of the
profession);

(b) concurrently with the delivery of any financial statements pursuant to Section 5.1, (i) a certificate of a Responsible Officer statingthat, to
the best of such Responsible Officer's knowledge, each Loan Party during such period has observed or performed all of its covenants and other
agreements, and satisfied every condition, contained in this Agreement and the other Loan Documentsto whichit isa party to be observed,
performed or satisfied by it, and that such Responsible Officer hasobtained no knowledge of any Default or Event of Default except as
specified in such certificate and (ii) in the case of quarterly or annual financia statements, (x) a Compliance Certificate containing all
information and cal culations necessary for determining compliance by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries with the provisions of this Agreement
referred to therein asof the last day of thefiscal quarter or fiscal year of the Borrower, as the case may be,

(y) to the extent not previously disclosed to the Administrative Agent, alisting of any county or statewithin the United States where any Loan
Party keeps Collateral and of any Intellectual Property constituting Collateral acquired by any Loan Party since the date of the most recent list
delivered pursuant to thisclause (y) (or, inthecase of thefirst suchlist so ddlivered, since the Closing Date) and

(2) any UCC financing statements or other filings specified in such Compliance Certificate as being required to be delivered therewith;

(c) assoon as available, and in any event no later than 75 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Borrower, a detailed consolidated budget
for the following fiscal year (including a projected consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as of the end of the
following fiscal year, and therelated consolidated statements of projected cash flow, projected changes in financial position and projected
income), and, as soon as available, significant revisions, if any, of such budget and projections withrespect to suchfisca year (collectively, the
"Projections"), which Projections shall in each case be accompanied by a certificate of a Responsible Officer stating that such Projections are
based on reasonable estimates, information and assumptions
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and that such Responsible Officer has no reason to believe that such Projections are incorrect or misleading in any material respect;

(d) within 45 days after theend of each of thefirst threefiscal quarters of eachfiscal year of the Borrower and 90 days after theend of the
fourth fiscal quarter of each fiscal year of the Borrower, a narrative discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations
of theBorrower and its Subsidiaries for such fiscal quarter and for the period fromthe beginning of thethen current fiscal year to the end of
such fiscal quarter, as compared to the portion of the Projections covering such periods and to the comparable periods of the previous year;

(e) no later than 10 Business Days prior to the effectiveness thereof, copies of substantialy final drafts of any proposed amendment,
supplement, waiver or other modification with respect to any Indenture, Subordinated Debt Document or any other document or instrument
evidencing or governing Indebtednessin an aggregate principal amount in excess of $5,000,000;

(f) within five daysafter the same are sent, copies of al financial statementsand reports that the Borrower sends to the holdersof any class of
its debt securities or public equity securities and, withinfive days after the same are filed, copies of all financial statements and reports that the
Borrower may make to, or filewith, the SEC;

(g) as soon as possible and in any event within three days of obtaining knowledge thereof: (i) any development, event, or condition that,
individually or in the aggregate with other devel opments, events or conditions, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;

and (ii) any notice that any governmental authority may deny any application for an Environmental Permit sought by, or revoke or refuse to
renew any Environmental Permit held by, the Borrower; and

(h) promptly, such additional financial and other information as any Lender may from time to time reasonably request.

5.3 Payment of Obligations. Pay, discharge or otherwise satisfy at or before maturity or before they become delinquent, as the case may be, al
its material obligations of whatever nature, except where the amount or validity thereof is currently being contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings and reserves in conformity with GAAP with respect thereto have been provided on the books of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries,
as the case may be.

5.4 Conduct of Business and Maintenance of Existence, etc. (a)
(i) Preserve, renew and keep in full force and effect itsexistence and (ii) take al reasonable action to maintain all rights, privileges and
franchises necessary or desirable in the normal conduct of its business (including all FCC Licenses), except, in each case,
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as otherwise permitted by Section 6.4 and except, in the case of clause (ii) above, to the extent that failure to do so could not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; (b) comply with al Contractual Obligations and Requirements of Law, except to the extent that
failureto comply therewith could not, in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have aMaterial Adverse Effect; and (c) exercise promptly
and diligently each and every materid right whichit may have under theLoral Agreement (other than any right of termination).

5.5 Maintenance of Property; Insurance. (a) Keep all Property and systemsuseful and necessary inits businessin good working order and
condition, ordinary wear andtear excepted and (b) maintain with financially sound and reputable insurance companies insurance on al its
Property in at least such amounts and against at least such risks (but including in any event public liability, product liability and business
interruption) as areusually insured against in the same general area by companies engaged in the same or a similar business.

5.6 Ingpection of Property; Books and Records; Discussions.

(8) Keep proper books of records and account in whichfull, true and correct entries in conformity with GAAP and all Requirements of Law
shall be made of al dealings and transactions in relation to its business and activities and (b) permit representatives of any Lender to visit and
inspect any of its properties and examineand make abstracts fromany of its books and records at any reasonable time and asoften as may
reasonably be desired (but not more than once in any 180-day period, unless a Default or an Event of Default shall have occurred and be
continuing) and to discuss the business, operations, properties and financial and other condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries with
officers and employees of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries and with itsindependent certified public accountants.

5.7 Notices. Promptly give noticeto the Administrative Agent (with copies for each Lender) of:

(a) the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default promptly after any Responsible Officer becomes aware of such Default or Event of
Default;

(b) any (i) default or event of default under any Contractual Obligation of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or (ii) litigation, investigation
or proceeding which may exist at any time between the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries and any Governmental Authority, that in either case,
if not cured or if adversely determined, as the case may be, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;

(c) any litigation or proceeding affecting the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in which the amount involved is $1,000,000 or more and not
covered by insurance or in which injunctive or similar relief is sought;
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(d) the following events, as soon as possible and in any event within 30 days after the Borrower knows or has reason to know thereof:

(i) the occurrence of any Reportable Event with respect to any Plan, afailureto make any required contribution to a Plan, the creation of any
Lien in favor of the PBGC or a Plan or any withdrawal from, or the termination, Reorganization or Insolvency of, any Multiemployer Plan or
(i) theinstitution of proceedings or the taking of any other action by the PBGC or the Borrower or any Commonly Controlled Entity or any
Multiemployer Plan with respect to the withdrawal from, or the termination, Reorganization or Insolvency of, any Plan;

(e) eachmaterial demand, notice or document received by it relating in any way to the Loral Agreement that questions the validity or
enforceability of the Loral Agreement; and

(f) any development or event that has had or could reasonably be expected to have aMaterial Adverse Effect.

Each notice pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by a statement of a Responsible Officer settingforth details of the occurrence
referred to therein and stating what action the Borrower or the relevant Subsidiary proposes to take withrespect thereto.

5.8 Environmental Laws. (a) Comply in all material respects with, and ensure compliance in al material respectsby al tenants and subtenants,
if any, with, all applicable Environmental Laws, and obtain and comply in al material respectswith and maintain, and ensurethat all tenants
and subtenants obtain and comply in all material respects with and maintain, any and al licenses, approvals, notifications, registrations or
permits required by applicable Environmental Laws.

(b) Conduct and complete al investigations, studies, sampling and testing, and all remedial, removal and other actions required under
Environmental Laws and promptly comply in all materia respectswith all lawful orders and directives of all Governmental Authorities
regarding Environmental Laws.

5.9 Additional Collateral, etc. (a) To theextent that a security interest in any Property (other than any Property described in paragraph (b) or (c)
of this Section) of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiariesis required to be granted in connection with any Optional Term Loan Amendment
executed and delivered by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent relating to any Optional Term Loan Tranche, promptly (i) execute and
deliver to the Administrative Agent andthe Collateral Agent such amendments to the Collateral Agreement or such other documents asthe
Administrative Agent deems reasonably necessary or advisable to grant to the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, a security
interest in such Property and (ii) take all actionsnecessary or advisable to grant to the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, a
perfected first priority security interest in such Property, including without limitation, the filing of Uniform Commercial Code financing
statementsin such jurisdictions as may be

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




56

required by the Collateral Agreement or by law or as may be requested by the Administrative Agent.

(b) To the extent that a security interest in any Capital Stock owned by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiariesis required to be granted in
connection with any Optional Term Loan Amendment executed and delivered by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent relating to any
Optiona Term Loan Tranche, promptly (i) execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent such amendmentsto the
Pledge Agreement as the Administrative Agent deems necessary or advisable to grant to the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured
Parties, a perfected first priority security interestin such Capital Stock (provided that in no event shall more than 65% of the total outstanding
Capital Stock of any Excluded Foreign Subsidiary be required to be so pledged), (ii) deliver to the Collateral Agent the certificates representing
such Capital Stock, together with undated stock powers, in blank, executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of the Borrower or such
Subsidiary, as the case may be, (iii) to the extent required by such Optional Term Loan Amendment, cause the issuer of such pledged Capital
Stock (A) to become a party to the Collateral Agreement and (B) to take such actions necessary or advisable to grant to the Collateral Agent for
the benefit of the Secured Parties aperfected first priority security interest in the Property of such issuer, including, without limitation, the filing
of Uniform Commercial Code financing statementsin such jurisdictions as may be required by the Collateral Agreement or by law or as may be
requested by the Administrative Agent, and (iv) if reasonably requested by the Administrative Agent, deliver to the Administrative Agent legal
opinions relating to the matters described above, which opinions shall be in formand substance, and from counsel, reasonably satisfactory to
the Administrative Agent.

(c) Tothe extent that a security interest in any fee interest in any real property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiariesisrequired to be
granted in connection with any Optiona Term Loan Amendment executed and delivered by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent relating
to any Optiona Term Loan Tranche, promptly (i) execute and deliver to the Collateral Agentafirst priority Mortgage in favor of the Collateral
Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, covering suchreal property, (ii) if requested by the Administrative Agent, provide the Secured
Parties with (x) title and extended coverage insurance covering such real property in an amount at least equal to the purchase price of suchreal
property (or such other amount as shall be reasonably specified by the Administrative Agent) as well as a current ALTA survey thereof,
together with a surveyor's certificate and (y) any consentsor estoppels reasonably deemed necessary or advisable by the Administrative Agent
in connection with such Mortgage, each of the foregoing in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and (iii) if
requested by the Administrative Agent, deliver to the Administrative Agent legal opinions relating to the matters described above, which
opinions shall be in form and substance, and from counsal, reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.
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5.10 Further Assurances. From time to time execute and deliver, or causeto be executed and delivered, such additional instruments, certificates
or documents, and take such actions, asthe Administrative Agent may reasonably request for the purposes of implementing or effectuating the
provisions of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, or of more fully perfecting or renewing therights of the Administrative Agent, the
Collateral Agent and the Secured Partieswith respect to the Collateral (or with respect to any additions thereto or replacements or proceeds
thereof or withrespect to any other property or assets hereafter acquired by the Borrower or any Subsidiary which may be deemed to be part of
the Collateral) pursuant hereto or thereto. Upon the exercise by the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party of any
power, right, privilegeor remedy pursuant to this Agreement or the other Loan Documents which requires any consent, approval, recording,
qualification or authorization of any Governmental Authority, the Borrower will execute and deliver, or will causethe execution and delivery
of, al applications, certifications, instrumentsand other documents and papersthat the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent or such
Secured Party may be required to obtain from the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries for such governmenta consent, approval, recording,
qualification or authorization. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Borrower will useits best efforts upon therequest of the
Administrative Agent to obtain from the appropriate governmental authoritiesthe necessary consentsand approvals, if any, for the assignment
or transfer of all FCC Licenses owned by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to the Collateral Agent upon or following acceleration of the
payment of the Loans in accordance with the provisions hereof.

5.11 Transfer of FCC Licenses. Use its best effortsto obtain as soon as practicable consent from the FCC to transfer any FCC Licenses from
time to time owned or acquired by it to the License Subsidiary and upon receipt of such consent will promptly transfer such FCC Licensesto
the License Subsidiary.

5.12 Maintenance of a Ground Spare Satellite. Maintain at all times either (a) a ground spare satellite or (b) anexecuted contract for the
construction of a ground spare satellite, the parties to which are diligently pursuing the completion of such ground spare satellite.

5.13 Guarantees. To theextent at any time after the date hereof, the Borrower isno longer prohibited by the Senior Discount Note Indenture or
the Senior Note Indenture, cause each Subsidiary (other than Excluded Foreign Subsidiaries) to execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent
aguarantee, in formand substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, of the Obligations hereunder (each such guarantee, a
"Guarantee").

SECTION 6. NEGATIVE COVENANTS

The Borrower hereby agrees that, so long asthe Commitmentsremain in effect or any Loan or other amount is owing to any Lender or any
Agent hereunder, the
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Borrower shall not, and (except in the case of Section 6.1) shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly:
6.1 Financial Condition Covenants.

(8 MinimumNumber of End of Period Subscribers. Permit the number of Subscribers, asat the last day of any fiscal quarter set forth below, to
be lessthan the number set forth below opposite suchfiscal quarter:

Total Nunber of
Subscri bers

Fi scal Quarter as of End of Period
FQ4 2002 200, 000
FQL 2003 420, 000
FQ 2003 625, 000
FQB 2003 825, 000
FQ4 2003 1, 000, 000
FQL 2004 1, 250, 000
FQ 2004 1, 500, 000
FQB 2004 1, 750, 000
FQ4 2004 2, 000, 000
FQL 2005 2, 250, 000
FQ 2005 2,500, 000
FQ@B 2005 2, 750, 000
FQ4 2005 3, 000, 000

(b) Minimum Pre-Sac Cash Flow. Permit Pre-Sac Cash Flow, for any quarterly period ending with any fiscal quarter set forth below (or, in the
case of the Borrower's fiscal year 2002, the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters ending on thelast day of such fiscal year), to be lessthan
the amount set forth below opposite such fiscal quarter (or, in the case of the Borrower's fiscal year 2002, such fiscal year):

Peri od Pre- Sac Cash Fl ow
FYE 2002 $ 4,425,000
FQL 2003 3,575, 000
FQ2 2003 6, 125, 000
FQB 2003 8, 475, 000
FQ4 2003 10, 700, 000
FQL 2004 13, 400, 000
FQ2 2004 16, 575, 000
FQB 2004 19, 550, 000
FQ4 2004 22, 300, 000
FQL 2005 25, 275, 000
FQ2 2005 28, 475, 000
FQB 2005 31, 430, 000
I A
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FQ4 2005
34, 175, 000

(c) MinimumAdjusted Pre-Sac Cash Flow. Permit Adjusted Pre-Sac Cash Flow, for any quarterly period ending with any fiscal quarter set
forth below, to be less than the amount set forth below opposite suchfiscal quarter:

Fi scal Quarter Adj usted Pre-Sac Cash
Fl ow

FQB 2003 $ 2,500, 000
FQ4 2003 3, 000, 000
FQL 2004 6, 000, 000
FQ 2004 7, 000, 000
FQB 2004 10, 000, 000
FQ4 2004 12, 000, 000
FQL 2005 13, 000, 000
FQ 2005 15, 000, 000
FQB 2005 17, 000, 000
FQ4 2005 19, 000, 000;

provided, however, that failureto satisfy the minimum Adjusted Pre-Sac Cash Flow levels with respect to thethird or fourthfiscal quarter of the
Borrower's fiscal year 2003 shall not constitute an Event of Default but, at all times during the continuance of such failure, the Applicable
Margins for the Loans shall be increased by 50 basis points.

(d) Maximum Capital Expenditures. Permit Capital Expenditures to exceed (i) for the period commencing on January 1, 2001 and ending on
May 31, 2001, $20,000,000 and (ii) for the period commencing on June 1, 2001 and ending on thedate on which all Obligations (other than
obligations in respect of any Specified Hedge Agreement) shall have been paid in full, all Commitmentsshall have terminated or expired and
this Agreement shall have terminated, $100,000,000, provided that, in addition to the foregoing amounts, the Borrower may make capital
expendituresfor the purpose of constructing, launching andinsuring replacement satellites (to the extent such costs are paid for with insurance
proceeds) andfor the purpose of installing terrestrial repeating transmitters.

6.2 Limitation on Indebtedness. Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any Indebtedness, except:
(8) Indebtedness of any Loan Party pursuant to any Loan Document;

(b) Indebtedness of the Borrower to any Subsidiary and of any Wholly Owned Subsidiary to the Borrower or any other Subsidiary;
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(c) Indebtedness (including, without limitation, Capital Lease Obligations) secured by Liens permitted by Section 6.3(g) in an aggregate
principal amount not to exceed $500,000 at any onetime outstanding;

(d) Indebtedness outstanding on the date hereof and listed on Schedule 6.2(d) and any refinancings, refundings, renewalsor extensions thereof
(without any increase in the principal amount thereof or any shortening of the maturity of any principa amount thereof);

(e) Guarantee Obligations made in the ordinary course of business by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries of obligations of the Borrower or
any Wholly Owned Subsidiary;

(f) (i) Indebtedness of the Borrower in respect of Additional Senior Debt in an aggregate amount which yields net proceeds to the Borrower of
up to an amount equal to the sum of $200,000,000 plus 125% of the Net Cash Proceeds received by the Borrower after the date hereof from the
sale of the Borrower's common stock and common stock equivalents (it being understood that (x) the sale of convertible debt securities shall not
congtitute an issuance of common stock or common stock equivalents and (y) the issuance by the Borrower of its Capital Stock in connection
with any Permitted Acquisition or to redeem Senior Discount Notes as permitted by Section 6.8(a)(ii) shall be deemed not to generate Net Cash
Proceeds for purposes of theforegoing calculation) and (ii) Guarantee Obligations of any Subsidiary in respect of such Indebtedness; provided
that no Subsidiary shall guarantee any Additional Senior Debt unless (A) such Indebtedness is secured to the extent permitted by Section 6.3(h),
(B) such Subsidiary has executed and delivered to the Administrative Agent a Guarantee of the Obligations and (C) such guarantee of
Additional Senior Debt provides for therelease and termination thereof, without action by any party, upon Disposition of the relevant
Subsidiary or of substantially al of its assets; and

(9) Indebtedness of the Borrower in respect of Subordinated Debt.

6.3 Limitation on Liens. Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any Lien upon any of its Property, whether now owned or hereafter acquired,
except for:

(a) Liensfor taxes not yet due or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, provided that adequate reserves with
respect thereto are maintained on thebooks of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries, as the casemay be, in conformity with GAAP;

(b) carriers, warehousemen's, mechanics, materialmen's, repairmen's or other like Liensarising in theordinary course of business which are not
overdue for a period of more than 30 daysor that arebeing contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings;
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(c) pledges or deposits in connection with workers' compensation, unemployment insurance and other socia security legidlation;

(d) deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts (other than for borrowed money), leases, statutory obligations, surety and appeal
bonds, performance bonds and other obligations of alike natureincurred in the ordinary course of business;

(e) easements, rights-of-way, restrictions and other similar encumbrances incurred in the ordinary course of business that, in the aggregate, are
not substantial in amount and which do not in any case materially detract from the value of the Property subject thereto or materialy interfere
with theordinary conduct of thebusiness of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as awhole;

(f) Liens in existence on the date hereof listed on Schedule
6.3(f), securing Indebtedness permitted by Section 6.2(d), provided that no such Lien is spread to cover any additional Property after the
Closing Date and that the amount of Indebtedness secured thereby is not increased;

(g) Liens securing Indebtedness of the Borrower or any Subsidiary incurred (i) pursuant to Section 6.2(c) to finance the acquisition of fixed or
capital assets or (ii) pursuant to Section

6.2(f) and that consist of up to $75,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Capital Lease Obligations that have a Weighted Average Lifethat is
greater than theWeighted Average Life of the Loans, provided that, in each case, (A) such Liens shall be created within 90 days of the
acquisition of such fixed or capital assets, (B) such Liens do not at any time encumber any Property other than the Property financed by such
Indebtedness, (C) the amount of Indebtedness secured thereby is not increased and (D) the amount of Indebtednessinitially secured thereby is
not more than 100%, of the purchase price of suchfixed or capital asset;

(h) Liens securing up to $500,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Additional Senior Debt of the Borrower incurred pursuant to

Section 6.2(f), provided that (i) in no event shall such Additional Senior Debt be secured by the Collateral covered by the Collateral Agreement,
(i) contemporaneously with the creation of such Lien, effective provision is made to secure the Obligations equally and ratably with the
Additional Senior Debt secured by such Lienfor so long as such Additional Senior Debt is so secured and (iii) the aggregate principal amount
of Additional Senior Debt of the Borrower that may be secured as permitted by this paragraph (h) shall be reduced by the aggregate principal
amount of Indebtedness consisting of Capital Lease Obligations that is secured as permitted by Section 6.3(g)(ii);

(i) Lienscreated pursuant to the Security Documentsin favor of the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of any or all of the followingPersons: the
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Administrative Agent, the Lenders, the holders of the Senior Discount Notes and the trustee in respect thereof, the holders of the Senior Notes
and the trustee in respect thereof and, withrespect only to theLien on the Capital Stock of the License Subsidiary, the holders of upto
$500,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Additional Senior Debt permitted by thisAgreement; and

(j) any interest or title of alessor or vendor under any lease or conditional sale agreement entered into by the Borrower or any other Subsidiary
inthe ordinary course of its business and covering only the assets so leased or sold on a conditional basis.

6.4 Limitation on Fundamental Changes. Enter into any merger, consolidation or amalgamation, or liquidate, wind up or dissolve itself (or
suffer any liquidation or dissolution), or Dispose of al or substantially all of its Property or business, except that:

(a) any Subsidiary of the Borrower (other than the License Subsidiary) may be merged or consolidated with or into the Borrower (provided that
the Borrower shall be the continuing or surviving corporation) or with or into any Wholly Owned Subsidiary, provided that the Wholly Owned
Subsidiary shall be the continuing or surviving corporation; and

(b) any Subsidiary of the Borrower may Dispose of any or al of itsassets (upon voluntary liquidation or otherwise) to the Borrower or any
Wholly Owned Subsidiary, provided that the FCC Licenses must at all times be owned by the License Subsidiary.

6.5 Limitation on Disposition of Property. Dispose of any of its Property (including, without limitation, receivables and leasehold interests),
whether now owned or hereafter acquired, or, in the case of any Subsidiary, issue or sell any shares of such Subsidiary's Capital Stock to any
Person, except:

(a) the Disposition of obsolete or worn out property in theordinary course of business;

(b) the sale of inventory in the ordinary course of business;

(c) Dispositions permitted by Section 6.4(b);

(d) the sale or issuance of any Subsidiary's Capital Stock to the Borrower or any Wholly Owned Subsidiary, provided that in no event shall the
License Subsidiary sell or issue any of its Capital Stock to any Person other than the Borrower;

(e) thesale of spare satellite parts having an aggregate fair market value not to exceed $10,000,000;
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(f) the Disposition of other assets having afair market valuenot to exceed $1,000,000 in the aggregate for any fiscal year of the Borrower; and

(9) any Recovery Event, provided, that the requirements of
Section 2.9(b) are complied within connection therewith.

6.6 Limitation on Restricted Payments. Declare or pay any dividend on, or make any payment on account of, or set apart assets for a sinking or
other analogous fund for, the purchase, redemption, defeasance, retirement or other acquisition of, any Capital Stock of the Borrower or any
Subsidiary, whether now or hereafter outstanding, or make any other distribution in respect thereof, either directly or indirectly, whether in cash
or property or in obligations of the Borrower or any Subsidiary, or enter intoany derivatives or other transaction with any financial institution,
commodities or stock exchange or clearinghouse (a"Derivatives Counterparty") obligating the Borrower or any Subsidiary to make payments
to such Derivatives Counterparty as aresult of any changein market valueof any such Capital Stock (collectively, "Restricted Payments'),
except that:

(8) any Subsidiary may make Restricted Paymentsto the Borrower or any Wholly Owned Subsidiary, provided that in no event shall the
License Subsidiary make Restricted Payments to any Person other than the Borrower;

(b) the Borrower may make Restricted Payments in theform of common stock of the Borrower;

(c) the Borrower may purchase the Borrower's common stock or common stock options from present or former officers or employers of the
Borrower or any Subsidiary upon the death, disability of termination of employment of such officer or employer, provided, that the aggregate
amount of payments under this paragraph subsequent to the date hereof (net of any proceeds received by the Borrower subsequent to the date
hereof in connection with resales of any common stock or common stock options so purchased) shall not exceed $2,000,000; and

(d) the Borrower may make cash paymentsin an aggregate amount not to exceed $100,000 to holders of the Borrower's warrants in lieu of
issuing fractional shares of the Borrower's common stock upon exercise of such warrants.

6.7 Limitation on Investments. Make any advance, loan, extension of credit (by way of guaranty or otherwise) or capita contribution to, or
purchase any Capital Stock, bonds, notes, debentures or other debt securities of, or any assets constituting anongoing business from, or make
any other investmentin, any other Person (al of the foregoing, "Investments"), except:
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(a) extensions of trade credit in theordinary course of business;
(b) investments in cash and Cash Equivalents;
(¢) Investmentsarising in connection withthe incurrence of Indebtedness permitted by Section 6.2(b), (€) and (f)(ii);

(d) loans and advances to employees of the Borrower or any Subsidiaries of the Borrower in the ordinary course of business (including, without
limitation, for travel, entertainment and relocation expenses) in an aggregate amount for the Borrower and Subsidiaries of the Borrower not to
exceed $2,000,000 at any onetime outstanding;

(e) Investmentsin assets useful in the Borrower's business made by the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries withthe proceeds of any
Reinvestment Deferred Amount;

(f) Investments (other than those relating to the incurrence of Indebtedness permitted by Section 6.7(c)) by the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries in the Borrower or any Person that, prior to such Investment, isaWholly Owned Subsidiary;

(9) Investmentsin securities of account debtors received in settlement of obligations or pursuant to any plan of reorganization or similar
arrangement upon the bankruptcy or insolvency of such account debtors;

(h) in addition to Investments otherwise expressly permitted by this Section, Investments by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiariesin an
aggregate amount (valued at cost) not to exceed $2,000,000 during the term of this Agreement; and

(i) Permitted Acquisitions.

6.8 Limitation on Optional Payments and Modifications of Debt Instruments, etc. () Make or offer to make any optiona or voluntary payment,
prepayment, repurchase or redemption of, or otherwise voluntarily or optionally defease, any Funded Debt, or segregate funds for any such
payment, prepayment, repurchase, redemption or defeasance, or enter into any derivative or other transaction with any Derivatives Counterparty
obligating the Borrower or any Subsidiary to make paymentsto such Derivatives Counterparty as aresult of any changein market value of any
Funded Debt, other than (i) any payment, repurchase or redemption of Funded Debt made with the proceeds of theincurrence by the Borrower
of Indebtedness permitted hereunder (the "Refinancing Indebtedness'), provided that (A) the documentation with respect to such Refinancing
Indebtedness shall not contain provisions that, taken asawhole, are more restrictive on the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries than the
provisions contained in the documentation governing or evidencing the Funded Debt being
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refinanced, (B) such Refinancing Indebtedness has a stated maturity no earlier than the stated maturity of the Funded Debt being refinanced, (C)
such Refinancing Indebtedness has a Weighted Average Life at thetime such Indebtednessis incurred that is equal to or greater than the
Weighted Average Life of the Funded Debt being refinanced, (D) such Refinancing Indebtedness is not secured by any property or assetsthat
did not secure the Funded Debt being refinanced unless therelated Lien is permitted by Section 6.3, (E) such Refinancing Indebtedness isin an
aggregate principal amount (or if issued with original issue discount, an aggregate issue price) that is equal to or less than the aggregate
principal amount (or if issued with original issue discount, the aggregate accreted value) then outstanding of the Funded Debt being refinanced
plus any premiums and expenses associated therewithand (F) if the Funded Debt being refinanced is Subordinated Debt, the Refinancing Debt
shall be subordinated to the Loans on terms at least as favorable to the Lenders as those contained in the documentation governing the Funded
Debt being refinanced, and

(ii) any redemption on or after December 1, 2002 of the Senior Discount Notes made withthe proceeds of the issuance by the Borrower of its
common stock.

(b) Make or agree or offer to pay or make, directly or indirectly, any payment or other distribution (whether in cash, securities or other
property) of orin respect of principal of or interest on any Subordinated Debt, or any payment or other distribution (whether in cash, securities
or other property), including any sinking fund or similar deposit, on account of the purchase, redemption, retirement, acquisition, cancellation
or termination of any Subordinated Debt, except (i) payment of regularly scheduled interest and principal paymentsas and whendue in respect
of any Subordinated Debt, other than paymentsin respect of the Subordinated Debt prohibited by the subordination provisions thereof, and (ii)
any redemption of any convertible security if the conversion price is below the price of the security into which the convertible security is
convertible.

(c) Amend, modify or otherwise change, or consent or agree to any amendment, modification, waiver or other change to, any of the termsof any
Funded Debt (other than any such amendment, modification, waiver or other change whichwould extend the maturity or reduce the amount of
any payment of principal thereof, reduce the rate or extend the date for payment of interest thereon or relax any covenant or other restriction
applicable to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries), provided that the termsof any Additional Senior Debt or Subordinated Debt permitted
hereunder may be amended so long as, after giving effect to such amendment, the terms of such Additional Senior Debt or Subordinated Debt,
as the case may be, comply with the applicable requirements therefor set forth in Sections 1.1, 6.2 and 6.3.

(d) Amend its certificate of incorporation in any manner reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent to be materially adverse to the
Lenders.

6.9 Limitation on Transactions with Affiliates. Enter into any transaction, including, without limitation, any purchase, sale, lease or exchange of
Property, the rendering of any service or the payment of any management, advisory or similar fees,
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with any Affiliate unless such transaction is (@) otherwise permitted under this Agreement and (b) upon fair and reasonable terms no less

favorable to the Borrower or such Subsidiary, as thecase may be, than it would obtain in a comparable arm'slength transaction with a Person
thatisnot an Affiliate.

6.10 Limitation on Salesand Leasebacks. Enter into any arrangement with any Person providing for the leasing by the Borrower or any
Subsidiary of real or personal property which has been or isto be sold or transferred by the Borrower or such Subsidiary to such Person or to
any other Personto whom funds have been or areto be advanced by such Person on the security of such property or rental obligations of the
Borrower or such Subsidiary.

6.11 Limitation on Changesin Fiscal Periods. Permit the fiscal year of the Borrower to end on a day other than December 31 or change the
Borrower's method of determining fiscal quarters.

6.12 Limitation on Negative Pledge Clauses. Enter into or suffer to exist or become effective any agreement that prohibits or limits the ability
of theBorrower or any of itsSubsidiaries to create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any Lien upon any of its Property or revenues, whether now
owned or hereafter acquired, to secure the Obligations or, in the case of any Subsidiary guarantor, its obligations under any Guarantee of the
Obligations, other than (a) thisAgreement and the other Loan Documents, (b) the Senior Discount Note Indenture, (c) the Senior Note
Indenture, (d) any agreements governing any purchase money Liensor Capital Lease Obligations otherwise permitted hereby (in which case,
any prohibition or limitation shall only be effective against the assets financed thereby), (€) any agreementsgoverning any Additional Senior
Debt permitted by this Agreement (in which case, any prohibition or limitation on Liens shall only be effective to provide that the Lien on the
assets securing such Additional Senior Debt shall be secured equally and ratably with the Collateral Agent for the benefit of the Lenders; it
being understood, however, that in no event shall such Additional Senior Debt be secured by the Collateral covered by the Collateral
Agreement) and (f) the Loral Agreement as in effect on thedate hereof (in which case, any prohibition or limitation on Liens shall only be
effective against the Borrower's terrestrial repeater network and shall not be effective against any Collateral).

6.13 Limitation on Restrictions on Subsidiary Distributions. Enter into or suffer to exist or become effective any consensual encumbrance or
restriction on the ability of any Subsidiary to (a) make Restricted Payments in respect of any Capital Stock of such Subsidiary held by, or pay
any |ndebtedness owed to, the Borrower or any other Subsidiary, (b) make Investmentsin the Borrower or any other Subsidiary or (c) transfer
any of its assets to the Borrower or any other Subsidiary, except for such encumbrances or restrictions existing under or by reason of (i) any
restrictions existing under the Loan Documents, (ii) any restrictionsexisting under the Senior Discount Note Indenture and the Senior Note
Indenture, (iii) any restrictions with respect to a Subsidiary imposed pursuant to an agreement that has been entered into in connection with the
Disposition of al or substantially all of the Capital Stock or assets of such
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Subsidiary, (iv) any restrictions with respect to a Subsidiary imposed pursuant to any agreements governing any Additional Senior Debt or
Subordinated Debt permitted by thisAgreement, so long as such restrictions are no more restrictive than those set forth herein and (v) in the
case of clause (c), any restrictionswith respect to a Subsidiary imposed pursuant to any agreements governing any purchase money Liens or
Capita Lease Obligations otherwise permitted hereby (in which case, any restriction on asset transfers shall only be effective against the assets
financed thereby).

6.14 Limitation on Linesof Business. Enter into any business, either directly or through any Subsidiary, except for those businessesin which
the Borrower and its Subsidiaries are engaged on the date of thisAgreement or that are reasonably related thereto.

6.15 Limitation on Amendmentsto Loral Agreement. Amend, supplement or otherwise modify (pursuant to awaiver or otherwise) the terms
and conditions of the Loral Agreement in any manner that could reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect the valueof the Loral
Agreement as Collateral or have a Material Adverse Effect.

6.16 Limitation on License Subsidiary. Permit the License Subsidiary to engagein any business or to incur any liability except that the License
Subsidiary may (a) hold the FCC Licenses and (b) to the extent not prohibited by the Senior Discount Note Indenture or the Senior Note
Indenture, execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent a Guarantee of the Obligations hereunder (it being understood that such Indentures
currently prohibit the issuance of any such Guarantees).

6.17 Limitation on Hedge Agreements. Enter into any Hedge Agreement other than Hedge Agreements entered into in the ordinary course of
business, and not for speculative purposes, to protect against changesin interest rates or foreign exchangerates.

SECTION 7. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

If any of thefollowing events shall occur and be continuing:

(a) The Borrower shall fail to pay any principal of any Loan whendue in accordance with theterms hereof; or the Borrower shall fail to pay any
interest on any Loan, or any other amount payable hereunder or under any other Loan Document, withinfive days after any such interest or
other amount becomes due in accordance with the terms hereof or thereof; or

(b) Any representation or warranty made or deemed made by any Loan Party herein or in any other Loan Document or that is contained in any

certificate, document or financial or other statement furnished by it at any time under orin connection with thisAgreement or any such other
Loan Document shall prove to
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have been inaccurate in any material respect onor as of thedate made or deemed made or furnished; or

(c) (i) Any Loan Party shall default in the observance or performance of any agreement contained in clause (i) or (ii) of Section

5.4(a) (with respect to the Borrower and the License Subsidiary only),

Section 5.7(a) or Section 6 or in Section 4 of the Collateral Agreement or (ii) an"Event of Default" under and asdefined in the Pledge
Agreement or any Mortgage shall have occurred and be continuing; or

(d) Any LoanParty shall default in the observance or performance of any other agreement contained in this Agreement or any other Loan
Document (other than asprovided in paragraphs (a) through
(c) of this Section), and such default shall continue unremedied for a period of 30 days; or

(e) The Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall (i) default in making any payment of any principal of any Indebtedness (including, without
limitation, any Guarantee Obligation, but excluding the Loans) on the scheduled or original due date with respect thereto; or (ii) default in
making any payment of any interest on any such Indebtedness beyond the period of grace, if any, provided in theinstrument or agreement under
which such Indebtedness wascreated; or (iii) default in the observance or performance of any other agreement or condition relating to any such
Indebtedness or contained in any instrument or agreement evidencing, securing or relating thereto, or any other event shall occur or condition
exist, the effect of which default or other event or condition isto cause, or to permit the holder or beneficiary of such Indebtedness (or atrustee
or agent on behalf of such holder or beneficiary) to cause, with thegiving of notice if required, such Indebtedness to become due prior to its
stated maturity or to become subject to mandatory offer to purchase by the obligor thereunder or (inthe case of any such Indebtedness
constituting a Guarantee Obligation) to become payable; provided, that a default, event or condition described in clause (i), (ii) or (iii) of this
paragraph (€) shall not at any time constitute an Event of Default unless, at such time, one or more defaults, events or conditions of thetype
described in clauses

(i), (i) and (iii) of this paragraph (€) shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to Indebtedness the outstanding principal amount of
which exceeds in the aggregate $1,000,000; or

(f) (i) The Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries shall commence any case, proceeding or other action (A) under any existing or future law of any
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or relief of debtors, seekingto have an order for relief
entered with respect toit, or seeking to adjudicate it a bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding-up,
liquidation, dissolution, composition or other relief with respect to it or its debts, or (B) seeking appointment of areceiver, trustee, custodian,
conservator or other similar official for it or for al or any substantial part of its assets, or the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall make a
genera
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assignment for the benefit of itscreditors; or (ii) there shall be commenced against the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries any case, proceeding
or other action of a naturereferred toin clause (i) abovethat (A) resultsin the entry of anorder for relief or any such adjudication or
appointment or (B) remains undismissed, undischarged or unbonded for a period of 60 days; or (iii) there shall be commenced against the
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries any case, proceeding or other action seeking issuance of awarrant of attachment, execution, distraint or
similar process against all or any substantial part of its assetsthat resultsin the entry of anorder for any such relief that shall not have been
vacated, discharged, or stayed or bonded pending appeal within 60 daysfrom the entry thereof; or (iv) the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries
shall take any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the acts set forthin clause (i), (ii), or
(iii) above; or (v) theBorrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall generally not, or shall be unable to, or shall admit inwriting itsinability to, pay
its debts asthey become due; or

(9) (i) Any Person shall engage in any "prohibited transaction” (as defined in Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code) involving any
Plan, (ii) any "accumulated funding deficiency" (as defined in Section 302 of ERISA), whether or not waived, shall exist with respect to any
Plan, or any Lien in favor of the PBGC or aPlan shall arise on the assets of the Borrower or any Commonly Controlled Entity, (iii) a
Reportable Event shall occur with respect to, or proceedings shall commence to have a trustee appointed, or atrustee shall be appointed, to
administer or to terminate, any Single Employer Plan, which Reportable Event or commencement of proceedings or appointment of atrusteeis,
in the reasonable opinion of the Required Lenders, likely to resultin the termination of such Plan for purposes of Title 1V of ERISA, (iv) any
Single Employer Plan shall terminate for purposes of TitlelV of ERISA, (v) the Borrower or any Commonly Controlled Entity shall, or inthe
reasonable opinion of the Required Lendersshall be likely to, incur any liability in connection with a withdrawal from, or the Insolvency or
Reorganization of, a Multiemployer Plan or (vi) any other event or condition shall occur or exist with respect to a Plan; and in each case in
clauses (i) through

(vi) above, such event or condition, together with all other such events or conditions, if any, could, in the sole judgment of the Required
Lenders, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; or

(h) One or more judgments or decrees shall be entered against the Borrower or any of itsSubsidiaries involving for the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries taken as awhole aliability (not paid or fully covered by insurance as to which therelevant insurance company has acknowledged
coverage) of $1,000,000 or more, and al such judgments or decrees shall not have been vacated, discharged, stayed or bonded pending appeal
within 30 days fromthe entry thereof; or

(i) Any of the Security Documents shall cease, for any reason (other than by reason of the express release thereof as contemplated by
Section 8.10), to be
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infull force and effect, or any Loan Party or any Affiliate of any Loan Party shall so assert, or any Lien created by any of the Security
Documents shall cease to be enforceable and of the sameeffect and priority purported to be created thereby; or

() Any Guarantee shall cease, for any reason (other than by reason of the express release thereof pursuant to Section 8.10), to be in full force
and effect, or any Loan Party or any Affiliate of any Loan Party shall so assert; or

(k) Any Subordinated Debt shall cease, for any reason, to be validly subordinated to the Obligations as provided in the Subordinated Debt
Documents, or any Loan Party, any Affiliate of any Loan Party, thetrustee in respect of such Subordinated Debt or the holders of at least 25%
in aggregate principal amount of such Subordinated Debt shall so assert; or

(I) Any Change of Control shall occur;

then, and in any suchevent, (A) if such event isan Event of Default specified in clause (i) or (ii) of paragraph (f) above with respect to the
Borrower, automatically the Commitmentsshall immediately terminate and the L oans hereunder (with accrued interest thereon) and all other
amounts owing under this Agreement and the other Loan Documentsshall immediately become due and payable, and (B) if such eventis any
other Event of Default, either or both of the following actionsmay be taken: (i) with the consent of the Required Lenders, the Administrative
Agent may, or upon therequest of the Required Lenders, the Administrative Agent shall, by notice to the Borrower declare the Commitmentsto
be terminated forthwith, whereupon the Commitments shall immediately terminate; and (ii) with the consent of the Required Lenders, the
Administrative Agent may, or upon therequest of the Required Lenders, the Administrative Agent shall, by notice to the Borrower, declare the
Loans hereunder (with accrued interest thereon) and all other amounts owing under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents to be due
and payable forthwith, whereupon the same shall immediately become due and payable.

SECTION 8. THE AGENTS

8.1 Appointment. Each Lender hereby irrevocably designates and appoints the Agents as the agents of such Lender under thisAgreement and
the other Loan Documents, and each Lender irrevocably authorizes each Agent, in such capacity, to take such action onits behalf under the
provisions of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents and to exercise such powers and perform such duties as are expressly delegated to
such Agent by theterms of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, together with such other powers as arereasonably incidental thereto.
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary elsewherein this Agreement, no Agent shall have any duties or responsibilities, except those
expressy set forth herein, or any fiduciary relationship with any Lender, and noimplied covenants, functions,
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responsibilities, duties, obligations or liabilities shall be readinto this Agreement or any other Loan Document or otherwise exist against any
Agent.

8.2 Delegation of Duties. Each Agent may execute any of itsduties under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents by or through agents
or attorneys-in-fact and shall be entitled to advice of counsel concerning all matters pertaining to such duties. No Agent shall be responsible for
the negligence or misconduct of any agentsor attorneys-in-fact selected by it with reasonable care.

8.3 Exculpatory Provisions. Neither any Agent nor any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys-in-fact or affiliates shall be

(i) liable for any action lawfully taken or omitted to be taken by it or such Person under or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan
Document (except to the extent that any of the foregoing are found by afinal and nonappeal able decision of a court of competent jurisdiction to
have resulted from its or such Person's own gross negligence or willful misconduct) or (ii) responsible in any manner to any of the Lendersfor
any recitals, statements, representations or warranties made by any L oan Party or any officer thereof contained in this Agreement or any other
Loan Document or in any certificate, report, statement or other document referred to or provided for in, or received by the Agentsunder or in
connection with, thisAgreement or any other Loan Document or for the value, validity, effectiveness, genuineness, enforceability or sufficiency
of this Agreement or any other Loan Document or for any failure of any Loan Party to perform its obligations hereunder or thereunder. The
Agentsshall not be under any obligation to any Lender to ascertainor to inquire as to the observance or performance of any of the agreements
contained in, or conditions of, this Agreement or any other Loan Document, or to inspect the properties, books or records of any Loan Party.

8.4 Reliance by Agents. Each Agent shall be entitled to rely, and shall be fully protected in relying, upon any instrument, writing, resolution,
notice, consent, certificate, affidavit, letter, telecopy, telex or teletype message, statement, order or other document or conversation believed by
it to be genuine and correct and to have been signed, sent or made by the proper Person or Persons and upon advice and statements of legal
counsel (including, without limitation, counsel to the Loan Parties), independent accountants and other experts selected by such Agent. The
Agentsmay deem and treat the payee of any Note asthe owner thereof for al purposes unless such Note shall have been transferred in
accordance with Section 9.6 and all actions required by such

Section in connection with such transfer shall have been taken. Each Agent shall be fully justified in failing or refusing to take any actionunder
this Agreement or any other Loan Document unless it shall first receive such advice or concurrence of the Required Lenders (or, if so specified
by this Agreement, all Lenders or any other instructing group of Lenders specified by this Agreement) as it deemsappropriate or it shal first be
indemnified to its satisfaction by the Lenders against any and all liability and expensethat may be incurred by it by reason of taking or
continuing to take any such action. Each Agent shall inall casesbe fully protected in acting, or in refraining from acting, under this Agreement
and the other Loan Documents in accordance with a request of the Required Lenders (or, if so specified by this Agreement, all Lendersor any
other instructing group of Lenders specified by this Agreement), and such request and any
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action taken or failureto act pursuant thereto shall be binding upon al the Lendersand al future holders of the Loans.

8.5 Notice of Default. No Agent shall be deemed to have knowledge or notice of the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default hereunder
unless such Agent shall have received notice from a Lender or the Borrower referring to this Agreement, describing such Default or Event of
Default and steting that such notice isa "notice of default”. Inthe event that the Administrative Agent shall receive suchanotice, the
Administrative Agent shall give notice thereof to the Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall take such action with respect to such Default or
Event of Default asshall be reasonably directed by the Required Lenders (or, if so specified by this Agreement, al Lenders or any other
instructing group of Lenders specified by this Agreement); provided that unless and until the Administrative Agent shall have received such
directions, the Administrative Agent may (but shall not be obligated to) take such action, or refrain from taking such action, with respect to such
Default or Event of Default as it shall deem advisable in the best interests of the Lenders.

8.6 Non-Reliance on Agents and Other Lenders. Each Lender expressly acknowledges that neither any of the Agentsnor any of their respective
officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys-in-fact or affiliates have made any representations or warranties to it and that no act by any
Agent hereafter taken, including any review of theaffairs of alLoan Party or any affiliate of aLoan Party, shall be deemed to constitute any
representation or warranty by any Agent to any Lender. Each Lender represents to the Agents that it has, independently and without reliance
upon any Agent or any other Lender, and based on such documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own appraisal of and
investigation into the business, operations, property, financial and other condition and creditworthiness of the Loan Parties and their affiliates
and made its own decision to make its Loans hereunder and enter into this Agreement. Each Lender also represents that it will, independently
and without reliance upon any Agent or any other Lender, and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the
time, continueto make its own credit analysis, appraisas and decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement and the other Loan
Documents, and to make such investigation as it deems necessary to inform itself as to the business, operations, property, financial and other
condition and creditworthiness of the Loan Parties and their affiliates. Except for notices, reports and other documents expressly required to be
furnished to the Lenders by the Administrative Agent hereunder, no Agent shall have any duty or responsibility to provide any Lender with any
credit or other information concerning the business, operations, property, condition (financial or otherwise), prospects or creditworthiness of
any Loan Party or any affiliate of a Loan Party that may come into the possession of such Agent or any of its officers, directors, employees,
agents, attorneys-in-fact or affiliates.

8.7 Indemnification. The Lenders agree to indemnify each Agent inits capacity as such (to the extent not reimbursed by the Borrower and
without limiting the obligation of the Borrower to do so), ratably according to their respective Loan
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Percentages in effect on thedate on which indemnification is sought under this

Section (or, if indemnification is sought after the date upon which the Commitmentsshall have terminated and the Loans shall have been paid in
full, ratably in accordance with such Loan Percentages immediately prior to such date), for, and to save each Agent harmless fromand againgt,
any and al liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind
whatsoever that may at any time

(including, without limitation, at any time following the payment of the Loans)

be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against such Agent in any way relating to or arising out of, the Commitments, this Agreement, any of the
other Loan Documents or any documents contemplated by or referred to herein or therein or thetransactions contemplated hereby or thereby or
any action taken or omitted by such Agent under or in connection with any of the foregoing; provided that no Lender shall be liablefor the
payment of any portion of such liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, pendlties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements
that are found by afinal and nonappesal able decision of a court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted from such Agent's gross negligence or
willful misconduct. The agreements in this Section shall survive the payment of the Loansand all other amounts payable hereunder.

8.8 Agent in ItsIndividual Capacity. Each Agent and its affiliates may make loans to, accept deposits from and generally engagein any kind of
business with any Loan Party as though such Agent were not an Agent. With respect to its L oans made or renewed by it, each Agent shall have
the samerights and powers under thisAgreement and the other Loan Documents as any Lender and may exercise the same as thoughit were not
an Agent, and theterms "Lender” and "Lenders’ shall include each Agentinitsindividual capacity.

8.9 Successor Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent may resign as Administrative Agent upon 10 days noticeto the Lenders and the
Borrower. If the Administrative Agent shall resignas Administrative Agent under thisAgreement and the other Loan Documents, then the
Required Lenders shall appoint from among the Lenders a successor agent for the Lenders, which successor agent shall (unless an Event of
Default under Section 7(a) or Section

7(f) withrespect to the Borrower shall have occurred and be continuing) be subject to approval by the Borrower (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed), whereupon such successor agent shall succeed to the rights, powers and duties of the Administrative Agent,
and the term " Administrative Agent” shall mean such successor agent effective upon such appointment and approval, and the former
Administrative Agent'srights, powers and duties as Administrative Agent shall be terminated, without any other or further act or deed onthe
part of such former Administrative Agent or any of theparties to this Agreement or any holdersof the Loans. The Syndication Agent may, at
any time, by noticeto the Lenders and the Administrative Agent, resign as Syndication Agent hereunder, whereupon the duties, rights,
obligations and responsibilities of the Syndication Agent hereunder shall automatically be assumed by, and inureto the benefit of, the
Administrative Agent, without any further act by the Syndication Agent, the Administrative Agent or any Lender. After any retiring Agent's
resignation as
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Agent, the provisions of thisSection 8 shall inure to itsbenefit as to any actions taken or omitted to be taken by it while it wasAgent under this
Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

8.10 Authorization to Release Liensand Guarantees. The Administrative Agentis hereby irrevocably authorized by each of the Lenders (a) to
effect any release of Guaranteesissued by any Subsidiary upon the Disposition, in atransaction permitted by thisAgreement or which has been
consented to in accordance with Section 9.1, of such Subsidiary or of substantialy all of its assets, (b) to direct the Collateral Agent to effect
any release of Lienscovering any Property of theBorrower or any of itsSubsidiaries that is the subject of a Disposition whichis permitted by
this Agreement or which hasbeen consented to in accordance with Section 9.1 and (c) to amend the Intercreditor Agreement to permit
obligations in respect of Additional Senior Debt permitted by this Agreement in an aggregate principal amount of up to $500,000,000 to be
secured equally and ratably by the Capital Stock of the License Subsidiary.

8.11 The Arranger; the Syndication Agent. Neither the Arranger nor the Syndication Agent, in their respective capacities as such, shall have no
duties or responsihilities, and shall incur no liability, under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

SECTION 9. MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 Amendments and Waivers. Neither thisAgreement or any other Loan Document, nor any terms hereof or thereof may be amended,
supplemented or modified except in accordance with the provisions of this

Section 9.1. The Required Lenders and each Loan Party party to the relevant Loan Document may, or (with thewritten consent of the Required
Lenders) the Agentsand each Loan Party party to the relevant Loan Document may, fromtime to time,

(a) enter into written amendments, supplements or modifications hereto and to the other Loan Documents (including amendments and
restatements hereof or thereof) for the purpose of adding any provisions to this Agreement or the other Loan Documentsor changing in any
manner the rights of the Lenders or of the Loan Parties hereunder or thereunder or (b) waive, on such termsand conditions as may be specified
inthe instrument of waiver, any of therequirements of this Agreement or the other Loan Documentsor any Default or Event of Default and its
consequences, provided, however, that no such waiver and no such amendment, supplement or modification shall:

(i) forgive the principal amount or extend thefina scheduled date of maturity of any Loan, extend the scheduled date of any amortization
payment in respect of any Loan, reduce the stated rate of any interest or fee payable hereunder or extend the scheduled date of any payment
thereof, or increase the amount or extend the expiration date of any Commitment of any Lender, in each case without the consent of each
Lender directly affected thereby;
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(i) amend, modify or waive any provision of thisSection or reduce any percentage specified in thedefinition of Required Lenders, consent to
the assignment or transfer by the Borrower of any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, release all
or substantially al of the Collateral or release al or substantialy all of the Guarantees, in each case without the consent of all Lenders;

(iii) amend, modify or waive any provision of Section 8 without the consent of any Agent directly affected thereby; or
(iv) amend, modify or waive any provision of Section 2.15 without the consent of each Lender directly affected thereby;

provided, further, that the Pledge Agreement and the Intercreditor Agreement may be amended only in accordance withthe applicable
provisions thereof. Any suchwaiver and any such amendment, supplement or modification shall apply equally to each of the Lenders and shall
be binding upon the L oan Parties, the Lenders, the Agents and all future holders of the Loans. Inthe case of any waiver, the Loan Parties, the
Lenders and the Agents shall be restored to their former position and rights hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, and any Default or
Event of Default waived shall be deemed to be cured and not continuing; but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Default or
Event of Default, or impair any right consegquent thereon. Any such waiver, amendment, supplement or modification shall be effected by a
writteninstrument signed by the parties required to sign pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Section; provided, that delivery of an
executed signature page of any suchinstrument by facsimile transmission shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart
thereof.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 2.15, in theevent that the Borrower wishesto extend the
final maturity date of any Loan or theexpiry date of any Lender's Commitment, and (A) one Lender holding aggregate outstanding L oansand
unused Commitmentsrepresenting not more than 15% of the aggregate outstanding L oans and unused Commitments of all Lendersdoes not
consent to such extension or (B) Lenders holding aggregate outstanding Loans and unused Commitments representing not morethan 10% of the
aggregate outstanding L oans and unused Commitmentsof all Lendersdo not consent to such extension, the Borrower may prepay in full the
outstanding Loans of such Lender (or Lenders, as applicable) and terminate the Commitments of such Lender (or Lenders, as applicable), in
each caseon anon-pro ratabasis, and, upon such prepayment, theremaining Loansand Commitments shall remain outstanding and this
Agreement, as modified by such amendment, shall continue in full force and effect.

For the avoidance of doubt, thisAgreement and any other Loan Document may be amended (or amended and restated) with the written consent
of theRequired Lenders, the Administrative Agent and each Loan Party to each relevant Loan Document (x) to add one or more additional
credit facilities to this Agreement and to
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permit the extensions of credit from time to time outstanding thereunder and the accrued interest and fees in respect thereof to shareratably in
the benefits of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents withthe Loans and the accrued interest and fees in respect thereof and (y) to
include appropriately the Lenders holding such credit facilities in any determination of the Required Lenders.

9.2 Notices. All notices, requests and demands to or upon the respective parties hereto to be effective shall be in writing (including by
telecopy), and, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, shall be deemed to have been duly given or made when delivered, or three Business
Days after being deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, or, in the case of telecopy notice, whenreceived, addressed (a) in the case of the
Borrower and the Agents, as follows and (b) in the case of theLenders, as set forthin anadministrative questionnaire delivered to the
Administrative Agent or on Schedule | to the Lender Addendum to which such Lender isa party or, in the case of a Lender which becomesa
party to this Agreement pursuant to an Assignment and Acceptance, in such Assignment and Acceptance or (c) in the case of any party, to such
other address assuch party may hereafter notify to the other parties hereto:

The Borrower: Sirius Satellite Radio Inc.
1221 Avenue of the Americas
New Yor k, New York 10020
Attention: M chael Haynes
Tel ecopy: (212) 584-5252
Tel ephone: (212) 584-5152

with a copy to:

Sirius Satellite Radio Inc.
1221 Avenue of the Anericas
New Yor k, New York 10020
Attention: General Counsel
Tel ecopy: (212) 584-5353
Tel ephone: (212) 584-5180

The Syndi cation Agent: Lehman Conmerci al Paper

I nc.
3 Wrld Financial Center
New Yor k, New York 10285
Attention: Mchael O Brien
Tel ecopy: (212) 526-7691
Tel ephone: (212) 526-0437

The Admi nistrative Agent: Lehman Commer ci al Paper

I nc.
3 Wrld Financial Center
New Yor k, New York 10285
Attention: Mchael O Brien
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Telecopy: (212) 526-7691
Telephone: (212) 526-0437

provided that any notice, request or demand to or upon the any Agent or any Lender shall not be effective until received.

9.3 No Waiver; Cumulative Remedies. No failureto exercise and no delay in exercising, on the part of any Agent or any Lender, any right,
remedy, power or privilege hereunder or under the other Loan Documents shall operate as awaiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right,
remedy, power or privilege. The rights, remedies, powers and privileges herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights,
remedies, powers and privileges provided by law.

9.4 Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warrantiesmade herein, in the other Loan Documentsand in any
document, certificate or statement delivered pursuant hereto or in connection herewith shall survive the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and the making of the Loans and other extensions of credit hereunder.

9.5 Payment of Expenses. The Borrower agrees (a) to pay or reimburse the Agentsfor all their reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the syndication of the Loans and the Commitments (other than fees payableto syndicate members) and the
development, preparation and execution of, and any amendment, supplement or modification to, thisAgreement and the other Loan Documents
and any other documents prepared in connection herewith or therewith, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby, including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and disbursements and other chargesof counsel to the Administrative Agent and the
use of Intra-Links, (b) to pay or reimburse each Lender and the Agents for all their costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
enforcement or preservation of any rights under this Agreement, the other Loan Documentsand any other documents prepared in connection
herewith or therewith, including, without limitation, thefees and disbursements of counsel (including theallocated feesand disbursements and
other charges of in-house counsel) to each Lender and of counsel to the Agents, (c) to pay, indemnify, or reimburse each Lender and the Agents
for, and hold each Lender and the Agentsharmless from, any and all recording and filing feesand any and all liabilities with respect to, or
resulting from any delay in paying, stamp, excise and other taxes, if any, which may be payable or determined to be payable in connection with
the execution and delivery of, or consummation or administration of any of the transactions contemplated by, or any amendment, supplement or
modification of, or any waiver or consent under or in respect of, thisAgreement, the other Loan Documentsand any such other documents, and
(d) to pay, indemnify or reimburse each Lender, each Agent, their respective affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, trustees,
employees, advisors, agentsand controlling persons (each, an "Indemnitee") for, and hold each Indemnitee harmless from and
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against, any and all other liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any
kind or nature whatsoever with respect to the execution, delivery, enforcement, performance and administration of this Agreement, the other
Loan Documents and any such other documents, including, without limitation, any of the foregoing relating to the use of proceeds of the Loans
or the violation of, noncompliance with or liability under, any Environmental Law applicable to the operations of the Borrower any of its
Subsidiaries or any of the Properties and the feesand disbursements and other charges of legal counsel in connection with claims, actionsor
proceedings by any Indemnitee against the Borrower hereunder (all theforegoing in thisclause (d), collectively, the"Indemnified Liabilities"),
provided, that the Borrower shall have no obligation hereunder to any Indemnitee with respect to Indemnified Liabilities to the extent such
Indemnified Liabilities are found by acourt of competent jurisdiction to have resulted fromthe gross negligence or willful misconduct of such
Indemnitee. Without limiting the foregoing, andto the extent permitted by applicable law, the Borrower agrees not to assert and to cause its
Subsidiaries not to assert, and hereby waives and agrees to causeits Subsidiaries so to waive, all rights for contribution or any other rights of
recovery with respect to all claims, demands, penalties, fines, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs and expenses of whatever kind or nature,
under or related to Environmental Laws, that any of them might have by statute or otherwise against any Indemnitee. All amounts due under this
Section shall be payable not later than 30 daysafter written demand therefor. Statements for amounts payable by the Borrower pursuant to this
Section shall be submitted to Michael Haynes, Treasurer, (Telephone No. (212) 584-5152) (Fax No. (212) 584-5252), at the address of the
Borrower setforthin

Section 9.2, or to such other Person or address as may be hereafter designated by the Borrower in a notice to the Administrative Agent. The
agreements in this

Section shall surviverepayment of the Loans andall other amounts payable hereunder.

9.6 Successors and Assigns; Participations and Assignments.

(a) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inureto the benefit of the Borrower, the Lenders, the Agents, all future holders of the Loans and
their respective successors and assigns, except that the Borrower may not assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the Agentsand each Lender.

(b) Any Lender may, without the consent of the Borrower, in accordance with applicable law, at any time sell to one or more banks, financial
institutionsor other entities (each, a"Participant") participating interests in any Loan owing to such Lender, any Commitment of such Lender or
any other interest of such Lender hereunder and under the other Loan Documents. In the event of any such sale by a Lender of a participating
interest to a Participant, such Lender's obligations under this Agreement to the other parties to thisAgreement shall remain unchanged, such
Lender shall remain solely responsible for the performance thereof, such Lender shall remain the holder of any such Loan for all purposes under
this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, and the Borrower and the Agents shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Lenderin
connection with such Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents. In no event shall any Participant
under any
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such participation have any right to approve any amendment or waiver of any provision of any Loan Document, or any consent to any departure
by any Loan Party therefrom, except to the extent that such amendment, waiver or consent would require the consent of al Lenders pursuant to
Section 9.1. The Borrower agrees that if amounts outstanding under this Agreement and the Loans are due or unpaid, or shall have been
declared or shall have become due and payable upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, each Participant shall, to the maximum extent
permitted by applicable law, be deemed to have theright of setoff in respect of its participating interest in amounts owing under this Agreement
to the same extent as if theamount of its participating interest were owing directly to it asa Lender under this Agreement, provided that, in
purchasing such participating interest, such Participant shall be deemed to have agreed to share with the Lendersthe proceeds thereof as
provided in Section 9.7(a) as fully asif such Participant were a Lender hereunder. The Borrower also agrees that each Participant shall be
entitled to the benefits of Sections 2.16, 2.17 and 2.18 with respect to its participation in the Commitmentsand the Loans outstanding from time
totimeasif such Participant were a Lender; provided that, in the case of Section 2.17, such Participant shall have complied with the
requirements of said Section, and provided, further, that no Participant shall be entitled to receive any greater amount pursuant to any such
Section than thetransferor Lender would have been entitled to receive in respect of the amount of the participation transferred by such
transferor Lender to such Participant had no such transfer occurred.

(c) Any Lender (an "Assignor") may, in accordance with applicable law and upon written notice to the Administrative Agent, at any time and
from time to time assign to any Lender or any affiliate or Control Investment Affiliate thereof or, with the consent of the Borrower and the
Agents (which, in each case, shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed) (provided that no such consent need be obtained by any Lehman
Entity until the first time the Lehman Entitieshold aggregate outstanding L oans and unused Commitments of no more than $20,000,000), to an
additional bank, financial institution or other entity (an "Assignee") al or any part of its rights and obligationsunder thisAgreement pursuant to
an Assignment and Acceptance, substantially in the form of Exhibit D, executed by such Assignee and such Assignor (and, wherethe consent of
the Borrower or the Agentsis required pursuant to the foregoing provisions, by the Borrower and such other Persons) and delivered to the
Administrative Agent for itsacceptance and recording in the Register; provided that no such assignment to an Assignee (other than any Lender
or any affiliate thereof) shall be in an aggregate principal amount of less than $5,000,000 (other than in the case of an assignment of all of a
Lender'sinterests under this Agreement), unless otherwise agreed by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent. Upon such execution,
delivery, acceptance and recording, from and after the effective date determined pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance, (x) the Assignee
thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent provided in such Assignment and Acceptance, have therights and obligations of a Lender
hereunder with Commitmentsand/or Loans as set forththerein; provided, that no assignee (including an assignee that is already a Lender
hereunder at the time of the assignment) shall be entitled to receive any greater amount pursuant to Section

2.17 than that to which the assignor would have been entitled to receive had no such
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assignment occurred, and (y) the Assignor thereunder shall, to the extent provided in such Assignment and Acceptance, be released from its
obligations under this Agreement (and, in the case of an Assignment and Acceptance covering all of an Assignor'srights and obligations under
this Agreement, such Assignor shall cease to be a party hereto, except asto Sections 2.16, 2.17 and 9.5 in respect of the period prior to such
effective date). Notwithstanding any provision of this Section, the consent of the Borrower shall not be reguired for any assignmentthat occurs
at any time when any Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

(d) The Administrative Agent shall, on behalf of the Borrower, maintain at its address referred to in Section 9.2 a copy of each Assignment and
Acceptance delivered to it and aregister (the "Register") for therecordation of the namesand addresses of the Lendersand the Commitment of,
and principal amount of theLoans owing to, each Lender from time to time. The entriesin the Register shall be conclusive, in the absence of
manifest error, and the Borrower, each Agent and the Lenders shall treat each Person whose name is recorded in the Register as the owner of
the Loansand any Notes evidencing such Loans recorded therein for all purposes of this Agreement. Any assignment of any L oan, whether or
not evidenced by aNote, shall be effective only upon appropriate entries with respect thereto being made in the Register (and each Note shall
expressly so provide). Any assignment or transfer of all or part of aLoan evidenced by a Note shall be registered on the Register only upon
surrender for registration of assignment or transfer of the Note evidencing such Loan, accompanied by a duly executed Assignment and
Acceptance; thereupon one or more new Notesin the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the designated Assignee, and theold
Notes shall be returned by the Administrative Agent to the Borrower marked "canceled”. The Register shall be available for inspection by the
Borrower or any Lender (with respect to any entry relating to such Lender's Loans) at any reasonable time and from time to time upon
reasonable prior notice.

(e) Uponitsreceipt of an Assignment and Acceptance executed by an Assignor and an Assignee (and, in any case where the consent of any
other Person isrequired by Section 9.6(c), by each such other Person) together with payment to the Administrative Agent of aregistration and
processing fee of $3,500 (except that no such registration and processing fee shall be payable (y) in connection withan assignment by or to any
Lehman Entity or (z) in the case of an Assignee whichisaready aLender or isan affiliate of a Lender or a Person under common management
with a Lender), the Administrative Agent shall

(i) promptly accept such Assignment and Acceptance and (ii) on the effective date determined pursuant thereto record the information
contained therein in the Register and give notice of such acceptance and recordation to the Borrower. Onor prior to such effective date, the
Borrower, at its own expense, upon request, shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent (in exchange for the Note of the assigning
Lender) anew Note to the order of such Assignee in an amount equal to the Loansacquired by it pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance
and, if the Assignor hasretained a L oan, upon request, a new Note to theorder of the Assignor in an amount equal to the Loans retained by it
hereunder. Such new Note or Notes shall
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be dated the Closing Date and shall otherwise be in theform of the Note or Notes replaced thereby.

(f) For avoidance of doubt, the parties to this Agreement acknowledgethat the provisions of this Section concerning assignments of Loans and
Notes relate only to absolute assignmentsand that such provisions do not prohibit assignments creating security interests in Loans and Notes,
including, without limitation, any pledge or assignment by a Lender of any Loan or Note to any Federal Reserve Bank in accordance with
applicable law, provided that any assignment pursuant to an exercise of remedies under any such security interest shall comply with Sections
9.6(c) through (€).

9.7 Adjustments; Set-off. (a) Except to the extent that thisAgreement provides for paymentsto be allocated to aparticular Lender, if any
Lender (a"Benefitted Lender") shall at any time receive any payment of al or part of the Obligations owing toit, or receive any collateral in
respect thereof (whether voluntarily or involuntarily, by set-off, pursuant to events or proceedings of the nature referred to in Section 7(f), or
otherwise), in agreater proportion than any such payment to or collateral received by any other Lender, if any, in respect of such other Lender's
Obligations, such Benefitted Lender shall purchase for cash from the other Lenders a participating interest in such portion of each such other
Lender's Obligations, or shall provide such other Lenders with the benefits of any such collateral, asshall be necessary to cause such Benefitted
Lender to share the excess payment or benefits of such collateral ratably with each of the Lenders; provided, however, that if all or any portion
of such excess payment or benefits is thereafter recovered from such Benefitted Lender, such purchase shall be rescinded, and the purchase
price and benefits returned, to the extent of such recovery, but without interest.

(b) In addition to any rights and remedies of the Lenders provided by law, each Lender shall have the right, without prior notice to the
Borrower, any such noticebeing expressly waived by the Borrower to the extent permitted by applicable law, upon any amount becoming due
and payable by the Borrower hereunder (whether at the stated maturity, by acceleration or otherwise), to set off and appropriate and apply
against such amount any and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisiona or final), in any currency, and any other credits,
indebtedness or claims, in any currency, in each case whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or unmatured, at any time held
or owing by such Lender or any branch or agency thereof to or for the credit or the account of the Borrower. Each Lender agrees promptly to
notify the Borrower and the Administrative Agent after any such setoff and application made by such Lender, provided that thefailure to give
such noticeshall not affect the validity of such setoff and application.

9.8 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by one or moreof the parties to this Agreement on any number of separate counterparts,
and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed signature page of
this Agreement or of a Lender
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Addendum by facsimile transmission shall be effective asdelivery of a manually executed counterpart hereof. A set of the copies of this
Agreement signed by all theparties shall be lodged with the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

9.9 Severability. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition
or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

9.10 Integration. This Agreement and the other Loan Documentsrepresent the entire agreement of the Borrower, the Agents, the Arranger and
the Lenderswith respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof, and there are no promises, undertakings, representations or warranties by the
Arranger, any Agentor any Lender relative to subject matter hereof not expressly set forth or referred to herein or in the other Loan Documents.

9.11 GOVERNING LAW. THISAGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE
STATE OF NEW YORK.

9.12 Submission To Jurisdiction; Waivers. The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally:

(a) submitsfor itself and its Property in any legal actionor proceeding relating to this Agreement and the other Loan Documents to whichitisa
party, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect thereof, to the non-exclusive general jurisdiction of the courts of the State
of New Y ork, the courts of the United States of America for the Southern District of New Y ork, and appellate courts from any thereof;

(b) consents that any such action or proceeding may be brought in such courts and waives any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the
venue of any such action or proceeding in any such court or that such action or proceeding wasbrought in an inconvenient court and agrees not
to plead or claim the same;

(c) agrees that service of process in any such action or proceeding may be effected by mailing a copy thereof by registered or certified mail (or
any substantially similar form of mail), postage prepaid, to the Borrower at its address set forth in Section 9.2 or at such other address of which
the Administrative Agent shall have been notified pursuant thereto;
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(d) agrees that nothing herein shall affect theright to effect service of process in any other manner permitted by law or shall limit theright to
sue in any other jurisdiction; and

(e) waives, to the maximum extent not prohibited by law, any right it may have to claim or recover in any legal action or proceeding referred to
in this Section any specia, exemplary, punitive or consequential damages and any damages arising from the use by unauthorized persons of
materials sent through electronic, telecommunications or other information transmission systemsthat are intercepted by such persons.

9.13 Acknowledgments. The Borrower hereby acknowledgesthat:
(a) it hasbeen advised by counsel in the negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents;

(b) neither the Arranger, any Agent nor any Lender has any fiduciary relationship with or duty to the Borrower arising out of or in connection
with this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents, and therelationship between the Arranger, the Agentsand the Lenders, on one hand,
and the Borrower, on the other hand, in connection herewith or therewith is solely that of debtor and creditor; and

(c) nojoint ventureis created hereby or by the other Loan Documents or otherwise exists by virtue of the transactions contemplated hereby
among the Arranger, the Agents and the Lenders or among the Borrower and the Lenders.

9.14 Confidentiality. Each of the Agentsand the Lenders agrees to keep confidential all non-public information provided to it by any Loan
Party pursuant to this Agreement that is designated by such Loan Party asconfidential; provided that nothing herein shall prevent any Agent or
any Lender from disclosing any suchinformation (a) to the Arranger, any Agent, any other Lender or any affiliate of any thereof, (b) to any
Participant or Assignee(each, a"Transferee") or prospective Transferee that agrees to comply withthe provisions of this Section, (¢) to any of
its employees, directors, agents, attorneys, accountants and other professiona advisors, (d) to any financial institution that isadirect or indirect
contractual counterparty in swap agreements or such contractual counterparty's professional advisor (so long assuch contractual counterparty or
professional advisor to such contractual counterparty agrees to be bound by the provisions of this Section), (€) upon the request or demand of
any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over it, (f) in response to any order of any court or other Governmental Authority or as may
otherwise be required pursuant to any Requirement of Law, (g) in connection with any litigation or similar proceeding, (h) that has been
publicly disclosed other thanin breach of this Section, (i) to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners or any similar organization
or any nationally recognized rating agency that requires access to information about a Lender's investment portfolio in connection with ratings
issued with respect to such Lender or (j)
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in connection with the exercise of any remedy hereunder or under any other Loan Document.

9.15 Release of Collateral and Guarantee Obligations. (a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in any other Loan
Document, upon request of the Borrower in connection with any Disposition of Property permitted by the Loan Documents, the Administrative
Agent shall (without notice to, or vote or consent of, any Lender, or any affiliate of any Lender that is a party to any Specified Hedge
Agreement) take such actions as shall be required to release itssecurity interest in any Collateral being Disposed of in such Disposition, and to
release any guarantee obligations under any Loan Document of any Person being Disposed of in such Disposition, to the extent necessary to
permit consummation of such Disposition in accordance withthe Loan Documents.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or any other Loan Document, when all Obligations (other than obligations in
respect of any Specified Hedge Agreement) have been paid in full, all Commitments have terminated or expired, upon request of the Borrower,
the Administrative Agent shall (without notice to, or voteor consent of, any Lender, or any affiliate of any Lender that is a party to any
Specified Hedge Agreement) take such actions as shall be required to release its security interest in al Collateral, and to release al guarantee
obligations under any Loan Document, whether or not on the date of such release there may be outstanding Obligations in respect of Specified
Hedge Agreements. Any such release of guarantee obligations shall be deemed subject to the provision that such guarantee obligations shall be
reinstated if after such release any portion of any payment in respect of the Obligations guaranteed thereby shall be rescinded or must otherwise
be restored or returned upon theinsolvency, bankruptcy, dissolution, liquidation or reorganization of the Borrower or any guarantor, or upon or
as aresult of the appointment of areceiver, intervenor or conservator of, or trustee or similar officer for, the Borrower or any guarantor or any
substantial part of its property, or otherwise, al as though such payment had not been made.

9.16 Accounting Changes. In the event that any "Accounting Change" (as defined below) shall occur and such change resultsin a change in the
method of calculation of financial covenants, standards or termsin thisAgreement, then the Borrower and the Administrative Agent agree to
enter into negotiations in order to amend such provisions of this Agreement so asto equitably reflect such Accounting Change with the desired
result that the criteriafor evaluating the Borrower's financia condition shall be the same after such Accounting Change asif such Accounting
Change had not been made. Until suchtime as such anamendment shall have been executed and delivered by the Borrower, the Administrative
Agent and the Required Lenders, all financial covenants, standards and termsin this Agreement shall continueto be calculated or construed as
if such Accounting Changehad not occurred. "Accounting Change" refers to any changein accounting principles required by the promulgation
of any rule, regulation, pronouncement or opinion by the Financial
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Accounting Standards Board of the American Instituteof Certified Public Accountants or, if applicable, the SEC.

9.17 Delivery of Lender Addenda. Eachinitial Lender shall become a party to this Agreement by delivering to the Administrative Agent a
Lender Addendum duly executed by such Lender, the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

9.18 Effectiveness. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution and delivery of this Agreement to the Administrative Agent and
payment to the Administrative Agent of the compensation contemplated by the Fee L etter, dated as of May 4, 2000, among the Borrower, the
Administrative Agent and the Arranger.

9.19 WAIVERS OF JURY TRIAL. THE BORROWER, THE AGENTSAND THE LENDERS HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THISAGREEMENT
ORANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT AND FOR ANY COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered by their proper and duly
authorized officers asof the day andyear first above written.

SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.

By: /'s/ M chael A Haynes

Name: M chael Haynes
Title: VP and Treasurer

LEHMAN BROTHERS INC., asArranger

By: /sl Jeffrey Goodw n

Narme: Jeffrey Goodwi n
Title: Authorized Signatory

LEHMAN COMMERCIAL PAPERINC,, as
Syndication Agent

By: /sl Jeffrey Goodw n

Nare: Jeffrey Goodwi n
Title: Authorized Signatory

LEHMAN COMMERCIAL PAPERINC,, as
Administrative Agent

By: /sl Jeffrey Goodw n

Narme: Jeffrey Goodwi n
Title: Authorized Signatory

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




Annex A

PRICING GRID
Total Nunmber of Subscribers Appl i cabl e Margin Applicabl e Margin for Base
as of Fiscal Quarter End for Eurodollar Loans Rat e Loans
< 1,500, 000 5. 00% 4, 00%
> 1,500, 000 and < 3, 000, 000 4, 75% 3. 75%
> 3, 000, 000 4, 50% 3.50%

Changes in the Applicable Marginresulting from changes in thetotal number of Subscribers as of theend of any fiscal quarter of the Borrower
shall become effective on the date (the "Adjustment Date") on which financial statementswith respect to such fiscal quarter aredelivered to the
Lenders pursuant to Section

5.1 (but in any event not later than the 45th day after theend of each of thefirst three quarterly periods of each fiscal year or the 90th day after
the end of each fiscal year, as the case may be) and shall remain in effect until the next changeto be effected pursuant to this paragraph. If any
financial statementsreferred to above are not delivered withinthe time periods specified above, then, until such financial statementsare
delivered, the total number of Subscribers asat the end of the fiscal period that would have been covered thereby shall for the purposes of this
definition be deemed to be lessthan 1,500,000. In addition, at all times whilean Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the
total number of Subscribers shall for the purposes of thisPricing Grid be deemed to be less than 1,500,000. Further, theforegoing margins are
subject to increase as set forthin Section 6.1(c).
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SCHEDULE 3.4
CONSENTS, AUTHORIZATIONS, FILINGSAND NOTICES

None.
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SCHEDULE 3.15
(8) SUBSIDIARIES

Satellite CD Radio, Inc. (the stock of which is pledged to secure the Borrower's obligations under the Senior Notes and the Senior Discount
Notes). Jurisdiction of Incorporation: Delaware. Capital Stock Ownership: 100% owned by the Borrower.

(b) CAPITAL STOCK RIGHTS/COMMITMENTS

1. Rights existing under the Rights Agreement, dated as of October 22, 1997, as amended, between the Borrower and Continental Stock
Transfer & Trust Company.

2. The Common Stock of the Borrower issuable upon the conversion or exercise of the Preferred Stock, Notes and Warrants listed on Exhibit A
hereto.
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EXHIBIT A TO SCHEDULE 3.15
SIRIUS SATELLITE RADIO INC.
COMMON STOCK EQUIVALENTS
PREFERRED STOCK, CONVERTIBLE NOTES& WARRANTS

CONVERSI ON
QUTSTANDI NG FACTOR
PREFERRED STOCK:
9.2% Series A Junior Cunul ative Convertible Preferred Stock 1, 461, 270 3.333333
9.2% Series B Junior Cunulative Convertible Preferred Stock 655, 406 3.333333
9.2% Series D Junior Cunul ative Convertible Preferred Stock 2,000, 000 2.941176
CONVERTI BLE NOTES:
8 3/ 4% Convertibl e Subordi nated Notes due 2009 80, 844, 000 0.035134
TOTAL CONVERTI BLE PREFERRED STOCK AND CONVERTI BLE NOTES:
QUTSTANDI NG STRI KE PRI CE
WARRANTS: e
Ford Warrants 4,000, 000 $ 30.000
Dai m er Chrysl er Warrants 4, 000, 000 $ 50. 000
Warrants issued in connection with Sr. Secured Notes due 2009 2, 368, 200 $ 26.45
Everest Warrants 1, 740, 000 $ 50. 000
LCPI Warrants in connection with Term Loan Agreenent 1, 050, 000 Vari abl e
Ravi ch Warrants 60, 000 $ 50. 000
NPR Warrants 5, 000 $ 23.750
Car Talk Warrants 3, 000 $ 33.375

TOTAL WARRANTS:

TOTAL COVMON STOCK EQUI VALENTS RELATED TO CONVERTI BLE PREFERRED STOCK, CONVERTI BLE NOTES AND WARRANTS
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COVMON STOCK
EQUI VALENTS

4, 870, 900
2,184, 686

5, 882, 353

2,840, 373

15,778, 312

COWMON STOCK
EQUI VALENTS

4, 000, 000
4, 000, 000
2, 368, 200
1, 740, 000
1, 050, 000

60, 000

5, 000

13, 226, 200

29,004,512



SCHEDULE 3.19(a)-1

UCC FILING JURISDICTIONS

Loan Party Filing Ofice

Sirius Satellite Radio Inc.: 1. County Cerk, New York County
2. Secretary of State, New York
3. Required filing office(s) in jurisdiction where

Fourth Satellite is stored after title thereto
passes to the Borrower (Expected to be Nevada)
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Schedule 3.19(a)-2

FINANCING STATEMENTS TO REMAIN ONFILE

File No. Filing Ofice Dat e Secured Party

9922460538 SC8 Cal i forni a 8/ 6/ 99 Space Systems/Loral, Inc.
99 PN43475 New York County, NY 8/ 11/ 99 Space Systens/Loral, Inc.
158351 SCS New Yor k 8/ 6/ 99 Space Systens/Loral, Inc

Certain UCC Financing Statements filed in connection withliens permitted by
Section 6.3(j) in respect of leased equipment.
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172664

193047

98PN40815

Filing Ofice

SOS New Yor k

SCS New Yor k

New Yor k County,

Schedule 3.19(a)-3

FINANCING STATEMENTS TO BE TERMINATED

NY

Dat e

8/11/98

9/ 8/ 98

8/ 4/ 98

L ! —

2002.

Secur ed

America National Trust and
Associ ation, as Adm nistrative

America National Trust and
Associ ation, as Adm nistrative

America National Trust and
Associ ation, as Adm nistrative

EDGAR Online, Inc.

Bor r ower

Bor r ower



SCHEDULE 3.21
LICENSES
The Borrower or its Subsidiary holds thefollowing Licenses necessary for the operation of a satellite digital audioradio service:

1. Authorization to construct, launch and operate two satellitesin the satellite digital audio radio service (Granted Oct. 10, 1997; subject to
Petition for Review and not administratively final).

2. Special Temporary Authorization to launch three satellitesinto inclined and elliptical (non-geostationary) orbits and to test satellites (Granted
Dec. 20, 1999; Renewed Apr. 12, 2000).

The Borrower or its Subsidiary hasapplied for but does not hold the following FCC Licenses necessary for the operation of a satellite digital
audio radio service:

1. Modification of authorization to construct, launch, and operate three geosynchronous inclined orbit satellites (Accepted for Filing Jan. 7,
1999).

2. Licenseto operate a 4.5 meter X and S-band fixed earth station via three geosynchronous inclined orbit satellites. (Accepted for Filing Sept.
15, 1999).

The Borrower of its Subsidiary has not applied for and does not hold thefollowing FCC License, pending an FCC determination whether or not
such License would be necessary for the operation of the terrestrial component of the satellite digital audio radio service.

Licenseto operate terrestrial repeaters.
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SCHEDULE 4.1(d)
FCC LICENSES
1. Authorization to construct, launch and operate two satellitesin the satellite digital audio radio service.

2. Special Temporary Authorization to launch three satellitesinto inclined and elliptical (non-geostationary) orbits and to test satellites.
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SCHEDULE 6.2(d)
EXISTING INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness outstanding under the Borrower's:
Senior Notes
Senior Discount Notes
8 3/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 ($143,750,000 aggregate principal amount outstanding)
$50,000,000 vendor financing from Space Systems/Loral, Inc.

Reimbursement obligations under letters of credit issued by Citibank in favor of Rock - McGraw, Inc. in an aggregate principal amount of
$6,250,000 in connection with the Borrower's leasing of the 32nd, 36th and 37th floors at 1221 Avenue of the Americas.
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SCHEDULE 6.3(f)
EXISTING LIENS
Lien on stock of Satellite CD Radio, Inc. for thebenefit of the Senior Notes and Senior Discount Notes.
Lien onterrestria repeater network granted to Space Systems/Loral, Inc.
Lien onrestricted investmentsheld to pay first six interest payments on the Senior Notes for the benefit of the holders thereof.

Lienson $6,250,000 of cash and/or Cash Equivaentsheld at Citibank securing obligationsunder |etters of credit issued infavor of Rock -
McGraw, Inc. in connection with the Borrower's leasing of the 32nd, 36th and 37th floors at 1221 Avenue of the Americas.

Lienson the Borrower's rights under certain contracts and all proceeds related thereto granted to Bank of America National Trust and Savings
Association, as Administrative Agent.(1)

(1) Liens created in connection with a bank credit facility which has been repaid. As indicated on Schedule 3.19(a)-3, the related UCC
Financing Statements will be terminated prior to the Closing Date.
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EXHIBIT A
COLLATERAL AGREEMENT
made by
SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.
infavor of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK,
as Collateral Agent

Dated asof __, 2000
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COLLATERAL AGREEMENT, dated as of __, 2000, made by SIRIUS SATELLITE RADIO INC., a Delaware corporation (the

"Borrower"), infavor of THE BANK OF NEW Y ORK, as collateral agent (in such capacity, the"Collateral Agent") for the Secured Parties
referred to below.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from timeto
time, the"Term Loan Agreement"), among the Borrower, the several banks and other financial institutionsor entities from time to time parties
to the Term Loan Agreement (the "Lenders"), Lehman Brothers Inc., as advisor, lead arranger and book manager, Lehman Commercial Paper
Inc., as syndication agent, and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as administrative agent (in such capacity, the" Administrative Agent"), the
Lenders have severally agreed to make extensions of credit to the Borrower upon theterms and subject to the conditions set forth therein;

WHEREAS, it isa condition precedent to the obligation of the Lendersto make their respective extensions of credit to the Borrower under the
Term Loan Agreement that the Borrower shall have executed and delivered this Agreement to the Collateral Agent for theratable benefit of the
Secured Parties;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and to induce the Administrative Agent and the Lendersto enter into the Term Loan
Agreement and to induce the Lenders to make their respective extensions of credit to the Borrower thereunder, the Borrower hereby agrees with
the Collateral Agent, for theratable benefit of the Secured Parties, as follows:

SECTION 1. DEFINED TERMS

1.1 Definitions. (@) Unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined in the Term Loan Agreement and used herein shall have the meaningsgiven
tothemin the Term Loan Agreement, and the following terms which are defined in the Uniform Commercia Code in effect in the State of New
Y ork on the date hereof are used herein as so defined: Certificated Security, Chattel Paper and Instruments.

(b) The following terms shall have the following meanings.

"Agreement": thisCollateral Agreement, as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from timeto time.

"Collatera": as defined in Section 2.
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5
"Collateral Account": any collateral account established by the Collateral Agent as provided n Section 5.2.

"Fourth Satellite": the fourth FS-1300 spacecraft to be delivered to the Borrower pursuant to the Satellite Contract. References to the Fourth
Satellite shall be deemed to include any spacecraft acquired or otherwise in the possession of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries for the
purpose of replacing any Fourth Satellite no longer used or usable by the Borrower as a ground spare satellite.

"Fourth Satellite Contract Rights': al right, title and interest of the Borrower in, to and under the Satellite Contract, insofar as it relates to the
Fourth Satellite and the Borrower's rights and remedies with respect thereto, including, without limitation, (i) al rights of the Borrower to
receive moneys due and to become due to it thereunder or in connection therewith, (ii) all rights of the Borrower to damages arising thereunder
and

(iii) al rights of the Borrower to perform and to exercise all remediesthereunder.

"Hedge Agreement Obligations': the collective referenceto all obligations and liabilities of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries (including,
without limitation, interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in any Specified Hedge Agreement after the filing of any petition in
bankruptcy, or the commencement of any insolvency, reorganization or like proceeding, relating to the Borrower, whether or not a claim for
post-filing or post-petition interest is allowed in such proceeding) to any Lender or any affiliate of any Lender, whether direct or indirect,
absolute or contingent, due or to become due, or now existing or hereafter incurred, which may arise under, out of, or in connection with, any
Specified Hedge Agreement or any other document made, delivered or given in connection therewith, in each case whether on account of
principal, interest, reimbursement obligations, fees, indemnities, costs, expenses or otherwise (including, without limitation, all fees and
disbursements of counsel to the relevant Lender or affiliate thereof that are required to be paid by the Borrower pursuant to theterms of any
Specified Hedge Agreement).

"Hedge Agreements': as to any Person, al interest rate swaps, caps or collar agreements or similar arrangements entered into by such Person
providing for protection against fluctuationsin interest rates or currency exchangerates or the exchange of nominal interest obligations, either
generally or under specific contingencies.

"New York UCC": the Uniform Commercial Code as from timeto timein effect in the State of New Y ork.
"Obligations": the collective reference to (i) the Term Loan Agreement Obligations, (ii) the Senior Discount Note Obligations, (iii) the Senior

Note Obligations, (iv) the Hedge Agreement Obligations, but only to the extent that, and only so long as, the Term Loan Agreement Obligations
are secured pursuant hereto and (v) all other obligations and liabilities of
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the Borrower, whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become duet, or now existing or hereafter incurred, which may arise
under, out of, or in connection with, thisAgreement (including, without limitation, all fees and disbursements of counsel to the Collateral Agent
or to the Secured Parties that arerequired to be paid by the Borrower pursuant to the termsof this Agreement).

"Representative": thecollective referenceto (i) the Administrative Agent, (ii) the Senior Discount Note Trustee and (iii) the Senior Note
Trustee.

"Satellite Contract": the collective reference to theLoral Agreement and any other agreement with respect to the construction and delivery of a
Fourth Satellite.

"Secured Debt Documents': the collective reference to (i) the Loan Documents, (ii) the Senior Discount Note Indenture and (iii) the Senior
Note Indenture.

"Secured Parties': the collective reference to (i) the Administrative Agent, (ii) the Lenders (and any affiliates of any Lender to which the Hedge
Agreement Obligations are owing), (iii) the Senior Discount Note Trustee, (iv) the Senior Discount Note Holders, (v) the Senior Note Trustee
and

(vi) the Senior Note Holders.

"Senior Discount Note Holders': the holders, from time to time, of Senior Discount Notes issued pursuant to the Senior Discount Note
Indenture.

"Senior Discount Note Obligations': the collective referenceto theunpaid principal of and interest on the Senior Discount Notes and all other
obligations and liabilities of the Borrower (including, without limitation, interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in the Senior
Discount Notes or the Senior Discount NoteIndenture after the maturity of the Senior Discount Notes and interest accruing at the then
applicable rate provided in the Senior Discount Notes or the Senior Discount Note Indenture after the filing of any petition in bankruptcy, or the
commencement of any insolvency, reorganization or like proceeding, relating to the Borrower, whether or not a claim for post-filing or
post-petition interest is alowed in such proceeding) to the Senior Discount Note Trustee or any Senior Discount Note Holder, whether direct or
indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become due, or now existing or hereafter incurred, which may arise under, out of, or in connection
with, the Senior Discount Notes, the Senior Discount Note Indenture or this Agreement, or any other document made, delivered or givenin
connection therewith, in each case whether on account of principal, interest, reimbursement obligations, fees, indemnities, costs, expenses or
otherwise (including, without limitation, all fees and disbursements of counsel to the Senior Discount Note Trustee or to the Senior Discount
Note Holders that arerequired to be paid by the Borrower pursuant to theterms of any of the foregoing agreementsor instruments).
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"Senior Discount Note Trustee": The Bank of New Y ork (as successor to IBJ Whitehall Bank and Trust Company), in its capacity astrustee
under the Senior Discount Note Indenture.

"Senior Note Holders": theholders, from time to time, of Senior Notesissued pursuant to the Senior Note Indenture.

"Senior Note Obligations': the collective reference to the unpaid principal of and interest on the Senior Notes and all other obligationsand
liabilities of the Borrower (including, without limitation, interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in the Senior Notes or the Senior
Note Indenture after the maturity of the Senior Notesand interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in the Senior Notes or the Senior
Note Indenture after the filing of any petition in bankruptcy, or the commencement of any insolvency, reorganization or like proceeding,
relating to the Borrower, whether or not a claim for post-filing or post-petition interest is allowed in such proceeding) to the Senior Note
Trustee or any Senior Note Holder, whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become due, or now existing or hereafter
incurred, which may arise under, out of, or in connection with, the Senior Notes, the Senior Note Indenture or this Agreement, or any other
document made, delivered or given in connection therewith, in each case whether on account of principal, interest, reimbursement obligations,
fees, indemnities, costs, expenses or otherwise (including, without limitation, all feesand disbursements of counsel to the Senior Note Trustee
or to the Senior Note Holders that are required to be paid by the Borrower pursuant to the termsof any of the foregoing agreements or
instruments).

"Senior Note Trustee": United States Trust Company of New Y ork, in its capacity astrustee under the Senior Note Indenture.

"Specified Hedge Agreement”: any Hedge Agreement (a) enteredinto by (i) the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries and (ii) any Lender or any
affiliate thereof, ascounterparty, and (b) which has been designated by such Lender and the Borrower, by notice to the Collateral Agent and the
Administrative Agent not later than 90 days after the execution and delivery by the Borrower or itsSubsidiary thereof, asa Specified Hedge
Agreement. The designation of any Hedge Agreement as aSpecified Hedge Agreement shall not create in favor of the Lender or affiliate
thereof that is a party thereto any rightsin connection with the management or release of any Collateral or any Obligations.

"Term Loan Agreement Obligations': the collective reference to the unpaid principal of and interest onthe Loans and all other obligations and
liabilities of the Borrower (including, without limitation, interest accruing at thethen applicable rate provided in the Term Loan Agreement
after thematurity of the Loansand interest accruing at the then applicable rate provided in the Term Loan Agreement after thefiling of any
petition in bankruptcy, or the commencement of any insolvency, reorganization or like proceeding, relating to the Borrower, whether or not a
claimfor post-filing or post-petition interest is allowed in such proceeding) to the Administrative Agent or any Lender, whether direct or
indirect, absolute or contingent, due
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or to become due, or now existing or hereafter incurred, which may arise under, out of, or in connection with, the Term Loan Agreement, this
Agreement or the other Loan Documents, or any other document made, delivered or given in connection therewith, in each case whether on
account of principal, interest, reimbursement obligations, fees, indemnities, costs, expenses or otherwise (including, without limitation, all fees
and disbursements of counsel to the Administrative Agent or to the Lenders that are required to be paid by the Borrower pursuant to the terms
of any of the foregoing agreements).

1.2 Other Definitional Provisions. The words "hereof", "herein”, "hereto" and "hereunder" and words of similar import whenused in this
Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of thisAgreement, and Section and Schedule references
are to this Agreement unless otherwise specified. The meaningsgivento termsdefined herein shall be equally applicableto both the singular
and plural formsof such terms.

SECTION 2. GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST

The Borrower hereby assigns and transfers to the Collateral Agent, and hereby grants to the Collateral Agent, for the ratable benefit of the
Secured Parties, a security interestin al of thefollowing property now owned or at any time hereafter acquired by the Borrower or in whichthe
Borrower now has or at any time in the future may acquire any right, title or interest (collectively, the"Collateral™), as collateral security for the
prompt and complete payment and performance when due (whether at the stated maturity, by acceleration or otherwise) of the Obligations:

(a) the Fourth Satellite;
(b) al Fourth Satellite Contract Rights;
(c) al books and records pertaining to the Collateral; and

(d) to the extent not otherwise included, all Proceeds and productsof any and al of the foregoing and al collateral security and guarantees
given by any Person with respect to any of theforegoing.

SECTION 3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

To induce the Administrative Agent and the Lenders to enter into the Term Loan Agreement and to induce the Lenders to make their respective
extensions of credit to the Borrower thereunder, the Borrower hereby representsand warrants to the Collateral Agent and each Secured Party
that:

3.1 Title; No Other Liens. Except for the security interest granted to the Collateral Agent for theratable benefit of the Secured Parties pursuant
to this Agreement and the
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other Liens permitted to exist onthe Collateral by the Term Loan Agreement, the Borrower owns each item of the Collateral free and clear of
any and all Liensor claims of others. No financing statement or other public notice with respect to all or any part of the Collatera ison file or
of record in any public office, except such ashave beenfiled in favor of the Collateral Agent, for theratable benefit of the Secured Parties,
pursuant to this Agreement or as are permitted by the Term Loan Agreement.

3.2 Perfected First Priority Liens. The security interests granted pursuant to this Agreement upon completion of the filings and other actions
specified on Schedule 1 (which, in the caseof all filingsand other documents referred to on said Schedule, have been delivered to the Collatera
Agent in completed and duly executed form) will constitute valid perfected security interests in al of the Collateral infavor of the Collateral
Agent, for the ratable benefit of the Secured Parties, as collateral security for the Obligations, enforceable in accordance with the terms hereof
against all creditors of the Borrower and any Persons purporting to purchase any Collateral from the Borrower and are prior to al other Liens
onthe Collateral in existence on the date hereof except for unrecorded Liens permitted by the Term Loan Agreement which have priority over
the Lienson the Collateral by operation of law.

3.3 Chief Executive Office. On thedate hereof, the Borrower's jurisdiction of organization and thelocation of the Borrower's chief executive
office or sole place of business are specified on Schedule2.

3.4 Satellite Contract. (a) No consent of any party (other than the Borrower) to the Satellite Contract is required, or purports to be required, in
connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.

(b) The Satellite Contract isin full force and effect and constitutes avalid and legally enforceable obligation of the Borrower and, to the
knowledge of the Borrower, Space Systems/Loral, Inc., subject to the effects of bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent conveyance, reorganization,
moratorium and other similar laws relatingto or affecting creditors' rights generally, general equitable principles (whether consideredin a
proceeding in equity or at law) and an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

(c) Noconsent or authorization of, filing with or other act by orin respect of any Governmental Authority isrequired in connection with the
execution, dedlivery, performance, validity or enforceability of the Satellite Contract by the Borrower and, to the knowledge of the Borrower,
Space Systemg/Loral, Inc. other than those which have been duly obtained, made or performed, are in full force and effect and do not subject
the scope of the Satellite Contract to any material adverse limitation, either specific or general in nature.

(d) Neither the Borrower nor (to the best of the Borrower's knowledge) any of the other parties to the Satellite Contract isin default in any
meaterial respect in the performance or observance of any of the termsthereof.
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(e) Theright, title and interest of the Borrower in, to and under the Satellite Contract are not subject to any material defenses, offsets,
counterclaims or claims other than claims of Space Systems/Loral, Inc. for payment due fromthe Borrower under such Contract.

(f) The Borrower has delivered to the Collateral Agent a complete and correct copy of the Satellite Contract, including all amendments,
supplements and other modifications thereto.

(g) No amount payableto the Borrower under or in connection with the Fourth Satellite is evidenced by any Instrument or Chattel Paper which
has not been delivered to the Collateral Agent.

SECTION 4. COVENANTS

The Borrower covenants and agrees with the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties that, from and after the date of thisAgreement until the
Obligations shall have been paidin full, and the Commitments shall have terminated:

4.1 Delivery of Instruments and Chattel Paper. If any amount payable under or in connection with any of the Collateral shall be or become
evidenced by any Instrument, Certificated Security or Chattel Paper, such Instrument, Certificated Security or Chattel Paper shall be
immediately delivered to the Collateral Agent, duly indorsed in amanner satisfactory to the Collateral Agent, to be held asCollateral pursuant
to this Agreement.

4.2 Maintenance of Insurance. (a) The Borrower will, at all times at whichit hastitle or risk of loss, maintain, with financially sound and
reputable companies, insurance policiesinsuring the Fourth Satellite against loss by fire, explosion, theft and such other casualties as may be
reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Agent and the Administrative Agent, such palicies to be in such form and amountsand having such
coverage asmay be reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties.

(b) All such insurance shall (i) provide that no cancellation, material reduction in amount or material changein coverage thereof shall be
effective until at least 30 daysafter receipt by the Collateral Agent of written noticethereof, (i) name the Collateral Agent as insured party or
loss payeg, (iii) if reasonably requested by the Administrative Agent, include a breach of warranty clause and (iv) be reasonably satisfactory in
all other respects to the Collateral Agent andthe Representatives.

(c) The Borrower shall deliver to the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties a report of a reputable insurance broker with respect to such
insurance substantially concurrently withthe delivery by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent of its audited financial statementsfor each
fiscal year and such supplemental reports with respect thereto as the Collateral Agent or any Representative may from time to time reasonably
request.
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4.3 Maintenance of Perfected Security Interest; Further Documentation.(a) The Borrower shall maintain the security interest created by this
Agreement as a perfected security interest having at least the priority described in Section 3.2 and shall defend such security interest against the
claimsand demands of all Persons whomsoever.

(b) The Borrower will furnishto the Collateral Agent and the Representatives fromtime to time statements and schedul es further identifying
and describing the assetsand property of the Borrower and such other reportsin connection with the Collateral as the Collateral Agent may
reasonably request, al in reasonable detail.

(c) Atany time and fromtimeto time, upon the written request of the Collateral Agent or the Administrative Agent, and at the sole expense of
the Borrower, the Borrower will promptly and duly execute and deliver, and have recorded, such further instruments and documents and take
such further actions as the Collateral Agent or the Administrative Agent may reasonably request for the purpose of obtaining or preserving the
full benefits of this Agreement and of therights and powers herein granted, including, without limitation, (i) the filing of any financing or
continuation statements under the Uniform Commercial Code (or other similar laws) in effect in any jurisdiction with respect to the security
interests created hereby and (i) to the extent applicable, taking any actionsnecessary to enable the Collateral Agentto obtain "control" (within
the meaning of the applicable Uniform Commercial Code) with respect thereto.

4.4 No Additional Liens. The Borrower will not further hypothecate, assign, pledge, encumber, transfer, sell or otherwise dispose of, or grant
any option with respect to, or create or suffer to exist a security interest in, or aLien on, the Collateral or any portion thereof, except for the
pledge, assignment and security interest created by this Agreement in favor of the Collateral Agent. The inclusion of "Proceeds" of the
Collateral under the security interest granted herein shall not be deemed a consent by the Collateral Agent to any sale or other disposition of any
Collateral.

4.5 Changes in Locations, Name, etc. The Borrower will not, except upon 15 days' prior written notice to Collateral Agent andthe
Administrative Agent and delivery to the Collateral Agent of al additional executed financing statements and other documents reasonably
requested by the Collateral Agent or the Administrative Agent to maintain the validity, perfection and priority of the security interests provided
for herein:

(a) permit the Fourth Satellite to be kept at alocation other than the ground storage site located in [ , Nevada];

(b) change itsjurisdiction of organization or thelocation of itschief executive office or sole place of business from that referred to in
Section 3.3; or
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(c) changeits name, identity or corporate structure to such anextent that any financing statement filed by the Collateral Agentin connection
with this Agreement would become misleading.

4.6 Notices. The Borrower will advise the Collateral Agent and the Representatives promptly, in reasonable detail, of:

(a) any Lien on any of the Collateral which would adversely affect theability of the Collateral Agent to exercise any of its remedies hereunder;
and

(b) the occurrence of any other event which could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the aggregate value of the
Collateral or onthe security interestscreated hereby.

4.7 Satellite Contract. The Borrower will perform and comply in all material respects with all its obligations under the Satellite Contract.
SECTION 5. REMEDIAL PROVISIONS

5.1 Communications with Obligors; Borrower Remains Liable. () Each of the Collateral Agent and the Administrative Agent, in its own name
or inthe name of others, may at any time communicate with the parties to the Satellite Contract to verify with them to the satisfaction of the
Collateral Agent or the Administrative Agent, as the case may be, the existence, amount and terms of such Contract.

(b) Upon the request of the Collateral Agent at any time after the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the Borrower
shall notify parties to the Satellite Contract that the Satellite Contract has been assigned to the Collateral Agent for the ratable benefit of the
Secured Partiesand that any payments in respect thereof shall be made directly to the Collateral Agent.

(c) Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Borrower shall remain liable under the Satellite Contract to observe and perform al the
conditions and obligations to be observed and performed by it thereunder, all in accordance withthe terms of any agreement givingrise thereto.
Neither the Collateral Agent nor any Secured Party shall have any obligation or liability under the Satellite Contract by reason of or arising out
of this Agreement or thereceipt by the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party of any payment relating thereto, nor shall the Collateral Agent or
any Secured Party be obligated in any manner to perform any of the obligations of the Borrower under or pursuant to the Satellite Contract, to
make any payment, to make any inquiry as to the nature or the sufficiency of any payment received by it or asto the sufficiency of any
performance by any party thereunder, to present or fileany claim, to take any action to enforce any performance or to collect the payment of
any amounts which may have been assigned to it or to which it may be entitled at any time or times.
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5.2 Proceeds to be Turned Over To Collateral Agent. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, all Proceeds received by the
Borrower consisting of cash, checksand other near-cash items shall be held by the Borrower in trust for the Collateral Agent and the Secured
Parties, segregated from other funds of the Borrower, and shall, forthwith upon receipt by the Borrower, be turned over to the Collateral Agent
in the exact form received by the Borrower (duly indorsed by the Borrower to the Collateral Agent, if required). All Proceeds received by the
Collateral Agent hereunder shall be held by the Collateral Agent in a Collateral Account maintained under its sole dominion and control. All
Proceeds while held by the Collateral Agentina Collateral Account (or by the Borrower in trust for the Collateral Agent and the Secured
Parties) shall continue to be held as collateral security for al the Obligations and shall not constitute payment thereof until applied as provided
in Section 5.3.

5.3 Application of Proceeds. At such intervalsas may be agreed upon by the Borrower and the Collateral Agent, or, if an Event of Default shall
have occurred and be continuing, at any time at the Collateral Agent's election, the Collateral Agent may apply all or any part of Proceeds
congtituting Collateral (after the payment of any amounts payableto the Collateral Agent pursuant to Section 7.4(a)), whether or not held in any
Collateral Account, for theratable benefit of the Secured Parties in payment of the Obligations in the manner set forth in the Intercreditor
Agreement. Any balance of such proceeds remaining after the Obligations shall have been paid in full and the Commitments shall have been
terminated shall be paid over to the Borrower or to whomsoever may be lawfully entitled to receive the same.

5.4 Code and Other Remedies. If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the Collateral Agent, on behalf of the Secured Parties, may
exercise, in addition to all other rights and remedies granted to them in this Agreement and in any other instrument or agreement securing,
evidencing or relating to the Obligations, al rights and remedies of a secured party under the New Y ork UCC or any other applicable law.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Collateral Agent, without demand of performance or other demand, presentment, protest,
advertisement or notice of any kind (except any notice required by law referred to below) to or upon the Borrower or any other Person (all and
each of which demands, defenses, advertisements and notices are hereby waived), may in such circumstances forthwith collect, receive,
appropriate and realize upon the Collateral, or any part thereof, and/or may forthwith sell, lease, assign, give option or options to purchase, or
otherwise dispose of and deliver the Collateral or any part thereof (or contract to do any of theforegoing), in one or more parcels at public or
private sale or sales, at any exchange, broker's board or office of the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party or €l sewhere upon such termsand
conditions as it may deem advisable and at such prices as it may deem best, for cash or on credit or for future delivery without assumption of
any credit risk. The Collateral Agent or any Secured Party shall have the right upon any such public sale or sales, and, to the extent permitted by
law, upon any such private sale or sales, to purchasethe whole or any part of the Collateral so sold, free of any right or equity of redemption in
the Borrower, whichright or equity is hereby waived and released. The Borrower further agrees, at the Collateral Agent'srequest, to assemble
the Collateral and make it available to the Collateral Agent at places which the Collateral Agent shall reasonably select, whether at the
Borrower's premises or elsewhere. The Collateral Agent shall apply the
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net proceeds of any action taken by it pursuant to this Section 5.4, after deducting all reasonable costs and expenses of every kind incurred in
connection therewith or incidental to the care or safekeeping of any of the Collateral or in any way relatingto the Collateral or the rights of the
Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties hereunder, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys fees and disbursements, to theratable
paymentin wholeor in part of the Obligations, in the manner set forthin the Intercreditor Agreement, and only after such application and after
the payment by the Collateral Agent of any other amount required by any provision of law, including, without limitation,

Section 9-504(1)(c) of the New Y ork UCC, need the Collateral Agent account for the surplus, if any, to the Borrower. To the extent permitted
by applicable law, the Borrower waivesall claims, damages and demands it may acquire against the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party
arising out of the exercise by them of any rights hereunder. If any notice of a proposed sale or other disposition of Collateral shall be required
by law, such notice shall be deemed reasonable and proper if given at least 10 daysbefore such sale or other disposition.

5.5 Waiver; Deficiency. The Borrower waives and agrees not to assert any rights or privileges whichit may acquire under Section 9-112 of the
New York UCC. The Borrower shall remain liablefor any deficiency if the proceeds of any sale or other disposition of the Collateral are
insufficient to pay itsObligations and the fees and disbursements of any attorneys employed by the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party to
collect such deficiency.

SECTION 6. THE COLLATERAL AGENT

6.1 Collateral Agent's Appointment as Attorney-in-Fact, etc.

(a) The Borrower hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Collateral Agent and any officer or agent thereof, with full power of
substitution, as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact with full irrevocable power and authority in the place and stead of the Borrower and in the
name of the Borrower or in its own name, for the purpose of carrying out the termsof this Agreement, to take any and all appropriate action and
to execute any and all documents and instrumentswhich may be necessary or desirable to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement, and,
without limiting the generality of theforegoing, the Borrower hereby givesthe Collateral Agent the power and right, on behalf of the Borrower,
without noticeto or assent by the Borrower, to do any or all of the following:

(2) inthe name of the Borrower or its own name, or otherwise, take possession of and indorse and collect any checks, drafts, notes, acceptances
or other instrumentsfor the payment of moneys dueunder the Satellite Contract or with respect to any other Collateral and file any claim or
take any other action or proceeding in any court of law or equity or otherwise deemed appropriate by the Collateral Agent for the purpose of
collecting any and all such moneys due under the Satellite Contract or with respect to any other Collateral whenever payable;
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(2) pay or discharge taxes and Liens levied or placed on or threatened against the Collateral, effect any repairs or any insurance called for by
the termsof this Agreement and pay al or any part of the premiums therefor and the costs thereof;

(3) execute, in connection with any sale provided for in
Section 5.4, any indorsements, assignmentsor other instruments of conveyance or transfer with respect to the Collateral; and

(4) (1) direct any party ligble for any payment under any of the Collateral to make payment of any and al moneys due or to become due
thereunder directly to the Collateral Agent or as the Collateral Agent shall direct; (2) ask or demand for, collect, and receive payment of and
receipt for, any and all moneys, claimsand other amounts due or to become due at any time in respect of or arising out of any Collateral; (3)
sign and indorse any invoices, freight or express hills, billsof lading, storage or warehouse receipts, drafts against debtors, assignments,
verifications, noticesand other documents in connection with any of the Collateral; (4) commence and prosecute any suits, actionsor
proceedings at law or in equity in any court of competent jurisdiction to collect the Collateral or any portion thereof and to enforce any other
right in respect of any Collateral; (5) defend any suit, action or proceeding brought against the Borrower with respect to any Collateral; (6)
settle, compromise or adjust any such suit, action or proceeding and, in connection therewith, give such discharges or releases asthe Collateral
Agent may deem appropriate; and (7) generaly, sdll, transfer, pledge and make any agreement with respect to or otherwise deal with any of the
Collateral as fully and completely as though the Collateral Agent were the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and do, at the Collateral
Agent's option and the Borrower's expense, a any time, or from time to time, all acts and thingswhich the Collateral Agent deems necessary to
protect, preserve or realize upon the Collateral and the Collateral Agent's and the Secured Parties security interests therein and to effect the
intent of this Agreement, all as fully and effectively as the Borrower might do.

Anything in thisSection 6.1(a) to the contrary notwithstanding, the Collateral Agent agrees that it will not exercise any rights under the power
of attorney provided for in this Section 6.1(a) unless an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

(b) If the Borrower failsto perform or comply with any of its agreements contained herein, the Collateral Agent, at its option, but without any
obligation so to do, may perform or comply, or otherwise cause performanceor compliance, with such agreement.

(c) The expenses of the Collateral Agent incurred in connection with actions undertaken as provided in this Section 6.1, together with interest
thereon at arate per annum equal to the rate per annum at whichinterest would then be payable on past due Base Rate Loans under the Term
Loan Agreement, from the date of payment by the Collateral Agent to the date reimbursed by the Borrower, shall be payable by the Borrower to
the Collateral Agent on demand.
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(d) The Borrower hereby ratifies all that said attorneys shall lawfully do or causeto be done by virtue hereof. All powers, authorizations and
agencies contained in this Agreement are coupled with an interest and areirrevocable until this Agreement is terminated and the security
interests created hereby arereleased.

6.2 Duty of Collateral Agent. The Collateral Agent's sole duty with respect to the custody, safekeeping and physical preservation of the
Collateral inits possession, under Section 9-207 of theNew York UCC or otherwise, shall be to deal with it in the same manner as the
Collateral Agent deals withsimilar property for its own account. Neither the Collateral Agent, any Secured Party nor any of their respective
officers, directors, employees or agents shall be liable for failure to demand, collect or realize upon any of the Collateral or for any delay in
doing so or shall be under any obligation to sell or otherwise dispose of any Collateral upon the request of the Borrower or any other Person or
to take any other action whatsoever with regard to the Collateral or any part thereof. The powers conferred on the Collateral Agent andthe
Secured Parties hereunder aresolely to protect the Collateral Agent'sand the Secured Parties interests in the Collateral and shall not impose
any duty upon the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party to exercise any such powers. The Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties shall be
accountable only for amounts that they actually receive as aresult of the exercise of such powers, and neither they nor any of their officers,
directors, employees or agents shall be responsible to the Borrower for any act or failure to act hereunder, except for their own gross negligence
or willful misconduct.

6.3 Execution of Financing Statements. Pursuant to Section 9-402 of the New Y ork UCC and any other applicable law, the Borrower authorizes
the Collateral Agent tofile or record financing statements and other filing or recording documents or instrumentswith respect to the Collateral
without the signature of the Borrower in such form andin such offices as the Collateral Agent reasonably determines appropriate to perfect the
security interestsof the Collateral Agent under this Agreement. A photographic or other reproduction of this Agreement shall be sufficient as a
financing statement or other filing or recording document or instrument for filing or recording in any jurisdiction.

6.4 Authority of Collateral Agent. The Borrower acknowledgesthat therights and responsibilities of the Collateral Agent under this Agreement
with respect to any action taken by the Collateral Agent or the exercise or non-exercise by the Collateral Agent of any option, request, judgment
or other right or remedy provided for herein or resulting or arising out of this Agreement shall, as between the Collateral Agent and the Secured
Parties, be governed by the Intercreditor Agreement and by such other agreementswith respect thereto as may exist from time to time among
them, but, as between the Collateral Agent and the Borrower, the Collateral Agent shall be conclusively presumed to be acting as agent for the
Secured Partieswith full and valid authority so to act or refrain fromacting, and the Borrower shall be under no obligation, or entitlement, to
make any inquiry respecting such authority.
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SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS

7.1 Amendmentsin Writing. None of the termsor provisions of this Agreement may be waived, amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
except by awritten instrument executed by each of the Borrower and the Collateral Agent, provided that any provision of this Agreement
imposing obligations on the Borrower may be waived by the Collateral Agent in awritteninstrument executed by the Collateral Agent.

7.2 Notices. All notices, requests and demands to or upon the Collateral Agent, the Representatives or the Borrower hereunder to be effective
shall beinwriting (including by telecopy), and, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, shall be deemed to have been duly given or made
when delivered, or three Business Days after being deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, or, in the case of telecopy notice, whenreceived,
addressed (@) in thecase of the Borrower, the Representatives and the Collateral Agent, as follows or (b) in the case of any party, to such other
address assuch party may hereafter notify to the other parties hereto:

The Borrower: Sirius Satellite Radio Inc.
1221 Avenue of the Americas
New Yor k, New York 10020
Attention: M chael Haynes
Tel ecopy: (212) 584-5252
Tel ephone:  (212) 584-5152

with a copy to: Sirius Satellite Radio Inc.
1221 Avenue of the Americas
New Yor k, New York 10020
Attention: General Counsel
Tel ecopy: (212) 584-5353
Tel ephone: (212) 584-5180

The Col | ateral Agent and

the Senior D scount Note

Tr ust ee: The Bank of New York
101 Barclay Street
Fl oor 21 West
New Yor k, New York 10286
Attention: | ]
Tel ecopy: (212) [ ]

The Senior Note Trustee: United States Trust Conpany of New
Yor k
114 West 47th Street
New Yor k, New York 10036
Attention: Patricia Gallagher
Tel ecopy: (212) 852-1626

The Admi nistrative Agent: Lehrman Conmerci al Paper Inc.
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3 World Financia Center
New York, New York 10285
Attention: Michael O'Brien
Telecopy: (212) 526-7691
Telephone: (212) 526-0437

7.3 No Waiver by Course of Conduct; Cumulative Remedies. Neither the Collateral Agent nor any Secured Party shall by any act (except by a
written instrument pursuant to Section 7.1), delay, indulgence, omission or otherwise be deemed to have waived any right or remedy hereunder
or to have acquiesced in any Default or Event of Default. No failureto exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Collateral Agent
or any Secured Party, any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as awaiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of any right, power
or privilege hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. A waiver by the
Collateral Agentor any Secured Party of any right or remedy hereunder on any one occasion shall not be construed as a bar to any right or
remedy which the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party would otherwise have on any future occasion. The rights and remedies herein
provided are cumulative, may be exercised singly or concurrently and are not exclusive of any other rights or remedies provided by law.

7.4 Enforcement Expenses; Indemnification. (a) The Borrower agreesto pay, or reimburse the Collateral Agent for, al its costs and expenses
incurred in enforcing or preserving any rights under this Agreement, including, without limitation, thefees and disbursements of counsel
(including the allocated fees and expenses of in-house counsel) to each Secured Party and of counsel to the Collateral Agent.

(b) The Borrower agrees to pay, and to save the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties harmless from, any and all liabilities with respect to,
or resulting from any delay in paying, any and all stamp, excise, sales or other taxes which may be payable or determined to be payable with
respect to any of the Collateral or in connection with any of thetransactions contemplated by thisAgreement.

(c) The Borrower agreesto pay, and to save the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties harmless from and againgt, any and al liabilities,
obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind whatsoever that may at any time
(including, without limitation, at any time following the payment of the Obligations) be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the
Collateral Agent or the Secured Partiesin any way relating to or arising out of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby or any
action taken or omitted by the Collateral Agent or the Secured Parties under or in connection with any of theforegoing; provided that the
Borrower shall not be liable for the payment of any portion of suchliahilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits,
costs, expenses or disbursements that are found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted fromthe gross negligence or willful
misconduct of the Collateral Agent or such Secured Party, as applicable.
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(d) The agreements in this Section shall survive repayment of the Obligations andall other amounts payable under the Secured Debt
Documents.

7.5 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Borrower and shall inure to the benefit of
the Collateral Agent and the Secured Parties and their successors and assigns; provided that the Borrower may not assign, transfer or delegate
any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Collateral Agent.

7.6 Set-Off. The Borrower hereby irrevocably authorizesthe Collateral Agent at any time and fromtime to time whilean Event of Default shall
have occurred and be continuing, without notice to the Borrower, any such notice being expressly waived by the Borrower, to set-off and
appropriate and apply any and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final), in any currency, and any other credits,
indebtedness or claims, in any currency, in each case whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, matured or unmatured, at any time held
or owing by the Collateral Agentto or for thecredit or theaccount of the Borrower, or any part thereof in such amounts as the Collateral Agent
may elect, against and on account of the obligations and liabilities of the Borrower to the Collateral Agent hereunder and claims of every nature
and description of the Collateral Agent or the Secured Parties against the Borrower, in any currency, whether arising hereunder, under any
Secured Debt Document or otherwise, as the Collateral Agent may elect, whether or not the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party has made
any demand for payment and although such obligations, liabilities and claims may be contingent or unmatured. The Collateral Agent shall
notify the Borrower promptly of any such set-off and the application made by the Collateral Agent of the proceeds thereof, provided that the
faillureto givesuch notice shall not affect the validity of such set-off and application. The rights of the Collateral Agent under thisSection arein
addition to other rights and remedies (including, without limitation, other rights of set-off) which the Collateral Agent may have.

7.7 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by one or moreof the parties to this Agreement on any number of separate counterparts
(including by telecopy), and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument.

7.8 Severability. Any provision of this Agreement which is prohibited or unenforceablein any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition
or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

7.9 Section Headings. The Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and arenot to affect the construction
hereof or be taken into consideration in the interpretation hereof.
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7.10 Integration. This Agreement and the other Secured Debt Documents represent the agreement of the Borrower, the Collateral Agent and the
Secured Partieswith respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof, and there are no promises, undertakings, representations or warranties by
the Collateral Agent or any Secured Party relative to subject matter hereof and thereof not expressly set forth or referred to herein or in the
other Secured Debt Documents.

7.11 GOVERNING LAW. THISAGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

7.12 Submission To Jurisdiction; Waivers. The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally:

(a) submitsfor itself and its property in any legal action or proceeding relatingto this Agreement and the other Loan Documents towhich itisa
party, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect thereof, to the non-exclusive general jurisdiction of the Courts of the State
of New Y ork, the courts of the United States of America for the Southern District of New Y ork, and appellate courts from any thereof;

(b) consents that any such action or proceeding may be brought in such courts and waives any objection that it may now or hereafter haveto the
venue of any such action or proceeding in any such court or that such action or proceeding wasbrought in an inconvenient court and agrees not
to plead or claim the same;

(c) agrees that service of process in any such action or proceeding may be effected by mailing a copy thereof by registered or certified mail (or
any substantially similar form of mail), postage prepaid, to the Borrower at its address set forth in Section 7.2 or at such other address of which
the Collateral Agent shall have been notified pursuant thereto;

(d) agrees that nothing herein shall affect theright to effect service of process in any other manner permitted by law or shall limit theright to
sue in any other jurisdiction; and

(e) waives, to the maximum extent not prohibited by law, any right it may have to claim or recover in any legal action or proceeding referred to
inthis Section any specia, exemplary, punitive or consequential damages.

7.13 Acknowledgments. The Borrower hereby acknowledgesthat:

(a) it hasbeen advised by counsel in the negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other Secured Debt Documents to which
itisaparty;

(b) neither the Collateral Agent nor any Secured Party has any fiduciary relationship with or duty to the Borrower arising out of or in
connection with this Agreement or
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any of the other Secured Debt Documents, and therelationship between the Borrower, on the one hand, and the Collateral Agent and Secured
Parties, on the other hand, in connection herewith or therewith is solely that of debtor and creditor; and

(c) nojoint ventureis created hereby or by the other Secured Debt Documentsor otherwise exists by virtue of the transactions contempl ated
hereby among the Secured Parties or among the Borrower and the Secured Parties.

7.14 Releases. (@) At such time asthe Term Loan Agreement Obligations shall have been paid in full and the Commitments have been
terminated, the Collateral shall be released from the Lienscreated hereby, and thisAgreement and all obligations (other than those expressly
stated to survive such termination) of the Collateral Agent and the Borrower hereunder shall terminate, all without delivery of any instrument or
performance of any act by any party, and al rightsto the Collateral shall revert to the Borrower. At the regquest and sole expense of the
Borrower following any such termination, the Collateral Agent shall deliver to the Borrower any Collateral held by the Collateral Agent
hereunder, and execute and deliver to the Borrower such documents as the Borrower shall reasonably request to evidence such termination.

(b) If any of the Collateral shall be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of by the Borrower in atransaction permitted by the Term Loan
Agreement, thenthe Collateral Agent, at thereguest and sole expense of the Borrower, shall execute and deliver to the Borrower all releases or
other documents reasonably necessary or desirable for therelease of the Liens created hereby on such Collateral.

7.15 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THE BORROWER AND, BY ACCEPTANCE OF THE BENEFITS HEREOF, THE COLLATERAL
AGENT AND EACH SECURED PARTY, HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVESTRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
LEGAL ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHERLOAN DOCUMENT AND FORANY
COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has caused thisCollateral Agreement to be duly executed and delivered asof the date first
above written.

SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.
By:

Name:
Title:
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Schedule 1

FILINGSAND OTHER ACTIONS
REQUIRED TO PERFECT SECURITY INTERESTS

Uniform Commer cial Code Filings

[List each office whereafinancing statement isto be filed)]
Other Actions

[Describe other actions to be taken]
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Schedule 2

JURISDICTION OF ORGANIZATION AND LOCATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Locati on of
Chi ef
Jurisdiction of Organization Executive Ofice
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EXHIBIT B
FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

This Compliance Certificateis delivered to you pursuant to Section 5.2 of the Term Loan Agreement, dated asof June 1, 2000, as amended,
supplemented or modified from time to time (the "Term Loan Agreement"), among Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
"Borrower"), the Lendersfrom time to time parties thereto, Lehman Brothers Inc., as Arranger, Lehman Commercia Paper Inc., as Syndication
Agent, and Lehman Commercia Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent. Terms defined in the Term Loan Agreement and not otherwise defined
herein are used herein with the meanings so defined.

1. | amthe duly elected, qualified and acting [Chief Financial Officer] [Treasurer] of the Borrower.
2. | havereviewed and am familiar with the contentsof this Certificate.

3. | havereviewed the termsof the Term Loan Agreement and the L oan Documents and have made or caused to be made under my supervision,
areview in reasonable detail of the transactions and condition of the Borrower during the accounting period covered by thefinancia statements
attached hereto as Attachment 1 (the "Financial Statements). Such review did not disclose the existence during or at the end of the accounting
period covered by the Financial Statements, and | have no knowledgeof the existence, as of the date of this Certificate, of any condition or
event which constitutes a Default or Event of Default [, except as set forth below].

4. Attached hereto as Attachment 2 are the computati ons showing compliance with the covenants set forthin Section 6.1, 6.2, 6.5, 6.6 and 6.7
of the Term Loan Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | execute this Certificate this day of , 200 .
SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.
By:
Title:
o

— RalELTE 2002. EDGAR Online, Inc.




Attachment 2 Exhibit B

The information described herein isas of , 200_, and pertains to the period from , 200_to
_,200..

[Set forth Covenant Calculations]
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EXHIBIT C
FORM OF CLOSING CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to subsection 4.1(j) of the Term Loan Agreement dated as of June 1, 2000 (the "Term Loan Agreement”; terms defined therein being
used herein as therein defined), among Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), the Lendersfrom time to time
parties thereto, Lehman Brothers Inc., as Arranger, Lehman Commercia Paper Inc., as Syndication Agent, and Lehman Commercia Paper Inc.,
as Administrative Agent, theundersigned [Title] of the Borrower hereby certifies as follows:

1. The representations and warranties of the Borrower set forth in each of the Loan Documents to which it isa party or whichare contained in
any certificate furnished by or on behalf of the Borrower pursuant to any of the Loan Documents to whichit isa party are true and correct in all
materia respects onand as of the date hereof with the same effect as if made on the date hereof, except for representations and warranties
expressly stated to relate to a specific earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties weretrue and correct in all material
respects as of such earlier date.

2. istheduly elected and qualified Secretary of the Borrower and the signature set forth for such officer below is such
officer's true and genuine signature.

3. No Default or Event of Default hasoccurred and is continuing asof the date hereof or after giving effect to the Loans to be made on the date
hereof.

4. The conditions precedent set forth in Section 4.1 of the Term Loan Agreement were satisfied asof the Closing Date except as set forth on
Schedule | hereto.

The undersigned Secretary of the Borrower certifies as follows:

5. There are no liquidation or dissolution proceedings pending or to my knowledge threatened against the Borrower, nor has any other event
occurred adversely affecting or threatening the continued corporate existence of the Borrower.

6. The Borrower isa corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under thelaws of thejurisdiction of its organization.

7. Attached hereto as Annex 1 isatrue and complete copy of resolutions duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Borrower on

; such resolutions have not in any way been amended, modified, revoked or rescinded, have beenin full force and effect
since their adoption to and including the date hereof and are now in full force and effect and are the only corporate proceedings of the Borrower
now in force relating to or affecting the matters referred to therein.

8. Attached hereto as Annex 2 isatrue and complete copy of the Amended and Restated By-Lawsof the Borrower asin effect on the date
hereof.
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9. Attached hereto as Annex 3 isatrue and complete copy of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Borrower asin
effect on the date hereof, and such certificate hasnot been amended, repealed, modified or restated.

10. The following persons are now duly elected and qualified officers of the Borrower holding the offices indicated next to their respective
names below, and such officers have held such officeswith the Borrower at al times since[ ], and the signatures appearing opposite their
respective names below are the true and genuinesignatures of such officers, and each of such officers is duly authorized to execute and deliver
on behalf of theBorrower each of the Loan Documents to whichit isa party and any certificate or other document to be delivered by the
Borrower pursuant to the Loan Documents to which it is a party:

Name Office Signature

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set our namesas of the date set forth below.

Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Dat e: , 200_

Dynre oy LU,

— FaalfiliE 2002. EDGAR Online, Inc.




SCHEDULE |
[Waived Conditions Precedent]

[Describe any conditions precedent waived on Closing Date and terms of any waiver]
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ANNEX 1

[Board Resolutions]

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




ANNEX 2

[By-Laws]
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ANNEX 3

[Certificate of Incorporation]
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EXHIBIT D

FORM OF
ASSIGNMENT AND ACCEPTANCE

Reference is made to the Term Loan Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from timeto time,
the "Term Loan Agreement"), among Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. (the "Borrower"), the Lenders fromtimeto time parties thereto, Lehman
Brothers Inc., as Arranger, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as Syndication Agent, and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as administrative agent
for the Lenders (in such capacity, the"Administrative Agent"). Unless otherwise defined herein, termsdefined in the Term Loan Agreement
and used herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Term Loan Agreement.

The Assignor identified on Schedule | hereto (the "Assignor") and the Assigneeidentified on Schedule | hereto (the "Assignee") agree as
follows:

1. The Assignor hereby irrevocably sells and assigns to the Assignee without recourse to the Assignor, and the Assignee hereby irrevocably
purchases and assumes from the Assignor without recourse to the Assignor, as of the Effective Date (as defined below), theinterest described in
Schedule 1 hereto (the "Assigned Interest”) in andto the Assignor's rights and obligations under the Term Loan Agreement with respect to
those credit facilities contained in the Term Loan Agreement as are set forth on Schedule 1 hereto (individually, an "Assigned Facility";
collectively, the "Assigned Facilities"), in a principal amount for each Assigned Facility asset forth on Schedule 1 hereto.

2. The Assignor (a) makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to any statements, warranties or
representations made in or in connection with the Term Loan Agreement or with respect to the execution, legality, validity, enforceability,
genuineness, sufficiency or valueof the Term Loan Agreement, any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished
pursuant thereto, other than that the Assignor has not created any adverse claim upon the interest being assigned by it hereunder and that such
interest isfree and clear of any such adverse claim; (b) makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to the
financial condition of the Borrower, any of its Subsidiaries or any other obligor or the performance or observance by the Borrower, any of its
Subsidiaries or any other obligor of any of their respective obligations under the Term Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document or any
other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto; and (c) attachesany Notes held by it evidencing the Assigned Facilitiesand
(i) requests that the Administrative Agent, upon request by the Assignee, exchange the attached Notes for a new Note or Notes payableto the
Assignee and (ii) if the Assignor hasretained any interestin the Assigned Facility, requests that the Administrative Agent exchange the attached
Notes for a new Note or Notes payable to the Assignor, in each case in amounts which reflect the assignment being made hereby (and after
giving effect to any other assignmentswhich have become effective on the Effective Date).

3. The Assignee (a) represents and warrants that it islegally authorized to enter into this Assignment and Acceptance; (b) confirms that it has
received a copy of the Term Loan Agreement, together with copies of the financia statements delivered pursuant to Section
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3.1 thereof and such other documents and information as it hasdeemed appropriate to make its own credit analysisand decision to enter into
this Assignment and Acceptance; (C) agrees that it will, independently and without reliance upon the Assignor, the Agentsor any other Lender
and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at thetime, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not
taking action under the Term Loan Agreement, the other Loan Documents or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or
thereto; (d) appoints and authorizes the Agents to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under the
Term Loan Agreement, the other Loan Documents or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto as are delegated to
the Agentsby the termsthereof, together with such powers as are incidental thereto; and (e) agrees that it will be bound by the provisions of the
Term Loan Agreement and will perform in accordance with its termsall the obligations which by the terms of the Term Loan Agreement are
required to be performed by it asa Lender including, if it isorganized under the lawsof ajurisdiction outside the United States, its obligation
pursuant to Section 2.17(d) of the Term Loan Agreement.

4. The effective date of this Assignment and Acceptance shall be the Effective Date of Assignment described in Schedule 1 hereto (the
"Effective Date"). Following the execution of this Assignment and Acceptance, it will be delivered to the Administrative Agent for acceptance
by it and recording by the Administrative Agent pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement, effective as of the Effective Date (which shall not,
unless otherwise agreed to by the Administrative Agent, be earlier than five Business Days after the date of such acceptance and recording by
the Administrative Agent).

5. Upon such acceptance and recording, from and after the Effective Date, the Administrative Agent shall make all paymentsin respect of the
Assigned Interest (including paymentsof principal, interest, feesand other amounts) [to the Assignor for amounts which have accrued to the
Effective Date and to the Assignee for amounts which have accrued subsequent to the Effective Date] [to the Assignee whether such amounts
have accrued prior to the Effective Date or accrue subsequent to the Effective Date. The Assignor and the Assignee shall make all appropriate
adjustments in payments by the Agent for periods prior to the Effective Date or with respect to the making of thisassignment directly between
themselves.]

6. From and after the Effective Date, (a) the Assignee shall be a party to the Term Loan Agreement and, to the extent provided in this
Assignment and Acceptance, have the rights and obligations of a Lender thereunder and under the other Loan Documents and shall be bound by
the provisions thereof and (b) the Assignor shall, to the extent provided in this Assignment and Acceptance, relinquish its rights and be released
from its obligations under the Term Loan Agreement.

7. This Assignment and Acceptance shall be governed by and construed in accordance with thelaws of the State of New Y ork.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Assignment and Acceptance to be executed asof the date first above written by
their respective duly authorized officers on Schedule 1 hereto.
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Schedule 1 to Assignment and Acceptance
Name of Assignor:
Name of Assignee:

Effective Date of Assignment:

Credit Princi pal
Facility Assigned Anount Assi gned Commi t ment Percentage Assigned 1
TR AR EEERRREA SRR

[ Name of Assignee] [ Name of Assignor]
By: By:

Titlee Titlee
Accept ed: Consented To:
LEHVAN COMMERCI AL PAPER | NC, as
Admi ni strative Agent SI RIUS SATELLI TE RADI O I NC. 2
By By

Title Title:

LEHVAN COWMERCI AL PAPER I NC., as
Admi nstrative Agent

By:

1. Calculate the Commitment Percentage that is assigned to at least 15 decimal places and show asa percentage of the aggregate commitments
of al Lenders.

2. The Borrower's consent may not be required. See Section 9.6(c) of the Term Loan AGreement.
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[Date of Closing]

To theLenders party to the

Term Loan Agreement referred

to below and Lehman Commercial
Paper Inc., asAdministrative Agent

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as specia counsel to Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), and Satellite CD Radio, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the "Subsidiary" and, together with the Borrower, the"Principal Parties"), in connection with the Term Loan Agreement
(the "Term Loan Agreement”) dated as of June 1, 2000 among the Borrower, thefinancial institutions parties to the Term Loan Agreement on
the date hereof (the "Lenders"), and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as administrative agent (the "Agent"). Thisopinion is being furnished to
you at the request of the Borrower as provided by Section 4.1(k)(i) of the Term Loan Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise
defined have the respective meanings given thoseterms in the Term Loan Agreement.

In connection with this opinion, we have examined originals, or copies certified or otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of the following
documents, each dated as of the date indicated below (collectively, the"Documents”):
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1. the Term Loan Agreement dated as of June 1, 2000;

2. the Notesdated as of the date hereof; the Pledge Agreement dated as of the date hereof; and the Collateral Agreement dated as of the date
hereof.

In addition, wehave examined those certificates, agreementsand documents that we deemed relevant and necessary as a basisfor our opinion.
We have also relied upon the factual matters contained in the representations and warranties of the Principal Parties made in the Documents and
upon certificates of public officials and the Principa Parties.

In our examination of the documents referred to above, we have assumed, without independent investigation, the genuineness of al signatures,
the legal capacity of al individuals who have executed any of the documents reviewed by us, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us
as originals, the conformity to theoriginals of al documents submitted to us ascertified, photostatic, reproduced or conformed copies of valid
existing agreementsor other documents, the authenticity of thelatter documents and that the statements regarding matters of fact in the
certificates, records, agreements, instruments and documentsthat wehave examined are accurate and complete. We have also assumed, without
independent investigation, the enforceability of the Documents against each party other than the Principal Parties.

In addition, in the case of each Principal Party, we have assumed, without independent investigation, that (i) thePrincipal Party isvalidly
existing and in good standing under thelaws of its jurisdiction of organization, (ii) thePrincipal Party has all necessary corporate power and
authority to execute, deliver and perform itsobligations under each Document to which it isa party, (iii) the execution, delivery and
performance of each Document have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate
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action and do not violateits charter or other organizational documentsor the lawsof its jurisdiction of organization and (iv) each Document has
been duly executed and delivered by it.

Based upon the foregoing, and subject to the assumptions, exceptions and qualifications stated below, we are of the opinion that:

Each Document to which each Principal Party isa party congtitutes thelegal, valid and binding obligation of such Principa Party, enforceable
against such Principal Party in accordance with its terms.

The execution and delivery by each Principal Party of each of the Documents to which it isa party andthe performance by the Principal Party
of its obligationsunder the Documents to which it isa party do not violate or result in abreach of or default under any Covered Law (as defined
below) (including Regulations U or X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States), the Senior Discount Note
Indenture asin effect on the date hereof or the Senior Note Indenture as in effect on the date hereof.

Except for filings which are necessary to perfect the security interests granted under the Documents and any other filings, authorizations or
approvals as are specifically provided for in the Documents, no authorizations or approvals of, and no filingswith, any governmental or
regulatory authority or agency are necessary under any Covered Law for the execution, delivery or performance by any Principal Party of the
Documents to whichit is a party, the borrowings by the Borrower in accordance withthe termsof the Term Loan Agreement or the granting of
any security interests under the Documents.
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None of the Principal Parties isrequired to be registered as an "investment company" withinthe meaning of the Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended.

After giving effect to the making of the Loans on thedate of this letter, and assuming that (i) the Collateral Agent has, at the date of this letter,
possession of the certificates representing the Pledged Shares (as defined in the Pledge Agreement) in the State of New Y ork, together with
related stock powers which have been duly executed in blank by the Borrower, and maintains continuous possession of those Pledged Shares
and stock powers in the State of New Y ork, and (ii) onthe date of this letter, the Lenders, the Agent, the Holders, the New Note Trustee, the
Old Note Trustee (as such termsare defined in the Pledge Agreement) andthe Collateral Agent (the"Secured Parties') do not have notice of
any adverse claimto those Pledged Shares, the Collateral Agent has avalid and perfected security interest, for the benefit of the Secured Parties
to secure the Secured Obligations (as defined in the Pledge Agreement), in al right, title and interest of the Borrower in and to those Pledged
Shares, which security interest haspriority over any other security interest in those Pledged Shares which can be perfected under the Uniform
Commercial Code of the State of New York (the "NY-UCC").

After giving effect to the making of the Loans on thedate of this letter, the Collateral Agreement creates avalid security interestin favor of the
Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Secured Parties, to secure the Obligations (as defined in the Collateral Agreement), inall right, titleand
interest of the Borrower in
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and to the Collateral (as defined in the Collateral Agreement), to the extent that Article 9 of the NY-UCC is applicable (the "Security Interest").
The UCC-1 financing statementslisted on Schedule 1to thisletter (the "New Y ork Financing Statements") are in appropriate form for filing,
and the filing offices listed on Schedule 1 (the "New Y ork Filing Offices") are al of the offices in New Y ork in whichfilings are required to
perfect the Security Interest to the extent that it can be perfected by filing under the NY-UCC. Assumingthe New Y ork Financing Statements
have been duly presented for filingto the New Y ork Filing Offices with the appropriate filing feestendered, or duly accepted for filing by the
appropriate filing officers in each New Y ork Filing Office, then to the extent that a security interest in the Collateral may be perfected by filing
under the NY-UCC, thosefilings have resulted in the perfection of the Security Interest.

Based solely upon our review described in paragraph (d) below with respect to the Uniform Commercial Code in effect in California and
Nevada (the "Additional States"), the Security Interest will be perfected in the Additional States by filing financing statements containing the
information set forth in the New Y ork Financing Statements and in the form required by each Additional State in the offices set forth on
Schedule 2, to the extent that those security interests can be perfected by filing under the Applicable UCCs (as defined in paragraph (d) below).

Thisopinion is subject to the following assumptions, exceptions and qualifications:
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The enforceability of the Documents may be: (i) subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent conveyance or transfer,
moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally; (i) subject to general principles of equity (regardless of whether enforceability
isconsidered in aproceeding at law or in equity); and (iii) subject to the qualification that certain remedia provisions of the Collateral
Agreement and the Pledge Agreement (collectively, the" Security Documents') are or may be unenforceable in whole or in part under the laws
of the State of New Y ork, but the inclusion of such provisions does not make the remedies afforded by the Security Documents inadequate for
the practical redlization of the rights and benefits purported to be provided by the Security Documents except for the economic consequences
resulting from any delay imposed by, or any procedure required by, applicable New Y ork laws, rules, regulationsand court decisions and by
congtitutional requirementsin and of the State of New Y ork.

a) We express no opinion asto: (i) the enforceability of any provisions contained in the Documents that purport to establish (or may be
construed to establish) evidentiary standards; (ii) the enforceability of any provisions contained in the Security Documents that constitute

waiverswhich are prohibited under Section 9-501 of the NY-UCC; (iii) theenforceability of forum selection clausesin thefederal courts; or
(iv) theenforceability of set-off rights granted to participants.

With respect to paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 above, we express no opinion asto: (i) any Principal Party'sright, title or interest in or to any Collateral;
(ii) thelaws of any other State or the perfection and effect of perfection or non-
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perfection of a security interest in the Collateral subject to the lawsof any State other than New Y ork, except asexpresdy provided in
paragraph 7 above; (iii) the perfection of security interestsin fixtures, equipment used in farming operations, farm products, consumer goods,
timber or minerals or thelike, or accounts resulting fromtheir sale; or (iv) the creation, validity, perfection, priority or enforceability of any
security interest soughtto be created in any patents, trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights, deposit accounts, insurance palicies,
real property, motor vehicles or any other items of property to the extent that a security interest in any of them is excluded from the coverage of
Article 9 of the NY-UCC. In addition, (x) except as specifically set forth in paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 above, we express no opinion as to the
perfection of any security interest and (y) except as specifically set forth in paragraph 5 above, we express no opinion asto the priority of any
security interest.

With respect to the opinions set forthin paragraph 7 above, we do not purport to be experts in thelaws of any State other than the State of New
Y ork and have not obtained opinions of counsel admitted in any other State with respect to the perfection of the security interests created by the
Collateral Agreement to the extent perfection is governed by thelaws of any other State. In connection with that opinion, however, we have
examined the provisions of

Section 9-103 and Section 9-401 of the Uniform Commercial Codesin effect inthe Additional States (the "Applicable UCCs"), as those
Sections appear in the Secured Transactions Guide published by Commerce Clearing House, Inc., updated through (the"CCH
Guide"), and our opinion set forth in paragraph 7, to the extent it involves conclusions asto
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perfection of security interestsunder the lawsof the Additional States, is based solely upon that review. We have not reviewed any other
provisions of the Applicable UCCs, nor the constitution nor any other applicable law of the Additional States, whether statutory, regulatory or
case law, in giving thisopinion, nor have we made any independent investigation of the accuracy of the provisions as published in the CCH
Guide.

Wewish to point out that in the case of proceeds (as defined in Article 9 of theNY-UCC), the continuation of perfection of any security interest
inthemislimited to the extent set forth in Section 9-306 of the NY-UCC. We also wish to point out that the Applicable UCCsmay have similar
or other relevant provisions.

Wecdll to your attention thefact that (i) Article 9 of the NY-UCC requires the filing of continuation statements withinthe period of six months
prior to the expiration of eachfive year period from thedate of the original filing of financing statements, as applicable, in order to maintain the
effectiveness of the filingsreferred to in this opinion, and (ii) additional filings may be necessary if any Debtor changesits name, identity or
corporate structure or thejurisdictions in which itsplaces of business, its chief executive office or the Collateral are located. We also wish to
point out that the Applicable UCCsmay have similar or other relevant provisions.

Except as expressy provided in paragraph 7 above, this opinion islimited to thelaws of the State of New Y ork, and the federal lawsof the
United States of America(other than the Federal Communications Act of 1934 and any other Federal
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or state lawsrelating to the regulation of satellites or radio stations) that, in each case, in our experience, are normally applicable to credit
transactions of thetype contemplated by the Term Loan Agreement (collectively, the "Covered Laws"). Thisopinion isrendered only with
respect to the laws, and therules, regulationsand orders under those laws, that arecurrently in effect.

Thisopinion isfurnished by ussolely for your benefit in connection with the transactions referred to in the Term Loan Agreement and may not
be circulated to, or relied upon by, any other Person, except that it may be circulated to any prospective Lender in accordance with the Term
Loan Agreement and may be relied upon by any person who, in the future, becomes a Lender and may be disclosed by you to any regulatory
agency having authority over aLender upon its request.

Very truly yours,

PAUL, WEISS, RIFKIND, WHARTON & GARRISON
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SCHEDULE 1

NEW YORK FINANCING STATEMENTS

Debt or Secured Party Filing Ofice(s)
Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. United States Trust Conpany of New New York Secretary of State County
York, as collateral agent Clerk, New York County, New York
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SCHEDULE 2

ADDITIONAL STATESFINANCING STATEMENTS

Debt or Secured Party Filing Ofice(s)

Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. United States Trust Conpany of New California Secretary of State
York, as collateral agent

Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. United States Trust Conpany of New [Nevada - to cone]
York, as collateral agent
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[Date of Closing]

To theLenders party to the

Credit Agreement referred

to below and Lehman Commercial
Paper Inc., asAdministrative Agent

Ladies and Gentlemen:

| amgenera counsel to Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), and Satellite CD Radio, Inc., aDelaware
corporation (the "Subsidiary" and, together withthe Borrower, the "Principal Parties"), in connection with the Term Loan Agreement dated as
of June 1, 2000 (the "Credit Agreement") among the Borrower, the financial institutions parties to the Credit Agreement on the date hereof (the
"Lenders"), and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., asadministrative agent (the"Agent"). This opinion is being furnished to you at the request of
the Borrower as provided by Section

4.1(k)(ii) of the Credit Agreement. Capitalized termsused and not otherwise defined have the respective meanings given those terms in the
Credit Agreement.

In connection with this opinion, | have examined originals, or copies certified or otherwise identified to my satisfaction, of the following
documents, each dated as of the date indicated below (collectively, the"Documents”):

the Credit Agreement;

the Notes dated as of the date hereof;
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the Pledge Agreement dated as of the date hereof; and
the Collateral Agreement dated as of the date hereof.

In addition, | have examined: (i) the corporate records of the Principal Parties, including copies of the certificate of incorporation and by-laws
of each Principal Party in effect on the date of this letter (collectively, the "Charter Documents') and copies of resolutions of the board of
directors of the Borrower; and (ii) those other certificates, agreements and documentsthat | deemed relevant and necessary as a basis for my
opinion.

Based upon the foregoing, and subject to the assumptions, exceptions and qualifications stated below, | am of the opinion that:
Each of the Principa Parties is duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware.

Each Principal Party hasall necessary corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under each Document to
whichit is a party and has duly executed and delivered each Document to which it is a party. The execution, delivery and performance by each

Principal Party of each Document to whichit is a party have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on thepart of the Principal
Party and do not violate its Charter Documents.

The execution and delivery by each Principal Party of each of the Documents to which it isa party and the performance by the Principal Party
of its obligationsunder the Documents do not (i) violate or result in abreach of or default under the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware, any order, writ, injunction or decree of which | have knowledge of any court or governmental authority
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or agency binding upon thePrincipal Party or to which the Principal Party is subject, or any agreement or instrument filed asan exhibit to the
Borrower's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 (other than the Senior Discount Note Indenture and the Senior
Note Indenture) filed with the SEC to which thePrincipal Party isa party or by which the Principal Party is bound, or (ii) result in the creation
or imposition of any Lien upon any of theassets of the Principal Party under theterms of any agreement or instrument referred to in clause (i)
(except for Liens in favor of the Collateral Agent contemplated by the Documents).

To my knowledge, there are no legal proceedings pending or overtly threatened against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, or to which the
business, assetsor property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries are subject, which arereasonably likely to have a material adverse effect
on the Borrower and its Subsidiaries taken as awhole or on the validity or enforceability of any of the Documents.

All of the shares of Capital Stock described on Schedulel to the Pledge Agreement are owned of record by the Borrower.
| amamember of the bar of the State of New Y ork and do not express any opinion as to matters governed by any law other than thelaws of the
State of New Y ork and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. This opinionis rendered only with respect to the laws, and the

rules, regulations and orders under those laws, that are currently in effect.

Thisopinion isfurnished solely for your benefit in connection withthe transaction referred to in the Credit Agreement and may not be
circulated to, or relied
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upon by, any other Person, except that it may be circulated to any prospective Lender in accordance with the Credit Agreement and may be
relied upon by any person who, in the future, becomes a Lender and may be disclosed by you to any regulatory agency having authority over a
Lender upon its request.

Very truly yours,
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Exhibit E-3
Form of Legal Opinion of Wiley, Rein & Fielding, special FCC counsel to Borrower and its Subsidiaries
[DATE]

To theLenders party to the
Agreement referred to below and
Lehman Commercial Paper Inc.,
as Administrative Agent

c/o Lehman Commercial Paper Inc.
3 World Financial Center

New York, New York 10285

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have served as special counsel to Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. ("the Borrower") solely in connection with Communications Laws (as hereafter
defined). We arefurnishing this opinion to you in connection with the $150,000,000 Term Loan Agreement, dated asof [xxx] (the
"Agreement"), among each of the Lenders fromtime to time parties thereto, Lehman Brothers Inc. (as"Arranger”), Lehman Commercial Paper
Inc. (as"Syndication Agent" and "Administrative Agent") and the Borrower, andthe Collateral Agreement, dated as of [xxx] (the "Collatera
Agreement"), made by the Borrower in favor of The Bank of New York (as"Collateral Agent") and the Second Amended and Restated Pledge
Agreement, dated as of [xxX] (the "Pledge Agreement” and, together with the Collateral Agreement, the" Security Documents,” and,
collectively with the Agreement, the "Loan Documents'), among the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, The Bank of New Y ork, as trustee,
United States Trust Company of New York, as trustee, and the Collateral Agent. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms defined in
the Loan Documents have the same meanings when used herein.

In rendering our opinion, we have examined copies of the Loan Documents provided to us by the Borrower. We have also examined such other
documents and instruments and such questions of law as we have deemed necessary for the purpose of rendering the opinion set forth herein.
Additionally, we have relied upon the representations made by the Borrower in the Loan Documentsand other documents referred to therein or
contemplated thereby, upon the statements of officers and representatives of the Borrower, and upon records routinely available for public
inspection at the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") as of [date]. We have not examined thefiles or made inquiry of any state
authority. We have assumed the
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completeness of the public filesmaintained by the FCC and the accuracy and authenticity of al documents contained therein. With respect to
factual mattersrelevant to our opinions herein, we have relied upon our review of the Loan Documentsand discussion with officers and
representatives of the Borrower of the factual contents of the Agreement relating to the Communications Laws and proceedings thereunder,
without independent check or verification except as expressly stated herein.

Our opinion hereinislimited to matters arising under or involving the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and therules, regulationsand
written policies promulgated thereunder by the FCC, the International Telecommunication Union Constitution and Convention dated 1992, and
the International Radio Regulations promulgated thereunder dated 1992 (collectively, "Communications Laws"). We express no opinion as to
(i) matters arising under or involving any laws other than the Communications Laws, (ii) any jurisdiction other than the United States, or (iii)
any state of the United States.

Based upon the foregoing:

1. To thebest of our knowledge after due inquiry as described in this letter,

(a) theBorrower and its Subsidiaries hold the FCC authorizations, licenses and permits (the "FCC Licenses") set forth in Attachment A hereto,
and (b) except as set forth in Attachment A hereto, these FCC Licenses congtitute the only material FCC authorizations required or necessary
for the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to operate a satellite digital audio radio service.

2. Except for any FCC filings or approvals which may be necessary prior to the exercise of any remedies under the Loan Documentsin the
event of default by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries and except for any informational filingswhich may be required, (a) the execution,
delivery, and performance according to the termsof the Loan Documents, the consummation of the secured |oan transaction contempl ated
therein, the granting of the security interestsunder the Security Documentsand compliance by the Borrower or its Subsidiaries with their
obligations under the Loan Documents do not violate the Communications Laws and (b) no consent, approval, authorization, or order of or
filing with the FCC is necessary for the execution, delivery, and performance of the Loan Documents except for such consents, approvals,
authorizations, or orders or filingsas have already been obtained or made and remain in full force and effect and except to the extent that the
failureto obtain such consents, approvals, authorizations, or orders or to make such filings would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a
material adverse effect on the FCC Licenses.

3. To thebest of our knowledge after due inquiry as described in this letter,
(a) no adverse judgment, decree, or order of the FCC has been issued against the Borrower or
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any of its Subsidiaries and (b) except as set forthin Attachment A and except for proceedings of general applicability to the industry, such as
but not limited to any future proceeding as to the public interest responsibilities of the satellite digital audio radio service operators, no
litigation, proceeding, inquiry or investigation hasbeen commenced against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries before or by the FCC which,
if decided adversely to the Borrower's or such Subsidiary'sinterest, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the FCC
Licenses.

4. Except as set forthin Attachment A and except for any further filings relating to the Borrower's change to a three satellite system, to the best
of our knowledge after due inquiry as described in this letter, each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries has made all materia reports and filings
and paid all fees required to date by the FCC necessary for the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to operate a satellite digital audio radio
service.

5. To thebest of our knowledge after due inquiry as described in this letter, the FCC has not issued to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries
any qualification or rejection of any report or filing, the effect of which,individually or in the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect
onthe FCC Licenses.

Thisopinion is being furnished to you subject to the qualifications and limitationsexpressed herein, and has been prepared solely for the use
and benefit of the Lenders and the Administrative Agent in connection with the Agreement and may be disclosed by you to your auditors, bank
regulators (to the extent required in connection with the Loan Documents) and professional advisors. This opinion may not be quoted in whole
or in part or otherwise referred to, or furnished to any governmental agency or other entity or person, without our written consent, except as
provided in the preceding sentenceand except that this opinion may be circulated to any prospective Lender in accordance with the Agreement.
It may not be used by any other person or entity without our written consent, and may be relied upon by the Lenders, the Administrative Agent
and its counsel only withrespect to the specific matterswhich are
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the subject hereof. The opinion expressed hereinis as of the date hereof, and we assumeno obligation to advise you of any changesin the
foregoing opinion.

Very truly yours,

WILEY, REIN & FIELDING
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Attachment A

The Borrower or its Subsidiaries hold the following Licenses necessary for the operation of a satellite digital audio radio service:

1. Authorization to construct, launch and operate two satellitesin the satellite digital audio radio service (Granted Oct. 10, 1997; subject to
Petition for Review and not administratively final).

2. Special Temporary Authorization to launch three satellitesinto inclined and elliptical (non-geostationary) orbits and to test satellites (Granted
Dec. 20, 1999; Renewed Apr. 12, 2000).

The Borrower or its Subsidiaries have applied for but does not hold thefollowing FCC Licenses necessary for the operation of asatellite digital
audio radio service:

1. Modification of authorization to construct, launch, and operate three geosynchronous inclined orbit satellites (Accepted for Filing Jan. 7,
1999).

2. Licenseto operate a 4.5 meter X and S-band fixed earth station via three geosynchronous inclined orbit satellites. (Accepted for Filing Sept.
15, 1999).

The Borrower or its Subsidiaries have not applied for and do not hold the following FCC License, pending an FCC determination whether or
not such License would be necessary for the operation of the terrestrial component of the satellite digital audio radio service.

1. Licenseto operate terrestrial repeaters.
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EXHIBIT F
FORM OF NOTE

THIS NOTE AND THE OBLIGATIONS REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH
THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THE TERM LOAN AGREEMENT REFERRED TO BELOW. TRANSFERSOF THISNOTE AND
THE OBLIGATIONS REPRESENTED HEREBY MUST BE RECORDED IN THE REGISTER MAINTAINED BY THE
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT PURSUANT TOTHE TERMSOF SUCH TERM LOAN AGREEMENT.

. New York, New
Yor k

200_
FOR VALUE RECEI VED, the undersigned, SIRIUS SATELLI TE RADI O

INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), hereby unconditionally promisesto pay to (the "Lender") or its registered assigns at the
Payment Office specified in the Term Loan Agreement (as hereinafter defined) in lawful money of the United States and in immediately
available funds, the principal amount of

€)] DOLLARS ($ ), or, if less, (b) theunpaid principal amount of the Loans made by the Lender pursuant to
Section 2.1 and Section 2.3 of the Term Loan Agreement. The principal amount shall be paid in the amounts and on the dates specified in
Section 2.4 of the Term Loan Agreement. The Borrower further agrees to pay interest in like money at such office on the unpaid principal
amount hereof from time to time outstanding at therates and on the dates specified in Section 2.12 of the Term Loan Agreement.

The holder of this Note is authorized to endorse on the schedules annexed hereto and made a part hereof or on a continuation thereof which
shall be attached hereto and made a part hereof the date, Type and amount of the L oans and the date and amount of each payment or
prepayment of principal with respect thereto, each conversion of al or a portion thereof to another Type, each continuation of al or a portion
thereof as thesame Type and, in the case of Eurodollar Loans, the length of each Interest Period withrespect thereto. Each such endorsement
shall constitute prima facie evidence of the accuracy of theinformation endorsed. The failureto makeany such endorsement or any error in any
such endorsement shall not affect the obligations of the Borrower in respect of the Loans.

This Note (@) isone of theNotes referred to inthe Term Loan Agreement dated as of June 1, 2000 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from timeto time, the "Term Loan Agreement"), among the Borrower, the Lender, the other banksand financial institutions or entities
from time to time parties thereto, Lehman Commercia Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent, Lehman Brothers Inc., as Arranger, and Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc., as Syndication Agent, (b) is subject to the provisions of the Term Loan Agreement and (c) is subject to optional and
mandatory prepayment in whole or in part as provided in the Term Loan Agreement. This Note is secured as provided in the Loan Documents.
Reference is hereby made to the Loan Documents for a description of the properties and assetsin which a security interest hasbeen granted, the
nature and extent of the security, theterms and conditions upon which the security interestswere granted and the rights of the holder of this
Note in respect thereof.
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Upon the occurrence of any one or more of the Events of Default, al principal and all accrued interest then remaining unpaid on this Note shall
become, or may be declared to be, immediately due and payable, all asprovided inthe Term Loan Agreement.

All parties now and hereafter liable with respect to this Note, whether maker, principal, surety, guarantor, endorser or otherwise, hereby waive
presentment, demand, protest and al other notices of any kind.

Unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined in the Term Loan Agreement and used herein shall have the meanings given to themin the Term
Loan Agreement.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN ORIN THE TERM LOAN AGREEMENT, THIS
NOTE MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REGISTRATION AND OTHER
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 9.6 OF THE TERM LOAN AGREEMENT.

THISNOTE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




Schedule A to Note

LOANS, CONVERSIONS AND REPAYMENTS OF BASE RATE LOANS
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Anount
Converted to

Dat e Anmount of Base Rate Loans Base Rate Loans
Amount of Base Rate Unpai d Princi pal
Anount of Principal of Loans Converted to Bal ance of Base Rate
Base Rate Loans Repaid Eur odol | ar Loans Loans Not ati on Made By
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Schedule B to Note

LOANS, CONTINUATIONS, CONVERSIONSAND REPAYMENTS OF EURODOLLAR LOANS
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Interest Period and Anmount of Principal

Anount of Amount Converted Eurodol | ar Rate with of Eurodol | ar Loans
Dat e Eur odol | ar Loans to Eurodol | ar Loans Respect Thereto Repai d
Amount of Eurodol | ar Unpai d Princi pal
Loans Converted to Bal ance of Not at i on
Base Rate Loans Eur odol | ar Loans Made By
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EXHIBIT G
FORM OF EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

Reference is made to the Term Loan Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from timeto time,
the "Term Loan Agreement"), among Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), the Lendersfrom time to time
parties thereto, Lehman Brothers Inc., as Arranger, Lehman Commercia Paper Inc., as Syndication Agent, and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc.,
as Administrative Agent. Capitalized termsused herein that arenot defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Term Loan
Agreement. (the"Non-U.S. Lender") is providing this certificate pursuant to subsection 2.17(d) of the Term Loan
Agreement. The Non-U.S. Lender hereby represents and warrantsunder penalty of perjury that:

1 The Non-U.S. Lender isthe solerecord and beneficial owner of the Loansor the obligations evidenced by Note(s) in respect of which it is
providing this certificate.

2 The Non-U.S. Lender isnot a"bank™ for purposes of

Section 881(c)(3)(A) of thelnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the"Code"). In this regard, the Non-U.S. Lender further represents
and warrantsthat:

(a) theNon-U.S. Lender is not subject to regulatory or other legal requirements as a bank in any jurisdiction; and

(b) the Non-U.S. Lender has not been treated as a bank for purposes of any tax, securities law or other filing or submission made to any
Governmental Authority, any application made to a rating agency or qualification for any exemption from tax, securities law or other legal
requirements,

3 The Non-U.S. Lender is not a 10-percent shareholder of the Borrower withinthe meaning of Section 881(c)(3)(B) of the Code; and

4 The Non-U.S. Lender is not a controlled foreign corporation related to the Borrower withinthe meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Code.

5 The Non-U.S. Lender will promptly notify the Borrower and the Administrative Agent if any of therepresentations and warranties made
herein are no longer true and correct.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has duly executed this certificate.
[NAME OF NON-U.S. LENDER]

By:

Name:
Title:

Date:
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EXHIBIT H
FORM OF LENDER ADDENDUM

Reference is made to the Term Loan Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from timeto time,
the "Term Loan Agreement"), among Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., the banksand other financial institutions fromtime to time parties thereto as
Lenders, Lehman Brothers Inc., as Arranger, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as Syndication Agent and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc, as
Administrative Agent. Unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined in the Term Loan Agreement and used herein shall have the meanings
givento themin the Term Loan Agreement.

Upon execution and delivery of thisLender Addendum by the parties hereto as provided in Section 9.17 of the Term Loan Agreement, the
undersigned hereby becomes a Lender thereunder having the Tranche A Term Loan Commitments set forth in Schedule 1 hereto, effective as of

the Closing Date.

THIS LENDER ADDENDUM SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND
INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

This Lender Addendum may be executed by one or more of the parties hereto on any number of separate counterparts, and all of said
counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed signature page hereof by
facsimile transmission shall be effective asdelivery of a manually executed counterpart hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lender Addendum to be duly executed and delivered by their proper and duly
authorized officers asof this___ day of June, 2000.

Nameof Lender

By:
Name:
Title:

Accepted and agreed:
SIRIUS SATELLITE RADIO INC.

By:
Name:
Title:
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LEHMAN COMMERCIAL PAPER INC., as
Administrative Agent

By:

Name:
Title:
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Schedule 1

COMMITMENTS AND NOTICE ADDRESS

Name of Lender:

Notice Address:

Attention:

Tel ephone:

Facsim | e:

Tranche A Term Loan Commitment:
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EXHIBIT |
FORM OF BORROWING NOTICE

To: Lehman Commercial Paper Inc.
3 World Financia Center

New York, New York 10285
Attention: Michael O'Brien
Telecopy: (212) 526-7651
Telephone: (212) 526-0437

Reference is hereby made to the Term Loan Agreement, dated asof June 1, 2000 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified fromtime
totime, the"Term Loan Agreement”; unless otherwise defined herein, terms defined therein being used herein as therein defined), among Sirius
Satellite Radio Inc., a Delaware corporation, the Lenders fromtime to time party thereto, Lehman Brothers Inc., as Arranger, Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc., as Syndication Agent, and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., asAdministrative Agent.

Pursuant to Section 2.2 of the Term Loan Agreement, the Borrower hereby gives noticeto the Administrative Agent that Loans of thetype and
amount set forth below be made to it on the date indicated below:

Type of Loan Facility Amount Dat e of
Loan

Base Rate Loan

The Borrower hereby requests that the proceeds of Loans described in this Borrowing Notice be made availableto it asfollows:

[insert transmittal instructions).
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The undersigned hereby certifiesthat:

1 No Default or Event of Default exists either now or after giving effect to the borrowing described herein; and

2 All therepresentations and warranties set forth in the Term Loan Agreement and in the other Loan Documents (other than those
representations and warranties expresdy stated to relateto a particular date, in which case such representations and warrantieswere true and
correct as of such date) are true and correct on and as of the date hereof as if made on and as of the date hereof, and attached hereto are any
changesto the Schedules referred to in connection with such representations and warranties.

3 All conditions contained in the Term Loan Agreement to the making of any Loan requested hereby have been met or satisfied in full.
SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.

By:
Name:

Title:

DATE:
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CONFORMED COPY
WARRANT AGREEMENT
between
SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.
and
UNITED STATES TRUST COMPANY OF NEW YORK
Warrant Agent and Escrow Agent

Dated asof June 1, 2000
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WARRANT AGREEMENT (this "Agreenent") dated as of June 1,
2000,
between SIRIUS SATELLI TE RADI O INC. (the "Conpany"), a Del aware corporation
and
UNI TED STATES TRUST COMPANY OF NEW YORK, as Warrant Agent and Escrow Agent (the
"Warrant Agent").

Pursuant to the terns of a Senior Secured Credit Facility Fee
Letter, dated May 4, 2000 (the "Letter Agreenent"), anong the Conpany and
Lehman
Brothers Inc. ("LBI") and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. ("LCPI") (together with
LBI, "Lehman Brothers"), the Conpany has agreed to issue and deposit into
escrow
warrants (each, a "Warrant," which termshall include warrants issued upon
transfer, division or conbination of, or in substitution for, any Warrant),
entitling the holders thereof to purchase shares of Common Stock, par val ue
$. 001 per share, of the Conpany ("Common Stock"). One half of the Warrants
shal |
be designated First Tranche Warrants (as defined herein) and one half shall be
desi gnated Second Tranche Warrants (as defined herein). First Tranche Warrants
and Second Tranche Warrants shall be identical in all respects other than
exercise price and vesting dates.

The Conpany desires to establish an escrow account with the
Warrant Agent into which the Conpany shall deposit the Warrants and the Warrant
Agent is willing to accept the Warrants in accordance with the terns of this
Agreement and to hold themin escrow until such tine as the Warrants are
rel eased in accordance with Sections 3.07 and 3.08 hereof.

In consideration of the foregoing and for the purpose of
defining the terms and provisions of the Warrants and the respective rights and
oEIigations t her eunder of the Conpany and the VWarrant Agent, the Conpany and
t he
Warrant Agent each hereby agree as follows for the benefit of the other party
and for the equal and ratable benefit of the holders of Warrants (the
"Hol ders"):

ARTI CLE
Certain Definitions

SECTION 1.01. Definitions. (a) As used in this Agreenent, the
following ternms shall have the foll owi ng neani ngs:

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any specified Person, (1)
any other Person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under
direct or indirect common control with such specified Person or (2) any other
Person that owns, directly or indirectly, 25%or nore of such specified
Person's
Voting Stock or any executive officer or director of any such specified Person
or other Person or, with respect to any natural Person, any Person having a
relationship with such Person
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by bl ood, narriage or adoption not nore renpote than first cousin. For the
purposes of this definition, "control", when used with respect to any specified
Person, neans the power to direct the managenent and policies of such Person,
directly or indirectly, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
contract or otherwise; and the terns "controlling" and "controlled" have

nmeani ngs correlative to the foregoing.

"Board of Directors" neans the Board of Directors of the
Conpany or any commttee thereof duly authorized to act on behalf of such Board
of Directors.

"Busi ness Day" means any day which is not a Saturday, a
Sunday, or any other day on which banking institutions in New York Gty are not
required to be open.

"By-laws" means the by-laws of the Conpany, as the same nay
be
amended or restated fromtinme to tinmne.

"Capital Stock" of any Person neans any and all shares,
interests, rights to purchase, warrants, options, participations or other
equival ents of or interests in (however designated) equity of such Person,

i ncluding any Preferred Stock, but excluding any debt securities convertible
into such equity.

"Cashl ess Exercise Ratio" neans a fraction, the nunerator of
which is the excess of the Current Market Value per share of Common Stock on
t he
Exerci se Date over the Exercise Price per share as of the Exercise Date and the
denomi nator of which is the Current Market Value per share of the Common Stock
on the Exercise Date.

"Conmmi ssion" means the Securities and Exchange Commi ssion.

"Commitnment" has the neaning ascribed to such termin the

Term
Loan Agreenent.

"Commitment Period" has the meaning ascribed to such termin
the Term Loan Agreenent.

"Conpany Request" or "Conpany Order" neans a witten request
or order signed in the nane of the Conmpany by its Chairnman, its Chief Executive
Oficer, its President, any Vice President, its Treasurer or an Assistant
Treasurer, and delivered to the Warrant Agent.

"Current Market Value" per share of Conmon Stock of the
Conpany or any other security at any date nmeans (1) if the security is not
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regi stered under the Exchange Act, (a) the value of the security, determned in
good faith by the Board of Directors and certified in a board resol ution, based
on the nost recently conpleted arns-length transacti on between the Conpany and
a

Person other than an Affiliate of the Conpany and the closing of which occurs
on

such date or shall have occurred within the six-nonth period preceding such
date, or (b) if no such transaction shall have occurred on such date or within
such six-nmonth period, the fair market value of the security as determned by a
nationally or regionally recognized i ndependent financial expert (provided

t hat ,

in the case of the calculation of Current Market Value for determ ning the cash
val ue of fractional shares, any such determination within six nonths that is,

in
the good faith judgnent of the Board of Directors, a reasonable determnation
of

value, may be utilized) or (2) if the security is registered under the Exchange
Aﬁt' (a) the average of the daily closing sales prices of the securities for

t he

20 consecutive trading days imredi ately preceding such date, or (b) if the
securities have been registered under the Exchange Act for less than 20
consecutive tradi ng days before such date, then the average of the daily

closin

sal es %rices for all of the trading days before such date for which closing
sales prices are available, in the case of each of (2)(a) and (2)(b), as
certified to the Warrant Agent by the President, any Vice President or the

Chi ef

Fi nancial O ficer of the Conpany. The closing sales price for each such trading
day shall be: (A) in the case of a security listed or admtted to trading on
any

United States national securities exchange or quotation system the closing
sales price, regular way, on such day, or if no sale takes place on such day,
the average of the closing bid and asked prices on such day; (B) in the case of
a security not then listed or admitted to trading on any national securities
exchange or quotation system the last reported sale price on such day, or if
no

sal e takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and asked prices
on

such day, as reported by a reputable quotation source designated by the
Company;

(© in the case of a security not then listed or admitted to trading on any
national securities exchange or quotation system and as to which no such
reported sale price or bid and asked prices are available, the average of the
reported high bid and | ow asked prices on such day, as reported by a reputable
quotati on service, or a newspaper of general circulation in the Borough of
Manhattan, City and State of New York, custonmarily published on each Business
Day, designated by the Conpany, or if there shall be no bid and asked prices on
such day, the average of the high bid and | ow asked prices, as so reported, on
the nmost recent day (not nore than 30 days prior to the date in question) for
whi ch prices have been so reported; and (D) if there are not bid and asked
prices reported during the 30 days prior to the date in question, the Current
Mar ket Val ue shall be deternined as if the securities were not registered under
t he Exchange Act.

"DTC' neans The Depository Trust Conpany, its nom nees and
their respective successors.
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"Exchange Act" nmeans the United States Securities Exchange
Act
of 1934, as anended.

"Exercisability Date" of any Warrant neans the date which is
the applicable Vesting Date.

"Exercise Price" neans the First Tranche Exercise Price in
t he
case of the First Tranche Warrants and the Second Tranche Exercise Price in the
case of the Second Tranche Warrants, in each case subject to adjustnent
pur suant
to the terns of this Agreenent.

"Expiration Date" of any Warrant means the tenth anniversary
of the Vesting Date for such Warrant.

"Ext ended Conmi tnment Termination Date" has the neaning
ascribed to such termin the Term Loan Agreenent.

"Extraordi nary Cash Dividend" neans that portion, if any, of
the aggregate anount of all dividends paid by the Conmpany on the Common Stock
in
any fiscal year that exceeds $15 million

"First Tranche Warrants" neans the five hundred and twenty
five thousand (525,000) Warrants which have an exercise price equal to the
First
Tranche Exercise Price (as defined herein).

"Fundanmental Transaction" neans any transaction or series of
rel ated transacti ons by which the Conpany consolidates with or nmerges with or
into any other Person or sells, assigns, transfers, |eases, conveys or
ot herw se
di sposes of all or substantially all of its properties and assets to another
Pﬁrson or group of affiliated Persons or is a party to a nerger or binding
share
exchange which reclassifies or changes its outstanding Conmon Stock; provided,
however, that the Conpany may effect any of such transactions with a
whol | y- owned subsidiary where after such transaction the Conpany or, in the
event the Conpany is not the surviving entity, the surviving entity has a
consolidated net worth which is no I ess than the consolidated net worth of the
Conpany prior to such transaction

“Initial Comm tnent Termi nation Date" has the nmeaning
ascri bed

to such termin the Term Loan Agreenent.

"l ssue Date" neans the date on which the Warrants are
originally issued.

"Loans" has the nmeaning ascribed to such termin the Term
Loan

Agr eenent .
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"Optional Term Loan Commitnent"” has the neaning ascribed to
such termin the Term Loan Agreenent.

"Person” neans any individual, corporation, limted liability
conpany, partnership, joint venture, association, joint-stock conpany, trust,
uni ncor porated organi zati on or governnent or any agency or politica
subdi vi si on
t her eof .

"Preferred Stock", as applied to the Capital Stock of any
Person, neans Capital Stock of any class or classes (however designated) which
is preferred as to the paynent of dividends or distributions, or as to the
paynment of assets upon any voluntary or involuntary |iquidation or dissolution
of such Person, over shares of Capital Stock of any other class of such Person

"QB" neans a "qualified institutional buyer" as defined in
Rul e 144A.

"Regi stration Statenents" neans the collective reference to
the Warrant Shelf Registration Statement, the Warrant Share Shel f Registration
Statenent and the Resale Shelf Registration Statenent and any anendnents or
suppl enment s t hereto.

"Rul e 144A" neans Rul e 144A under the Securities Act.

"Second Tranche Warrants" neans the five hundred and twenty
five thousand (525,000) Warrants which have an exercise price equal to the
Second Tranche Exercise Price (as defined herein).

"Securities" neans the Warrants and the Warrant Shares.

"Securities Act" neans the United States Securities Act of
1933.

"Term Loan Agreenent" neans the Term Loan Agreenent, dated as
of the date of this Agreenent, anong the Conpany, as borrower, the severa
|l enders fromtine to tine parties thereto, LBlI, as arranger, and LCPl, as
syndi cation agent and admi nistrative agent, as anended, supplenented or
otherwise nodified fromtine to tine

"Transfer Restricted Securities" neans the Warrants and the
Comon St ock which nmay be issued to Hol ders upon exercise of the Warrants,
whet her or not such exercise has been effected. Each such security shall cease
to be a Transfer Restricted Security when (i) it has been disposed of pursuant
to a registration statenment of the Conpany filed with the Conmm ssion and
decl ared effective by the Conm ssion that covers the disposition of such
Transfer Restricted
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Security, (ii) it has been distributed pursuant to Rule 144 pronul gated under
the Securities Act (or any similar provisions under the Securities Act then in
effect) or (iii) it may be resold wthout registration under the Securities

Act ,
whet her pursuant to Rule 144(k) under the Securities Act or otherw se.

"Voting Stock" means, with respect to any Person, any class
or
cl asses of Capital Stock pursuant to which the hol ders thereof have the general
voting power under ordinary circunstances to elect at least a majority of the
board of directors, nanagers or trustees of such Person (irrespective of
whet her
or not, at the tine, stock of any other class or classes shall have, or m ght
have, voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency).

"Warrant Shares" mean the shares of Common Stock for which
t he
Warrants are exercisable or which have been issued upon exercise of Warrants.

(b) Each of the following terns is defined in the Section set
forth opposite such term
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Term Section

Agent Menbers 5.03(a)
Agr eement

Pr eanbl e

Cashl ess Exerci se 3.03
Certificated Warrants 2.03
Common St ock

Recital s

Conpany

Pr eanbl e

Escr ow Account 3. 07
First Tranche Exercise Price 3.01

d obal Warrant 2.03
Hol der s

Recital s

Indemmi fied Parties 6. 07(a)
LBI

Recital s

LCPI

Recital s

Letter Agreenent

Recital s

Lehman Brot hers

Recital s

Managi ng Underwriter 6. 02(a)
Port al 2.05
Regi stration Default 6. 03
Requesti ng Hol ders 6. 02(a)
Resal e Shel f Registration Statenent 6. 01
Second Tranche Exercise Price 3.01

St ock Transfer Agent 3.04
Successor Conpany 4. 04(a)
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Suppl ement al Warrant Agreenent 4.04(a)

Vesting Date 3.08
V\ar r ant

Recitals

Varrant Agent

Preanbl e

Warrant Certificates 2.01
Warrant Regi ster 5.01
Warrant Share Shelf Registration Statenent 6. 01
Warrant Shel f Registration Statenent 6. 01

ARTICLEII
Original Issue of Warrants

SECTION 2.01. Form of Warrant Certificates. Certificates representing the Warrants (the "Warrant Certificates') shall be in registered form
only and substantially in theform attached hereto as Exhibit A. The Warrant Certificates shall be dated the date on which they are
countersigned by the Warrant Agent and shall have such insertions as are appropriate or required or permitted by thisAgreement and may have
such letters, numbers or other marks of identification and such legends and endorsements typed, stamped, printed, lithographed or engraved
thereon as the Company may deem appropriate and as are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, or asmay be required to
comply with any law or with any rule or regulation pursuant thereto, or to conform to usage.

The terms and provisions contained in theform of Warrant Certificate annexed hereto as Exhibit A shall constitute, and are hereby expressly
made, apart of this Agreement.

The definitive Warrant Certificates shall be typed, printed, lithographed or engraved or produced by any combination of these methods, all as
determined by the officer of the Company executing such Warrant Certificates, as evidenced by such officer's execution of such Warrant
Certificates.

Pending the preparation of definitive Warrant Certificates, temporary Warrant Certificates may be issued, which may be printed, lithographed,
typewritten, mimeographed or otherwise produced, and which will be substantially of thetenor of the definitive Warrant Certificates in lieu of
whichthey are issued.

If temporary Warrant Certificates are issued, the Company will cause definitive Warrant Certificates to be prepared without unreasonable delay.
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After the preparation of definitive Warrant Certificates, thetemporary Warrant Certificates shall be exchangeable for definitive Warrant
Certificates upon surrender of thetemporary Warrant Certificatesto the Warrant Agent, without charge to the Holder. Until so exchanged the
temporary Warrant Certificates shall in all respectsbe entitled to the samebenefits under thisAgreement as definitive Warrant Certificates.

SECTION 2.02. Restrictive Legends. (a) Each Global Warrant shall bear thelegend set forth in Exhibit B on the face thereof.

(b) Warrants offered and sold to a QIB in reliance on Rule 144A or to aninstitutional "accredited investor" as defined in Rule 501(a) (1),
(2), (3) or (7) under the Securities Act shall bear the restricted securities legend set forth in Exhibit C on theface thereof.

(c) Uponany sale or transfer of a Transfer Restricted Security (including any Transfer Restricted Security represented by a Global Warrant)
pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act the Warrant Agent shall permit the Holder thereof to exchange such Transfer Restricted Security
for a Certificated Warrant that does not bear the legend set forth in Exhibit C and rescind any restriction on the transfer of such Transfer
Restricted Security.

(d) After atransfer of any Warrants during the period of the effectiveness of and pursuant to a Registration Statement withrespect to such
Warrants, the requirement pertaining to thelegend set forth in Exhibit C on such Warrant will cease to apply.

SECTION 2.03. Execution and Delivery of Warrant Certificates. Warrant Certificates evidencing Warrants to purchase an aggregate of one
million and fifty thousand (1,050,000) shares of Common Stock shall be executed, on thelssue Date, by the Company and delivered to the
Warrant Agent for countersignature, and the Warrant Agent shall thereupon countersign such Warrant Certificates and deposit such Warrant
Certificatesin the Escrow Account in accordance with Section 3.07 of this Agreement. The Warrant Agent is hereby authorized to countersign
and deliver Warrant Certificates as required by this

Section 2.03 or by Section 2.04, 2.06, 3.03 or 5.03 of this Agreement.

The Warrant Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the Company by its Chief Executive Officer, President or any Vice President, either
manually or by facsimile signature printed thereon. The Warrant Certificates shall be countersigned manually by the Warrant Agent and shall
not be valid for any purpose unless so countersigned. In case any officer of the Company whose signature shall have been placed upon any of
the Warrant Certificates shall cease to be such officer of the Company before countersignature by the Warrant Agent
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and issuance and delivery thereof, such Warrant Certificates may, nevertheless, be countersigned by the Warrant Agent and issued and
delivered with the same force and effect as though such person had not ceased to be such officer of the Company.

To theextent provided in Section 5.03(a), each tranche of Warrants shall be issued in theform of one or morepermanent global Warrant
Certificatesin definitive, fully registered form, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A (each a"Global Warrant"), deposited withthe
Warrant Agent (subject to the provisions of Section 5.02 herein), which shall act as custodian for DTC, duly executed by the Company and
countersigned by the Warrant Agent as hereinafter provided. The number of Warrants represented by the Global Warrant may fromtime to time
be increased or decreased by adjustmentsmade on therecords of the Warrant Agent and DTC or its nominee ashereinafter provided. Pursuant
to Section 5.03, interests in the Globa Warrant may be converted into or exchanged for one or moreWarrant Certificatesin definitive, fully
registered form, substantially in theform set forthin Exhibit A ("Certificated Warrants”).

SECTION 2.04. Loss or Mutilation. Upon receipt by the Company and theWarrant Agent of evidence satisfactory to them, in their reasonable
discretion, of the ownership andthe loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of any Warrant Certificate and of indemnity satisfactory to them and
(in the case of mutilation) upon surrender and cancelation thereof, then, in the absence of notice to the Company or the Warrant Agent that the
Warrants represented thereby have been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the Company shall execute and the Warrant Agent shall countersign
and deliver to the registered Holder of the lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant Certificate, in exchange for or in lieu thereof, a new
Warrant Certificate of the same tenor and for a like aggregate number of Warrants. Upon the issuance of any new Warrant Certificate under this
Section 2.04, the Company may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in
relation thereto and other expenses (including the reasonable fees and expenses of the Warrant Agent and of counsel to the Company) in
connection therewith. Every new Warrant Certificate executed and delivered pursuant to thisSection 2.04 in lieu of any lost, stolen or destroyed
Warrant Certificate shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Company, whether or not theallegedly lost, stolen or destroyed Warrant
Certificates shall be at any time enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to the benefits of this Agreement equally and proportionately with
any and all other Warrant Certificates duly executed and delivered hereunder. The provisions of this Section 2.04 are exclusive and shall
preclude (to theextent lawful) all other rights or remedies withrespect to thereplacement of mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Warrant
Certificates.

SECTION 2.05. CUSIP Number; Portal. The Company in issuing the Warrants may use a"CUSIP' number(s), and if so, the Warrant Agent
shall use the CUSIP number(s) in noticesas a convenience to Holders; provided,
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however, that any such notice may state that no representation is made as to the correctness or accuracy of the CUSIP number(s) printed in the
notice or on the Warrants, and that reliance may be placed only on the other identification numbers printed on the Warrants. In addition, the
Company shall arrange for the Warrants to be designated Private Offerings, Resales and Trading through Automatic Linkages ("Portal") Market
securities in accordance with therules and regulations adopted by the National Association of Securities Dealers Inc. relating to trading in the
Portal Market and for the Warrants to be eligible for clearance and settlement through DTC.

SECTION 2.06. Certificated Warrants. If DTC isat any time unwilling or unable to continue asa depository for a Global Warrant and a
successor depository is not appointed by the Company within 90 daysor if so requested by any Holder of at least 10,000 Warrants, the
Company will issue Certificated Warrants in exchange for such Global Warrant (to the extent so requested in the case of arequest by such a
Holder). In connection with the execution and delivery of such Certificated Warrants, the Warrant Agent shall, upon receipt of the order and at
the direction of the Company, reflect on its books and records a decrease in the principal amount of therelevant Global Warrant equal to the
number of such Certificated Warrants and the Company shall execute and the Warrant Agent shall countersign and deliver one or more
Certificated Warrants in an equal aggregate number.

ARTICLE I
ExercisePrice; Exercise of Warrants
SECTION 3.01. Exercise Price. (a) On or after theVesting Date each Warrant shall, whenthe certificate therefor is countersigned by the
Warrant Agent, entitle the Holder thereof, subject to and upon compliance withthe provisions of this Agreement, to purchase one (1) share of

Common Stock, subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

(b) The exercise price (the "First Tranche Exercise Price") of each of the First Tranche Warrants is $44.46 per share of Common Stock, subject
to adjustments pursuant to the termsof this Agreement.

(c) The exercise price (the "Second Tranche Exercise Price") of each of the Second Tranche Warrants shall be determined on and as of the
earliest to occur of:
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(i) the date that is 20 trading days after the date on which the Company takes title to a second satellite pursuant to the Company's agreement
with Space Systems/Loral, Inc. regarding delivery of satellites, in which event the exercise price of such Second Tranche Warrants shall be
equal to 110% of the Current Market Vaue at such date;

(i) the satisfaction of, or the waiver by LCPI of, the conditions precedent to the borrowing by the Company under the Term Loan Agreement
and the makingavailable by LCPI to the Company of the amount to be borrowed under the Term Loan Agreement, whether or not the Company
actually borrows under the Term Loan Agreement, in which event the exercise price of such Second Tranche Warrants shall be equal to 110%
of the Current Market Value at the date of such satisfaction or waiver, as applicable, provided, however, that in the event that LCPI desires to
waive any such conditions precedent to borrowing, LCPI will give the Company 20 days prior written notice before making such waiver and in
no event will LCPI give such notice prior to September 30, 2000; and

(iii) the termination by the Company of thecommitment of LCPI under the Term Loan Agreement on or prior to the Initial Commitment
Termination Date or Extended Commitment Termination Date, as the case may be, in which event the exercise price of such Second Tranche
Warrants shall be equal to 110% of the Current Market Value at the date of such termination;

provided, however, that if such exercise price, as determined in accordance with clause (i), (ii), or (iii) (the "Formula Price"), islessthan 110%
of theclosing salesprice of the Common Stock of the Company on the date hereof (the "144A Price"), then Lehman shall be able to select at its
option the Second Tranche Exercise Price to be either the Formula Price or the 144A Price. In theevent that Lehman selects the Formula Price
and it islessthan the 144A Price, thenthe Second Tranche Warrants will be evidenced only by Certificated Warrants. The Second Tranche
Exercise Price will be subject to adjustment pursuant to theterms of this Agreement.

(d) Within ten Business Daysof the date on whichthe Second Tranche Exercise Price becomes determinable, the Company shall deliver to the
Warrant Agent a certificate of afirmof independent accountants selected by the Board of Directors (who may be the regular accountants
employed by the Company) setting forth, in reasonable detail, the calculation of the Second Tranche Exercise Price (including a description of
the basis on whichthe Current Market
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Vaue of the Common Stock was determined, if such determination was required). The Company shall promptly causethe Warrant Agent, at the
Company'sexpense, to mail a copy of such certificate to each Holder in accordance with Section 9.03. The Warrant Agent shall be under no
duty or responsibility withrespect to any such certificate, except to exhibit the same from time to time, to any Holder desiring an inspection
thereof during reasonable business hours. Without limiting the foregoing, the Warrant Agent shall not at any time be under any duty or
responsibility to any Holder to review such certificate, determine whether such certificate complies with thisSection 3.01, determine whether
the Second Tranche Exercise Price can be determined or determine such price.

SECTION 3.02. Exercise; Restrictions on Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, includingwithout limitation Section
3.09, theWarrants shall be exercisable on any Business Day on or after the Exercisability Date. Any Warrants not exercised by 5:00 p.m., New
York City time, on the relevant Expiration Date shall expire and al rights of the Holders of such Warrants shall terminate.

SECTION 3.03. Method of Exercise. Warrants may be exercised only in wholeupon (i) surrender to the Warrant Agent at the office of the
Warrant Agent of therelated Warrant Certificate, together with the form of election attached thereto to purchase Common Stock on the reverse
thereof duly filled in and signed by the Holder thereof and (ii) payment to the Warrant Agent, for the account of the Company, of the Exercise
Price for each Warrant Share or other security issuable upon the exercise of such Warrants then exercised. Such payment shall be made (i) in
cash or by certified or official bank check payableto the order of the Company or by wire transfer of funds to an account designated by the
Company for such purpose or (ii) to the extent the Company would be permitted to repurchase the requisite number of its Warrant Shares at
such time under applicable law, without the payment of cash, by reducing the number of shares of Common Stock obtainable upon the exercise
of aWarrant and payment of the Exercise Price in cash so as to yield a number of shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of such Warrant
equal to the product of

(a) thenumber of shares of Common Stock issuable as of the Exercise Date upon the exercise of such Warrant (if payment of the Exercise Price
were being made in cash) and (b) the Cashless Exercise Ratio or (iii) any combination of (i) or

(i) above; provided, that in the case of payment made pursuant to (ii) or

(iii), the Company shall calculate the number of shares of Common Stock to which such Holder is entitled, and shall inform the Warrant Agent
inwriting of such number. Anexercise of a Warrant in accordance with clause (ii) of theimmediately preceding sentence isherein caled a
"Cashless Exercise". Upon surrender of a Warrant Certificate representing more than one Warrant in connection with the holder's option to
elect a Cashless Exercise, the number of shares of Common Stock deliverable upon a Cashless Exercise shall be equal to the number of shares
of Common Stock issuable upon
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the exercise of Warrants that the holder specifies are to be exercised pursuant to a Cashless Exercise multiplied by the Cashless Exercise Ratio.
All provisions of this Agreement shall be applicable with respect to a surrender of a Warrant Certificate pursuant to aCashless Exercisefor less
than thefull number of Warrants represented thereby. In the event that a Warrant Certificate is surrendered for exercise of less thandl the
Warrants represented by such Warrant Certificate at any time prior to the Expiration Date, a new Warrant Certificate representing the remaining
Warrants shall be issued. The Warrant Agent shall countersign and deliver the required new Warrant Certificates, andthe Company, at the
Warrant Agent'srequest, shall supply the Warrant Agent with Warrant Certificates duly signed on behalf of the Company for such purpose.
Upon therequest of the Company, the Warrant Agent shall provide to the Company information with respect to (x) the total number of

Warrants which have been exercised as of the date of suchrequest and (y) the total amount of funds which have been received pursuant to the
exercise of such Warrants asof the date of such request.

SECTION 3.04. Issuance of Warrant Shares. Upon the surrender of Warrant Certificates and payment of the per share Exercise Price, asset
forth in Section 3.03, the Company shall issue and causethe Warrant Agent or, if appointed, atransfer agent for the Common Stock (" Stock
Transfer Agent") to countersign and deliver to or upon the written order of the Holder and in such name or names as the Holder may designate,
a certificate or certificates for the number of full Warrant Shares so purchased upon the exercise of such Warrants or other securities or
property to whichit isentitled, registered or otherwise, to the Person or Persons entitled to receive the same (including any depositary
institution so designated by a Holder), together with cash as provided in

Section 3.05 in respect of any fractional Warrant Shares otherwise issuable upon such exercise (but only to the extent permitted by applicable
law and theinstruments and agreements governing theindebtedness of the Company and itssubsidiaries at suchtime and if the payment of cash
isnot so permitted, the Company shall issue Warrant Shares in an amount equal to the next highest whole number). Such certificate or
certificates shall be deemed to have been issued and any Person so designated to be named therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of
record of such Warrant Shares as of the date of the surrender of such Warrant Certificates and payment of the per share Exercise Price, as
aforesaid; provided, however, that if, at such date, the transfer books for the Warrant Shares shall be closed, the certificates for the Warrant
Shares in respect of which such Warrants are then exercised shall be issuable as of thedate on which such books shall next be opened and until
such date the Company shall be under no duty to deliver any certificates for such Warrant Shares; provided further, however, that such transfer
books, unless otherwise required by law, shall not be closed at any one time for a period longer than 20 calendar days and shall not be closed
without 10 days prior written notice to the Holders.
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SECTION 3.05. Fractional Warrant Shares. The Company shall not be required to issue fractional Warrant Shares on the exercise of Warrants.
If more than oneWarrant shall be exercised in full at the sametime by the same Holder, the number of full Warrant Shares which shall be
issuable upon such exercise shall be computed on the basis of the aggregate number of Warrant Shares which may be purchasable pursuant
thereto. If any fraction of a Warrant Share would, except for the provisions of this Section 3.05, be issuable upon the exercise of any Warrant,
the Company shall pay anamount in cash equal to the Current Market Value per Warrant Share, as determined on theday immediately
preceding the date the Warrant is presented for exercise, multiplied by such fraction, computed to the nearest whole cent (but only to the extent
permitted by applicable law and the instrumentsand agreements governing the indebtedness of the Company and its subsidiaries at such time
and if the payment of cash is not so permitted, the Company shall issue Warrant Shares in an amount equal to the next highest whole number).

SECTION 3.06. Reservation of Warrant Shares. The Company shall at all times keep reserved out of its authorized shares of Common Stock a
number of shares of Common Stock sufficient to provide for the exercise of al outstanding Warrants. The registrar for the Common Stock shall
at al times until the Expiration Date reserve such number of authorized shares as shall be required for such purpose. The Company will keep a
copy of thisAgreement on file with the Stock Transfer Agent. The Company will supply such Stock Transfer Agent with duly executed stock
certificates for such purpose and will itself provide or otherwise make available any cash which may be payable as provided in

Section 3.05. The Company will furnishto such Stock Transfer Agent a copy of all notices of adjustments (and certificates related thereto)
transmitted to each Holder.

Before taking any action which would cause an adjustment pursuant to Article IV to reduce the Exercise Price below the then par value (if any)
of the Common Stock, the Company shall take any and all corporate action which may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary in order that
the Company may validly and legally issuefully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock at the Exercise Price as so adjusted.

The Company covenantsthat all Warrant Shares which may be issued upon exercise of Warrants shall, upon issue, be fully paid, nonassessable,
free of preemptive rights, free fromall taxes and free fromall liens, charges and security interests withrespect to theissue thereof.

SECTION 3.07. Escrow of Warrants. (a) The Company shall promptly deliver to the Warrant Agent for deposit into an escrow account, which
the Warrant Agent shall establish specifically for the purpose of complying with
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this Agreement (the "Escrow Account"), the First Tranche Warrants and the Second Tranche Warrants.

(b) The Warrant Agent shall release Warrants fromthe Escrow Account only on or after theVesting Date for such Warrants asprovided in
Section 3.08 of this Agreement. Warrants so released fromthe Escrow Account shall be delivered by the Warrant Agent in accordance with a
written direction from LBI to the Warrant Agent. For purposes of determining the Vesting Dates of the Warrants, the Warrant Agent may rely
on certificates signed by an officer of LBI, who isamanaging director or officer senior thereto, and by an officer of the Company eligibleto
sign a Company Request.

SECTION 3.08. Vesting of Warrants. (a) The Warrants shall be released from escrow and absolute ownership thereof shall be vested in LCPI
as follows (the date on which any Warrants are released isreferred to as the "Vesting Date" for such Warrants):

(i) 100% of the Warrants held in escrow (other than the First Tranche Warrants if previously released pursuant to clause (ii) below) shall be so
released and shall vest on the earliest to occur of (A) the satisfaction of, or thewaiver by LCPI of, the conditions precedent to the borrowing by
the Company under the Term Loan Agreement and the making available by LCPI of the L oans, whether or not the Company actually borrows
under the Term Loan Agreement, provided, however, that in theevent that LCPI desires to waive any such conditions precedent to borrowing,
LCPI shal give the Company 20 days prior written notice before making suchwaiver andin no event shall LCPI give such notice prior to
September 30, 2000, and (B) if the Company elects to extend the Commitment in accordance with the termsof the Term Loan Agreement, the
termination by the Company of the Commitment under the Term Loan Agreement on or prior to the Extended Commitment Termination Date;

(i) if the Company elects to extend the end of the Commitment Period to the Extended Commitment Termination Date in accordance with the
termsof the Term Loan Agreement, the First Tranche Warrants shall be so released and shall vest on the date of the Company'selection to so
extend the Commitment; and

(iii) if the Company terminates the Commitment on or prior to the Initial Commitment Termination Date, all of the First Tranche Warrants and
33-1/3% of the Second Tranche Warrants shall be so released and shall vest on the date of such termination and the remaining 66-2/3% of the
Second Tranche Warrants which do not vest pursuant to this clause (iii) shall be promptly released to the Company for cancellation.
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SECTION 3.09. Compliance with Law. (a) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall a Holder be entitled to
exercise aWarrant unless (i) aregistration statement filed under the Securities Act in respect of the issuance of the Warrant Shares upon
exercise isthen effective or (ii) (A) the Company has received the opinion of counsel to the Holder (inform and substance satisfactory to the
Company) addressed to the Company and the Warrant Agent to the effect that theissuance of the shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of
such Warrants is exempt from the registration regquirements of the Securities Act and (B) thereis sufficient information for the Company to
conclude that such securities are qualified for sale or exempt from qualification under the applicable securities lawsof the statesor other
jurisdictions in which such Holder resides. The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Warrant Shares issued upon
exercise to be qualified for sale or exempt from qualification under the applicable securities laws of the states or other jurisdictions in which
such Holder resides; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to qualify generally to do businessin any jurisdiction whereit
would not otherwise be required to qualify but for this Section 3.09 or to take any action which would subject it to general service of process or
to taxation in any suchjurisdiction where it is not then so subject.

(b) If any shares of Common Stock required to be reserved for purposes of the exercise of Warrants require, under any other Federa or state
law or applicable governing rule or regulation of any national securities exchange, registration with or approval of any governmental authority,
or listing on any such national securities exchange or quotation system before such shares may be issued upon exercise, the Company will cause
such sharesto be duly registered or approved by such governmental authority or listed on the relevant national securities exchange or quotation
system, as the case may be.

ARTICLE IV
Antidilution Provisions

SECTION 4.01. Changes in Common Stock. In theevent that at any time and from time to time the Company shall (i) pay a dividend or makea
distribution on Common Stock in shares of Common Stock or other shares of Capital Stock, (ii) subdivide its outstanding shares of Common
Stock into alarger number of shares of Common Stock, (iii) combineits outstanding shares of Common Stock into asmaller number of shares
of Common Stock or (iv) increase or decrease the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding by reclassification of its Common Stock,
then the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of each Warrant immediately after the happening of such event shall be
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adjusted so that, after giving effect to such adjustment, the Holder of each Warrant shall be entitled to receive the number of shares of Common
Stock upon exercise of such Warrant that such Holder would have owned or have been entitled to receive had such Warrants been exercised
immediately prior to the happening of the events described above (or, in the case of adividend or distribution of Common Stock, immediately
prior to the record date there for), and the Exercise Price shall be adjusted to the price (calculated to the nearest 100th of one cent) determined
by multiplying the Exercise Price immediately prior to such event by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of Warrant Shares
purchasable with one Warrant immediately prior to such event and the denominator of which shall be the number of Warrant Shares
purchasable with one Warrant after the adjustment referred to above. An adjustment made pursuant to this Section 4.01 shall become effective
immediately after the distribution date, retroactive to therecord date therefor in the case of a dividend or distribution in shares of Common
Stock or other shares of Capital Stock, and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination
or reclassification.

SECTION 4.02. Cash Dividends and Other Distributions. In theevent that at any time and from time to time the Company shall distribute to all
holders of Common Stock (i) any dividend or other distribution (including any dividend or distribution made in connection with a consolidation
or merger in which the Company is the continuing corporation) of cash, evidencesof its indebtedness, shares of itsCapital Stock or any other
properties or securities or (ii) any options, warrants or other rightsto subscribe for or purchase any of theforegoing (other than, in the case of
clause (i) and (ii) above, (A) any dividend or distribution described in Section 4.01, (B) any rights, options, warrants or securities describedin
Section 4.03 or Section 4.04 and (C) any cash dividends or other cash distributions from current or retained earnings other than Extraordinary
Cash Dividends), thenthe number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of each Warrant immediately prior to such record
date for any such dividend or distribution shall be increased to a number determined by multiplying the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon the exercise of such Warrant immediately prior to such record date for any such dividend or distribution by afraction, the
numerator of which shall be the Current Market Value per share of Common Stock on the record date for such dividend or distribution, and the
denominator of whichshall be such Current Market Value per share of Common Stock less the sum of (x) theamount of cash, if any, distributed
per share of Common Stock and (y) the then fair value (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors, whose determination shall be
evidenced by a board resolution filed with the Warrant Agent, a copy of which will be sent to Holders upon request) of the portion, if any, of
the distribution applicable to one share of Common Stock consisting of evidences of indebtedness, shares of stock, securities, other property,
warrants, options or subscription or purchase rights; and, subject to Section 4.08, the Exercise Price shall be adjusted to a number
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determined by dividing the Exercise Price immediately prior to suchrecord date by the above fraction. Such adjustments shall be made, and
shall only become effective, whenever any dividend or distribution is made; provided, however, that the Company is not required to make an
adjustment pursuant to this Section

4,02 if at the time of suchdistribution the Company makes the samedistribution to Holders of Warrants as it makes to holders of Common
Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Common Stock for which such Warrants are exercisable (whether or not currently exercisable).
No adjustment shall be made pursuant to this Section 4.02 which shall have the effect of decreasing the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of each Warrant or increasing the Exercise Price.

SECTION 4.03. Issuance of Common Stock or Rightsor Options. In theevent that at any time or fromtime to time the Company shall issue
shares of Common Stock or rights, options or warrantsor securities convertible or exchangeable into Common Stock, other thanin abona fide
underwritten public offering by or through a syndicate managed by an investment bank of national or regional standing, for a consideration per
share (which, in the case of convertible, exchangeable or exercisable securities shall be the amount received by the Company in consideration
for the sale and issuance of such convertible, exchangeable or exercisable securities plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional
consideration payable to the Company upon conversion, exchange or exercise thereof (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors,
whose determination shall be evidenced by a board resolution filed with the Warrant Agent, a copy of whichwill be sent to Holders upon
request), provided, however, that the value attributable to such convertible, exchangeable or exercisable securities when issued as part of a unit
with debt or other obligations of the Company shall be excluded to theextent it isaresult of calculating the discount applicable to such debt or
other obligations of the Company under generally accepted accounting principles) that islessthan thelesser of (a) the Current Market Value
per share of Common Stock as of the date the Company agrees in writing to issue such sharesand (b) theclosing price per share of Common
Stock as of thedate the Company agrees in writing to issue such shares, or entitling the holders of rights, options, warrantsor securities not
originally issued in connection withan underwritten public offering to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common Stock at a pricethat is equal
to the lesser of (a) the Current Market Vaue per share of Common Stock asof the date the Company agrees in writingto issue such rights,
options, warrants or securities and (b) the closing price per share of Common Stock as of the date the Company agrees in writing to issue such
shares, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of each Warrant immediately after such date shall be determined by
multiplying the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of each Warrant immediately prior to such date by a fraction, the
numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately preceding the date
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the Company agreesin writingto issue such shares or rights, options, warrantsor securities plus the number of additional shares of Common
Stock to be issued in such transaction or offered for subscription or purchase or into which such securities are convertible or exchangeable, and
the denominator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately preceding the date the Company agreesin
writing to issue such shares or rights, options, warrants or securities plus thetotal number of shares of Common Stock whichthe aggregate
consideration expected to be received by the Company upon the issuance of such shares or theexercise, conversion or exchange of suchrights,
options, warrants or securities (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors, whosedetermination shall be evidenced by aboard
resolution filed with the Warrant Agent, a copy of which will be sent to Holders upon request) would purchase at the lesser of (@) the Current
Market Value per share of Common Stock asof the date the Company agrees in writingto issue such shares or rights, options, warrantsor
securities and (b) the closing price per share of Common Stock asof the date the Company agrees in writingto issue such shares, and, subject to
Section 4.08, in the event of any such adjustment, the Exercise Price shall be adjusted to a number determined by dividing the Exercise Price
immediately prior to such date by the aforementioned fraction; provided, however, that no adjustment to the number of Warrant Shares issuable
upon the exercise of the Warrants or to the Exercise Price shall be made asaresult of

(i) the vesting or exercise of the Warrants, (ii) the exercise, conversion or exchange of any right, option, warrant or security, the issuance of
which has previoudly required an adjustment to the number of Warrant Shares issuable upon the exercise of the Warrants or to the Exercise
Price pursuant to this Section

4.03, (iii) the exercise, conversion or exchange of any right, option, warrant or security outstanding on the Issue Date (to the extent such
exercise, conversion or exchange is made in accordance with the termsof such right, option, warrant or security as in effect on thelssue Date)
or (iv) theissuance, exercise, conversion or exchange of options to acquire Common Stock by officers, directors or employees of the Company;
provided, however, that the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock subject to this clause (iv) shall not exceed 4% of the number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding on afully diluted basis on thelssue Date. Any adjustment required by this Section 4.03 shall be made,
and shall only become effective, whenever such shares or such rights, options, warrantsor securities are issued. No adjustment shall be made
pursuant to this Section 4.03 which shall have the effect of decreasing the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of each
Warrant or increasing the Exercise Price.

SECTION 4.04. Fundamental Transaction; Liquidation. (a) Except as provided in Section 4.04(b), in the event of aFundamental Transaction,
each Holder shall have theright to receive upon exercise of the Warrants the kind and amount of shares of Capital Stock or other securities or
property which such Holder would have been entitled to receive upon completion of or as a result of
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such Fundamental Transaction had such Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such event or to therelevant record date for any such
entitlement (regardless of whether the Warrants are then exercisable and without giving effect to the Cashless Exercise Option), assuming (to
the extent applicable) that such Holder (i) wasnot a constituent Person or an affiliate to a constituent Person to such Fundamental Transaction,
(i) made no election with respect thereto, and (iii) was treated alike with the plurality of non-electing Holders. Unless paragraph (b) is
applicable to a Fundamental Transaction, the Company shall provide that the surviving or acquiring Person (the " Successor Company™) in such
Fundamental Transaction will enter into an agreement (a " Supplemental Warrant Agreement”) with the Warrant Agent confirming the Holders
rights pursuant to this Section 4.04(a) and providing for adjustments, which shall be asnearly equivalent asmay be practicable to the
adjustments provided for inthis Article IV. Any such Supplemental Warrant Agreement shall further provide that such Successor Company will
succeed to and be substituted for every right and obligation of the Company in respect of thisAgreement and the Warrants. The provisions of
this Section 4.04(a) shall similarly apply to successive Fundamental Transactionsinvolving any Successor Company.

(b) In the event of (i) a Fundamental Transaction with another Person (other than a subsidiary of the Company) where consideration to the
holders of Common Stock in exchange for their sharesis payable solely in cash or (ii) the dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the
Company, the Holders of the Warrants shall be entitled to receive, upon surrender of their Warrant Certificates, such cash distributions onan
equal basis withthe holders of Common Stock or other securities issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, as if the Warrants had been exercised
immediately prior to such event, less the Exercise Price.

In theevent of any Fundamental Transaction described in this

Section 4.04(b), the Successor Company and, in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the Company, the Company, shall
deposit promptly with the Warrant Agent thefunds, if any, necessary to pay the Holders of the Warrants the amounts to which they are entitled
as described above. After such fundsand the surrendered Warrant Certificates are received, the Warrant Agent shall make payment to the
Holders by delivering a check in such amount as is appropriate (or, in the case of consideration other than cash, such other consideration asis
appropriate) to such Person or Persons as it may be directed in writing by the Holders surrendering such Warrant Certificates.

SECTION 4.05. Other Events. If any event occurs as to which the foregoing provisions of this Article IV arenot strictly applicable or, if strictly
applicable, would not, in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors, fairly and adequately protect the purchase rights of the Warrantsin
accordance withthe essential intent and principlesof such provisions, then theBoard of Directors shall
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make such adjustments in the application of such provisions, in accordance withsuch essential intent and principles, as shall be reasonably
necessary, in thegood faith opinion of the Board of Directors, to protect such purchase rights as aforesaid, but in no event shall any such
adjustment have the effect of increasing the Exercise Price or decreasing the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the
Warrants.

SECTION 4.06. Superseding Adjustment. Upon the expiration of any rights, options, warrantsor conversion or exchange privileges which
resulted in adjustments pursuant to this Article IV, if any thereof shall not have been exercised, the number of Warrant Shares issuable upon the
exercise of each Warrant shall be readjusted pursuant to the applicable section of thisArticle IV asif (i) theonly shares of Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of such rights, options, warrants, conversion or exchangeprivileges were the shares of Common Stock, if any, actually
issued upon theexercise of such rights, options, warrantsor conversion or exchange privileges and (ii) shares of Common Stock actually issued,
if any, wereissuable for the consideration actually received by the Company upon such exercise plus the aggregate consideration, if any,
actualy received by the Company for the issuance, sale or grant of all such rights, options, warrantsor conversion or exchange privileges
whether or not exercised and the Exercise Price shall be readjusted inversely; provided, however, that no such readjustment (except by reason
of an intervening adjustment under Section 4.01) shall have the effect of decreasing the number of Warrant Shares issuable upon the exercise of
each Warrant, or increasing the Exercise Price, by an amount in excess of the amount of the adjustment initially made in respect of theissuance,
sale or grant of suchrights, options, warrants or conversion or exchangeprivileges.

SECTION 4.07. Minimum Adjustment. The adjustments required by the preceding sections of this Article 1V shall be made whenever and as
often as any specified event requiring an adjustment shall occur, except that no adjustment of the Exercise Price or the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants that would otherwise be required shall be made unless and until such adjustment either
by itself or withother adjustments not previously made increases or decreases by at least 1% the Exercise Price or the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants immediately prior to the making of such adjustment. Any adjustment representing a
change of less than such minimum amount shall be carried forward and made as soon as such adjustment, together with other adjustments
required by this Article IV and not previously made, would result in a minimum adjustment. For the purpose of any adjustment, any specified
event shall be deemed to have occurred at the close of business on the date of its occurrence. In computing adjustments under this Article 1V,
fractiona interestsin Common Stock shall be taken into account to the nearest one-hundredth of a share.
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SECTION 4.08. Notice of Adjustment. Whenever the Exercise Price or the number of shares of Common Stock and other property, if any,
issuable upon exercise of the Warrants is adjusted, as herein provided, the Company shall deliver to the Warrant Agent anagreed upon
procedures letter of afirm of independent accountants selected by the Board of Directors (who may be the regular accountants employed by the
Company) setting forth, in reasonable detail, the event requiring the adjustment and the method by which such adjustment was cal culated
(including a description of thebasis on which (i) thethen fair value of any evidences of indebtedness, other securities or property or warrants,
options or other subscription or purchase rights was determined and

(ii) the Current Market Vaue of the Common Stock was determined, if either of such determinationswere required), and specifyingthe
Exercise Price and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants after giving effect to such adjustment. The
Company shall promptly cause the Warrant Agent, at the Company'sexpense, to mail a copy of such certificate to each Holder in accordance
with Section 9.03. The Warrant Agent shall be under no duty or responsibility with respect to any such certificate, except to exhibit the same
from time to time, to any Holder desiring an inspection thereof during reasonable business hours. Without limiting theforegoing, the Warrant
Agent shall not at any time be under any duty or responsibility to any Holder to determine whether any facts exist which may require any
adjustment of the Exercise Price or the number of shares of Common Stock or other stock or property issuable on exercise of the Warrants, or
with respect to the nature or extent of any such adjustment when made, or with respect to the method employed in making such adjustment or
the validity or value of any shares of Common Stock, evidences of indebtedness, warrants, options, or other securities or property.

SECTION 4.09. Notice of Certain Transactions. In theevent that the Company shall propose to (a) pay any dividend payable in securities of
any class to the holders of its Common Stock or to makeany other non-cash dividend or distribu tionto the holders of its Common Stock, (b)
offer theholders of its Common Stock rightsto subscribe for or to purchase any securities convertible into shares of Common Stock or shares
of stock of any class or any other securities, rights or options, (c) issue any (i) shares of Common Stock, (ii) rights, options or warrantsentitling
the holders thereof to subscribe for shares of Common Stock or (iii) securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for Common
Stock (in the case of (i), (ii) and

(i), if such event would result in an adjustment hereunder), (d) effect any capital reorganization, reclassification, consolidation or merger, (€)
effect the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the Company or (f) make atender offer or exchange offer with
respect to the Common Stock, the Company shall within five daysafter deciding to take any such action or make any such offer send to the
Warrant Agent a notice and the Warrant Agent shall within five daysafter receipt thereof, at the expense of the Company, sendthe Holders a
notice (in such form asshall be furnished to
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the Warrant Agent by the Company) of such proposed action or offer. Such notice shall be mailed by theWarrant Agent to the Holders at their
addresses as they appear in the Certificate Register, which shall specify the record date for the purposes of such dividend, distribution or rights,
or the date suchissuance or event isto take place and the date of participation therein by the holders of Common Stock, if any such dateisto be
fixed, and shall briefly indicate the effect, if any, of such action on the Common Stock and on the number and kind of any other shares of stock
and on other property, if any, and the number of shares of Common Stock and other property, if any, issuable upon exercise of each Warrant
and the Exercise Price after giving effect to any adjustment pursuant to Article IV whichwill be required as a result of such action. Such notice
shall be given aspromptly as possible and (x) in the case of any action covered by clause (@) or (b) above, atleast 10 daysprior to therecord
date for determining holders of the Common Stock for purposes of such action or (y) in the case of any other such action, at least 20 daysprior
to the date of the taking of such proposed action or the date of participation therein by the holders of Common Stock, whichever shall be the
earlier.

SECTION 4.10. Adjustment to Warrant Certificate. The form of Warrant Certificate need not be changed because of any adjustment made
pursuant to this Article 1V, and Warrant Certificates issued after such adjustment may state the same Exercise Price and the samenumber of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants as are stated in the Warrant Certificates initially issued pursuant to this
Agreement. The Company, however, may at any timein its sole discretion makeany change in theform of Warrant Certificate that it may deem
appropriate to giveeffect to such adjustments and that does not affect the substance of the Warrant Certificate, and any Warrant Certificate
thereafter issued or countersigned, whether in exchange or substitution for an outstanding Warrant Certificate or otherwise, may be in the form
as so changed.
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ARTICLE V
Warrant Transfer Books; RestrictionsOn Transfer

SECTION 5.01. Transfer and Exchange. The Warrant Certificates shall be issued in registered form only. The Company shall cause to be kept
at theoffice of theWarrant Agent aregister (the "Warrant Register") in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the
Company shall provide for the registration of Warrant Certificates and transfers or exchangesof Warrant Certificates as herein provided. All
Warrant Certificates issued upon any registration of transfer or exchange of Warrant Certificates shall be thevalid obligations of the Company,
evidencing the sameobligations, and entitled to the same benefit under this Agreement, asthe Warrant Certificates surrendered for such
registration of transfer or exchange.

A Holder may transfer its Warrants only by complying with the terms of this Agreement. No such transfer shall be effected until, and such
transferee shall succeed to the rights of a Holder only upon, final acceptance and registration of the transfer by the Warrant Agent in the
Warrant Register. Prior to the registration of any transfer of Warrants by a Holder asprovided herein, the Company, the Warrant Agent, any
agent of the Company or the Warrant Agent may treat the Person in whose name the Warrants are registered asthe owner thereof for all
purposes and as the Person entitled to exercise the rights represented thereby, any noticeto the contrary notwithstanding. Furthermore, any
Holder of a Global Warrant, shall, by acceptance of such Global Warrant, agree that transfers of beneficia interestsin such Global Warrant
may be effected only through a book-entry system maintained by the Holder of such Global Warrant (or its agent), and that ownership of a
beneficial interest in the Warrants represented thereby shall be required to be reflected in abook entry. When Warrants are presented to the
Warrant Agent with arequest to register thetransfer or to exchange them for an equal amount of Warrants of other authorized denominations,
the Warrant Agent shall register the transfer or make the exchange in accordance with the provisions hereof.
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SECTION 5.02. Registration; Registration of Transfer and Exchange. When Certificated Warrants are presented to the Warrant Agent witha
request from the Holder of such Warrants to register the transfer or to exchange them for an equal number of Warrants of other authorized
denominations, the Warrant Agent shall register the transfer or make the exchange as requested; provided, however, that (i) every Warrant
Certificate presented and surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed and be accompanied by a written
instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company, duly executed by the Holder thereof or the Holder's attorneys duly authorized in
writing and (ii) if being transferred or exchanged pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act or pursuant to clause
(A), (B) or (C) below, shall be accompanied by the following additional information and documents, as applicable:

(A\) if such Certificated Warrants are being delivered to the Warrant Agent by a Holder for registrationin the name of such Holder, without
transfer, a certification from such Holder to that effect (in theform set forth on the reverse of the Warrant); or

(B) if such Certificated Warrants arebeing transferred to the Company, a certification to that effect (in theform set forth on thereverse of the
Warrant); or

(C) if such Certificated Warrants are being transferred (w) pursuant to an exemption from registrationin accordance with Rule 144A under the
Securities Act, if available; or (x) pursuant to an exemption from registration in accordance with Rule 144 under the SecuritiesAct; or (y) in
reliance on another exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act: (1) acertification to that effect (inthe form set forth on
the reverse of the Warrant) and (2) if the Company or Warrant Agent so requests, an opinion of counsel (with customary assumptions and
exceptions) or other evidence reasonably satisfactory to them asto the compliance withthe restrictions set forth in the legend set forth in
Exhibit C, including without limitation in the case of atransfer pursuant to clause (y) in the case of a Transfer Restricted Security, a
representation letter from thetransferee in the form of Exhibit D hereto.

To permit registrations of transfersand exchanges, the Company shall make available to the Warrant Agent a sufficient number of executed
Warrant Certificates to effect such registrations of transfers and exchanges. No service charge shall be made to the Holder for any registration
of transfer or
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exchange of Warrants, but the Company may require from thetransferring or exchanging Holder payment of a sumsufficient to cover any
transfer tax or similar governmental charge payable upon exchanges pursuant to Section 2.04 and exchanges in respect of portions of Warrants
not exercised and the Company may deduct such taxes from any payment of money to be made and such transfer or exchange shall not be
consummated (if such taxes are not deducted in full) unless or until the Holder shall have paid to the Company the amount of such tax or shall
have established to the satisfaction of the Company and the Warrant Agent that such tax has been paid.

SECTION 5.03. Initial Certificated Warrants, Book-Entry Provisions for the Globa Warrants. (a) Initially the Warrants shall be in the form of
Certificated Warrants registered in thename of Lehman Brothers or an affiliate thereof and the Company shall deliver such Certificated
Warrants to the Warrant Agent and direct the Warrant Agent to deposit them into the Escrow Account and to hold them in accordance with
Section 3.07. To theextent the First Tranche Warrants are eligible for resale under Rule 144A, within ten Business Days after thedate hereof,
the Company will exchange such Certificated Warrants evidencing the First Tranche Warrants for the Global Warrants evidencing the First
Tranche Warrants which initially shall (i) be registered in the name of DTC or thenominee of DTC, (ii) be delivered to the Warrant Agent, as
custodian for DTC, for deposit into the Escrow Account, and (iii) bear legends as set forth in Section 2.02 hereof; provided, however, that prior
to the time of such exchange any transfers of interests in such Certificated Warrants shall be made in accordance with Section 5.02. Members
of, or participants in, DTC ("Agent Members") shall have no rights under this Agreement with respect to the Global Warrant held on their
behalf by DTC or the Warrant Agent asits custodian, and DTC may be treated by the Company, the Warrant Agent and any agent of the
Company or theWarrant Agent as the absolute owner of such Global Warrant for all purposes whatsoever. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein shall prevent the Company, the Warrant Agent or any agent of the Company or the Warrant Agent from giving effect to any
written certification, proxy or other authorization furnished by DTC or impair, asbetween DTC and its Agent Members, the operation of
customary practices governing the exercise of therights of a beneficial owner of any Warrants. Within ten Business Daysafter the date on
which the Second Tranche Exercise Price is determined, to the extent the Second Tranche Warrants are then ligible for resale under Rule
144A, the Company will exchange the Certificated Warrants evidencing the Second Tranche Warrants for Global Warrants evidencing the
Second Tranche Warrants which initially shall (i) be registered in the nameof DTC or thenominee of DTC, (ii) be delivered to the Warrant
Agent, as custodian for DTC, for deposit into the Escrow Account, and (iii) bear legends as set forth in Section 2.02 hereof; provided, however,
that prior to thetime of such exchange any transfers of interestsin such Certificated Warrants shall be made in accordance with Section 5.02.
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(b) Transfers of the Global Warrant shall be limited to transfers of such Global Warrant in whole, but not in part, to DTC, its successors or their
respective nominees. Interests of beneficial ownersin the Global Warrant may be transferred in accordance with the rulesand procedures of
DTC. Certificated Warrants shall be transferred to all beneficial ownersin exchange for their beneficial interestsin the Global Warrant if (i)
DTC notifiesthe Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue asdepositary for the Global Warrant or (ii) DTC ceases to be a"Clearing
Agency" registered under the Exchange Act and a successor depositary is not appointed by the Company within 90 days.

(¢) Inconnection withthe transfer of theentire Global Warrant to beneficial owners pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section 5.03, the Global
Warrant shall be deemed to be surrendered to the Warrant Agent for cancellation, and the Company shall execute, and the Warrant Agent shall
countersign and deliver, to each beneficial owner identified by DTC in exchange for its beneficial interestin the Global Warrant, Certificated
Warrants of authorized denominationsrepresenting, in the aggregate, the number of Warrants theretofore represented by the Global Warrant.

(d) Any Certificated Warrant delivered in exchange for an interest in a Global Warrant pursuant to paragraph (b) or (c) of this Section
5.03 shall bear applicable legends as set forth in Section 2.02 hereof.

(e) Theregistered holder of the Global Warrant may grant proxies and otherwise authorize any Person, including Agent Members and persons
that may hold interests through Agent Members, to take any action which a Holder is entitled to take under thisAgreement or the Warrants.

(f) Beneficia owners of interestsin the Global Warrant may receive Certificated Warrants (which shall bear the legend set forth in Exhibit C if
required by Section 2.02) in accordance with the procedures of DTC. Inconnection with the execution, countersigning and delivery of such
Certificated Warrants, the Warrant Agent shall reflect on its books and records a decrease in the number of Warrants represented by the Global
Warrant equal to thenumber of Warrants represented by such Certificated Warrants and the Company shall execute andthe Warrant Agent
shall countersign and deliver one or more Certificated Warrants representing, in the aggregate, the number of Warrants theretofore represented
by the Global Warrant.

SECTION 5.04. Surrender of Warrant Certificates. Any Warrant Certificate surrendered for registration of transfer, exchange or exercise of the
Warrants represented thereby shall, if surrendered to the Company, be delivered to the Warrant Agent, and all Warrant Certificates surrendered
or so delivered to
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the Warrant Agent shall be promptly canceled by the Warrant Agent and shall not be reissued by the Company and, except as provided in this
ArticleV incase of an exchange or in Article |11 hereof in case of the exercise of lessthan all the Warrants represented thereby or in case of a
mutilated Warrant Certificate, no Warrant Certificate shall be issued hereunder in lieu thereof. The Warrant Agent shall deliver to the Company
from time to time or otherwise dispose of such canceled Warrant Certificates as the Company may direct in writing.

ARTICLE VI
Registration Rights; Indemnification

SECTION 6.01. Effectiveness of Registration Statements. (@) Subject to Section 6.02, the Company shall causeto be filed pursuant to Rule 415
(or any successor provision) of the SecuritiesAct (1) a shelf registration statement relating to the offer and sale of the Warrants by the Holders
from time to time in accordance with the methods of distribution elected by such holders and set forthin such registration statement (the
"Warrant Shelf Registration Statement”), and shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Warrant Shelf Registration Statement to be
declared effective under the Securities Act on or before June 1, 2001, (2) to the extent available under then existing rules, regulations and
interpretations of the Commission, a shelf registration statement covering the issuance of Warrant Shares upon the exercise of the Warrants that
are not at suchtime Transfer Restricted Securities, (the "Warrant Share Shelf Registration Statement”) and shall use its reasonable best efforts
to cause the Warrant Share Shelf Registration Statement to be declared effective on or before June 1, 2001 and (3) a shelf registration statement
covering the resale of Warrant Shares acquired upon exercise of a Warrant that is at the time of exercise a Transfer Restricted Security, or if the
Warrant Share Shelf Registration Statement is not available under then existing rules, regulations and interpretations of the Commission,
covering the resale of Warrant Shares acquired upon exercise of any Warrant by the Holder thereof (the "Resale Shelf Registration Statement™),
and shall use its reasonable best effortsto cause the Resale Shelf Registration Statement to be effective on or before June 1, 2001. The
Registration Statements may be filed with the Commission on a single registration statement, subject to the rules, regulations and interpretations
of the Commission.

(b) Subject to Section 6.02, the Company shall useits reasonable best efforts to cause (x) the Warrant Shelf Registration Statement to remain
effective until theearliest of (i) such time as all Warrants have been sold thereunder and (ii) until all Warrants can be sold without restriction

under the SecuritiesAct, (y) theWarrant Share Shelf Registration Statement to remain effective until the earliest of (i) suchtime as al Warrants
have been exercised and

28

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




(ii) the Expiration Date of the Second Tranche Warrants and (z) the Resale Shelf Registration Statement to remain effective until the earliest of
(i) such time asall Warrant Shares covered thereby have been sold thereunder and (ii) until all Warrant Shares covered thereby can be sold
without restriction under the Securities Act.

(¢) Inconnection witheither theWarrant Shelf Registration Statement, the Warrant Share Shelf Registration Statement and the Resale Shelf
Registration Statement,

(i) the Company shall furnishto the Warrant Agent, prior to thefiling with the Commission, a copy of any registration statement, and each
amendment thereof and each amendment or supplement, if any, to the prospectus included therein and shall use itsreasonable best efforts to
reflect in each such document, whenfiled with the Commission, such comments as the Warrant Agent may reasonably propose,

(ii) the Company shall furnish to each Holder and holders of Warrant Shares whose securities are covered by such registration statement,
without charge, at least onecopy of any registration statement and any post- effective amendment thereto, including financial statements and
schedules, and, if theHolder so requests in writing, all exhibits thereto (including those incorporated by reference),

(iii) the Company shall, for solong as any suchregistration statement is effective, deliver to each Holder and holders of Warrant Shares whose
securities are covered by such registration statement, without charge, as many copies of the prospectus (including each preliminary prospectus)
included in such registration statement and any amendment or supplement thereto as such Holder and holders of Warrant Shares whose
securities are covered by such registration statement may reasonably request, and the Company consents to the proper useof the prospectus
therein and any amendment or supplement thereto by each of the selling holders in connection with the offering and sale of the Warrants or the
Warrant Shares, as the case may be, covered by such prospectus and any amendment or supplement thereto,

(iv) the Company shall useits commercialy reasonable best effortsto avoid the issuance of or, if issued, obtain the withdrawal of any order
enjoining or suspending the effectiveness of any registration statement or prospectus or thelifting of any suspension or qualification (or
exemption from qualification) of any securities covered thereby,
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(v) the Company may require each Holder of Warrants to be sold pursuant to the Warrant Shelf Registration Statement or Holder of Warrant
Shares to be sold pursuant to the Resale Shelf Registration Statement to furnish to the Company such information regarding the Holder and the
distribution of such Warrants or Warrant Shares as the Company may fromtime to time reasonably request for inclusion in such registration
statement,

(vi) subject to Section 6.02, use its reasonable best efforts to keep such Registration Statements continuously effective for the periods specified
in Section 6.01 and if reasonably requested by any selling holders of Warrants or Warrant Shares, promptly includein any Registration
Statement or prospectus pursuant to a supplement or post-effective amendment, if necessary, such information concerning the selling holders as
they may reasonably request, including, without limitation, information with respect to the plan of distribution,

(vii) the Company shall enter into such agreements (including underwriting agreements) asare appropriate, customary and reasonably necessary
in connection with any such registration statement and provide a CUSIP number for such securities and

(viii) the Company shall (A) make available to the underwriters, if any, all material customary for reasonable due diligence examinationsin
connection with such registration statements, (B) make such representations and warranties to the Holders of Warrants, the holders of Warrant
Shares and the underwriters, if any, as are customary and reasonable in connection with such registration statements, (C) obtain such opinions
of counsel to the Company addressed to and reasonably satisfactory to the Holders and the holders of Warrant Shares as are customary and
reasonable in connection withsuch registration statementsand (D) obtain such "comfort” |etters and updates thereof from the independent
certified public accountants of the Company addressed to the Holders and the holdersof Warrant Shares asare customary and reasonable in
connection with such registration statements. The Company will furnish the Warrant Agent and the holders of the Warrant Shares with current
prospectuses meeting the requirements of the Securities Act in sufficient quantity to permit the Warrant Agent to deliver, at the Company's
expense, a prospectus to each holder of a Warrant upon the exercise thereof and to the holders of Warrant Shares for their resale needs. The
Company shall promptly inform the Warrant Agent of any change in the status of the effectiveness or availability of any registration statement.
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SECTION 6.02. Suspension. During any consecutive 365-day period, the Company shall be entitled to suspend the availability of each of the
Warrant Shelf Registration Statement and the Warrant Share Shelf Registration Statement for up to three 30 consecutive-day periods (except
for the 45 consecutive-day period immediately prior to the Expiration Date of the First Tranche Warrants or the Second Tranche Warrants) but
for no more than an aggregate of 60 days during any 365-day period if the Company'sBoard of Directors determines in the exercise of its good
faith judgment that it is necessary to amend such registration statement or amend or supplement any prospectus or prospectus supplement
thereunder in order that each such document not include any untrue statement of fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein
or necessary to make the statementstherein not misleading in light of the circumstances under whichthey were made.

SECTION 6.03. Liquidated Damages. If (i) the Warrant Shelf Registration Statement has not been declared effective, (ii) the Warrant Share
Shelf Registration Statement, if available under applicable rules, regulations and interpretations of the Commission, has not been declared
effective or (iii) the Resale Shelf Registration Statement, if required, has not been declared effective, in each case before June 1, 2001 (each a
"Registration Default"), then the Company will pay liquidated damages in cash to each Holder of Warrants in an amount equal to $0.0082 per
week per Warrant (or Warrant Share, as the case may be) while such Registration Default continuesfor thefirst 90-day period immediately
following such Registration Default; provided, however, that no Holder shall be entitled to liquidated damagesin respect of any Warrant or
Warrant Sharethat is not at suchtime a Transfer Restricted Security. The amount of liquidated damages payable in cash by the Company to
each Holder of Warrants will increase by an amount equal to $0.0055 per week per Warrant (or Warrant Share, as the case may be) with respect
to each subsequent 90-day period during which such Registration Default continues and until such Registration Default is cured, upto a
maximum of $0.0192 per week per Warrant (or Warrant Share, asthe case may be). All liquidated damages accrued, but not paid, on or prior to
any June 1 or December 1, will be paid to Holders of Warrants (or Warrant Share, as the case may be) on such date at their registered
addresses.

SECTION 6.04. Piggy-Back Registration Rights. (a) If after the first anniversary of the date hereof the Company proposes to sell Common
Stock pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act (other than aregistration statement on Form S-4or S-8, a
registration statement filed in connection with an offer of securities solely to existing security holders or auniversal shelf registration statement
on Form S-3) or the Company files a registration statement to cover the sale of Common Stock for the account of any of its security holders
(other than Prime 66 Partners, L.P., Apollo Management, L.P., The Blackstone Group, L.P., or any successors thereto as holders of the
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Company'ssecurities) then the Company shall in each case give written notice, not later than the date of the initial filing of such registration
statement related to such offering, of such proposed offering to the Holders of Warrants and Warrant Shares and such notice shall offer to such
Holders the opportunity to include in such offering such number of Warrants as such Holders may request. From and after the Exercisability
Date, Holders of Warrants may also request to include Warrant Shares in such offering. Within 20 daysafter receipt of such notice, the Holders
of Warrants and Warrant Shares (the "Requesting Holders") shall, subject to the following sentence, have theright by notifying the Company in
writing to reguire the Company to include in theregistration statement relating to such offering such number of Warrants or Warrant Shares as
such Holder may request. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time the managing underwriter or underwriters of such offering (the
"Managing Underwriter") shall advise the Company inwriting (and shall deliver a copy thereof to the Warrant Agent) that, in its opinion, the
total number or type of Warrants, Warrant Shares or other securities, asthe case may be, proposed to be sold exceeds the maximum number or
type of Warrants, Warrant Shares or other securities, asthe case may be, which the Managing Underwriter believes may be sold without
materialy adversely affecting the price, timing or distribution of the offering, then the Company will be required to include, for each
Requesting Holder, only that pro rata number (based on the number of Warrants or Warrant Shares requested to be included therein by all
Requesting Holders) of Warrants or Warrant Shares which, together with any other shares of stock to be included in such registration statement,
the Managing Underwriter believes may be sold without causing such adverse effect. The Company will have the right to postpone or withdraw
any registration statement relating to any Offering described under this Section 6.04 prior to the effective date without obligation to any
Requesting Holder.

(b) If the Company has complied with al the obligations under

Section 6.04(a), to the extent applicable, all Holders of Warrants and Warrant Shares upon request of the Managing Underwriter will be
required not to sell or otherwise dispose of (except to the extent so included in the offering referred to in Section 6.04(a)) any Warrants or
Warrant Shares owned by them for a period not to exceed 30 days prior to, or 90 days after, the consummation of any underwritten public
offering.

(c) The provisions of Sections 6.01(b), 6.01(c) and 6.02 shall apply to any registration statement governed by Section 6.04(a).
SECTION 6.05. Blue Sky. The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to register or qualify the Warrants and the Warrant Shares for
issuance (if available under applicable interpretations of the Commission) and resale under all applicable securities laws, blue sky laws or

similar lawsof al jurisdictions in the United Statesin which any holder of Warrants may or may be
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deemed to purchase Warrants or Warrant Shares upon the exercise of Warrants and shall use its best efforts to maintain such registration or
qualification for solong asit is required to cause the Warrant Shelf Registration Statement (in the case of the Warrants), the Warrant Share
Shelf Registration Statement and the Resale Shelf Registration Statement (in the case of the Warrant Shares) and any registration statement
governed by Section 6.04 to remain effective under the Securities Act pursuant to Section 6.01 or until the offering pursuant to

Section 6.04 is complete; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to qualify generally to do businessin any jurisdiction
where it would not otherwise be required to qualify but for this Section 6.05 or to take any action which would subject it to genera service of
process or to taxation in any such jurisdiction whereit is not then so subject.

SECTION 6.06. Accuracy of Disclosure. The Company represents and warrants to each Holder and agrees for the benefit of each Holder that
(i) each of the Registration Statements and any registration statement governed by

Section 6.04 and any amendment thereto will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary to make the statements contained therein not misleading and (ii) each of the prospectus furnished to such Holder for
delivery in connection with the sale of Warrants and the prospectus delivered to such Holder upon the exercise of Warrants or for the resale of
the Warrants and the Warrant Shares and the documentsincorporated by reference therein will not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to makethe statements contained therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they weremade, not misleading; provided, however, that the Company shall have no liability under clauses (i) or (ii)
of this Section 6.06 with respect to any such untrue statement or omission made in any registration statement or prospectus in reliance upon and
in conformity withinformation furnished to the Company by or on behalf of the Holders and holders of Warrant Shares specifically for
inclusion therein.

SECTION 6.07. Indemnification. (&) In connection with any registration statement governed by this Article VI, the Company agreesto
indemnify and hold harmless each Holder of the Securities, and each person, if any, who controls such Holder within the meaning of the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act (each Holder and such controlling persons being referred to collectively as the "Indemnified Parties') from
and against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities, joint or several, or any actions in respect thereof (including, but not limited to, any losses,
claims, damages, liabilitiesor actions relatingto purchases and sales of the Securities) to which each Indemnified Party may become subject
under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or actions arise out of or are based
upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of amaterial fact contained in a
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registration statement governed by this Article VI or prospectus or in any amendment or supplement thereto or in any preliminary prospectus
relating to aregistration statement governed by this Article VI, or arise out of, or are based upon, the omission or aleged omission to state
therein amaterial fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statementstherein, in the light of the circumstancesunder which
they were made, not misleading, and shall reimburse, as incurred, the Indemnified Partiesfor any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by
them in connection with investigating or defending any suchloss, claim, damage, liability or action in respect thereof; provided, however, that
(i) the Company shall not be ligble in any such case to the extent that suchloss, claim, damage or liability arises out of or is based upon any
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission made in a registration statement governed by this Article VI or
prospectus or in any amendment or supplement thereto or in any preliminary prospectus relating to aregistration statement governed by this
Article VI inreliance upon and in conformity with written information pertaining to such Holder and furnished to the Company by or on behalf
of such Holder specifically for inclusion therein and (ii) withrespect to any untrue statement or omission or alleged untrue statement or
omission madein any preliminary prospectus relating to a Registration Statement, theindemnity agreement contained in this subsection (a) shall
not inure to the benefit of any Holder from whom the person asserting any suchlosses, claims, damages or liabilities purchased the Securities
concerned, to the extent that a prospectus relating to such Securities wasrequired to be delivered by such Holder under the Securities Act in
connection with such purchase and any such loss, claim, damage or liability of such Holder results from thefact that there was not sent or given
to such person, at or prior to thewritten confirmation of the sale of such Securities to such person, a copy of thefina prospectus (as amended or
supplemented if the Company shall have furnished any such amendments or supplements to such Holder) if the Company had previously
furnished copies thereof to such Holder in atimely manner; provided further, however, that this indemnity agreement will be in addition to any
liability which the Company may otherwise have to such Indemnified Party. The Company shall alsoindemnify underwriters, selling brokers,
dealer-managers and similar securities industry professionals participating in the distribution (in each case as described in theregistration
statement governed by this Article V1), their officers and directors and each person who controls such persons withinthe meaning of the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act to the same extent as provided above with respect to the indemnification of the Holders of the Securities if
requested by such Holders.

(b) In connection with any registration statement governed by this Article VI, each Holder of the Securities, severally and not jointly, will
indemnify and hold harmless the Company and each person, if any, who controlsthe Company withinthe meaning of the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act (and thedirectors, officers, agentsand employees of the Company and any such controlling
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person) from and against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities or any actions in respect thereof (including, but not limited to, any losses,
claims, damages, liabilities or actions relatingto purchases and sales of the Securities) to whichthe Company or any such controlling person (or
the directors, officers, agents and employees of the Company and any such controlling person) may become subject under the Securities Act,
the Exchange Act or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or actionsarise out of or arebased upon any untrue statement
or aleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in aregistration statement governed by this Article VI or prospectus or in any
amendment or supplement thereto or in any preliminary prospectus relating to a registration statement governed by thisArticle VI, or arise out
of or arebased upon the omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statementstherein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, but in each case only to the extent that the
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission was made in reliance upon and in conformity with written
information pertaining to such Holder and furnished to the Company by or on behalf of such Holder specifically for inclusion therein; and,
subject to the limitation set forth immediately preceding thisclause, shall reimburse, as incurred, the Company for any legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred by the Company or any such controlling person (or thedirectors, officers, agents and employeesof the Company and any
such controlling person) in connection withinvestigating or defending any loss, claim, damage, liability or action in respect thereof. This
indemnity agreement will be in addition to any liability which such Holder may otherwise have to the Company or any of itscontrolling
persons.

(c) Promptly after receipt by an indemnified party under this

Section 6.07 of notice of the commencement of any action or proceeding (including a governmental investigation), such indemnified party will,
if aclaim in respect thereof isto be made against theindemnifying party under this

Section 6.07, notify the indemnifying party of the commencement thereof; but the failureto so notify theindemnifying party will not, in any
event, relieve the indemnifying party from any obligations to any indemnified party (except to theextent that it is prejudiced or harmed in any
material respect by failure to give such prompt notice). In caseany such action is brought against any indemnified party, and it notifiesthe
indemnifying party of the commencement thereof, the indemnifying party will be entitled to participate therein and, to the extent that it may
wish, jointly with any other indemnifying party similarly notified, to assume the defense thereof, with counsel reasonably satisfactory to such
indemnified party (who shall not, except with the consent of theindemnified party, act as both counsel to the indemnified and indemnifying
parties in such action if, in the reasonable opinion of counsel to theindemnified party, a conflict exists which makes such joint representation
not advisable), and after notice from the indemnifying party to suchindemnified party of its election to so assume the defense thereof the
indemnifying party will not be
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liable to such indemnified party under this Section 6.07 for any legal or other expenses (other thanin the event theindemnified party retainsits
own counsel pursuant to the preceding parenthetical, in which casethe indemnifying party shall be liablefor the reasonable fees and expenses
of one counsdl), other than reasonable costs of investiga tion, subsegquently incurred by such indemnified party in connection with the defense
thereof. No indemnifying party shall, without the prior written consent of the indemnified party, (whichshall not be unreasonably withheld),
effect any settlement of any pending or threatened action in respect of which any indemnified party is or could have been a party and indemnity
could have been sought hereunder by suchindemnified party unless such settlement includesan unconditional release of such indemnified party
from all liability on any claimsthat are the subject matter of such action. No indemnifying party shall be liable for any amounts paid in
settlement of any action or claim without its written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

(d) If the indemnification provided for in thisSection 6.07 is unavailable or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party under
subsections (a) or (b) above, then each indemnifying party shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such indemnified party as a result
of thelosses, claims, damages or ligbilities (or actions in respect thereof) referred to in subsection (a) or (b) above (i) in such proportion asis
appropriate to reflect therelative benefits received by the indemnifying party or parties on the one hand and theindemnified party onthe other
from theregistration statement governed by this Article VI and the original financing relating thereto, or (ii) if theallocation provided by the
foregoing clause (i) is not permitted by applicable law, in such proportion asis appropriate to reflect not only therelative benefits referred to in
clause (i) above but also therelative fault of theindemnifying party or parties on the one hand and theindemnified party on the other in
connection with the statements or omissions that resulted in such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actionsin respect thereof) as well as
any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the parties shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the
untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state amaterial fact relatesto information supplied
by the Company on the one hand or such Holder or such other indemnified person, as the case may be, on the other, and the parties relative
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission. The amount paid by an indemnified
party as aresult of the losses, claims, damages or liabilities referred to in thefirst sentenceof this subsection (d) shall be deemed to include any
legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by suchindemnified party in connection with investigating or defending any action or claimwhich
isthe subject of this subsection (d). Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 6.07(d), the Holders of the Securities shall not be
required to contribute any amount in excess of the amount by which the net proceeds received by such Holders fromthe sale of the Warrants
pursuant to the Warrant Shelf Registration Statement or the
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Warrant Shares pursuant to the Warrant Share Shelf Registration Statement or Resale Shelf Registration Statement or the Warrants or Warrant
Shares pursuant to any registration statement governed by Section 6.04 exceeds the amount of damages which such Holders have otherwise
been required to pay by reason of such untrueor aleged untruestatement or omission or alleged omission. No person guilty of fraudulent
misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not
guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. For purposes of this paragraph

(d), each person, if any, who controls such indemnified party withinthe meaning of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act shall have the same
rights to contribution as such indemnified party and each person, if any, who controls the Company withinthe meaning of the Securities Act or
the Exchange Act shall have the same rights to contribution as the Company.

(e) The agreementscontained in this Section 6.07 shall survive the sale of the Securities pursuant to the registration statements governed by this
Article VI and shall remainin full force and effect, regardless of any termination or cancelation of this Agreement or any investigation made by
or on behaf of any indemnified party.

SECTION 6.08. Additional Acts. If thesale of Warrants or the issuance or sale of any Common Stock or other securities issuable upon the
exercise of the Warrants requiresregistration or approval of any governmental authority (other than the registration requirements under the
Securities Act), or the taking of any other action under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof before such securities
may be validly offered or sold in compliance with such laws, then the Company covenants that it will, in good faith and asexpeditiously as
reasonably possible, use its reasonable best effortsto secure and maintain such registration or approval or to take such other action, as the case
may be. The Company shall promptly notify theWarrant Agent in writing when (i) the Company has obtained all such governmental approvals
and authorizations and (ii) such approvals and authorizations thereafter cease to be in effect.

SECTION 6.09. Expenses. All expensesincident to the Company's performance of or compliance with its obligations under thisArticle VI will
be borne by the Company, including: (i) all Commission, stock exchange or National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. registration and
filing fees, (ii) all reasonable fees and expensesincurred in connection with the compliance with state securities or blue sky laws, (iii) all
expenses of any Personsincurred by or on behalf of the Company in preparing or assisting in preparing, printing and distributing the
Registration Statements or any registration statement governed by Section 6.04, prospectus, any amendmentsor supplements thereto and other
documentsrelating to the performance of and compliance with this Article VI,

(iv) thefees and disbursements of the Warrant Agent as agreed, (v) the feesand disbursements of
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counsel for the Company and the Warrant Agent as agreed and (vi) thefees and disbursements of theindependent public accountants of the
Company, including the expenses of any special audits or comfort letters required by or incident to such performance and compliance.

ARTICLE VII
TheWarrant and Escrow Agent

SECTION 7.01. Duties and Liabilities. The Company hereby appoints the Warrant Agent to act as agent of the Company as set forth in this
Agreement. The Warrant Agent hereby accepts the agency established by thisAgreement and agrees to perform the same upon the terms and
conditions herein set forth, by all of whichthe Company and the Holders of Warrants, by their acceptance thereof, shall be bound. The Warrant
Agent shall not have any obligation towards or relationship of agency or trust for the Holders. The Warrant Agent shall not, by countersigning
Warrant Certificates or by any other act hereunder, be deemed to make any representations asto thevalidity or authorization of the Warrants or
the Warrant Certificates (except as to its countersignature thereon) or of any securities or other property delivered upon exercise of any
Warrant, or asto theaccuracy of the calculation of the Exercise Price, or the number or kind or amount of Common Stock or other securities or
other property deliverable upon exercise of any Warrant, or as to the correctness of the representations of the Company made in the certificates
that the Warrant Agent receives or thevalidity, sufficiency or adequacy of any offering materials. The Warrant Agent shall not have any
obligation to calculate or determine any adjustments with respect to either (i) the Exercise Price, or

(ii) thetype or quantity of securities receivable by a Holder upon exercise or repurchase of such Holder's Warrants, nor shall the Warrant Agent
have a duty to independently verify any such adjustments that may be supplied to it by the Company. The Warrant Agent shall not (a) be liable
for any recital or statement of fact contained herein or in the Warrant Certificates or for any action taken, suffered or omitted by it in good faith
inthe belief that any Warrant Certificate or any other documents or any signatures are genuineor properly authorized, (b) be responsible for
any failure on the part of the Company to comply with any of its covenants and obligations contained in this Agreement or in the Warrant
Certificates or (c) beliable for any act or omission in connection with this Agreement except for its own gross negligence or wilful misconduct.
The Warrant Agent is hereby authorized to accept instructionswith respect to the performance of itsduties hereunder from the Chief Executive
Officer, President, any Vice President or the Secretary or Treasurer of the Company and to apply to any such officer for instructions (which
instructions will be promptly given in writing whenrequested) andthe Warrant Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or suffered to be
taken by it in good
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faith in accordance with the instructions of any such officer; however, in itssole discretion, the Warrant Agent may in lieu thereof accept other
evidence of such or may require such further or additional evidence asit may deem reasonable. The Warrant Agent shall not be liable for any
action taken, or for any failureto take any action, with respect to any matter in the event it requests instructions from the Company as to that
matter and does not receive such instructionswithin a reasonable period of time after the request therefor.

In theevent of any disagreement resulting in adverse claims or demandsbeing made in connection with the matterscovered by this Agreement,
or inthe event that the Warrant Agent, in good faith, shall be in doubt as to what action it should take hereunder, the Warrant Agent may at its
option, refuseto comply with any claims or demands on it, or refuse to take any other action hereunder, so long as such disagreement continues
or such doubt exists, and in any such event, the Warrant Agent shall not be or becomeliable in any way or to any person for its failure or refusal
to act, and theWarrant Agent shall be entitled to continue so to refrain fromaction until (i) therights of all interested parties shall have been
fully and finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction or (ii) al differencesshall have been adjudged and all doubt resolved by
agreement among all of the interested persons, and in each of the casesin clauses (i) and (ii) the Warrant Agent shall have been notified thereof
inawriting signed by all such persons. Notwithstanding the preceding, the Warrant Agent may in itsdiscretion obey the order, judgment,
decree or levy of any court, whether with or without jurisdiction, or of any agency of the United States or any political subdivision thereof, or of
any agency of the State of New Y ork or of any political subdivision thereof, and the Warrant Agentis hereby authorized in itssole discretion, to
comply with and obey (and shall have no liability to any person for so doing) any such orders, judgments, decrees or levies which the Warrant
Agent isadvised by legal counsel of itsown choosing is binding uponit. The rights of the Warrant Agent under this paragraph arein addition to
all other rights which it may have by law or otherwise.

The Warrant Agent may execute and exercise any of therights and powers hereby vested in it or perform any duty hereunder either itself or by
or through its attorneys, agents or employees, and the Warrant Agent shall not be answerable or accountable for any act, default, neglect or
misconduct of any such attorneys, agentsor employees; provided, however, reasonable care has been exercised in the selection and in the
continued employment of any such attorney, agent or employee. The Warrant Agent shall not be under any obligation or duty to institute,
appear in or defend any action, suit or legal proceeding in respect hereof, unlessfirst indemnified to its satisfaction, but this provision shall not
affect the power of the Warrant Agent to take such action as the Warrant Agent may consider proper, whether withor without suchindemnity.
The Warrant Agent
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shall promptly notify the Company in writing of any claim made or action, suit or proceeding instituted against it arising out of or in connection
with this Agreement.

The Warrant Agent may rely and shall be fully protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any certificate, notice, instruction, Warrant,
document or other writing believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper Person. The Warrant Agent need not
investigate any fact or matter stated in any such certificate, notice, instruction, Warrant, document or other writing. The Warrant Agent shall not
be liable for any actionthat it takes or omitsto take in good faith whichit believes to be authorized or within itsrights or powers.

The Company will perform, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be performed, executed, acknowledged and delivered al such further
acts, instrumentsand assurances as are consistent with thisAgreement and asmay reasonably be required by the Warrant Agent in order to
enable it to carry out or performits duties under thisAgreement.

The Warrant Agent shall act solely as agent of the Company hereunder. The Warrant Agent shall not be liable except for the failureto perform
such duties as are specifically set forth herein, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Agreement against the Warrant
Agent, whose duties and obligations shall be determined solely by the express provisions hereof.

With respect to theidentity of beneficial owners of interests in the Global Warrant and the number of Warrants beneficially owned by any
beneficial owner, the Warrant Agent shall be entitled to rely conclusively on therecords of DTC and shall be fully protectedin so relying.

SECTION 7.02. Right To Consult Counsel. The Warrant Agent may at any time consult with legal counsel acceptableto it (whomay be lega
counsel for the Company), and the opinion or advice of such counsdl shall be full and compl ete authorization and protection to the Warrant
Agent and the Warrant Agent shall incur no liability or responsibility to the Company or to any Holder for any action taken, suffered or omitted
by it in good faith in accordance with the opinion or advice of such counsel.

SECTION 7.03. Compensation; Indemnification. The Company agrees to pay to the Warrant Agent from time to time compensation for all
services rendered by it hereunder as the Company and the Warrant Agent may agree in writing from time to time, and to reimburse the Warrant
Agent for reasonable expenses and disbursements incurred in connection withthe execution and administration of thisAgreement (including the
reasonabl e fees and the expenses of its counsel), and further agrees to indemnify the Warrant Agent for, and to hold it
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harmless against, any claim, loss, liability or expense arising out of or in connection with the acceptance and administration of this Agreement,
including the costs and expenses of defending itself against any such claim or liability, except that the Company shall have no liability
hereunder to theextent that any such loss, liability or expense results from the Warrant Agent's own gross negligence or wilful misconduct. The

obligations of the Company under this
Section 7.03 shall survivethe exercise and the expiration of the Warrants and theresignation or removal of the Warrant Agent. No provision of

this Agreement shall require the Warrant Agent to expend or risk its own fundsor otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of
any of its duties hereunder or in the exercise of any of its rights or powersif it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of
such fundsor adequate indemnity against such risk or liability is not reasonably assured to it.

SECTION 7.04. No Restrictions on Actions. The Warrant Agent and any stockholder, director, officer or employee of the Warrant Agent may
buy, sdll or deal in any of the Warrants or other securities of the Company or become pecuniarily interested in transactions in whichthe
Company may be interested, or contract withor lend money to the Company or otherwise act as fully and freely as though it were not the
Warrant Agent under this Agreement. Nothing herein shall preclude the Warrant Agent from acting in any other capacity for the Company or
for any other legal entity.

SECTION 7.05. Discharge or Removal; Replacement Warrant Agent. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 7.05, and except after the
exercise of all of the outstanding Warrants and the delivery of Warrant Shares with respect thereto, no resignation or removal of the Warrant
Agent and no appointment of a successor warrant agent shall become effective until the acceptance of appointment by the successor warrant
agent provided herein. The Warrant Agent may resign from itsposition as such and be discharged from all further duties and liabilities
hereunder (except liabilities arising as a result of the Warrant Agent's own gross negligence or wilful misconduct), after giving one month's
prior written notice to the Company. The Company may remove the Warrant Agent upon one month's prior written notice specifying the date
when such discharge shall take effect, and the Warrant Agent shall thereupon in like manner be discharged from all further duties and liabilities
hereunder, except as aforesaid. The Warrant Agent or the Company shall cause to be mailed (by first-class mail, postage prepaid) to each
Holder of aWarrant a copy of said noticeof resignation or notice of removal, as the case may be. Upon such resignation or removal the
Company shall appoint in writing a new warrant agent. |f the Company shall fail to make such appointment withina period of 30 calendar days
after it hasbeen notified in writing of such resignation by theresigning Warrant Agent or after such removal, then theresigning Warrant Agent
or the Holder of any Warrant may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment
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of anew warrant agent. Any new warrant agent, whether appointed by the Company or by such a court, shall be abank or trust company doing
business under the lawsof the United States or any state thereof, in good standing and having a combined capital and surplus of not lessthan
$50,000,000. The combined capital and surplus of any such new warrant agent shall be deemed to be the combined capital and surplus asset
forth in the most recent annual report of its condition published by such warrant agent prior to its appointment; provided, however, that such
reports are published at least annually pursuant to law or to the requirements of a federal or state supervising or examining authority. After
acceptance in writing of such appointment by the new warrant agent, it shall be vested with the same powers, rights, duties and responsibilities
asif it had been originally named herein as the Warrant Agent, without any further assurance, conveyance, act or deed; however, the original
Warrant Agent, upon payment of its feesand expenses, shall in al events deliver and transfer to the successor Warrant Agent all property, if
any, at thetime held hereunder by theoriginal Warrant Agent and if for any reason it shall be necessary or expedient to execute and deliver any
further assurance, conveyance, act or deed, the sameshall be done at the expense of the Company and shall be legally and validly executed and
delivered by the resigning or removed Warrant Agent. Not later than the effective date of any such appointment, the Company shall file a notice
thereof with theresigning or removed Warrant Agent and shall forthwith causea copy of such noticeto be mailed to each Holder of a Warrant.
Failure to give any notice provided for in this Section 7.05, however, or any defect therein, shall not affect thelegality or validity of the

resignation of the Warrant Agent or the appointment of a new warrant agent, as the case may be.

SECTION 7.06. Successor Warrant Agent. Any corporation into which the Warrant Agent or any successor warrant agent may be merged or
converted, or any corporation resulting fromany consolidation to which the Warrant Agent or any successor warrant agent shall be a party, and
any corporation that acquires substantially all of the corporate trust business of the Warrant Agent, shall be a successor Warrant Agent under
this Agreement without any further act; provided, however, that such corporation would be eligible for appointment as successor to the Warrant
Agent under the provisions of Section 7.05 hereof. Any such successor Warrant Agent shall promptly cause notice of its succession as Warrant
Agent to be mailed (by first-class mail, postage prepaid) to each Holder of a Warrant.

ARTICLE VIII
Warrant Holders

42

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




SECTION 8.01. Warrant Holder Not Deemed a Holder of Common Stock. Prior to the exercise of the Warrants, no Holder of a Warrant
Certificate, as such, shall be entitled to any rights of a holder of Common Stock.

SECTION 8.02. Right of Action. All rights of action with respect to this Agreement are vested in the Holders of the Warrants, and any Holder
of any Warrant, without the consent of the Warrant Agent or the Holder of any other Warrant, may, on such Holder's own behalf and for such
Holder's own benefit, enforce, and may institute and maintain any suit, action or proceeding against the Company suitableto enforce, or
otherwise in respect of, such Holder's right to exercise, exchange or tender for purchase such Holder's Warrants in the manner provided in the
Warrant Certificate representing his Warrants andin this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX
Miscellaneous

SECTION 9.01. Payment of Taxes. The Company shall pay any stamp, registration, and other similar taxesand other governmental charges that
may be imposed under thelaws of the United States of Americaor any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein in respect of
the issue or delivery thereof or of other securities deliverable upon exercise of Warrants (other than income taxes imposed on theHolders). The
Company shall not be required, however, to pay any tax or other charge imposed in connection withany transfer involved in the issue of any
Warrant Shares to any Person other than the Holder of a Warrant Certificate surrendered upon the exercise of aWarrant, and in case of such
transfer or payment, the Warrant Agent and the Company shall not be required to issue any Warrant Shares or pay any cash until such tax or
charge has been paid or it hasbeen established to the Warrant Agent's and the Company's satisfaction that no such tax or other charge is due.
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SECTION 9.02. Reports to Holders. The Company shall:

(a) filethe reports (or copies of such portions of any of theforegoing as the Commission may from time to time by rules and regulations
prescribe) requiredto be filed by it under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, and the rules, regulations and policies adopted by the
Commission thereunder in atimely manner in accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act andthe Exchange Act; or, if the Company
isnot required to file information, documents or reports pursuant to either of said Sections, then the Company shall, upon the request of any
Holder or beneficial owner of Warrants, makeavailable such information as necessary to permit sales pursuant to Rule 144 or Rule 144A under
the SecuritiesAct; and

(b) file with the Warrant Agent and the Commission, in accordance with rules and regulations prescribed from time to time by the Commission,
such additional information, documents and reports withrespect to compliance by the Company with the conditions and covenants of this
Agreement as may be required from time to time by such rules and regulations.

SECTION 9.03. Notices. All notices and other communicationsprovided for or permitted hereunder shall be made in writing by hand-delivery,
registered first-class mail, telex, telecopier, or any air courier (a) if to a Holder of the Warrants, at the address of such Holder maintained by the
Warrant Agent, (b) if to the Company, to Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., 1221 Avenue of the Americas, New Y ork, New Y ork 10020, Attention:
Patrick L. Donnelly and (c) if to the Warrant Agent, to United States Trust Company of New Y ork, 114 West 47th Street, New Y ork, NY
10036, Attention: Corporate Trust Administration.

All such noticesand communications shall be deemed to have been duly given; at thetime delivered by hand, if personally delivered; at the
timereceived, if mailed or sent by air courier; when answered back, if telexed; and when receipt is acknowledged, by recipient's tel ecopy
operator, if telecopied.

SECTION 9.04. Severahility. If any one or more of the provisions contained herein, or the application thereof in any circumstance, is held
invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of any such provision in every other respect and of the remaining
provisions contained herein shall not be affected or impaired thereby.

SECTION 9.05. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and the Warrant Agent and
their respective successors and assigns, and the Holders from time to time of the Warrants. Nothing in this Agreement isintended or shall be
construed to confer upon any Person, other than the Company, the Warrant Agent and the Holders of
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the Warrants (as well as the persons entitled to the benefits of indemnification under Section 6.07), any right, remedy or claim under or by
reason of this Agreement or any part hereof.

SECTION 9.06. Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Holders and holders of Warrant Shares shall be third-party beneficiaries to the agreements
made hereunder between the Company, on the one hand, and the Warrant Agent, on the other hand, and each Holder and holder of Warrant

Shares shall have the right to enforce such agreements directly to the extent it deemssuch enforcement necessary or advisable to protect its
rights or the rights of Holders or holders of Warrant Shares hereunder.

SECTION 9.07. Amendments. The Company may, without the consent of the Holders of the Warrants, by supplemental agreement or
otherwise, makeany changesor corrections in this Agreement that it shall have been advised by counsel (a) are required to cure any ambiguity
or to correct or supplement any provision herein which may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision herein or (b) add to the
covenants and agreements of the Company for the benefit of the Holders, or surrender any rights or power reserved to or conferred upon the
Company in this Agreement; provided, however, that, in each case, such changes or correctionsshall not adversely affect the interests of the
Holders or holders of Warrant Shares in any material respect. Amendments or supplements which do not meet the requirements of the
preceding sentence shall require thewritten consent of the Holders of a majority of thethen outstanding Warrants and, to the extent such
amendment or supplement affects therights of holders of Warrant Shares under Article V1 hereof, thewritten consent of the holders of a
majority of the then outstanding Warrant Shares; provided, however, that the consent of each Holder is required for any amendment or
supplement pursuant to which the Exercise Price would be increased (other than pursuant to adjustments as provided in Article IV of this
Agreement). The Warrant Agent shall join withthe Company in the execution and delivery of any such supplemental agreements unless it
affects the Warrant Agent's own rights, duties of immunities hereunder, in which case the Warrant Agent may, but shall not be required to, join
in such execution and delivery.

SECTION 9.08. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the
meaning of any provision hereof.

SECTION 9.09. GOVERNING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT AND THE WARRANTS SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWSOF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF
LAW.
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SECTION 9.10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be anoriginal and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
agreement.

[Signature page follows.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed al as of theday and year first above written.

SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.

By: /s/ Patrick L. Donnelly

Name: Patrick L. Donnelly
Title: Senior Vice President

UNITED STATES TRUST COMPANY OF
NEW YORK, Warrant Agent and Escrow Agent

By: /s/ Patricia Gallagher

Narme: Patricia Gllagher
Title: Assistant Vice President

47

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




EXHIBITATO
WARRANT AGREEMENT

CUSIP No. [ ](2)
No. [ ] Certificatefor [] [First/Second](1) Tranche Warrants

WARRANTS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK OF
SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.

THIS CERTIFIES THAT [ ], or its registered assigns, isthe registered holder of the number of Warrants set forth above (the "Warrants"). Each
Warrant entitles the holder thereof (the "Holder"), at its option and subject to the provisions contained herein and in the Warrant Agreement
referred to below, to purchase from SIRIUS SATELLITE RADIO INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), one (1) share of Common
Stock, par value of $0.001 per share, of the Company (the "Common Stock") at the per share exercise price of

[$44.46/the Second Tranche Exercise Price (as defined in the Warrant Agreement)]1/ (the "Exercise Price"), or by Cashless Exercisereferred to
below. Each Warrant shall terminate and becomevoid asof 5:00 p.m., New Y ork City time, on thetenth anniversary of the Vesting Date of the
Warrant (as defined in the Warrant Agreement) (the "Expiration Date") if not previously exercised. The number of sharesissuable upon
exercise of the Warrants and the Exercise Price per share shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as set forth in the Warrant

Agreement.

ThisWarrant Certificateisissued under and in accordance with a Warrant Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 (the "Warrant Agreement"),
between the Company and United States Trust Company of New Y ork, asWarrant Agent and Escrow Agent (the "Warrant Agent”, whichterm
includes any successor Warrant Agent under the Warrant Agreement), and is subject to the termsand provisions contained in the Warrant
Agreement, to all of which termsand provisions the Holder of the Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate consentsby acceptance
hereof. The Warrant Agreement is hereby incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Referenceis hereby made to the

(1) To befilled in as applicable to First Tranche Warrants and Second Tranche Warrants.
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Warrant Agreement for afull statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and obligations of the Company, the Warrant Agent
and the Holders of the Warrants. Capitalized termsused but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Warrant
Agreement.

The Warrants will initially be delivered by the Company to the Warrant Agent which will hold the Warrants in escrow pursuant to the Warrant
Agreement. The Warrants may be released from such escrow on or after their Vesting Dates.

Subject to theterms of the Warrant Agreement, the Warrants may be exercised in whole(i) by presentation of thisWarrant Certificate with the
Election to Purchase attached hereto duly executed and withthe simultaneous payment of the Exercise Price in cash (subject to adjustment) to
the Warrant Agent for the account of the Company at the office of theWarrant Agent or (ii) by Cashless Exercise. Payment of the Exercise
Price in cash shall be made by certified or official bank check payable to the order of the Company or by wire transfer of fundsto an account
designated by the Company for such purpose. Payment by Cashless Exercise shall be made without the payment of cash by reducing the amount
of Common Stock that would be obtainable upon the exercise of a Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price in cash so as to yield a number of
shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of such Warrant equal to the product of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock for which such
Warrant is exercisable as of the Exercise Date (if the Exercise Price werebeing paid in cash) and (2) a fraction, the numerator of whichisthe
excess of the Current Market VValue per share of Common Stock on the Exercise Date over the Exercise Price per share as of the Exercise Date
and the denominator of which isthe Current Market Value per share of the Common Stock on the Exercise Date.

Asprovided inthe Warrant Agreement and subject to the termsand conditions therein set forth, including the provisions regarding Vesting
Dates, the Warrants shall be exercisable at any time and from time to time on any Business Day on or after the Exercisability Date; provided,
however, that Holders of Warrants will be able to exercise their Warrants only if the Registration Statement relating to the Common Stock
underlying the Warrants is effective or the exercise of suchWarrantsis exempt from theregistration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933
and such securities arequalified for sale or exempt from qualification under the applicable securities lawsof the statesor other jurisdictions in
which such Holders reside; provided further, however, that no Warrant shall be exercisable after the tenth anniversary of its Vesting Date.

In theevent of a Fundamental Transaction, the Holder hereof will be entitled to receive upon exercise of the Warrants the kind and amount of
shares of capital stock or other securities or other property as the Holder would have received had the Holder exercised itsWarrants
immediately prior to such
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Fundamental Transaction; provided, however, that in the event that, in connection with such Fundamental Transaction (other than witha
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that does not result in a reduction in consolidated net worth), consideration to holders of Common
Stock in exchange for their sharesis payable solely in cash or in the event of thedissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the Company, the
Holder hereof will be entitled to receive such cash distributions on an equal basis with the holders of Common Stock or other securities issuable
upon exercise of the Warrants, asif the Warrants had been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction, lessthe Exercise
Price.

Asprovided inthe Warrant Agreement, the number of sharesof Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of the Warrants and the Exercise
Price are subject to adjustment upon the happening of certain events.

The Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to pay all taxes, assessmentsor other governmental charges in connection with the
transfer or exchange of the Warrant Certificates pursuant to Section 5.02 of the Warrant Agree ment, but not for any exchange or original
issuance (hot involving a transfer) with respect to temporary Warrant Certificates, the exercise of the Warrants or the Warrant Shares.

Upon any exercise of the Warrants for less than all of the Warrants represented by this Warrant Certificate, there shall be countersigned and
issued to theHolder hereof a new Warrant Certificate representing those Warrants which werenot exercised. This Warrant Certificate may be
exchanged at the office of the Warrant Agent by presenting this Warrant Certificate properly endorsed with a request to exchange this Warrant
Certificate for other Warrant Certificates evidencing an equal number of Warrants. No fractional Warrant Shares will be issued upon the
exercise of the Warrants, but the Company shall pay an amount in cash equal to the Current Market VValue per Warrant Share on the day
immediately preceding the date the Warrant is exercised, multiplied by thefraction of a Warrant Share that would be issuable on the exercise of
any Warrant.

All shares of Common Stock issuable by the Company upon the exercise of the Warrants shall, upon suchissue, be duly and validly issued and
fully paid and non-assessable.

The holder in whose name this Warrant Certificateis registered may be deemed and treated by the Company and the Warrant Agent as the
absolute owner of the Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate for al purposes whatsoever and neither the Company nor the Warrant
Agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.
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The Warrants do not entitle any Holder hereof to any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company.
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ThisWarrant Certificate shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until it shall have been countersigned by the Warrant Agent.
SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

Countersigned:

UNITED STATES TRUST COMPANY OF NEW YORK,
as Warrant Agent and Escrow Agent,

By:
Authorized Signatory
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FORM OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE WARRANT SHARES (to
be executed only upon exercise of Warrants)

SIRIUSSATELLITE RADIO INC.
The undersigned hereby irrevocably electsto exercise [First/Second] Tranche Warrants to acquire shares of Common Stock,
par value $.001 per share, of Sirius Satellite Radio Inc., at an exercise price per share of Common Stock of [$44.46/the Second Tranche
Exercise Price] and otherwise on theterms and conditions specified in the within Warrant Certificate and the Warrant Agreement therein
referred to, surrenders this Warrant Certificate andall right, titleand interest therein to Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. and directs that the shares of
Common Stock deliverable upon the exercise of such Warrants be registered or placed in the name and at the address specified below and
delivered thereto.

Date:

@
(Signature of Owner)

(Street Address)

(City) (State) (Zip Code)

Signatur e Guaranteed by:

Securities and/or check to be issued to:
Please insert social security or identifying number:
(1) The signature must correspond with the name as written upon theface of the within Warrant Certificatein every particular, without

alteration or enlargement or any change whatever, and must be guaranteed by a national bank or trust company or by a member firm of any
national securities exchange.
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Name:
Street Address:
City, Stateand Zip Code:
A new Warrant Certificate evidencing any unexercised Warrants evidenced by the within Warrant Certificateisto be issued to:
Please insert social security or identifying number:
Name:
Street Address:

City, Stateand Zip Code:
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In connection with any transfer of any of the Warrants evidenced by thiscertificate occurring prior to the expiration of theperiod referred toin
Rule 144(Kk) under the Securities Act after the later of the Vesting Date of such Warrants and thelast date, if any, on which such Warrants were
owned by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company, the undersigned certifiesthat such Warrants are being transferred in accordance with

its terms;

CHECK ONE BOX BELOW

(1)
(2)

(3)
or
(4)

(5)

to the Conpany; or

pursuant to an effective registration statenent under the
Securities Act of 1933; or

pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933;
outside the United States in accordance with Rule 904 of
Regul ation S under the Securities Act of 1933; or

pursuant to another avail abl e exenption fromregistration
provi ded under the Securities Act of 1933.

Unl ess one of the boxes is checked, the Warrant Agent wil |

refuse to register any of the Warrants evidenced by this certificate in the name of any person other than theregistered holder thereof; provided,
however, that if box (4) is checked, the Warrant Agent may require, prior to registering any such transfer of the Warrants, such legal opinions,
additional certifications and other information as the Company has reasonably requested to confirm that such transfer is being made pursuant to
an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, such asthe exemption

provided by Rule 144 under such Act.

Signatur e Guarantee:

Signature must be guaranteed Signature

Signature
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SCHEDULE OF EXCHANGESOF CERTIFICATED WARRANT (1)

The following exchanges of apart of this Global Warrant Certificate for definitive Warrants have been made:

Nunber of
Warrants in this
Anount of change in d obal Warrant
Nurmber of Warrants Certificate Si gnature of
Dat e of in this d obal fol |l owi ng aut hori zed officer
Exchange Warrant Certificate such change of Warrant Agent

(3) To beincluded only if the Warrant isin global form.
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EXHIBITBTO
WARRANT AGREEMENT

FORM OF LEGEND FOR GLOBAL WARRANTS
Any Global Warrant authenticated and delivered hereunder shall bear alegend in substantially the following form:

THIS WARRANT ISA GLOBAL WARRANT WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE WARRANT AGREEMENT HEREINAFTER
REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITORY OR A NOMINEE OF A DEPOSITORY OR A SUCCESSOR
DEPOSITORY. THIS WARRANT ISNOT EXCHANGEABLE FORWARRANTS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A PERSON OTHER
THAN THE DEPOSITORY ORITS NOMINEE EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE WARRANT
AGREEMENT, AND NOTRANSFER OF THIS WARRANT (OTHER THAN A TRANSFER OF THIS WARRANT ASA WHOLE BY
THE DEPOSITORY TO A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITORY ORBY A NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITORY TO THE DEPOSITORY OR
ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE DEPOSITORY) MAY BE REGISTERED EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED
IN THE WARRANT AGREEMENT.

UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE ISPRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST
COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO THE COMPANY OR ITSAGENT FORREGISTRATION OF TRANSFER,
EXCHANGE, OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED ISREGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. ORIN SUCH
OTHER NAME ASISREQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE
& CO. ORTO SUCH OTHER ENTITY ASISREQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER,
PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH ASTHE
REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.
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EXHIBIT C
TO THE WARRANT AGREEMENT

FORM OF TRANSFER RESTRICTION LEGEND

THIS SECURITY (OR ITSPREDECESSOR) HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 (THE
"SECURITIES ACT"), ORANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS. NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION
HEREIN MAY BE REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED, ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF
IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR UNLESS SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, ORNOT SUBJECT TO,
REGISTRATION AS SET FORTH BELOW. EACH PURCHASER OF THIS SECURITY IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLER
MAY BERELYING ON THE EXEMPTION FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY
RULE 144A THEREUNDER ("RULE 144A"). BY ITS ACQUISITION HEREOF, THE HOLDER (1) REPRESENTS THAT IT ISA
"QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" (ASDEFINED IN RULE 144A), ANINSTITUTIONAL "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" OR NOT
A "U.S. PERSON" (ASDEFINED IN RULE 902 OF THE SECURITIES ACT) AND (2) AGREES TO OFFER, SELL OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFER SUCH SECURITY PRIOR TO THE DATE WHICH ISTWO YEARSAFTER THE LATER OF THE ORIGINAL ISSUE
DATE HEREOF AND THE LAST DATE ON WHICH THE COMPANY OR ANY AFFILIATE OF THE COMPANY WAS THE OWNER
OF THIS SECURITY (OR ANY PREDECESSOR OF THIS SECURITY) ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY ORANY OF ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, (B) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WHICH HASBEEN DECLARED EFFECTIVE UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT, (C) FOR SO LONG ASTHIS SECURITY ISELIGIBLE FOR RESALEPURSUANT TO RULE 144A INSIDE THE
UNITED STATES, TOA PERSON IT REASONABLY BELIEVES ISA "QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" ASDEFINED IN
RULE 144A THAT PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER
TO WHOM NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER ISBEING MADE IN RELIANCE ON RULE 144A, (D) OUTSIDE THE UNITED
STATES IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 904 OF REGULATION SUNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (E) PURSUANT TO
ANOTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT.
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EXHIBITDTO
WARRANT AGREEMENT

FORM OF ACCREDITED INVESTOR CERTIFICATE
TRANSFEREE LETTER OF REPRESENTATION

United States Trust Company of New Y ork
114 West 47th Street

New York, New York 10036

Attention: Corporate Trust Administration

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connection with our proposed purchase of [ ] Warrants (the "Warrants') entitling the hol ders thereof to purchase shares of common stock,
par value $.001 per share, of Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. (the "Issuer"), we confirm that:

1. We are(a) an ingtitutional "accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the " Securities Act")), purchasing for our own account or for the account of such an ingtitutional "accredited investor” asto
whichwe exercise soleinvestment discretion, and we have such knowledge and experiencein financial and business mattersas to be capable of
evaluating the merits andrisks of our investment in the Warrants, and we and any account for which we are acting are each able to bear the
economic risk of our or itsinvestment, (b) a'qualified institutional buyer" (as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act) or (¢) anon"U.S.
person” (as defined in Rule 902 of the Securities Act).

2. We understand and acknowledgethat the Warrants have not been registered under the Securities Act or any other applicable securities law,
and that the Warrants may not be offered or sold except as permitted in the following sentence. We agree, on our own behalf and on behalf of
any account for which we areacting, that if we should sell any Warrants within thetime period referred to in Rule 144(k) of the Securities Act,
we will do so only (A) to the Issuer or any subsidiary thereof, (B) to a"qualified institutional buyer" (as defined in Rule 144A of the Securities
Act), or to an ingtitutional "accredited investor" (as defined above) in either casethat, prior to suchtransfer, furnishesto the Warrant Agent
under the Warrant Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000, governing the Warrants a signed letter containing certain representations and
agreements relating to therestrictions on transfer of the Warrants (the form of which letter can be obtained from the Warrant Agent) andan
opinion of counsel acceptableto thelssuer that such transferisin compliance with
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the SecuritiesAct, (C) outside the United Statesin accordance with Rule 904 of Regulation S under the Securities Act, (D) pursuant to the
exemption from registration provided by Rule 144 under the Securities Act (if available) or (E) pursuant to an effective registration statement
under the Securities Act, and we further agree to provide to any person purchasing any of the Warrants from us a notice advising such purchaser
that resales of the Warrants arerestricted as stated herein.

3. We understand that, on any proposed resale of any Warrants, we will be required to furnishto the I ssuer and the Warrant Agent such
certifications, legal opinions and other information as the I ssuers and the Warrant Agent may reasonably require to confirmthat the proposed
sale complieswith the foregoing restrictions. We further understand that the Warrants purchased by uswill bear alegend to theforegoing
effect.

4. We areacquiring the Warrants for investment purposes and not with a view to distribution thereof or with any present intention of offering or
selling any Warrants, except aspermitted above; provided that the disposition of our property and property of any accounts for whichwe are
acting as fiduciary will remain at al timeswithin our control.

You and the Issuer are entitled to rely upon this letter and you are irrevocably authorized to produce this letter or a copy hereof to any interested
party in any administrative or legal proceeding or official inquiry withrespect to the matters covered hereby.

THIS LETTER SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK (WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES THEREOF, OTHER THAN ANY MANDATING
THE APPLICATION OF SUCH LAWS).

Very truly yours,

(Name of Purchaser)

By:

Name:
Title:

Date:

Upon transfer, the Warrants would be registered in the nameof the new beneficial owner asfollows:
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By:

Date:
Taxpayer ID number:
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ARTICLE 5

FISCAL YEAR END
PERIOD START
PERIOD END

PERIOD TYPE

CASH

SECURITIES
RECEIVABLES
ALLOWANCES
INVENTORY
CURRENT ASSETS
PP&E

DEPRECIATION
TOTAL ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
BONDS

COMMON

PREFERRED MANDATORY
PREFERRED

OTHER SE

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY
SALES

TOTAL REVENUES
CGS

TOTAL COSTS

OTHER EXPENSES
LOSSPROVISION
INTEREST EXPENSE
INCOME PRETAX
INCOME TAX

INCOME CONTINUING
DISCONTINUED
EXTRAORDINARY
CHANGES

NET INCOME
EPSBASIC
EPSDILUTED

DEC 312000
JAN 12000
JUN 302000
6 MOS
27,415
373,299

0

0

0

405,461
836,293
1,732
1,364,571
49,125
453,844

42

423,181

0

378,218
1,364,571

L ! —

2002.
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End of Filing
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